Public Document Pack
Local Development Plan Working Group
Meeting Venue
Council Chamber, County Hall County Hall
Meeting date
Wednesday, 9 October 2019

County Hall
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5LG

Meeting time
10.00 am
For further information please contact
Carol Johnson
01597 826206
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk

3 October, 2019

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES

To receive apologies for absence.

2.

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

To authorise the Chair to sign the minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee
held on 21 June, 2019 as a correct record.
(Pages 3 - 4)
3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest from Members relating to items to be
considered on the agenda.

4.

UPDATED CONSULTATION STATEMENT

To consider the updated Consultation Statement and specifically Section 5.
(Pages 5 - 92)
5.

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED IN THE CONSULTATIONS DRAFT
CONSERVATION AREAS AND RESIDENTIAL DESIGN GUIDE
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE [SPGS]

Representations on the Conservation Areas and representations on the Residential
Design Guide.
(Pages 93 - 134)

6.

CONSERVATION AREAS SPG

To consider changes proposed post consultation.
(Pages 135 - 192)
7.

RESIDENTIAL DESIGN GUIDE

To consider changes proposed post consultation.
Please note, the Appendices [pages 53 – 101] for the Residential Design Guide are
not attached as these are unchanged from the previous meeting, but will be referred
to at the meeting. Access to these can be found via the following link: Supplementary agenda Residential Design Guide
(Pages 193 - 252)
8.

UPDATES

To receive updates on other SPGs and issues from Officers.

2
LDP Working Group 2019-06-21

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN WORKING
GROUP HELD AT COMMITTEE ROOM B - COUNTY HALL, LLANDRINDOD
WELLS, POWYS ON FRIDAY, 21 JUNE 2019
PRESENT
County Councillor M Weale (Chair)
County Councillors D O Evans, J Evans, M J Jones, K Laurie-Parry, H Lewis and
R Williams
1.

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors Phyl Davies and
Heulwen Hulme.

2.

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
The Chair was authorised to sign the minutes of the last meeting held on 29
March 2019 as a correct record.

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest reported.

4.

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE - RESIDENTIAL DESIGN
GUIDE
The Supplementary Planning Guidance on Residential Design provided updated guidance on achieving high standards of design in residential
development to support policy DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan. The
SPG was an aid to deliver successful place-making. By aligning the document
to current national legislation and policy guidance, including the all Wales Model
Design Guide for Residential Development, the Council was demonstrably
sharing the government’s aims of “driving up the standard of design in residential
development regardless of the scale”. To be acceptable, development proposals
must seek to deliver development that addresses the national sustainable
placemaking outcomes. Some members of the Working Group felt that too many
obstacles were being put in the way of developers.
The Working Group agreed to give the Portfolio Holder for Economy and
Planning delegated authority to approve any further amendments and that the
revised draft be circulated to the group for further comment prior to being sent
out for consultation.

5.

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE - CONSERVATION AREAS
The Powys LDP area has a total of 55 designated Conservation Areas. In order
to meet the LDP’s aims in terms of protecting the character and appearance of
Conservation Areas and respecting local distinctiveness, an improved
understanding of how character is assessed and how appropriate forms of
development can be designed was needed. Conservation Area Character
Appraisals had not to-date been undertaken and, where possible, the Council
would work with local communities and history groups in the production of
appraisals/characterisation studies. In the meantime, the guidance within the
SPG was to be relied upon when assessing character to inform the design of

Page 3

LDP Working Group 2019-06-21

development proposals put forward through planning and other related
applications.
It was agreed that the Conservation Area SPG should go out for consultation and
the results of the consultation reported back to the LDP Working Group.
County Councillor James Evans left the meeting.
6.

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE - OPEN SPACES
The Open Space SPG had been prepared to provide information and guidance
on how, through implementation of the policies of the LDP, development
proposals should ensure that the provision of Open Space was considered,
preserved, and where appropriate, enhanced. There would be a requirement for
developers to carry out site specific open space assessments for any proposals
involving 10 or more dwellings in locations other than Towns or Large Villages. It
would remain a live document.
The Working Group agreed not to include target figures in Appendix 1 and that
the amended draft be circulated to the members of the Working Group prior to
being sent out for consultation.

County Councillor M Weale
Chair

Page 4

4

Powys
Local Development Plan

2011 - 2026

Supplementary Planning Guidance
(SPG)
Consultation Statement
Second Third Edition: April 2019
October 2019
DRAFT

Page 5

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October
2019

Contents
Page
PART A
1.
Introduction
2.
Information on SPG Preparation Stages
PART B
3.
Public Consultation on the first set of SPG
3.1 Planning Obligations
3.2 Affordable Housing
3.3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity
3.4 Approval and Adoption of the first set of SPG by the
Council
4.
Public Consultation on the second set of SPG
4.1 Landscape
4.2 Renewable Energy
4.3 Approval and Adoption of the second set of SPG by
the Council
5.
Public Consultation on the third set of SPG
5.1 Conservation Areas
5.2 Residential Design Guide
6.
Public Consultation on the fourth set of SPG

1
3

5
6
14
26
68

??
??
??
Section
pending
Section
pending

Appendices
1

Representations from the Public Consultation on the first set of SPG
(October 2018)

2

Representations from the Public Consultation on the second set of
SPG (April 2019)

3

Representations from the Public Consultation on the third set of SPG
(October 2019)

4

Representations from the Public Consultation on the fourth set of SPG
(date pending, 2020)

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council Page

6

i

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

PART A
1.

Introduction

1.0.1 The Powys Local Development Plan (LDP) 2011-2026 was adopted by Full
Council in April 2018. Whilst the LDP contains policies and proposals which form the
basis for decision-making on planning applications for the Powys Local Planning
Authority area, it avoids excessive detail. Therefore, certain policies in the LDP are
being supported by a set of guidance documents called Supplementary Planning
Guidance (SPG) to assist in understanding, interpretation and application of the policy
in making planning decisions.
1.0.2 The preparation of SPG documents has been prioritised according to both
subject matter and available time and resource. The Council is required to monitor its
performance on preparing and adopting SPG against the following agreed programme:

Set 4

Set 3

Set 2

Set 1

Table 1: The Powys Local Development Plan SPG Programme
SPG Topic Area
Link to Powys LDP Target
Policy
Timescale
following
LDP
Adoption
Planning Obligations

DM1

Affordable Housing

H5, H6, SP3

Biodiversity

DM2, SP7

Landscape

DM4, SP7

Renewable Energy

RE1, DM13

Conservation Areas

DM13, SP7

Open Space

DM3

Residential Design Guide

DM13

Archaeology

SP7

Historic Environment –
including the Historic
Environment Records

DM13, SP7

Land Drainage

DM6

Target Date
for SPG
Adoption

Within 6
months

October 2018

Within 12
months

April 2019

Within 18
months

October 2019

Within 24
months

April 2020

1.0.3 Powys County Council commenced the preparation of the Powys LDP in January
2011. The Delivery Agreement1 for the LDP was first published in November 2010 and
revised in March 2013, February and October 2015. This set out the timetable for
preparing the LDP and a Community Involvement Scheme (CIS) describing how and
1

LDP Delivery Agreement http://www.powys.gov.uk/ldp

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 7

1

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

when the County Council would involve interested persons and organisations in the
LDP’s preparation.
1.0.4 The Community Involvement Scheme for SPG preparation has been updated
from the LDP Delivery Agreement CIS and is tailored for the SPG process. This means
that the community engagement approach is developed to be reflective of and
proportionate to the detail and content of SPG work and suitable for the parties
expected to be involved, whilst meeting the preparation timeframes. The agreed CIS for
the preparation of SPG is included in the Protocol for the Preparation and Adoption of
Supplementary Planning Guidance2 approved by the Council in June 2018 (hereafter
referred to as the SPG Protocol).
1.0.5 In accordance with the SPG Protocol, this Consultation Statement summarises
for each stage of SPG preparation:







Who has been involved.
A summary of Reference Group and Topic Stakeholder engagement.
The steps taken to publicise the consultation.
The total number of representation forms received from the public consultation.
A summary of the main issues raised as part of the public consultation.
The Council’s responses to the main issues raised and any agreed changes to
the SPG to address these.

1.0.6 Section 2 of this Consultation Statement is set out chronologically to accord with
each stage of the SPG preparation and adoption procedure as laid out in the SPG
Protocol:
Stage 1 - Review
Stage 2 - Reference Group, Topic Stakeholders and Working Draft SPG
Stage 3 - Consultation Draft SPG
Stage 4 - Public Consultation
Stage 5 - Final SPG
Stage 6 - Adoption

2

Protocol for the Preparation and Adoption of Supplementary Planning Guidance
http://www.powys.gov.uk/en/planning-building-control/local-development-plan/ldp-supplementary-planning-guidancespg/

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 8

2

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

2.

Information on SPG Preparation Stages

2.0.1 In accordance with the SPG Protocol, the following stages of preparation are
common to all SPG:
2.1

Stage 1 – Review

2.1.1 A review of national, regional and local legislation, policy and guidance was
undertaken in order to form the background and context for the SPG and identify issues
of relevance. Where considered appropriate, the Council has sought the involvement of
specialist stakeholders with the aim of building consensus.
2.2

Stage 2 – Reference Group, Topic Stakeholders and Working Draft SPG

2.2.1 At an early stage in the SPG preparation process, professional stakeholders
were contacted to form a Reference Group for each SPG and relevant Topic
Stakeholders were identified. Following Reference Group involvement in the production
of a Working Draft SPG, the Draft was shared with Topic Stakeholders to seek initial
feedback. The details of the Reference Group and Topic Stakeholders contacted during
the preparation of each SPG are shown in the relevant section in Part B below.
2.3

Stage 3 – Consultation Draft SPG

2.3.1 The Council’s LDP Working Group, comprised of nine County Councillors, and
chaired by the Council’s Portfolio Holder for Economy and Planning, is used to
scrutinise and approve the Draft SPG for Public Consultation. The agendas, reports and
minutes of past LDP Working Group meetings are available for viewing on the Council’s
website via the following link:
http://www.powys.gov.uk/en/democracy/council-committees-and-meetings/
2.3.2. The first set of SPG were approved for the consultation stage by the LDP
Working Group on 22nd June 2018.
2.3.3 The second set of SPG were approved for the consultation stage by the LDP
Working Group on 19th December 2018.
2.3.4 The third set of SPG were approved for the consultation stage by the LDP
Working Group on 21st of June 2019.

2.4

Stage 4 – Public Consultation

2.4.1 SPGs have been subject to a six week public consultation period in accordance
with the SPG Stakeholder and Community Involvement Scheme (see Appendix 1 of the
SPG Protocol). Additionally, Town and Community Councils were provided with
advance notice of the consultation period in accordance with the Protocol to enable
them to publicise the SPG process in their own communities. The dates of the six-week
public consultation period are shown in the relevant section for each SPG in Part B of
this document.
2.4.2 Each SPG consultation document posed a series of questions for representors to
respond to. This Consultation Statement records responses on a question by question
basis and provides the Council’s agreed responses to the issues raised.
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 9

3

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

2.4.3 The Council considers each representation carefully in order to draft a response
which may include a recommendation to change or alter the SPG. Consultation
responses are drafted with the assistance of Reference Group members where relevant
and agreed by the LDP Working Group before being reported to Cabinet. A detailed set
of representations will be appended to the Consultation Statement for each SPG.
2.5

Stages 5 and 6 – Final SPG and Adoption

2.5.1 The Cabinet are required to formally adopt the SPG before it is published and
used for development management purposes. Part B of this Statement will record this
process and will be updated as further SPG is prepared and approved by Cabinet.
2.6

SPG Impact Assessments

2.6.1 Whilst SPG documents are not formal policy in themselves they will be used to
support the implementation of adopted Local Development Plan policy and therefore
have been assessed informally as a matter of good practice using the Council’s Impact
Assessment Toolkit.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 10

4

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

PART B
3.

Public Consultation on the first set of SPG

3.0.1 In accordance with the SPG programme agreed for the LDP (in Table 1 above),
the first three SPGs prepared for public consultation were:




Planning Obligations
Affordable Housing
Biodiversity and Geodiversity

3.0.2 In accordance with Stage 4 of the SPG Protocol, the Consultation Draft SPG
were published for public consultation over 6 weeks with the consultation period running
from 11th July to 21st August 2018.
3.0.3 County Councillors, Town and Community Councils and all representors on the
Powys LDP database were informed of the consultation and the documents were
available to view on the LDP pages of the Council’s website.
3.0.4 Notice of the consultation period was publicised on the Council’s News page, the
LDP webpage, and via social media. A press release was issued to the local press.
3.0.5 Hard copies of the consultation documents were made available to view in the
Council’s main offices at:
 County Hall and The Gwalia, Llandrindod Wells.
 Neuadd Brycheiniog, Brecon.
 Neuadd Maldwyn, Welshpool.
3.0.6 Hard copies were made available to view in all Powys Public Libraries.
3.0.7 Representations were invited either by letter /email and the use of a standard
representation form was encouraged.
3.0.8 Table B1 below shows how many representors made comments in relation to
each SPG. A more detailed report of the responses received for each SPG can be
found in the relevant appendices.
Table B1: Number of Representors making consultation comments on the first set
of SPG
Consultation Draft SPG

No. of Representors
who made
Representations

Planning Obligations

7

Affordable Housing

7

Biodiversity and Geodiversity

10

Total

24

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 11

5

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

3.0.9 The main issues arising from the consultation are set out for each SPG in the
tables below, together with the Council’s response.
3.1

Planning Obligations SPG

3.1.1 Reference Group
3.1.2 In order to prepare the Planning Obligations SPG, the Council sought
participation and involvement with various Topic Stakeholders, from which the Council
formed a Reference Group.
3.1.3 The Reference Group comprised 14 members, which included either one or more
representatives from the following Council services:











Planning Policy
Development Management (Planning and Monitoring Officer)
Schools
Housing
Leisure and Recreation
Highways and Transport
Regeneration
Welsh Language
Finance
Legal Services

3.1.4 Engagement with the Reference Group during the preparation of the draft SPG is
summarised in table B2:
Table B2 – Reference Group Involvement (Planning Obligations SPG)
Date
Early May 2018

Late May 2018
June 2018

Who and How?
Contact made proposing an initial meeting, although this was followed
up by written correspondence instead. The Reference Group were
provided with the details of the SPG scoping exercise, the Draft SPG
Protocol and a list of proposed Topic Stakeholders, and feedback was
invited.
Working Draft SPG circulated for feedback.
Revised Working Draft SPG circulated to Reference Group and Topic
Stakeholders.
This was followed up by officer led discussions on various planning
contribution topic areas to collate up to date evidence especially
surrounding figures/costings for any “set” contributions. Individual
meetings were held with Officers from Leisure and Recreation, Schools
and Welsh Language. The purpose of this was to engage stakeholders
so as to fill any remaining gaps in the Working Draft SPG. Suggested
changes were considered and taken into account in the Consultation
Draft SPG.

July 2018

Notice of public consultation period circulated to LDP Database.
6 week public consultation period from 11th July to 21st August.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 12

6

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

July 2018
Early August 2018

August 2018
September 2018

A reminder email was circulated to the group which included notification
of key dates going forward.
Involvement of the Welsh Language Officer re: targeting relevant
interest groups. Following this, contact was made with a targeted list of
Welsh language stakeholders (including those Town and Community
Councils identified as Welsh Speaking Strongholds and Welsh
Language interest groups) to highlight awareness of the public
consultation.
Representations received to the public consultation shared and
discussed with relevant Reference Group members.
Consultation Draft SPG showing proposed changes presented to the
LDP Working Group shared with the Reference Group. The Reference
Group was informed of any issues raised by the LDP Working Group
before the SPG was finalised for Cabinet approval.

3.1.5 Topic Stakeholders
3.1.6 The larger Topic Stakeholder group included an additional 18 members,
including representatives from the following services:






Ecology
Minerals
Land Drainage and
Active Travel;
Additionally, Council Portfolio Holders with responsibility for Finance, Transport,
Learning and Welsh Language, Highways, Housing and Economy and Planning
were copied in to the Topic Stakeholder correspondence.

3.1.7 These stakeholders were invited to provide informal feedback on a working draft
of the SPG prior to the formal public consultation stage, although no specific comments
were received.
3.1.8 LDP Working Group
3.1.9 The Draft SPG was considered by the LDP Working Group on 22nd June 2018
and approved for Public Consultation.
3.1.10 SPG Consultation
3.1.11 The public consultation period ran from 11th July to 21st August 2018 and
representations were received from the following:
Representor Name (Representor No.)


Canal & River Trust in Wales / Glandwr Cymru (5704)



Homebuilders Federation (78)



Hughes Architects (Newtown) (1552)



New Radnor Community Council (131)



Mochdre with Penstrowed Community Council (516)



Montgomery Town Council (517)



Presteigne and Norton Town Council (525)

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 13

7

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

3.1.12 The main issues arising from the consultation and the Council’s responses to
these are set out in Table B3 below.
3.1.13 The representations and Council draft responses were considered by the LDP
Working Group at its meeting on the 7th September 2018, and subsequently by the
Council’s Cabinet at its meeting on 9th October 2018.
Table B3 – Main Issues from the Public Consultation (Planning Obligations SPG)
Question 1: PO1 - Do you agree with the Council’s approach not to pursue a CIL
Charging Schedule at this point in time? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Community and town councils should
Opportunities exist for involvement at the prehave greater involvement in S106
application and application stages where
agreements, and that further
communities can raise issues. Unfortunately it would
consultation should be undertaken on
not be practical to formally consult on planning
planning obligations later in the
obligations separate to the planning application
process. (Rep 131, Rep 525)
process.
The position or need for CIL should be The Council will continue to monitor the suitability of
kept under review to ensure
introducing a CIL as explained in para, 4.17 of the
infrastructure needed is being
SPG.
delivered. (Rep 517)
Developers should contribute towards
Planning obligations will be sought where they
necessary improvements to mitigate
comply with the tests and this could include
the adverse impact of development
contributions towards the Canal. Specific reference
upon the Montgomery Canal
to the Canal within the SPG is not considered
infrastructure. (Rep 5704)
appropriate because it has been written to refer to
infrastructure generically.
Question 2: PO2 - Do you agree that, in the interests of avoiding duplication, this SPG
only cross references to policies in the LDP and does not repeat them? Would you
prefer the SPG to include the applicable policies? Is so, should they appear in the main
document or in an Appendix?
Issue
Council Response
Relevant LDP policies should be included in an
Include hyperlinks in the SPG to assist
appendix, or cross-reference with web links. (Rep readers.
516, Rep 5704, Rep 1552)
Question 3: PO3 - Due to the nature of planning obligations, this SPG cannot include
every scenario/detail. Do you think the document is clear in this respect? Do you agree
that it enables officers, stakeholders and developers to understand that additional or
alternative obligations may be sought? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Examples should be given of the circumstances
Para 5.5 explains that additional
in which additional obligations may be sought.
obligations will be sought where there is
(Rep 1552)
sufficient robust evidence to justify
obligations.
Refer to the pre-application stage in para 5.6 as
Agreed. Early awareness is important.
an opportunity to make developers aware of
This point has also been elaborated in
planning obligation requirements. (Rep 5704)
revised wording to the Step by Step
Flowchart.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 14

8

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Question 4: PO4 - Do you agree that “major” development should be the development
that most often triggers obligations? If not, please explain why. Please detail any
changes towards seeking obligations that you think may be suitable and relevant for
Powys citing examples from other planning authorities where known. Nb. Definite
targets/thresholds, where set within the LDP, are not negotiable at this point and would
only be re-assessed at the Plan Review stage.
Issue
Council Response
Whilst agreeing with para. 5.11, it is not needed It is considered that para 5.11 should be
in the SPG. (Rep 78)
retained because it is important to set out
the expectation that planning obligations are
likely to be sought for major developments,
even though they may not eventually be
required.
It should be made transparent that planning
The position is correct, providing the tests
obligations may be required for any
for planning obligations are met. Para 5.11
development. (Rep 517)
states that each case will be considered on
its merits so no amendment is considered
necessary.
To avoid doubt, applications requiring preMajor applications are those subject to preapplication consultation should be added as a
application consultation so no amendment
trigger for an obligation. (Rep 517)
to para 5.11 is considered necessary.
Question 5: PO5 - Do you consider the Step by Step Flowchart in Figure 1 to be clear
and accurate? If not, what changes would you suggest? If you have experience of the
process within Powys County Council, does this flowchart mirror your experience?
Issue
Council Response
The flowchart should include flexibility for a
Agreed that this is an option but recommend
developer to draft the S106. (Rep 78)
that para 5.9 is amended to explain this
rather than any change to Figure 1.
The flowchart should include the pre-application Noted, but no amendment needed because
consultation stage which enables early
pre-application consultation is included at
involvement of town and community councils.
the end of the first paragraph in Figure 1.
(Rep 517)
The Council recommends that the flowchart
wording in Box 2 is strengthened by
amending the wording to read: “The Case
Officer makes an initial assessment of
S.106 implications having regard to any
discussions held or comments arising from
the pre-application stage.
Consultation on planning obligations with
Opportunities exist for involvement at the
community and town councils should be
pre-application and application stages
included. (Rep 525)
where communities can raise issues.
Unfortunately it would not be practical to
formally consult on planning obligations
separate to the planning application
process.
Informal dialogue and informal pre-application
Noted, but no change to the SPG is
discussions are valuable alongside the more
considered necessary. The pre-application
formal chargeable pre-application enquiries.
service lies outside the scope of the SPG
This is not emphasised in the flowchart. (Rep
and is operated in accordance with Welsh
1552)
Government Regulations.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 15

9

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Question 6: PO6 - Do you agree with the approach that it is the Affordable Housing SPG
and not this SPG which includes the arrangements for assessing the financial viability
of a specific development?
Issue
Council Response
Disagree because the viability of a scheme can
Comment noted, but no change deemed
be affected by any S106 requirement not just
necessary because the Affordable
affordable housing. (Rep 78)
Housing SPG addresses that point.
Include a hyperlink to the Affordable Housing
Agreed.
SPG. (Rep 1552)
Question 7: PO7 - Whilst there is no statutory requirement to specify a time period in
which planning contributions should be spent, do you agree with the suggested 10 year
(maximum) period? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Object to the proposed ten year period as
The Council is aware that other
unreasonable and recommends a five year period
authorities have successfully operated a
unless otherwise agreed with the developer. (Rep
10 year period, but accepts that para
78)
6.17 should make it clear that this is a
matter for negotiation.
Question 8: PO8 - Do you consider that the five main topic areas set out in Part 3 are the
right topic areas for this document? If not, please explain what changes you would like
to see and why.
Issue
Council Response
Community facilities could be a separate topic.
Noted, but given that community facilities
(Rep 78)
are likely to be site specific and
addressed on a case by case basis it is
considered that they should remain in the
‘Other Topic Areas’ category.
Question 9: PO9 - Do you agree that the detail provided in Part 3 for the various topic
areas is relevant and sufficient to inform S.106 negotiations? If not, what changes would
you like to see and why?
Issue
Council Response
Affordable Housing topic
Noted but no change considered
Make it clearer that there is an Affordable Housing necessary because the synopsis
includes such a reference.
SPG that should be used. (Rep 78)
Education topic
1. Welsh medium schools are already
accounted for and there is no need to
1. Should Welsh medium schools be included in
list them separately.
the list of schools supported by contributions?
2. The Council has applied BCIS figures
2. The financial contributions in Table E2 are
which is considered to be accurate
higher than those charged by other authorities
and appropriate for Powys, and can
and should be compared.
be updated more frequently.
3. New security and safety measures should not
3. The wording will be amended to refer
be funded in full. (Rep 78)
to Security and safety improvement
measures to provide a safe
environment (including …..) to
adequately facilitate an increase in
pupil places.
Leisure, Recreation and Open Space topic
1. Noted but no change. The Council’s
decision not to adopt new open
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council Page 16
10

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

1. Object to the Council not adopting open space
as this will lead to the creation of management
companies and add costs to all residents
including those in affordable housing.(Rep 78)
2. Town and Community Councils could establish
trust funds to maintain open space and
community facilities in perpetuity. (Rep 517)
3. Specific mention to improvements to the
towpath of the Montgomery Canal should be
included. (Rep 5704)

Transportation and Access topic
1. Travel plans and / or transport assessments
are only likely to be required for major
developments. (Rep 78)
2. Specific mention to improvements to the
towpath of the Montgomery Canal should be
included. (Rep 5704)

2.

3.

1.

2.

space lies outside the SPG;
alternative management methods will
be addressed in the preparation of
the Open Space SPG.
The suggestion is appreciated and
will be considered in the preparation
of the Open Space SPG.
Planning obligations will be sought
where they comply with the tests and
this could include contributions
towards the Canal. Specific reference
to the Canal within the SPG is not
considered appropriate because it
has been written to refer to
infrastructure generically.
Amend the wording in the synopsis to
read “Schemes that may generate
significant amounts of traffic or travel
will be required to demonstrate….”.
Planning obligations will be sought
where they comply with the tests and
this could include contributions
towards the Canal. Specific reference
to the Canal within the SPG is not
considered appropriate because it
has been written to refer to
infrastructure generically.

Question 10: PO10 - Do you agree with the methods and formulae (where provided) for
calculating the required financial contributions as set out in Part 3? If not, please
explain why.
Issue
Council Response
No issues raised.
Comments noted
Question 11: PO11 - If you have any other comments you want to make which are not
covered by the above questions please include them here:
Issue
Council Response
Reference should be made to the fact that the
The register of S106s is referenced in
Council will keep a public register of S106
paragraph 6.18 so no further change is
agreements once signed and this will include a list
considered necessary.
with details of each contribution. (Rep 78)
Para 5.34 - on second line replace the word ‘will’
The sentence refers to seeking a
with ‘could’ as S106’s will not always be sought.
planning obligation so the word 'will' is
(Rep 78)
considered suitable.
Para 5.38 - the wording suggests that the
It is considered that para 5.38 makes it
thresholds are for negotiation on each application
clear that there is a process of
which is contrary to para 5.34 table 1 which sets
negotiation to be had and therefore
the thresholds. This para should just refer to the
considers no alteration is required.
trigger points for payment/ implementation of works
being negotiated on a site by site basis. (Rep 78)
Para 6.11 - this suggests that reviews of S106
The information is noted and the Council
contributions should be triggered by a change in
accepts that developers may wish to
the economy, although this is common practice
present more up to date viability
recent work carried out by the HBF in relation to
evidence and that the S106 may need to
Swansea LDP showed that over a two year period
be adjusted as a result. However, this
Page 17
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council
11

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

although house prices had doubled build costs had
gone up by three times the amount over the same
period. The paragraph should explain that all
factors and cost associated with the development
will be considered as part of any review of viability.
(Rep 78)
Include contact details of the Council’s S106
officer. (Rep 78)
It is not sensible to rely on developers to maintain
play areas and their long term future must be
addressed. (Rep 525). This representor also
welcomed a dedicated monitoring/compliance
officer and asked that this continues.

Could new industrial and commercial development
be required to contribute towards affordable
housing or other infrastructure? (Rep 1552)
Also issue of capacity for the S106 officer - caution
re: overwhelm or at least slow down the process.

3.2

section refers to situations where viability
resulted in nil or reduced contributions
and enables the Council to 'check' this
position should viability improve. As
such, it is not recommended that the
paragraph is amended.
Para. 6.18 refers to the Planning and
Monitoring Officer who can be contacted
via the email address in Appendix A.
Comments noted. The Council agrees
that the future maintenance of play space
is important and recognises that
developers are not ideally placed for this
long term role. Alternative methods are
set out in the Leisure, Recreation and
Open Space topic and this will be
addressed further in the Open Space
SPG.
All applications will be considered on
their own merits in line with national and
local policies. Both levels of policy set the
context for securing affordable housing
and do not require commercial
development to provide affordable
housing. Contributions to local
infrastructure such as transport
improvements are possible, but will be
considered at the application level.

Affordable Housing SPG

3.2.1 Reference Group
3.2.2 In order to prepare the Affordable Housing SPG, the Council sought participation
and involvement with various Topic Stakeholders, from which the Council formed a
Reference Group.
3.2.3 The Reference Group comprised 7 members, which included representatives
from the following Council services:






Planning Policy
Development Management
Housing Strategy
Affordable Housing
Legal Services

3.2.4 Engagement with the Reference Group during the preparation of the Draft SPG
is summarised in table B4:
Table B4 – Reference Group Involvement (Affordable Housing SPG)
Date
May 2018

Who and How?

Meetings and correspondence with members of the Reference Group
to discuss updated topic-related and planning information to inform the
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council Page 18
12

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

June 2018

July 2018
August 2018

September 2018

background and context of the SPG, to discuss the scope of the SPG
and process involved, and to identify and agree a list of Topic
Stakeholders to seek feedback from prior to public consultation.
Initial working drafts of the SPG shared and discussed with the
Reference Group to agree content of the working draft to be circulated
to Topic Stakeholders. Initial feedback received from the Topic
Stakeholders and suggested changes shared with the Reference
Group. Specific issues raised by Topic Stakeholders discussed with
the relevant members of the Reference Group. Comments from the
Reference Group taken into account in preparing of the Consultation
Draft.
Notice of public consultation period circulated to LDP Database.
6 week public consultation period from 11th July to 21st August.
Representations received to the public consultation shared with the
Reference Group and specific issues discussed with the relevant
members of the Reference Group. Any changes proposed to the SPG
in response to the representations received also shared with the
Reference Group and any outstanding issues discussed further.
Consultation Draft SPG showing proposed changes presented to the
LDP Working Group shared with the Reference Group. The Reference
Group was informed of any issues raised by the LDP Working Group
before the SPG was finalised for Cabinet approval.

3.2.5 Topic Stakeholders
3.2.6 The following Topic Stakeholders were involved:












Registered Social Landlords operating in the area
Grwp Cynefin (hosts of the Tai Teg Affordable Housing Register)
Community Housing Cymru
National Community Land Trust Network
District Valuations Services
Home Builders Federation
Country Landowners Associations
Council for Mortgage Lenders/UK Finance
Principality Building Society
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority
Welsh Government Local Plans.

3.2.7 These stakeholders were invited to provide informal feedback on a working draft
of the SPG prior to the formal public consultation stage.
3.2.8 A working draft of the SPG was also shared with Strategic Housing Partnership
(SHP) and also presented to the SHP at a meeting on the 6 th of June 2018.
3.2.9 Comments received from the Topic Stakeholders were considered and
responded to, with further discussion taking place on specific issues where necessary.
The input from Topic Stakeholders was used to inform changes to the working draft of
the SPG.
3.2.10 LDP Working Group

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 19

13

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

3.2.11 The Draft SPG was considered by the LDP Working Group on 22nd June 2018
and approved for Public Consultation.
3.2.12 SPG Consultation
3.2.13 The public consultation period ran from 11th July to 21st August 2018 and
representations were received from the following:
Representor Name (Representor No.)


Homebuilders Federation (78)



Hughes Architects (Newtown) (1552)



Mid Wales Housing Association (4628)



Mochdre with Penstrowed Community Council (516)



Montgomery Town Council (517)



Abermule with Llandyssil Community Council (542)



Presteigne and Norton Town Council (525)



Canal & River Trust in Wales / Glandwr Cymru (5704)

3.2.14 The main issues arising from the consultation and the Council’s responses to
these are set out in Table B5 below.
3.2.15 The representations and Council draft responses were considered by the LDP
Working Group at its meeting on the 7th September 2018, and subsequently by the
Council’s Cabinet at its meeting on 9th October 2018.
Table B5 – Main Issues from the Public Consultation (Affordable Housing SPG)
Question 1: AH1 - Do you agree that the affordable housing definitions and types as set
out are relevant to the Powys LDP area? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Requesting clarification on whether and in what
Self-build is referred to under the definition
circumstances self-build would be included in the of ‘intermediate affordable housing for
definition of affordable housing.
sale’. In order to qualify as affordable
housing for planning purposes, self-build
(Rep 1552)
will need to comply with the definition
provided and subject to the relevant
restrictions and mechanisms. No changes
recommended.
Question 2: AH2 - Do you agree with the data sources and calculations used to work out
the affordability level for Powys? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Questions whether the average house price fairly The figure used for the average house
represents the affordable level due to the range
price is based on the Land Registry’s
of houses in the Authority's area. Suggests
House Price Index, which is calculated in a
calculation that does not include the most
way that reduces the weighting given to
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 20

14

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

expensive housing would be more appropriate.
(Rep 78)

Disagrees with the figures used as they do not
reflect local variations in prices and wages.
(Rep 525, Rep 1552)

Disagrees with the average wage used, given
primarily agricultural and light industrial
employment at national minimum wage. (Rep
516)

Disagrees with the gross disposable household
income figure being based on two full-time
workers - does not account for single parent
families, part-time employment or where only 1 in
full-time employment. (Rep 516, Rep 542, Rep
525)

Calculations do not take account of build costs.
Only RSLs/SHA capable of financing affordable
housing and implications for viability where not
possible to secure involvement of RSL or the
Council. (Rep 1552)

The figure of numbers of persons in need of
affordable housing in East Radnor is too low.
Refer to Presteigne and Norton Town Council's
own housing survey in 2011 identifying 80 people
in need and PCC housing register in 2011 had
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

high value properties and is close to the
median figure. It is considered to be
appropriate to use this figure to compare
with income levels, in order to
demonstrate housing affordability issues in
the area. No changes recommended.
The figures used are based on the data
available from official government sources,
and there are limitations on the data
available at a more local level. The
availability of data will be kept under
review, particularly in connection with the
review of the Local Housing Market
Assessment. No changes recommended.
The figures used are based on the data
available from official government sources,
which are based on averages. It is not
possible to account for specific wage
levels or types of employment in the
calculation of the affordability level.
However, the range of affordable housing
types provided for are aimed at meeting
the varying needs of households, and
individual circumstances will be taken into
account in assessing local housing need.
No changes recommended.
The figures used are based on the data
available from official government sources,
which are based on averages, and
therefore it is not possible to account for
all household situations or employment
arrangements. However, the range of
affordable housing types provided for are
aimed at meeting the varying needs of
households, and individual circumstances
will be taken into account in assessing
local housing need. No changes
recommended.
The calculation is based on the cost of
purchasing a house and is aimed at
establishing the level at which households,
on average, are able to afford to purchase
housing. Build costs are not relevant to
this calculation, however these costs have
been taken into account in the LDP’s
viability assessment and policy targets.
Where involvement of an RSL or SHA
cannot be secured, the SPG allows for
financial contributions to be made in lieu of
on-site provision. No changes
recommended.
The figures referred to in the SPG are
taken from the Local Housing Market
Assessment (2010, updated 2014), which
is in the process of being reviewed. It is
recommended that a note is included after

Page 21

15

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

158 in need. (Rep 525)

the table explaining this and crossreferring to para. 6.6.5 of the SPG in
relation to evidence used in decisionmaking.

Question 3: AH3 - Do you agree with the approach towards seeking affordable housing
contributions from specialist market housing developments? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
There are more likely to be viability issues having Site specific viability issues, where
regard to the additional design features required
evidenced, will be taken into account in
of certain specialist provision. (Rep 1552)
determining the level of affordable housing
contribution that can be secured from
specialist housing schemes. No changes
recommended.
Question 4: AH4 - Do you agree with the examples given of circumstances where
alternative provision to on-site provision may be considered? If not, please explain
why.
Issue
Council Response
Support for the prevention of subdivision/phasing This support is noted.
of development sites to avoid contributions and in
defining the density of sites to avoid 4 homes
being provided rather than five on a 0.25 hectare
site. (Rep 525)
Request for the monies received to be spent
Financial contributions will be spent on
within the same community as the original site.
schemes available within the same
(Rep 525)
settlement, however in case of situations
where there are no schemes available
within the same settlement, the cascade
set out in para. 6.5.7 of the SPG will be
applied. This will ensure that contributions
are spent locally where possible, or if not,
are spent in a way that continues to
support the provision of affordable housing
in the LDP's area. No changes
recommended.
Request for further information on who will be
The Council will decide whether alternative
required to provide evidence (and in what form)
provision to on-site provision is
that a contribution in a different location would
appropriate and justified in specific
have a greater contribution towards meeting local circumstances. The developer may
affordable housing. (Rep 1552)
propose alternative provision and provide
evidence to support this, however the
Council will determine the appropriateness
of any proposals. No changes
recommended.
Suggestion that the last example box at para.
The last example box referred to relates to
6.3.4 emphasises the potential role of RSLs as
intermediate housing for rent or sale and
they are increasingly involved in market
does not refer to market development as
development. (Rep 1552)
such. The involvement of RSLs in market
developments through developer transfer
of units/land is covered in the first two
example boxes. No changes
recommended.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 22

16

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Question 5: AH5 - Do you agree with the approach used to determine whether off-site
provision would be appropriate? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Requesting clarity on arrangements where site is The option of providing affordable housing
not within the same ownership, and on the
on an alternative site is only intended to
section 106 arrangements, legal and financial
apply where other suitable land is within
negotiations involved in this. (Rep 1552)
the control of the developer, as explained
in para. 6.4.1. The use of off-site
contributions will not be appropriate where
the land is not within the same ownership.
Any permission involving off-site provision
would be subject to a section 106
agreement as explained in para. 6.4.2. No
changes recommended.
Question 6: AH6 - Do you agree with the method and formulae for calculating the
required financial contribution? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Affordable housing need figures not felt to be
This response is referring again to the
even close to correct. See previous response to
figures of local housing need included in
AH2. (Rep 525)
the LHMA. The use of evidence of local
housing need to determine the type of
dwelling that would have been required
on-site is referred to in para. 6.5.2. See
response to Question AH2 regarding this
matter.
There may be a risk that, where it is possible for
The financial contribution will reflect the %
them to do so, developers will seek sites in areas target required by policy H5 for the subwhere there is less requirement for affordable
market area where the planning
housing. (Rep 1552)
application is located. The representation
appears to be referring to the policy
requirements that have already been set
out and approved in the LDP, and
therefore this is not a matter for the SPG.
No changes recommended.
Question 7: AH7 - Do you agree with the examples given as to how the Council may
spend financial contributions and with the cascade to be applied? If not, please explain
why.
Issue
Council Response
Suggestion to include cross-reference to the
It is recommended that a cross-reference
Planning Obligations SPG in respect of specifying to the detail regarding the process for
a time period for using contributions. Objection to handling financial contributions in the
the 10 year period for spending contributions as it Planning Obligations is included after
is far too long with regard to affordable housing.
para. 6.5.7. The comments regarding the
(Rep 78)
10 year period for spending contributions
relate to the content of the Planning
Obligations SPG and are responded to
separately.
The cascade applied to spending commuted
This representation is aimed at applying
sums should also be applied to other types of
the cascade to off-site provision on an
provision. (Rep 78)
alternative site to enable a developer to
provide affordable housing on an
alternative site outside of the local area.
The off-site option is only intended for
Page 23
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council
17

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Spend should be strictly limited to immediate
locality rather than potentially cascaded out, as it
is difficult to see how financial contributions could
not be applied given housing requirements,
potential for upgrading existing or derelict stock,
and the commitment to building Council houses.
(Rep 517)

BBNPA forms part of the SHA as the rest of the
County. Contributions should be able to be spent
in adjoining settlements within the BBNPA.
Suggests reciprocal agreement with BBNPA.
(Rep 1552)

situations where there is another site
available in the locality within the control of
the developer, and therefore it would not
be appropriate to allow the area to be
widened out by using a cascade. No
changes recommended.
Financial contributions will be spent on
schemes available within the same
settlement, however in case of situations
where there are no schemes available
within the same settlement, the cascade
set out in para. 6.5.7 will be applied. This
will ensure that contributions are spent
where possible, or if not, are spent in a
way that continues to support the provision
of affordable housing in the LDP's area.
No changes recommended.
The wording of a) and b) of the cascade
already allows for contributions to be spent
in the same settlement and, where no
schemes are available, within the same
community, which means that
contributions may be spent within
settlements/ communities that cross over
the boundary between the Powys LPA
area and the BBNP area. It is
recommended that the wording of f) is
amended to clarify that this final stage
applies to the remaining areas of the
BBNP. The cascade is compatible with
the cascade used by the BBNP.

Question 8: AH8 - Do you agree with the sources of evidence to be used by the Council
to determine local housing need? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
LHMA is already four years out of date. Suggest The SPG states that updated evidence will
that para. 6.6.5 clearly states the updated 2018
be referred to by the Council, therefore, it
evidence will be used as soon as it is available
will be used once it is made available for
and to state time period for next update. (Rep 78) use in decision-making. The expected
timescales for further updates i.e. every 2
years, is considered to be clear. No
changes recommended in response to this
representation, however it is
recommended that the timescale stated in
para. 6.6.5 for the review of the LHMA is
updated as it is now expected by April
2019.
Support for review of the LHMA, noting from local The LHMA is in the process of being
knowledge some data may be inaccurate. (Rep
reviewed as explained in the SPG and will
517)
provide updated evidence on local housing
needs. No changes recommended.
Subject to overhaul of Common Housing
This representation refers to issues with
Register, developing and promoting the
the sources of evidence listed by the SPG
affordable housing register, and transparent,
to be used in negotiations, and refers to
timely mechanisms for conducting local housing
actions that go beyond the scope of this
need surveys to meet information gaps. LHMA
SPG. These matters have been referred
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council Page 24
18

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

provides only a snap shot and cannot drill down
to any meaningful level to inform site specific
applications. (Rep 1552)

onto the SHA. The SPG promotes the use
of the Tai Teg Affordable Housing Register
in the planning process, and the LHMA is
to be used to inform planning decisions.
No changes are recommended.

Question 9 AH9 - Do you agree with the arrangements and information requirements for
assessing the financial viability of a specific development and proposals for reviewing
viability? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Support for the rigorous approach to ensuring
The SPG makes it clear that the completion
affordable homes are constructed as required
of all open market housing prior to the
by the S106 and agree that affordable and
completion of the affordable homes will not
market housing to be built concurrently and
be acceptable, whilst allowing for a
market homes not to be completed first. If
proportion of market housing to be built.
developer considers this unviable, application
This flexible approach is aimed at enabling
should be withdrawn. (Rep 517)
developments to remain viable. No
changes recommended.
Require reassurance of Council capacity and
It is explained that the financial viability
expertise to undertake viability assessment and appraisal will be assessed by the Council,
suggests perhaps SHA could lead on this. (Rep but only where possible (para. 6.6.9) and
1552)
therefore this will be dependent on the
capacity and expertise available within the
Council at the time. Where this is not
possible, the DVS will be commissioned.
Development Management are expected to
lead on negotiations. No changes
recommended.
Does not follow argument on reducing
As explained in para. 6.6.10, the purpose of
timescales for development unless specifically
reducing timescales for development where
to ensure development achieved within policy
a lower/nil contribution has been agreed is
timeframes, and not for reasons of financial
to enable the position on viability to be kept
viability. (Rep 1552)
under review. Otherwise a site could
continue to benefit from an extant or
implemented permission over a long period
of time, however in the meantime
development viability may have improved or
changed. No changes recommended.
Question 10 AH10 - Do you agree with the guidance on assessing the appropriateness
of the location, scale and type of affordable housing on exception sites in Towns and
Large Villages? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Providing infrastructure can accept such
Consideration will be given to these matters,
developments and that logical extensions up to
where relevant, in assessing proposals for
5 houses should also be assessed in terms of
all types of exception sites. The SPG should
impact on integrity of the settlement,
be read in conjunction with the policies of
transport/highways infrastructure,
the LDP, which includes policies relating to
landscape/heritage site impacts and impact on
these matters. No changes recommended.
amenity of existing dwellings. (Rep 517)
Considers there to be a case for exception sites Dwellings on farmland for farmers, referred
in rural locations. Difficulties for dwelling to be
to in planning as Rural Enterprise Dwellings,
built on farmland by family members, precluding are dealt with under national guidance
younger farmers remaining on the land. (Rep
(PPW and TAN6). The SPG does not
517)
provide guidance on Rural Enterprise
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 25

19

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Wording of para. 7.4 regarding consideration of
harm to the character and appearance of the
surrounding landscape – this should apply
whether affordable housing on exception sites
or not. (Rep 1552)

Dwellings as they do not fall within the
definition Affordable Housing and are
assessed differently from a planning point of
view. No changes recommended.
The guidance within para. 7.4 is aimed at
ensuring that regard is given to
landscape/visual impact in selecting
exception sites for affordable housing,
avoiding the most sensitive sites and
considering alternative sites. The
assessment process set out within para.
4.2.32 relating to LDP Policy DM4 will apply
to exception sites as they lie outside the
boundaries of Town and Large Villages. No
changes recommended.

Question 11: AH11 - Do you agree with the guidance on determining whether a site
should be viewed as infill or as a logical extension in Small Villages? If not, please
explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Noting that only development of less than 5
This support is noted. The guidance within
units/0.25 will be considered, and consider this
the SPG supports LDP policy H1 in respect
sensible in view of needs and infrastructure of
of affordable housing in Small Villages.
Small Villages. (Rep 1552)
Question 12: AH12 - Do you agree with the guidance on the tests to be used to
determine whether a proposal is located within a Rural Settlement? If not, please
explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Emphasises the need for robust and reliable
Evidence of the local housing need of
local affordable housing register information to
specific individual households will be
determine whether or not appropriate to provide needed to justify affordable housing in Rural
affordable housing in these areas. (Rep 1552)
Settlements, and the Affordable Housing
Register (Tai Teg) will be used, as
explained in Appendix C. No changes
recommended.
Question 13 AH13 - Do you agree with the guidance and principles to be used in
assessing Affordable Housing Schemes? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Requesting further clarity on self-build or
An example of requirements of an
specialised accommodation. (Rep 1552)
Affordable Housing Scheme for developing
a single intermediate house for sale by an
individual (self-build) is included in Appendix
F of the SPG. The SPG refers to
arrangements for specialist market housing,
however it is not possible to provide detailed
guidance on Affordable Housing Schemes
for such bespoke schemes as part of the
SPG. No changes recommended.
Requesting consideration to be given to larger
The size of an affordable dwelling is
accommodation for extended households by
required to reflect the identified local
reviewing the maximum size of the property or
housing need. The maximum size set out in
other arrangements (e.g. allowing semithe SPG is based on a household size of 7
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 26

20

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

detached units to be used as a single unit, and
then reverting back to two units when no longer
needed). (Rep 1552)

Requesting ACG information in respect of
flatted accommodation given demand for this
type of housing. (Rep 1552)

persons, and therefore is expected to cover
need in the majority of circumstances. The
assessment of local housing need will take
into account the needs of the households
involved. The appropriateness of any
arrangements will need to be considered in
planning terms. No changes
recommended.
It is recommended that the ACG notional
floor area for flats is added into the table
under para. 8.16.

Question 14: AH14 - Do you agree with the process for assessing the local housing
need of proposed occupiers? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Support for strengthening guidance for meeting This support is noted.
local housing need and maintaining occupancy
restrictions unless incontrovertibly proved no
longer required. (Rep 517)
Majority of recent developments are 2 or 3 bed, Para. 8.16 of the SPG expects affordable
small third bedroom, with inadequate room for
housing on market developments to be of a
growing family, need for family accommodation. range of sizes and to give regard to ACG
SPG does nothing to encourage sustainable
space standards. The local housing need
homes to retain families in the villages. (Rep
assessment (Appendix C) also allows for
542)
existing owners of affordable housing to
transfer to other affordable housing to meet
changing circumstances. No changes
recommended.
See comments under AH13. (Rep 1552)
See response for AH13 above.
Question 15: AH15 - Do you agree with the approach towards ensuring the provision,
affordability and availability of affordable housing at each stage of the planning
process? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Divergence from LDP stating affordable / local
The SPG at para. 8.18 explains that
needs can be a home for life, and need to
planning applications for future extensions
reflect this in considering future applications to
will be assessed on a case by case basis
modify unit, but keeping within defined
taking into account the local need and effect
parameters. (Rep 517)
on affordability. No changes recommended.
Support for withdrawal of permitted
Development Management has
development rights, ability to refuse applications responsibility for enforcement and
on underdevelopment, and simultaneous
monitoring processes, including planning
building of market and affordable housing.
conditions and obligations. Reports of any
Requirements to be effectively and rigorously
breaches will be investigated and
enforced and request for detail of monitoring
enforcement taken where necessary, as
arrangements to ensure compliance. (Rep 517) stated in section 8.32 of the SPG. No
changes recommended.
Detrimental effect of capping the re-sale price at The TAN 2 definition of intermediate
72% of open market value, disadvantage for
affordable housing requires prices/rents to
first time buyers wanting to move up the ladder, be below market housing prices or rents.
deterrent to moving on, and on releasing
By restricting the sale/re-sale value of an
dwelling back onto the market. (Rep 542)
affordable dwelling, this provides a
mechanism for ensuring that the housing is
and remains accessible to those in local
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 27

21

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Subject to capacity within the system.
Requesting clarification on the S106 Officer's
role and capacity to deal with this and other
planning obligations. (Rep 1552)

housing need. No changes recommended.
Development Management has
responsibility for the planning processes
described in this part of the SPG. The role
of the Planning and Monitoring Officer in
relation to section 106 agreements is
explained in the Planning Obligations SPG.
No changes recommended.

Question 16: AH16 - If you have any other comments you want to make which are not
covered by the above questions please include them here:
Issue
Council Response
Regarding the guidance on time limited
It is considered to be appropriate (at para.
permissions to enable review of viability, sites
6.6.10) to apply a reduced time limit for
may also become less viable. Comments on
commencement and/or control over
the WG S106 guidance (2009) and suitability of completion in order to enable viability of a
the review mechanisms. Notes that the wording development to be kept under review, and
of the SPG provides flexibility. Request for
the Council is aware of appeal decisions
cross-reference to the WG guidance. (Rep 78)
that support this approach. The WG
guidance on delivering affordable housing
using section 106 agreements referred to is
included in Appendix A of the SPG. No
changes recommended.
Worth noting in the document that WG are
Recommend reference is made to the
currently reviewing Affordable Housing and
Affordable Housing Review under
therefore there may be changes in the next few Monitoring and Review in para. 9.2 of the
years. (Rep 78)
SPG.
Deliverability is a fundamental issue. The
This support and comments are noted. This
Council and its strategic partners need to
SPG is aimed at assisting the delivery of
consider further options to stimulate the 5 year
affordable housing through the LDP's
land supply, identify and bring forward suitable
planning policies. The actions called for by
sites, and other means to meet strategic
the Representor go beyond the scope of
objectives on housing delivery. (Rep 1552)
this SPG. These matters have been
referred onto SHA. No changes
recommended.
Requesting clarification on how applications for
Recommend adding note after para. 8.6 to
100% affordable housing provided by RSLs are clarify the requirements in relation to RSL
processed and conditioned at planning
development. This means that where an
application stage, as current inconsistencies
RSL is developing a site within their
(examples provided). Prefer no restrictions due ownership within the development
to effects on borrowing. (Rep 4268)
boundary, conditions attached relating to
affordable housing will only require the % of
affordable housing required under policy
H5. This approach is acceptable to the
representor.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 28

22

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

3.3

Biodiversity and Geodiversity SPG

3.3.1 Reference Group
3.3.2 In order to prepare the Biodiversity and Geodiversity SPG, the Council sought
participation and involvement with various Topic Stakeholders, from which the Council
formed a Reference Group.
3.3.3 The Reference Group comprised 6 members, which included representatives
from the following Council services and outside organisations:





Planning Policy
Development Management
Countryside
Natural Resources Wales

3.3.4 Engagement with the Reference Group during the preparation of the Draft SPG
is summarised in table B6:
Table B6 – Reference Group Involvement (Biodiversity and Geodiversity SPG)
Date
Early April to early
May 2018
May 2018

May and June 2018
June to July 2018

July 2018
August to
September 2018

September 2018

Who and How?
Contact made with Reference Group members, to confirm membership,
discussion and agreement of role and timetable etc.
Discussion of suggested scope of SPG, aims, structure and key
components. Writing of first draft ready for Topic Stakeholder
consultation.
Teleconference with Reference Group on 10th May.
Email to Topic Stakeholders to alert them to pending consultation
period.
Circulation of first draft to Topic Stakeholders for consultation period
from 25th May to 8th June, 2018.
Teleconference with Reference Group on 13th June to consider Topic
Stakeholder responses. Also to confirm timetable for remainder of the
process.
Communicating with Reference Group to consider and confirm
appropriate revisions.
Amending draft SPG ready for public consultation period.
Draft SPG presented to LDP Working Group for approval prior to public
consultation period.
Notice of public consultation period circulated to LDP Database.
6 week public consultation period from 11th July to 21st August.
Teleconference with Reference Group 29th August to discuss
representations and agree required changes. Also to confirm timetable
for remainder of the process.
Amending draft SPG ready for adoption.
Consultation Draft SPG showing proposed changes presented to the
LDP Working Group shared with the Reference Group. The Reference
Group was informed of any issues raised by the LDP Working Group
before the SPG was finalised for Cabinet approval.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 29

23

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

3.3.5 Topic Stakeholders
3.3.6 The larger Topic Stakeholder group included an additional 41 members,
consisting of representatives from the following outside organisations:





















Biodiversity Information Service (BIS)
Botanical Society of the British Isles
Brecknock Bird Group
Brecknock Dragonfly Group
Brecknock Geology Group
Brecknock Mammal/Bat Group
Brecknock Moth Group
Brecknock Wildlife Trust
British Geological Survey
Butterfly Conservation
Canal and River Trust
Central Wales RIGS Group
Clwyd Powys Archaeological Trust
Coed Cymru
Glandwr Cymru - Canal & River Trust in
Wales
Llandinam Lives/Powys Species Habitat
Protection Group
Montgomery Canal Partnership / Canal
& River Trust
Montgomeryshire Barn Owl Group
Montgomeryshire Moth Group
Montgomeryshire Wildlife Trust























Natural England
Natural Resources Wales
Plantlife
Radnorshire Invertebrate Group
Radnorshire Mammal Group
Radnorshire Moth Group
Radnorshire Wildlife Trust
Rhayader By Nature
RSPB Cymru
The Inland Waterway Association
The River Wye Preservation Trust
The Woodland Trust Wales/Coed Cadw
Welsh Government
Welsh Kite Trust
Wye & Usk Foundation
Environment Agency England
British Trust for Ornithology
Amphibian and Reptile Conservation
Bat Conservation Trust
Vincent Wildlife Trust
Severn Rivers Trust

3.3.7 These stakeholders were invited to provide informal feedback on a working draft
of the SPG prior to the formal public consultation stage.
3.3.8 Comments received from the Topic Stakeholders were considered and
responded to, with further discussion taking place on specific issues where necessary.
The input from Topic Stakeholders was used to inform changes to the working draft of
the SPG.
3.3.9

LDP Working Group

3.3.10 The Draft SPG was considered by the LDP Working Group on 22nd June 2018
and approved for Public Consultation.
3.3.11 SPG Consultation
3.3.12 The public consultation period ran from 11th July to 21st August 2018 and
representations were received from the following:
Representor Name (Representor No.)


Clwyd Powys Archaeological Trust (27)



Elan Valley Trust (222)

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 30

24

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019



Mochdre with Penstrowed Community Council (516)



Abermule (with Llandyssil) Community Council (542)



The Coal Authority (1481)



Powys Wildlife Trusts (5201)



Canal & River Trust in Wales / Glandwr Cymru (5704)



Sarah Bond (6160)



CPRW (Brecknock and Radnor Branch) (6235)



Natural Resources Wales (7076)

3.3.13 The main issues arising from the consultation and the Council’s responses to
these are set out in Table B7 overleaf.
3.2.14 The representations and Council draft responses were considered by the LDP
Working Group at its meeting on the 7th September 2018, and subsequently by the
Council’s Cabinet at its meeting on 9th October 2018.
Table B7 – Main Issues from the Public Consultation (Biodiversity and
Geodiversity SPG)
Question 1: BG1 - Is the information in the Biodiversity and Geodiversity SPG presented
in a clear and logical format for the different audiences (i.e. professional developers and
domestic (non-professional) planning applicants)?
Issue
Council Response
Large document likely to feel over-whelming
Comments noted. Clarification to be added
particularly for public seeking permission for
to start of Section 8 ‘Biodiversity and
small-scale domestic development.
Geodiversity in the Planning Process’.
Needs to be made clear which sections
applicants for different types of development
need to read. (Rep 5201)
Table 1 – for clarity, include a bold horizontal
Table 1 will be revised to make it clearer.
line between the sub-sections of sites, habitats
and species. (Rep 5201)
Paragraph 6.31 – suggest moving this
Agreed.
paragraph below Table 1 to make it stand out.
(Rep 5201)
Subject to specific comments, the document
Comments noted.
would appear to be appropriate. Images may
help. (Rep 5704)
No, it is of concern that it is considered that the
Comments noted. The Council is content
SPG is only for planning applicants when it will
that the SPG makes clear it is relevant
be a material consideration when determining
advice and an important material
planning applications and is of relevance to
consideration to all parties involved in the
Planning Officers, Planning Inspectors and the
planning process.
general public. (Rep 6160)
The text needs amending to address:
Comments noted. Editing will be undertaken
to address these concerns.
 numerous repetitions.
 poor paragraph ordering of some topics.
 poor or muddled wording in some
Page 31
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council
25

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

paragraphs
 errors in cross referencing to paragraph
numbers including Appendix C.
 worrying omissions. (Rep 6160)
Confused by the two versions of the SPG
available on the Powys website. (Rep 6235)

The text is sometimes vague, long-winded and
repetitive. (Rep 6235)
The audience includes all interested parties. It
should concentrate on clarifying how existing
legislation, policy and guidance on biodiversity
and geodiversity is incorporated into the Powys
planning process in order to help all interested
parties.
Audiences need to know exactly how
responsibilities in the planning process are
allocated between PCC and NRW. This is not
clear and we suggest detailed discussion and
agreement with NRW to establish this. (Rep
6235)
The overall format is well thought out and
follows a logical progression. (Comments on
details provided in a tracked changes version of
the SPG). (Rep 7076)

The correct version for public consultation
was available on the main LDP web page,
and labelled as such, from the beginning of
the consultation period.
Comments noted. Editing will be
undertaken.
The Council will review the SPG to make
sure roles are clearly defined.

Comments noted.

Question 2: BG2 - Is the language and terminology used in the SPG appropriate for these
different audiences?
Issue
Council Response
Throughout the document, the phrase “proposed
Comments noted. The text to be amended
development site” should replace “development
accordingly.
site. (Rep 5201)
Table 1 – The final six columns of this table are
Comments noted. The Council has
confusing. For example, the applicant may be left reviewed Table 1 and has clarified the
thinking that a site listed under "No Statutory
purposes of the columns by rewording the
Protection" can be ignored. We recommend that
text in the column headers and adding a
the final six columns are removed from Table 1.
footnote.
(Rep 5201)
Welcome the inclusion of Wildlife Trust Reserves, Comments noted. This change may be
however, it seems odd that other NGO nature
possible at a future date, but no change
reserves are absent, notably those of the
required at the moment.
Woodland Trust & RSPB. If changed, paragraph
6.18 would also need updating. (Rep 5201)
References to the Powys LBAP should be
Comments noted. Whilst the Council
amended to refer to the Powys Nature Recovery
agrees with the desirability of the proposed
Action Plan (NRAP) including Paragraphs 6.33 change, the LBAP is, until the NRAP is
6.35, Appendices B & C, etc. (Rep 5201)
adopted, still the appropriate Plan for
applicants to consult. Removal of
references to the LBAP at this stage would
therefore create the potential for this
important source of local information to be
omitted from an applicant’s preparatory
research. No change required.
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 32

26

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Appendix A - Section 42 ‘important (priority)
habitat and species’ no longer exists and should
be referred to as ‘Section 7’. (Rep 5201)

1. Subject to specific comments the document
would appear to be appropriate. (Rep 5704)
2. Yes with proviso that glossary expanded –
e.g., NRAP, SoNaRR. (Rep 6160)
3. The language used within the document is
appropriate for the target audience. (Rep
7076)
The language is sometimes verbose making the
SPG unnecessarily long. E.g. Paragraph 6.7
SPAs could read: “Special Protection Areas
(SPAs): a European designation for the
conservation of birds. Three SPAs are wholly or
partially within the Powys planning area and
another two are close enough to be at risk from
development within the planning area.
Developers should be aware of ranging and
foraging buffers around SPAs”. (Rep 6235)

This reference in the Glossary is provided
for clarity as the term ‘Section 42’, and
references to the NERC Act, are still in use
and often seen in documentation. The
superseding of Section 42 by Section 7 is
explained in the text under this entry in the
Glossary. No change required.
1. Comments noted
2. Comments noted. Both NRAP and
SoNaRR are cited and explained in
Appendix C.
3. Comment noted.

Comments noted. The opportunity has
been taken to review the document and
wherever necessary changes have been
made.

Question 3: BG3 - Is there any content missing from the SPG, or parts that could be
improved?
Issue
Council Response
1. Paragraph 6.16 – Amend to read: “These are 1. Agreed.
assessed and selected using specific criteria
2. Agreed, plus the additional wording
which recognise their wildlife value,
‘and many carry statutory designations’
developed and agreed by members of the
to be made.
Powys Nature Partnership (see Appendix A)”.
2. Paragraph 6.18 – Amend to read: “The three
Wildlife Trusts in Powys also own, lease and
manage land as Wildlife Trust Reserves
(WTRs). These protect locally or nationally
rare or vulnerable wildlife or habitats and
many carry statutory designations. In Powys
there are…” (Rep 5201)
1. Table 1 - Section 7 habitats and species and
1. Agreed.
Veteran Trees are missing from Table 1 and
2. Agreed. All Categories to be included
should be added.
in the SPG.
2. Paragraph 6.27 – should include the Ancient
3. Comment noted. Having reviewed the
Woodland Inventory’s four categories:
text, the current wording is considered
* Ancient Semi-Natural Woodland (ASNW)
adequate so no change required.
* Plantation of Ancient Woodland Sites
(PAWS)
* Restored Ancient Woodland Sites (RAWS)
* Ancient Woodland Site of Unknown
Category (AWSU)
3. Paragraphs 6.30 & 6.31 - Powys has
internationally important areas of veteran
trees / historic parkland which should be
Page 33
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council
27

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

emphasised e.g. the Elan Valley. (Rep 5201)
1. The SPG should be stronger in recognising
that non-statutory sites can have biological
features of international significance, in the
same way that not all sites of SSSI quality
end up being designated SSSI. For example
biologically rich ponds should be included.
The Freshwater Habitats Trust has
recognised that parts of Powys are
‘Internationally Important Areas for Ponds
(IAPs) e.g. ‘mawn’ pools found on common
land across North Brecknock and
Radnorshire. These lack statutory protection
yet are areas of significant biodiversity value
and have high populations of important
species, such as the Great Crested Newt.
2. It is important to remember that the national
network of SSSIs forms a representative suite
of the country's very best wildlife and
geographical sites; this needs to be
emphasised in paragraph 6.12. (Rep 5201)
1. Paragraph 6.32 – it is important to retain the
significance of the difference between
nationally important and locally important
sites. Either list the Section 7 habitats here
(could remove any that aren’t relevant for
Powys) or refer the reader to the Wales
Biodiversity Partnership for the list.
2. Paragraph 6.33 - Depending on how
paragraph 6.32 is dealt with, either list the
NRAP habitats or refer the reader to the
Powys NRAP for the list. (Rep 5201)
1. Paragraphs 7.7 & 7.8 – Environmental
Permits (EPRs) are not mentioned and could
be included here.
2. Table 2 – emphasise the need for Phase 2
vegetation surveys, at the appropriate time of
year if the preliminary ecological appraisal
identifies interesting habitat. This is relevant
for the top 10 development sites in the table.
3. Paragraph 7.27 - further surveys should
include those for priority habitats and species
as well as EPS.
4. Table 3 – amend the dormouse survey
optimal period to May to October inclusive,
whilst the rest of the year would be suboptimal. (Rep 5201)
Paragraph 8.26 - when saying that
“compensation does not necessarily need to be
like for like replacement” it should be emphasised
that the replacement gain should have integrity
and value within the ecological landscape it sits
in. (Rep 5201)
Intensive Livestock Units
Paragraphs 9.16 - 9.20– in the Chief Planning
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 34

1. Comments noted. Add new para. to
include reference to non-statutory sites
containing features of international
significance and using mawn pools as
an example.
2. Agreed. Add the following ‘and as such
form a representative suite of the
country’s very best wildlife and
geological sites.’

1. Comments noted. Include reference to
the Wales Biodiversity Partnership.
2. The Powys LBAP is still extant until the
NRAP is adopted, so the reference to
the LBAP Habitats should remain.

1. Comments noted.
2. Table 2 – additional clarification will be
provided.
3. Insert additional text: ‘such as those for
priority habitats and species and EPS.
4. Agreed, amend Table 3 accordingly.

Comments noted. The text will be revised.

Comments noted. The Council is familiar
with the clarification letters cited and
28

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Officer letter (12/6/18) from Welsh Government,
the impacts of intensive agricultural
developments were emphasised. The appropriate
wording of this section is a great opportunity to
improve the current decision making process.
PCC is urged to take heed of recent advice from
the Welsh Government regarding the importance
of a wide range of consultees when considering
these developments. (Letter from Lesley Griffiths
AM, Cabinet Sec for Energy, Planning and Rural
Affairs, 30/4/018). (Rep 5201)
1. Paragraph 6.42 – refers to “Section 4.4
below”, but this section does not exist.
2. Paragraph 8.18 - refers to Sections 5.5 and
5.6, but these do not exist.
3. Paragraph 8.23 – remove “However” from the
start of the second sentence and insert “For
example,” instead.
4. Paragraph 8.30 – in the second bullet point,
please include ‘bat bricks’.
5. Paragraphs 9.13 & 9.15 – these make
reference to section 6.5 which does not exist.
(Rep 5201)
Section 7 could be moved to an appendix. (Rep
5704)
Paragraph 4.1 – Amend to read “….consider the
potential impacts of proposals upon these
interests on or near development sites”.(Rep
6160)
Paragraph 4.7 states, “As a consequence of its
extent, it has a considerable diversity of habitat
types”. This statement is misleading. It is not
because of Powys’ extent but its geodiversity and
man’s interaction that there is considerable
diversity of habitats. (Rep 6160)
Table 2 - is inconsistent when describing surveys.
As a result the text following this table becomes
confusing about the status of species, e.g. 7.29 to
7.36 discusses EPS but then bats are discussed
separately at 7.41. (Rep 6160)
Paragraph 7.27 – Refers to CIIEM guidance, but
guidance is regularly updated. (Rep 6160)
1. Para. 7.37 - This paragraph is unacceptable
because it totally dismisses many protected
avian species in Powys. Most other raptors
are Schedule 1 birds, as are some other
species which may be affected by
development in Powys.
2. Paras 7.37 and 7.38 should be moved and
amalgamated with para 8.48 in section 8.
3. Para 7.39 should have a new heading, e.g.
‘avian surveys’, and include discussion about
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

considers it already follows the advice.
Having reviewed the Intensive Livestock
Units section it is not felt necessary to
make any changes.

Comments noted. The cross-references
will be updated, a reference to ‘bat bricks’
included in Table 5, and the SPG will be
edited.

Noted, but the Council considers this is an
important section to retain in the body of
the SPG.
Noted. The words ‘and beyond’ will be
added.

Comments noted. Add the word ‘Partly’ to
the beginning of the paragraph..

Comments noted. Table 2 has been
reviewed and editing amendments made
as necessary.

Agreed. Insert the text:”or any updated”.
1. Comments noted. The Council
disagrees. Barn Owls are detailed in
the SPG as they commonly nest and
roost in buildings so are an example of
a species that may be at risk from
development. Many other Schedule
One birds are found in Powys however
these will be covered by surveys
already included in the SPG. No
change required.

Page 35

29

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

nesting birds and protected birds. (Rep 6160)

Paragraph 7.39 “……Areas of dense vegetation
(e.g. hedgerows, or long-derelict land) are also
important for other nesting birds” This statement
whilst correct is an oversimplification. It ignores
ground nesting birds and in particular the critical
status of curlew which nest in damp habitats and
are particularly susceptible to the types of
agricultural development being applied for and
the solar LSAs. (Rep 6160)
1. Amend 8.2 - to read “biodiversity and
geodiversity interests affected by
development sites”.
2. Paragraph 8.27 - should explain
compensatory measures will be conditioned.
3. Paragraph 8.34 - It is of great concern that
this document has been put forward for public
consultation with this illustration missing.
4. Paragraph 8.38 - omits reptiles from the list of
fauna e.g. slow worms.
5. Paragraph 8.44 - Should read, “affected by
development proposals”.
6. Paragraph 8.45 “…… If a planning application
is likely to directly impact on a pond, canal,
ditch or cellar a great crested newt survey
may be required.” This is incorrect advice and
contradictory to advice on EPS at 7.23 A
survey for great crested newts is required if:
* there are historical records of newts within
or close to the site proposed for development.
* there’s a pond within 500 metres of the
application site boundary even if it only holds
water some of the year
* the development site includes refuges (eg
log piles or rubble), grassland, scrub,
woodland or hedgerows. (Rep 6160)
1. Paragraphs 4.2 and 4.5, 6.16, 6.25, 6.26, 6.27,
7.35 – Repetitious.
2. Paragraph 6.20 - Omit NB – unnecessary.
3. Paragraphs 6.42, 7.33, 8.8. 8.14. 8.18, 8.39,
8.41.8.43, 9.13, 9.15 - Incorrect cross refs. (Rep
6160)
1. Prior to section ‘5.0 LDP policies’, The
Environment (Wales) Act Part 1, Sections 3, 4
and 6 should be set out as they are in the Act.
2. Section 5.0 LDP policies - Should make it
clear that the LDP is an integrated document
and other policies besides SP7 and DM2 are
relevant to Biodiversity and Geodiversity. For
instance:
 DM7 on light pollution
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 36

2. & 3. It will be made clear that these
surveys are examples. A new subheading will be inserted.
Comment noted. Whilst the Council
disagrees that this para. ignores ground
nesting birds, the words ‘or open’ and ‘or
agricultural’ will be added, and the word
‘or’ be removed.

1. Comments noted. The opening
paragraphs will be revised for clarity.
2. Agreed. Add following wording:
“Compensatory measures may also be
subject to planning conditions and
ongoing monitoring.”
3. Comment noted but the diagram was
only for illustrative purposes.
4. The list of species is not intended to be
exchaustive.
5. The comment is noted. It is
recommended that the change be
made accordingly.
6. Agreed. The word ‘directly’ will be
removed.

Comments noted. The SPG will be subject
to futher editing.

1. The Council disagrees with this
representation. The Environment Act is
summarised in Appendix C. No change
required.
2. This point is made already in the
introduction to the document. It is also
repeated in Appendix C which already
lists the key LDP Policies that are likely
to have a bearing upon Biodiversity
and Geodiversity. No change required.
30

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019





DM13.13.v. on protection of soils
DM14.2 Air quality management
DM15 Waste within developments (Rep
6235)
Major elements missing from the SPG:
1. Importance of State of Nature Wales report:
urgency of reversing decline in Biodiversity.
2. Discussion of Protection of Soils.
3. Discussion of Cumulative impacts.
4. Informative discussion about Intensive
Livestock Proposals, regulatory framework
and PCC role. (Rep 6235)

SPG to include additional information on:
1. Ancient semi natural woodland.
2. The Birds directive.
3. Associated legislation not regulated under
planning. (see comments on page 17 of SPG
draft attached).
4. NRW role in flood defence.
5. Consideration of long term post construction
issues.
6. Clarification over INNS legislation and
biosecurity requirements during the planning
process.
7. Public Authorities duties including Powys LPA
to report and monitor on the Nature Recovery
Action Plan under Section 6 of the Envt. Act.
(Rep 7076)

Comments noted. The following changes
be made to the document:
1. Insert reference to ‘State of Nature’
report.
2. Agreed. Add new section on ‘Soils’
within the Geodiversity and
Development Proposals section.
3. Agreed. Add nerw section on
‘Cumulative and In Combination Effects’
within the Biodiversity and Geodiversity
in the Planning Process section.
4. The Council has already included a
section on Intensive Livestock Units
which is considered adequate. No
change required.
Comments noted. Amend SPG to include:
1. Additional information on Ancient
Woodlands.
2. Text concerning SPAs and a link to
more information on the Birds Directive
inserted into Appendix B.
3. Comments noted, however the Council
believes this information to be
unnecessary.
4. Requirement to consult NRW inserted
5. Agreed. Text amended in a number of
places to reflect this
6. Text regarding INNS inserted into
Section 9.
7.Text inserted in Appendix C under the
Environment (Wales) Act regarding LPA
duties. The SPG already contains a
number of paras regarding unlawful
activity and these have been placed under
a new heading to draw attention to them,
so no change is felt to be necessary.

Question 4: BG4 - Section 6 covers a complex topic. Could the layout or contents of
this section be improved? If so how?
Issue
Council Response
1. The layout is good (Rep 542)
1. & 2. Comment noted.
2. It is clearly laid out. (Rep 5201)
3. – 11. Comments noted. Section 6 has
been reviewed and necessary changes
3. It could be condensed or detail placed in an
made.
appendix. The introduction of images may
help. Some terms are duplicated in the
glossary. (Rep 5704)
4. Paragraphs 6.25- 6.27 are repetitive. 6.27
and 6.28 discuss wood pasture but fail to
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 37

31

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

explain what it is - does it include old
orchards or ffridd?
5. Paragraph 6.31 - Suggest para has a title,
e.g. ‘designated sites mapping’.
6. Paragraph 6.43 - discusses UK protected
species but fails to explain how plants are
protected. (Rep 6160)
7. Section 6 could be improved in its layout
and structure of headings. Bold Headings
for the designations would help. e.g. 6.11,
6.13, 6.16, 6.17, 6.18, 6.19, 6.21.
8. The section is very confusing. Terms need
to be used carefully and consistently.
Careful explanation is needed for:
“designation” and “statutory”; “protected”
and “important”; devolution to Wales of
some planning functions; what information
applicants need to provide about woodland
and LBAP categories; what regard PCC will
have to LBAP categories in planning
determinations.
9. In the sub-sub-headings, LBAP habitats and
species are only “important”, however, in
Table 1, LBAP Habitats and Species do
have statutory protection but RVNRs and
AW do not have statutory protection.
10. It needs to be clear that the duty to enhance
and maintain biodiversity everywhere where
there is no national or international
designation lies with Powys CC.
11. For International and Nationally designated
sites, PCC is responsible for considering
cumulative impacts. PCC is also responsible
for considering cumulative impacts on all
other biodiversity interests. (Rep 6235)
Question 5: BG5 - Would the sections on ‘Incorporating Resilience into Development
Proposals’ and ‘Green Infrastructure and Resilience’ (paras 8.67 to 8.77) be better
embedded within the ‘Design’ section (8.17 to 8.34)?
Issue
Council Response
1. Yes. (Rep 516, 5704, 6160, 6235, 7076)
1. Comment noted. The paragraphs will
be moved.
2. Yes; also suggest rationalising this section
by removing Table 5 and paragraphs 8.70 & 2. The Council disagrees and considers
8.71 as this is all mentioned elsewhere and
that Table 5 has a role to play in the
is likely to mean very little to an applicant.
SPG. An explanation is provided in the
(Rep 5201)
following paras. No change required.
Question 6: BG6 - Would the inclusion of a checklist or flowchart for incorporating
biodiversity and geodiversity in the planning process be of use to summarise the
process, or could this oversimplify important considerations?
Issue
Council Response
1. Yes, an indicative graphical illustration, such 1. and 2. Comments noted. An indicative
as a flowchart, is likely to be very helpful for
flowchart will be included.
applicants. Perhaps an app could be
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 38

32

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

developed, as this would allow the detail to
be retained. (Rep 516; Rep 5201, 5704
7076)
2. No. This would just duplicate text and
oversimplify considerations and would not
be available for public consultation. In
general the text could be tightened and
sometimes shortened to underline exactly
what a developer has to do. (Rep 6160,
6235)
Question 7: BG7 - Does Appendix C tie in to and support other parts of the SPG
adequately enough, or should the legal context (i.e. the reason why something is
required) be reinforced?
Issue
Council Response
1. Yes. (Rep 516) Appx C is adequate. (Rep
1. The comment is noted.
6160)
2. Extra references to Appendix C will
2. Appendix C could be reinforced through
be inserted wherever appropriate.
referencing in other parts of the document.
3. Comment noted, however it is
(Rep 5201)
considered that Section 2 and
3. Reference is provided within the main
Appendix C provide this elaboration
document to appendix C, e.g. at paragraphs
already.
2.1, 7.2, 8.13. Given the length of the
document it may be useful to elaborate upon
the legal context within section 2.0 of the
document. (Rep 5704)
1. The WBFGA is much less clear and specific
1. Comments noted, however the
about Biodiversity and Geodiversity than the
Council considers that the content
Environment (Wales) Act section 6 duties
relating to Environment (Wales) Act
which are key to this SPG and their text is a
and the WBFGA is sufficient and in
serious omission. The description in Appendix
the right place. No change required.
C is not good enough and these should be set
2. Comments noted
out in full earlier in the document. (Rep 6235)
2. Relevant legislation should be mentioned
within the SPG because it helps to clarify what
is a legislative requirement and what is best
practice / guidance. Appropriate reference to
Appendix C should be made for additional
details. (Rep 7076)
To avoid confusion, clarification is needed in
The Regulations are not matters within
Appendix C in relation to Schedule 2 projects of
the control of the Council, so no change
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
to the SPG is required.
Impact Assessment) (Wales) Regulations (2017).
(Rep 542)
Question 8: BG8 – If you have any other comments you want to make which are not
covered by the above questions please include them here:
Issue
Council Response
CPAT welcomes this SPG. It may be worth noting
Comment noted. Mention of this
that there is some cross over between biodiversity
overlap will be included.
and the historic environment and there may be
occasions when historic environment policies might
be brought to bear to assist biodiversity issues. For
example peat bogs, hedges and boundaries, field
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 39

33

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

systems, veteran trees, ancient woodland,
parkland, caves, rivers, streams, lakes and ponds,
etc. have an historic environment dimension which
might be useful allies to biodiversity. Mention might
be made of this cross over. (Rep 27)
It is good that policy DM7 is referenced, given
Powys’s important dark skies and the benefits of
dark skies to biodiversity. A robust lighting
management policy should be incorporated into the
planning process. (Rep 222)
Paragraph 6.17, Appendix B – the Powys wildlife
trusts names and contacts need correcting. (Rep
5201)
1. Paragraph 4.7 - should include ‘canals’, within
the list of habitats, especially given the
Montgomery canal is designated as a SAC and
SSSI.
2. Paragraph 8.30 – Amend wording to read
“Creation of a buffer zone along natural
watercourses planted with native species
(where appropriate)”. This would provide
flexibility in respect of development adjacent to
the canal.
3. Paragraph 9.11 - should refer to the
Montgomery canal designated as a SAC. (Rep
5704)
Geodiversity - Despite the LDP at DM13 referring
to protection of soils as resources providing
ecosystem services this is not expanded upon in
this SPG. (Rep 6160)
1. Water Framework Directive (WFD) - The WFD
requirements should be made to dovetail better
with biodiversity beyond phosphate pollution. It
also ties in with geodiversity and protection of
soils. (Rep 6160)
2. This WFD section fails to set out the LPA role in
achieving the objectives of the WFD, under
which it has duties as a competent authority to
protect water quality in Powys. The SPG
suggests that all responsibility lies with NRW
however NRW has published an advice note “
Local Authority services and the water
environment”
https://naturalresources.wales/media/2627/wfddocs-eng.pdf In order to fulfil this role, LPAs
must have the relevant information about the
water environment. Suggest adding:
“Applicants must provide contour maps with
clearly mapped details of all water features on
the development site and surrounding land
wherever any flooding or pollution risks may
occur.” (Information on Scimap included). (Rep
6235)
1. Intensive Livestock Units (ILUs) - Relegating
the discussion of requirements for intensive
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 40

Comments noted. LDP Policy DM7
does cover light pollution and refers to
dark sky designations. No change
required.
Agreed.

1. Agreed.
2. With development alongside manmade waterways already being
covered by related regulations, it is
felt that inserting ‘where
appropriate’ alongside the use of
the word ‘natural’ would
unnecessarily weaken the
guidance. The paragraph will be
amended to refer to Table 5.
3. Agreed.

A new section on soils will be included.

Comments noted and the WFD
paragraphs will be reviewed and
changes made accordingly.

Comments noted, however the Council
is content that sufficient information is
34

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

livestock proposals to “other considerations” is
unacceptable and illogical. Logically, ILUs
should sit next to householder applications in
Section 8.
2. Paragraph 9.18 - This is misleading. NRW only
responds to emissions impacts on
internationally / nationally designated sites. It is
for the local authority to consider effects on
other biodiversity interests. It is therefore for the
LPA to consider effects of, e.g., bryophytes in
ancient woodland.
3. Application documents - The SPG has not
seized the opportunity to enforce best practice
for application documents to aid the LPA’s
environmental statutory duties. E.g. (a) poultry
ranging plans with contours which NRW have
stated is a requirement. Scimapping should be
a requirement. E.g. (b) manure management
plans are accepted without contour plans. Land
put forward as enough acreage for the waste
from the ILU could all be on slopes that should
only have seasonal spreading. Colour coded
manure management plans should be a
standard requirement. (Rep 6160)
4. Paragraphs 9.16 to 9.20 – The ILU section is
unsatisfactory and misleading.The Council has
not explained its own responsibilities in
determining ILU planning applications. It is
essential that the SPG:
 is factually right and in sufficient detail.
 accords with WG and NRW advice.
 explains the roles of NRW and PCC in
enhancing and maintaining biodiversity in
the planning process.
 is crystal clear to PCC officers, applicants
and the general public.
 informs all parties how planning conditions
will be monitored and by whom .
 is not published until any unclear issues are
resolved.
(Detailed comments were provided by the
Representor – Please refer to Appendix 1). (Rep
6235)
1. Paragraph 2.1 - The SPG is important for all
stakeholders and Powys residents. The first
bullet point should be amended to: “Set out the
way in which LDP planning policy is to be
interpreted and applied to protect biodiversity
and geodiversity in the public interest.” The
second bullet point should read: “applicants and
all developers, consultants and other agents
involved in preparing planning applications.”.
2. Paragraph 4.1 - The ecological impacts of
development do not stop at the site boundary.
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

provided on intensive livestock units so
no changes are considered necessary.

1. Comments noted, however the
Council does not consider any
change is required to the bullet
points.
2. The words ‘and beyond’ will be
included.
3. The wording in Paragraph 4.2 will
be amended to shorten the
explanation.
4. Para. 4.3 will be revised.
5. Noted, but no change to the SPG.

Page 41

35

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

3.

4.

5.

6.

1.
2.

Amended wording to: “It is essential to consider
the potential impacts of each proposal upon the
ecology of the development site and also the
ecology beyond the development site”.
Paragraph 4.2 - It would be clearer to explain at
the outset that: (a) the LDP sits within overarching International/EU and National
legislation and policy which is already reflected
in the latest version of Planning Policy Wales.
(b) LDP policy re bio/geodiversity, which is
mainly set out in SP7 and DM2, does not
directly repeat PPW (PPW9 2.3.1). (c) The
SPG therefore expands the guidance in the
LDP by setting out the requirements for
planning decisions derived from all of these
sources to make them clear and accessible for
all.
Paragraph 4.3 – amend last sentence to:
“biodiversity and geodiversity have been
assessed and accommodated….”
Paragraph 4.5 - Two simple definitions are:
"totality of genes, species and ecosystems of a
region"; “a biological community of interacting
organisms and their physical environment”.
This introductory section needs further
explanation - enhancing and maintaining
biodiversity cannot be achieved by only
protecting nature reserves and certain species
categories whether of international, national or
local importance. The ecosystem duty applies
to biodiversity throughout Powys and this will
be taken into account in planning
determination. (The SPG statement
Biodiversity in Powys 4.9 “designations alone
cannot guarantee the integrity and prolonged
existence of these valuable resources” is not
clear and forceful enough). We do not
understand the full extent of negative impacts
of our development activities. Therefore we
should exercise the “precautionary principle”.
However we do know that improving and
preventing loss of existing natural habitats and
creation of new ones is the best way to avoid
loss of species. (Rep 6235)
Table 1 - A note on mapped / unmapped
categories would be useful.
Paragraph 6.32 - Section 7 of Envt.(Wales) Act
imposes the duty to create a list but does not
contain the habitat or species lists which are
published by the Wales Biodiversity Partnership
(but under the name of the WG) as is described
in 6.3.4 for species). Suggest: “The Welsh
Government publishes a list of habitats of
importance for the conservation of Biodiversity
in Wales as required by the Environment
(Wales) Act (2016).”

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 42

6. Comments noted. The SPG will be
edited, and a new section will be
included on un-designated sites.

1. Table 1 will be amended for
clarification.
2. Comment noted, the wording will be
amended.
3. The existing wording will be revised
to refer to the refusal of planning
permission.

36

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

3. Paragraph 6.38 – Amend wording from “if it is
absent then it may delay determination” to “This
information is required to be submitted with the
application documents prior to determination”
(Rep: 6235)
1. Paragraph 7.2 - This section on Environmental
Impact assessment should be improved. It is
vague and misleading and should refer to and
explain “Schedule 1” and “Schedule 2”
development of the EIA regulations.
2. Paragraph 7.3 - it should be more precise and
say that there are a listed variety of
development types to which specific criteria and
thresholds are applied to determine if the
project counts as Schedule 2 development.
Any Schedule 2 development must be
screened by the LPA (or WG or NRW as
appropriate) to determine if there are likely
significant impacts which indicate that an EIA is
required. (Rep: 6235)
HRA
1. Paragraph 7.16 - The stringency of the HRA
test should be made clear.Suggest: “Consent
cannot be granted unless the results of the
Appropriate Assessment show beyond
reasonable scientific doubt that the proposal
will not have a significant adverse effect on the
integrity of the protected site ”
2. Paragraph 7.18 - Unable to trace this reference
so a better easily located reference needs to be
provided. The SPG should also explain here
that, irrespective of site boundaries or buffer
zones, significant air and water pollution can
occur far beyond a development site. (Rep:
6235)
Biodiversity Surveys
1. Paragraph 7.20 - Surveys are not necessary for
every development. Suggest: “It is often
necessary to carry out desk-top or field surveys
to understand which protected sites, habitats
and species will be affected on the site or
beyond the application site”.
2. Paragraphs 7.21-7.23, Table 2 - This is
confusing. 7.23 mentions EPS which a reader
might equate with “protected species surveys”.
Then Table 2 mentions two general types of
survey: “preliminary ecological appraisal” and
“protected species surveys” but for
Watercourses we have “fish” and “birds” and for
Woodlands we have EPS and “badgers, birds”.
3. Table 2 - Needs revision. There is no mention
of plants or potential important habitats. There
is no guidance as to what species are
considered “protected”. The duty to maintain
and enhance biodiversity cannot be fulfilled by
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

1. & 2. Comments noted. Further
clarification will be made to the EIA
section.

1. Comments noted. The HRA section
will be reviewed.
2. Amend Appendix B to provide a link
to this mapping.

1. Comments noted. The text in the
following paragraphs will be
amended.
2. Amendments will be made to
address the comments.
3. Amendments will be made to Table
2.
4. Paragraph 7.23 will be reviewed.
5. The paragraphs will be reviewed
along with the EPS and HRA
sections of the SPG.
6. The tests reflect the wording of
Policy DM2 (criterion 1.B) and
should be retained.
7. Noted the SPG will be reviewed and
edited as appropriate.
8. Agreed.
9. The wording will be reviewed.

Page 43

37

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

a limited checklist approach.
4. Paragraph 7.23 - Suggest: “When a
development proposal is on land, or has an
impact on land beyond the site, in one of the
categories in Table 2, it is likely that an
ecological survey will be required. This survey
may need to extend beyond the site boundary.”
5. Paragraphs 7.30 to 7.36 - This is repetitive.
Suggest: “if a proposal is likely to affect EPS on
or beyond the application site, all relevant
survey information and assessment of the likely
impacts on EPS must be submitted in a survey
report as part of the planning application. The
report must include mitigation proposals for any
adverse impacts, and details matching the
mitigation requirements in the Survey Report
must be clearly shown on any submitted plans
and drawings. The survey, survey report
……licensed surveyor
The LPA needs sufficient information to assess
the information against the Habitat Regulations
and to decide whether the proposal would pose
a risk to maintaining the Favourable
Conservation Status of the species at risk (the
“FCS test”). NRW is usually consulted for
comments on the content and conclusions of
the ecological report and advice about planning
conditions to protect biodiversity if permission is
granted.
If EPS are present and significant damage or
disturbance to individuals, their habitat or
resting places is likely and cannot be
sufficiently mitigated, the LPA must either
refuse the application, or, in exceptional
circumstances, apply three derogation tests.”
6. The second of the three LPA derogation tests
(FCS test) is wrong: the tests are “no
alternative”, “IROPI”, “necessary compensation
for network of European sites”. Copy the tests
from
http://www.assembly.wales/research documents/17038/17-038-web-english.pdf
7. It would be clearer to write about permission
first and then about the need for an NRW
licence.
8. Paragraphs 7.37-7.43 - these could be labelled
“examples of specific surveys” because there
are many other types of survey as shown in
Table 3.
9. Pargraph 7.48 - confusing repetition of 7.33 in
EPS section and then introduction of
“conservation licence” in UKPS section so
reader can’t tell if a “development licence” only
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 44

38

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

applies to EPS or not. Suggest policy and
licensing professional from NRW reviews and
helps amend this section. (Rep: 6235)
Step-wise Approach
1. Paragraph 8.5 - suggest adding: “The LPA will
need to consider evidence for whether the new
features or habitats will lead to sufficient
biodiversity gain to mitigate, off set or
compensate for the adverse impacts of the
development. “
2. Paragraph 8.14 - Repeats points already made
so heading is confusing. Suggest delete
heading and retain 8.15 as third para. of PreApplication discussions saying: “Where preapplication discussions suggest the need for
ecological surveys, up-front……(see Table 3)
and early surveying could minimise delays in
the application process.
3. Paragraph 8.16 - suggest delete heading and
make this fourth para. of Pre-Application
discussions saying: “In some cases……needed
however Developers should…… that in other
cases additional ….application.”
4. Paragraphs 8.12 - 8.13 - Suggest new heading:
“Unlawful Activity
5. Paragraph 8.21 - This is unacceptable. If “the
land take for construction” involves any
earthworks, habitat, species or geological
disturbance, it should be within the red line
shown on the application form. The ecological
impact should be taken into consideration in the
biodiversity assessment and any mitigation and
restoration plans should be described.
6. Paragraphs 8.24–8.30 - Welcome the text but
would like a proviso that the gains are
evidence-based and subject to condition and
monitoring because in our experience they do
not always happen. (Rep: 6235)
Incorporating Biodiversity into a Domestic
Application
1. Paragraph 8.50 - Reads as if author ran out of
steam. E.g. “Further advice can be sought
from… the internet.”
2. This section could be tightened up and
simplified. E.g. Suggest Para. 8.38 reads: “Bats
and birds, especially….. martins and barn owls
may nest or roost in buildings. Great crested
newts may be found in cellars or, more
commonly, outdoors in ponds, canals or ditches
and among stones”
3. Suggest all the headings re-ordered to put EPS
first, mammals, then GCNs, then non-EPS bird
categories. If they were presented as e.g. Hazel
Dormouse (EPS) there would be no need to
say “this is an EPS”!
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Comments noted.
1&2. The Council will review the
wording of this section.
3. Agreed to amend the heading. The
wording will be reviewed.
4. Agreed.
5. The wording of para 2.81 will be
reviewed
6. It is recommended that the wording
be amended to refer to compensatory
measures being subject to planning
conditions and ongoing monitoring.

1. Comments noted. The reference to
the internet was inserted previously at
the request of a topic stakeholder but
will be deleted.
2. Comments noted but no change
considered necessary.
3. It is recommended that the headings
/ sections be re-ordered.
4. -7. The wording will be reviewed.

Page 45

39

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

4. Paragraphs 8.51 to 8.58 - Vague and does not
inspire confidence in information presented or
management of these issues. People need to
know how to find out/who to ask about these
things because the SPG is where they will
expect precise detailed advice.
5. Paragraph 8.59 - Misunderstanding of
“enhancement and maintaining”. Promoting,
learning about and publicising Geodiversity is
desirable but not the same as enhancing and
maintaining it.
6. Paragraph 8.67 – Diagree that this is “relatively
easy”. It is extremely difficult to get applicants,
particularly those for the larger scale proposals,
to “target their actions” to these attributes. On
the whole, habitat and species destruction from
development and modern agricultural practices
far outweighs any of these measures. While we
fully support all these resilience measures, this
document is SPG and there is nothing in this
add-on section to make us feel confident that
these resilience ambitions will be incorporated
into the planning system.
7. Agree that these measures should be
incorporated into the design phase where they
will attract better scrutiny. (Rep: 6235)
Missing Sections
1. The SPG should include sections at the
beginning of the document on:
(a) State of Nature (Wales) Report
(b) Environment (Wales) Act Part 1, Section 3:
Sustainable Management of natural
resources; Section 4: Principles of
Sustainable Management of natural
resources; Section 6: Biodiversity and
resilience of ecosystems duty.
2. Section 5.0 - Should make it clear that the LDP
is an integrated document and other policies
besides SP7 and DM2 are relevant to
Biodiversity and Geodiversity. For example:
DM7 on light pollution, DM13.13.v. on
protection of soils, DM14.2 Air quality
management, DM15 Waste within
developments.
3. Cumulative impacts on biodiversity and
geodiversity.
4. Soils - DM13.13.v.Protects soils and particularly
peat which are geodiversity features. This
policy is not mentioned in the SPG and the only
specific mention of soils is in relation to
woodland. Carbon soils, including peat provide
a valuable carbon sink and specific soil types
support unique ecosystems. (Rep: 6235)
Comments on Section 6
1. Paragraph 6.1 - explains that the section follows
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council Page 46

1. Comments noted. Reference to the
State of Nature Report will be
added, but Appendix C is
considered sufficient to explain the
legislative requirements.
2. The introduction explains this and
Appendix C which already lists the
key LDP.No change required.
3. & 4. New sections will be added on
on:
 Cumulative and In Combination
Effects
 Soils.

1. The Council will review the structure
of section 6.
40

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

2.

3.

4.

1.

2.

the format of DM2, but in the material which
follows the main headings are inconsistent
- Designated Sites
- Habitats of principal importance
- Protected and important Species
Geodiversity is combined with Biodiversity and
a new level of “Regional” is introduced. It would
be better to treat Geodiversity separately from
Biodiversity in this section.
The structure of headings needs to be clear
and consistent. Bold headings should be used
to guide reader clearly through different
designations instead of scattering specific
designations within paragraph text eg 6.11,
6.13, 6.16, 6.17, 6.18, 6.19, 6.21.
Section 6 - is confusing. Terms and format
need to be used clearly and consistently:
“designation” vs “statutory”, “protected” vs
“important”, devolution to Wales of some
planning functions, what information applicants
need to provide about woodland and LBAP
categories, what regard PCC will have to LBAP
categories in planning determinations. In the
sub-sub-headings, LBAP habitats and species
are only “important”, however, in Table 1, LBAP
Habitats and Species have statutory protection
but RVNRs and AW do not.
It needs to be clear that the duty to enhance
and maintain biodiversity) everywhere where
there is no national or international designation
lies with Powys CC. For International and
Nationally designated sites, PCC is responsible
for considering cumulative impacts. PCC is
also responsible for considering cumulative
impacts on all other biodiversity interests. A
similar statement is needed for geodiversity
(especially soils). (Rep 6235)
Section 8 - It could be explained that some
sites are not suitable for development and for
developers / applicants to seek professional
advice.
It would be useful to provide a framework to
applicants for how it might be justified that the
benefit of development proposals may
significantly outweigh the effects on the
environment. (Rep 7076)

3.4

2. Headings will be reviewed.
3. These terms will be reviewed.
4. The Sectiuon 6 duty of the
Environment Wales (Act) will be
included in the SPG.

1 & 2 The comments are noted. No
change required.

Approval and Adoption of the first set of SPG by the Council

3.4.1. Having considered the issues and comments received and scrutinised the
Consultation Draft SPGs, the Cabinet approved the three SPGs at its Cabinet meeting
on 9th October 2018.
3.4.2.
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 47

41

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

4.

Public Consultation on the second set of SPG

4.0.1 In accordance with the SPG programme agreed for the LDP (in Table 1 on page
1 of this document), the second set of SPG to be prepared for public consultation are as
follows:



Landscape
Renewable Energy

4.0.2 In accordance with Stage 4 of the SPG Protocol, the Consultation Draft SPG
were published for public consultation over 6 weeks with the consultation period running
from 14th January to 24th February 2019.
4.0.3 County Councillors, Town and Community Councils and all representors on the
Powys LDP database were informed of the consultation and the documents were
available to view on the LDP pages of the Council’s website.
4.0.4 Notice of the consultation period was publicised on the Council’s News page, the
LDP webpage, and via social media. A press release was issued to the local press.
4.0.5 Hard copies of the consultation documents were made available to view in the
Council’s main offices at:
 County Hall and The Gwalia, Llandrindod Wells.
 Neuadd Brycheiniog, Brecon.
 Neuadd Maldwyn, Welshpool.
4.0.6 Hard copies were made available to view in all Powys Public Libraries.
4.0.7 Representations were invited either by letter /email and the use of a standard
representation form was encouraged.
4.0.8 Table B8 below shows how many representors made comments in relation to
each SPG. A more detailed report of the responses received for each SPG can be
found in the relevant appendices.
Table B8: Number of Representors making consultation comments on the second
set of SPG
Consultation Draft SPG

No. of Representors
who made
Representations

Landscape

9*

Renewable Energy

26**

Total

29***

* 2 of the 9 representations were ‘no comment’.
** 1 of 26 representations was ‘no comment’
** 6 Representors made Representations to both SPGs

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 48

42

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

4.0.9 The main issues arising from the consultation are set out for each SPG in the
tables below, together with the Council’s response.

4.1

Landscape SPG

4.1.1 Reference Group
4.1.2 In order to prepare the Landscape SPG, the Council sought participation and
involvement with various Topic Stakeholders, from which the Council formed a
Reference Group.
4.1.3 The Reference Group comprised five members, which included the following
representatives:






Planning Policy
Development Management – Planning Officer
Development Management – Built Heritage Officer
Natural Resources Wales
Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust (CPAT)

4.1.4 Engagement with the Reference Group during the preparation of the draft SPG is
summarised in table B9:
Table B9 – Reference Group Involvement (Landscape SPG)
Date
Early October 2018
Late October 2018
Early November
2018
Late November
2018

December 2018

Early January 2019
March 2019

Who and How?
Contact made proposing an initial meeting and requesting involvement
in the preparation of the SPG.
Initial Draft Paper circulated to the reference group.
Individual meetings or written correspondence with reference group
members discussing the content and changes required to the initial
draft SPG.
Revised draft circulated to the reference group at the sametime it was
circulated to the topic stakeholders. Ongoing correspondence
throughout this stage as the paper progressed and to inform them of
key dates.
Ongoing engagement as the paper progressed following stakeholder
feedback, particularly with Natural Resources Wales, up to the LDP
Working Group.
Circulation of the Draft Landscape SPG prepared for consultation
detailing the consultation dates.
Circulation of final SPG prepared for LDP Working Group along with
the issues raised from the consultation.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 49

43

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

4.1.5 Topic Stakeholders
4.1.6 The larger Topic Stakeholder group included an additional seven members,
including representatives from the following:







Brecon Beacons National Park
Campaign Protection of Rural Wales (Montgomeryshire)
CADW
Snowdonia National Park
Neighbouring Authorities with AONBs (Wrexham and Shropshire)
Homebuilders Federation

4.1.7 These stakeholders were invited to provide informal feedback on a working draft
of the SPG prior to the formal public consultation stage.
4.1.8 LDP Working Group
4.1.9 The Draft SPG was considered by the LDP Working Group on 19th December
2019 and approved for Public Consultation.
4.1.10 SPG Consultation
4.1.11 The public consultation period ran from 14th January to 25th February 2019 and
representations were received from the following:
Representor Name (Representor No.)


CPRW Brecon & Radnor Branch (5466)



Mid Wales Arts Centre (5815)



Scottish Power (5911)



Pennant Walters (6264)



Innogy Renewable Energy Ltd (6323)



Canal & River Trust in Wales / Glandwr Cymru (5704)- No Comment



Snowdonia National Park Authority (6746)



Land Quality Advisory Service (7085) - No Comment



Peter Richards Ltd (7086)

4.1.12 The main issues arising from the consultation and the Council’s responses to
these are set out in Table B10 below.
4.1.13 The representations and Council draft responses were considered by the LDP
Working Group at its meeting on the 29th March 2019, and subsequently by the
Council’s Cabinet at its meeting on 30th April 2019. Note: This paragraph subject to
editing further to decision-making at the Cabinet Meeting on 30th April

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 50

44

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Table B10 – Main Issues from the Public Consultation (Landscape SPG)
Issue

Council Response

General comments about SPG needing to
be clearer, more authoritative, less
repetitive etc.
Representor; 5466.P1

Comments noted. The document is
guidance to support the LDP policy it does
not aim to reproduce the Guidelines for
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment.
The SPG promotes a thorough
consideration of landscape by applicants in
the design process, this should then be
followed by assessment. As different
sections of the document may be referred
to at a time (rather than reading cover to
cover) the areas of repetition are
considered necessary.
This section follows a standard format set
out in the previous tranche of SPG. The
guidance is not just about the assessment
of landscape impact it is also about
promoting design that enables the
successful integration of proposals within
the landscape (as required by Policy DM4).
Landscape impacts will be considered by
Officers but they should also be considered
by applicants at the design stage, this
enables schemes to be amended or
mitigation identified at an early stage in the
process.
Amendment made to paragraph 3.3 to
remove reference to ‘special status’.

Wording of para 2.1 needs revision, with
changes to paras 1.2 and 2.2.
Representor; 5466.P2

Queries meaning of 'special status' in para
3.3. suggests rewrite.
Representor; 5466.P3
Para 4.1 needs rewriting to provide clarity
and remove contradiction.
Representor; 5466.P4
Suggests insertion of European Landscape
Convention definition, and how all
landscape is valued and protected.
Representor; 5466.P5
Amending para 4.4 to underline value of
landscape to well-being of residents and
visitors.
Representor; 5466.P6
Suggests insertion of text to qualify lack of
Special Landscape Areas in Powys.
Representor; 5466.P7
For paras 4.6 to 4.18 there should be a
separate heading before an indented 4.7.
Representor; 5466.P8
Recommend moving explanatory text in
Section 5. Policy.
Representor; 5466.P9
Suggest insertion of full text of Policy SP7 1
to 3.
Representor; 5466.P10
Suggest presentation in full of policies DM2,
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Amendment made to provide clarity to
paragraph 4.1.
No change considered necessary there is
enough detail in this section without it being
added to.
Amendment made to paragraph 4.4 to
include reference to visitors..

No change considered necessary there is
enough detail in this section without it being
added to.
Amendment made to formatting.

Disagree this format has been used in the
other SPG.
Amendment made to presentation of Policy
SP7.
Disagree. This guidance should be read

Page 51

45

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

DM3 and DM7.
Representor; 5466.P11
Suggest, due to importance of message,
para 5.8 be moved to beginning of Section
5.
Representor; 5466.P12
Suggest alternative text for para 5.9.
Representor; 5466.P13
Remove brackets from para 6.4.
Representor; 5466.P14
Clarification in para 6.5 of who undertakes
site visits.
Representor; 5466.P15
Suggestions for rewording 6.8 Step by Step
guide.
Representor; 5466.P16

alongside the plan there is no need to
repeat these three policies within the SPG.
Disagree, no change required.

Suggests alternative wording for para 6.14
to make the SPG clearer.
Representor; 5466.P17

A table titled “Details of Information to be
Submitted for Different Development Types
if the Proposals Fall Outside of a
Settlement.” has been inserted to make it
clearer what is expected to be submitted for
each development type.
Disagree. Guidelines for Landscape and
Visual Impact Assessment refers to
‘Appraisal’ where not part of an EIA.
A table titled “Details of Information to be
Submitted for Different Development Types
if the Proposals Fall Outside of a
Settlement.” has been inserted to make it
clearer what is expected to be submitted for
each development type, this removes the
need for this section to be amended.
To avoid over analysis of the area chosen.

Suggesting changes to paras 6.22 to 6.32
concerning LVIA etc.
Representor; 5466.P18
Seeking changes to para 6.40.
Representor; 5466.P19

Questioning the redaction to the OS Map in
Section 7.
Representor; 5466.P20
Seeks to remove repetition from paras 8.910, 8.26-27, 8.33-34 and 8.41-42 and to
reference relevant guidance.
Representor; 5466.P21

Amendment made.to aid clarification of text
in paragraph 5.9.
Amendment made to remove brackets from
paragraph 6.4.
Amendment made to clarify who
undertakes site visits in paragraph 6.5.
6.8 is a diagram, the definitions of the
terminology used is explained in detail
underneath. The purpose of this guidance
is to promote consideration of landscape in
the design process in the first instance
followed by landscape assessment. A table
titled “Details of Information to be Submitted
for Different Development Types if the
Proposals Fall Outside of a Settlement.”
has been inserted to make it clearer what is
expected to be submitted for each
development type.

No Change. Reference has been made to
NRW guidance where considered
appropriate. Different sections of the
document may be referred to at a time
(rather than reading cover to cover) the
areas of repetition are considered
necessary
Amendments made to Figures 2 and 3 as
necessary.
The monitoring is largely determined by
what is in the Annual Monitoring

Fig 2 in Section 9 requires amendment.
Representor; 5466.P22
Raises questions about the detail contained
in Section 10 Monitoring.
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council Page

52

46

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Representor; 5466.P23

Framework. The text has been amended to
show this.
No change considered necessary.

Querying the absence of Landscape
Capacity and Sensitivity Assessments
within SPG as a whole.
Representor; 5466.P24
Comment about PCCs Enforcement and
the need for mitigations to be monitored.
Representor; 5466.P25
SPG needs to explain that Non Material
Amendment (NMA) which alter original
assessment conclusions will not be
allowed.
Representor; 5466.P26

No Change. Not relevant enforcement is a
development management issue outside of
the scope of the SPG.
No Change considered necessary each
NMA will be considered on a case by case
basis as to whether the amendment
complies with the policies in the LDP.

Comment in support of the SPG and the
importance of valuing landscape
Representor; 5815.P1
Questioning why area around Caersws is
not registered as being of historic
importance.
Representor; 5815.P2
Concern about proliferation of static
caravan sites and their impact upon
landscape. Questions why there is no
special guidance for static caravans.
Representor; 5815.P3

Support noted.

Approach in para 1.4 implies only a
protective approach to landscape at odds
with NRW Guidance.
Representor; 5911.P1
Focus on para 2.1 should be on
acceptability of changes, so suggest a text
change to reflect this.
Representor; 5911.P2
Concerns over the attributes of landscape
in para 4.1.
Representor; 5911.P3
SPG needs to recognise that Powys
landscape will change through provision of
national Renewable Energy development.
Representor; 5911.P4
SPG needs to reference NRW Guidance
from Aug 2018.
Representor; 5911.P5

Amendment made to paragraph 1.4 to
remove reference to protection in line with
LDP Policy.

CADW are responsible for the designation
of Registered Historic Landscapes not the
Local Planning Authority it is therefore
beyond the scope of this SPG.
Amendment made, section inserted for
holiday parks into Appendix 1 - Key Things
to Consider for a Sample of Development
Types.

Apparent contradiction between para 4.14
and 4.15 requires clarification.
Representor; 5911.P6
SPG terminology should better reflect that
of DM4 with regard to 'unacceptable
adverse/negative impacts'.
Representor; 5911.P7
Suggests changes to Fig 1. on page 11.
suggest that the process outlined
acknowledges that landscape is only one of
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Amendment made to terminology used in
paragraph 2.1.

Amendment made to descriptive text used
in paragraph 4.1.
Disagree. The purpose of the SPG is to
provide guidance on how Policy DM4
applies to development proposals including
Renewable Energy.
Disagree. The NRW guidance from August
was in draft form only at this time it is
unclear what the final document will look
like.
Amendment made to provide clarification in
paragraph 4.14.
Amendments made to terminology used in
the SPG with regard to 'unacceptable
adverse/negative impacts' where
appropriate. .
Not appropriate to add to fig 1 but have
inserted additional text at para 6.23 that
acknowledges that landscape is only one of

Page 53

47

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

a wide range of considerations that may
influence the siting and design of
development in the countryside
Representor; 5911.P8
Concern re apparent conflict with existing
recognised UK assessment processes.
Representor; 5911.P9

Recommends usefulness of referencing
guidance issued by Scottish Natural
Heritage and widely used across UK.
Representor; 5911.P10
Concerns about the application and
interpretation of LVIA in para 6.23.
Representor; 5911.P11, 6264.P1
Disagreeing with wording in para 6.31 with
regard to non-EIA LVIA (Appraisal).
Representor; 5911.P12, 6264.P2
Seeks clarification in para 6.35 in the
interpretation of LVIA and the determination
of acceptability/unacceptability.
Representor; 5911.P13

Concerns about the use of "unacceptable
adverse effects" in para 6.36
Representor; 5911.P14
Concerns about the subjectivity of para
6.38 (areas of high/ outstanding value that
are likely to be harmed by the development
proposal) and application and interpretation
of LVIA.
Representor; 5911.P15, 6264.P3

Issue with National Policy wording “where
adverse effects on landscape character
cannot be avoided, it will be necessary to
refuse planning permission”
Representor; 5911.P16
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

a wide range of considerations that may
influence the siting and design of
development in the countryside
The document is guidance to support the
LDP policy it does not aim to reproduce the
Guidelines for Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment. The SPG promotes a
thorough consideration of landscape by
applicants in the design process, this
should then be followed by assessment.
The document does not go into detail on
how to carry out a landscape assessment
as there are recognised UK assessment
processes. The focus is on looking at
landscape in siting and design to aid
integration and identifying the level of
landscape assessment required. However
there is some overlap and difference
between what is required under the EIA
regulations and what is required to comply
with LDP Policy DM4.
Not considered appropriate as this is part of
Scottish Policy Framework. However this
does not undermine its usefulness and
appropriateness when considering
development proposals.
Amendments made to terminology in
paragraph 6.23.
Amendments made to terminology in
paragraph 6.31.
This is the wording in Policy DM4. It is for
applicants to consider how development
proposals meet LDP Policy prior to the
submission of a planning application.
Where applicants have not checked that
their proposals meet LDP Policy there is a
higher risk of schemes being refused.
Amendments made to terminology in
paragraph 6.36.
Some amendments made however Policy
DM4 states proposals must be appropriate
and sensitive in terms of integration, siting,
scale and design to the characteristics and
qualities of the landscape. This section is
giving an idea of what is unlikely to be
successfully integrated within the landscape
for development proposals not requiring a
LVIA.
This is a direct quote from Planning Policy
Wales (Ed 10). No changes are considered
necessary.

Page 54

48

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Concern that figs. 2 & 3 process charts on
page 29 and 30 do not adequately reflect
best practice guidance, and need
clarification and cross referencing to be
checked.
Representor; 5911.P17, 6264.P4

Suggest referencing on page 37 the welldeveloped advice from Scottish Natural
Heritage's guidance, used in Wales
previously.
Representor; 5911.P18
Seeks clarification and more detail
regarding wording in para 10.1.
Representor; 6264.P5
Suggests changes to terms used in the
Glossary.
Representor; 6264.P6
Suggests changes to elements within
Appendix 1.
Representor; 6264.P7
Querying the wording in para 6.23 relating
to apparent confusion between ‘significant’
(in EIA terms) and ‘acceptability’ (in
planning). Suggests alternative wording.
Representor; 6323.P6
Suggests additional wording to para 6.26,
to include Screening Directions carried out
by Welsh Ministers.
Representors; 6323.P7
Supporting the exclusion of anemometry
masts from requiring LVIA.
Representor; 6323.P8
Concern over wording in para 6.38 (similar
to concern in Rep P6) relating to the role of
informal assessments in the determination
of ‘acceptability’.
Representor; 6323.P9
As a consequence of Reps P6 and P9,
Figures 2 and 3 of Section 9 should be
altered to include suggested alternative
wording.
Representor; 6323.P10
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Some amendments made to terminology
used and cross referencing. However, the
document is guidance to support the LDP
policy it does not aim to reproduce the
Guidelines for Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment. The SPG promotes a
thorough consideration of landscape by
applicants in the design process, this
should then be followed by assessment.
The document does not go into detail on
how to carry out a landscape assessment
as there are recognised UK assessment
processes. The focus is on looking at
landscape in siting and design to aid
integration and identifying the level of
landscape assessment required. However,
there is some overlap and difference
between what is required under the EIA
regulations and what is required to comply
with LDP Policy DM4.
Not considered appropriate as this is part of
Scottish Policy Framework. However this
does not undermine its usefulness and
appropriateness when considering
development proposals.
The monitoring is largely determined by
what is in the Annual Monitoring
Framework. The text has been amended to
show this.
Amendments made to the Glossary.

Amendments made to Appendix 1

Amendments made to terminology in
paragraph 6.23.

Additional wording added to paragraph
6.26, to clarify that Screening Directions are
carried out by Welsh Ministers.
Support noted.

Amendments made to terminology in
paragraph 6.38.

Amendments made to terminology in
Figures 2 and 3, but consideration must be
given to meeting the requirements of Policy
DM4.

Page 55

49

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

No comment
Representor; 6395.P2, 7085.P1
Supports para 5.4
Representor; 6746.P1
Supports para 6.7
Representor; 6746.P2
Supports para 6.24
Representor; 6746.P3
No clear guidance on what constitutes a
development which does not require a
Landscape Impact Assessment.
Representor; 7086.P1
Clearer clarification on project types and
what is required will make the planning
process more simple. Representor;
7086.P2

4.2

Noted
Support noted
Support noted
Support noted
Table inserted on page 20 and amendment
made to paragraph 6.36 to clarify what
constitutes a development which does not
require a Landscape Impact Assessment
Table inserted on page 20 to clarify what
applicants should submit as part of a
planning application for different
development types.

Renewable Energy SPG

4.2.1 Reference Group
4.2.2 In order to prepare the Renewable Energy SPG, the Council sought participation
and involvement with various Topic Stakeholders, from which the Council formed a
Reference Group.
4.2.3 The Reference Group comprised 5 members, which included either one or more
representatives from the following:






Planning Policy
Development Management
Regeneration
Community Renewable Energy
Renewable Energy

4.2.4 These stakeholders were invited to provide informal feedback on a working draft
of the SPG prior to the formal public consultation stage.
4.2.5 Engagement with the Reference Group during the preparation of the draft SPG is
summarised in table B11:
Table B11 – Reference Group Involvement (Renewable Energy SPG)
Date

Who and How?

Early October 2018
Early November
2018

Contact made requesting involvement in the preparation of the SPG.
Individual meetings or written correspondence with reference group
members discussing the content of initial draft.

Late November
2018

Working draft circulated to the reference group. Ongoing
correspondence throughout this stage as the paper progressed and to
inform them of key dates.
Revisions to working draft to finalise as Consultation Draft

December 2018

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 56

50

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Early January 2019
March 2019

Circulation of the Draft Renewable Energy SPGto Reference Group as
prepared for consultation and detailing the consultation dates.
Circulation of final SPG prepared for LDP Working Group along with
the issues raised from the consultation.

4.2.8 LDP Working Group
4.2.9 The Draft SPG was considered by the LDP Working Group on 19th December
2019 and approved for Public Consultation.
4.2.10 SPG Consultation
4.2.11 The public consultation period ran from 14th January to 25th February 2019 and
representations were received from the following:
Representor Name (Representor No.)


Clwys Powys Archaeological Trust (27)



Llangorse Community Council (495)



Welshpool Town Council (537)



NATS (4589)



Scottish Power Energy Networks (4601)



Savills (4911)



CPRW Brecon & Radnor Branch (5466)



David Bellamy (5831)



Scottish Power (5911)



Sarah Bond (6160)



CPRW Montgomeryshire (6193)



Innogy Renewable Energy Ltd (6323)



Canal & River Trust in Wales / Glandwr Cymru (5704)



George Harris (6445)



Jenny Keal (6513)



Open Space Society (6724)



Snowdonia National Park Authority (6746)



Azra Dale (6758)



Caroline and Jamie Martin (6827)



Njord Energy Ltd (6847)



Richard Martin (6871)



Marcia Gibson Watt (6936)



The Green Valleys (6967)



Peter Richards Ltd (7086)

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 57

51

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019



Stephen and Lynne Sephton (7087)



Name Withheld upon request (7088)

4.2.12 The main issues arising from the consultation and the Council’s responses to
these are set out in Table B12 below.
4.2.13 The representations and Council draft responses were considered by the LDP
Working Group at its meeting on the 29th March 2019, and subsequently by the
Council’s Cabinet at its meeting on 30th April 2019. Note: This paragraph subject to
editing further to decision-making at the Cabinet Meeting on 30th April.
Table B12 – Main Issues from the Public Consultation (Renewable Energy SPG)
Issue

Council Response

Notification of impending revisions to the
boundaries of Registered Historic Landscape
(RHL) areas, and a subsequent need to bear
these revisions in mind with regard to the
boundaries of LSAs
Representor; 27.P5

Your representation is noted. Additional text
highlighting RHL areas and ASIDOHL2
procedures have been incorporated into the
document.

Queries the lack of consideration within the
SPG for the infrastructure required to support
the transition to electric vehicles.
Representor; 495.P1

Your representation is noted. However, the
Renewable Energy SPG relates to
developments generating energy by
renewable and low carbon technologies and
therefore no changes are considered
necessary.

Supports inclusion of LSA but recommends
additional hedgerow planting to scheme any
solar PV development proposal
Representor; 537.P1
Request to pass on to, or use the SPG to draw
the attention of windfarm developers to the
presence of, information relating to NATS
Aviation Infrastructure.
Representor; 4589.P1

Electric vehicle charging points will be
included in the forthcoming design guide SPG.
Your support is noted and additional
clarification with regards hedgerows included
in the reference to the specific LSA
Your representation is added. Additional
information is provided under para 9.1 and the
FAQ has been included as a new Appendix.

Seeking amendment to 1st sentence of para
9.6.1 concerning the determination of technical
aspects of grid connection
Representor; 4601.P1

Thank you for your comment and the changes
suggested have been incorporated into the
document.

Seeking to add new sentence to end of para
9.6.1 to qualify the preference for sub-surface
connections.
Representor; 4601.P2

Thank you for your comment and the changes
suggested have been incorporated into the
document.

Seeks new para to be added at 9.6.2 covering
grid connections and the need for engagement
between LPA nd network operators.
Representor; 4601. P3

Thank you for your comment and the changes
suggested have been incorporated into the
document.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 58

52

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Representor seeks further engagement with
PCC with regard to the contents of the SPG
Representor; 4601.P4

Your comment is noted.

SPG should better reflect the strategic
direction of national policy and guidance that is
outlined in the SPGs policy context section 4.
Representor; 4911.P1

Your comment is noted. The SPG recognises
national policy direction, and to support this
the Council prepared a renewable Energy
assessment published in 2017 which informs
the opportunities for renewable and low
carbon energy across Powys.

SPG should include targets in line with PPW
para 5.7.18.
Representor; 4911.P2

Your comment is noted. The Powys LDP and
the SPG is informed by deliverable
opportunities as identified in the Powys REA

SPG needs to consider how the technologies it
lists will be better accommodated in future
given the dynamism and innovation of the
sector.
Representor; 4911.P3

Your comment is noted. However, no change
is considered necessary as the SPG makes
reference to other technologies such as
storage and hydrogen generation.

SPG needs to better reflect PPWs positivity
and provide better guidance to maximise RE
potential.
Representor; 4911.P4

Your comment is noted. However, the Council
considers that the LDP policies and SPG
provide the appropriate policy framework and
guidance to enable RE opportunities across
Powys and thus the balance is appropriate.

General opening comments about the overall
shortcomings of the SPG.
Representor; 5466.P27

The Council disagrees with this
representation. The Council considers that the
SPG provides the appropriate balance and
guidance in the context of the policy
framework.

Entire UK Policy context section can be
deleted as Wales WG policy is now primary
legislation.
Representor; 5466.P28, 6160.P10

The Council disagrees with this
representation. The wider legislative and
policy framework with respect to renewable
energy remains valid.

The section on renewables obligation requires
updating as it is now closed to new applicants.
Representor; 5466.P29

The Council notes your representation and the
text in relation to the renewables obligation
has been revised.

Three paras in 4.2 require editing to remove
superseded documents or targets.
Representor; 5466.P30, 6160.P11

The Council disagrees with this
representation. These documents have not
been withdrawn and are considered in an
appropriate context.
The Council disagrees with this
representation. These documents have not
been withdrawn and are referenced in an
appropriate context.
The Council notes your representation and the
text has been amended.

Requires deletion of superseded or repetitive
detail in four paras in 4.3.
Representor; 5466.P31, 6160.P12
Superseded detail re EIA in paras 7.7.4, 7.6.6
and 9.5.1 needs to be deleted.
Representor; 5466.P32
Headings in Section 7 require clarification to
remove confusion about types of, and search
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

The Council disagrees with this
representation. The SPG layout is informed by

Page 59

53

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

areas for RE.
Representor; 5466.P33

the LDP policy which considers SSAs, LSAs
then all other forms of RE technology.

Section 9 omits odours and air pollution.
Representor; 5466.P34

The Council notes this representation.
Pollution is included in para.9.1 and odours
has been added.

Seeks clarification about who undertakes
LSCA.
Representor; 5466.P35

The Council notes this representation and
additional clarification has been included.

Querying inclusion of LSCA within Section 9.
Representor; 5466.P36

The Council disagrees with the representation.
LSCA allows for initial assessment of search
areas prior to a detailed proposal with an
LVIA. The NRW guidance has not been
published.

Querying why Cumulative Impact issues are
confined to visual issues in para 9.4.3.
Representor; 5466.P37

The Council notes this representation and
additional clarification has been included.

Queries why there is no mention of protecting
historic landscapes in para 9.7.3.
Representor; 5466.P38

The Council notes this representation and
additional clarification has been included.

Wind section needs to describe the increase in
turbine size over time since TAN8 was written.
Representor; 5466.P39

The Council notes this representation and
references to technological advances and
increases in turbine size have been added to
section 7.2.

Queries the ignoring of Aecom's findings re
Wind LSAs from section 7, whereas the solar
findings are set out in para 7.3.
Representor; 5466.P40

The Council disagrees with this
representation. Policy RE1 which informs the
SPG recognised that wind local search areas
were not identified but the policy enables wind
proposals to come forward if appropriate
locations can be identified and as a result
Policy RE1 accords with national policy.

1st bullet of para 4.3.11 - notes that Powys
has never established separation distances.
Representor; 5466.P41

The Council notes this comment but does not
agree that any changes are necessary.

Queries lack of specific advice about stand
alone turbines in para 7.7.2,
Representor; 5466.P42

The Council notes this representation in
relation to permitted development and a cross
reference to the relevant appendices added.

Queries the conclusions re the use of EIA
within Table 3 in section 9.5.
Representor; 5466.P43

The Council disagrees with this
representation. As is stated in Table 3, these
are indicative thresholds and an individual
development may still require EIA.

Requiring consistency in referencing of the
LSA, and more detail required in Table A1.
Representor; 5466.P44, 6160.P25

The Council notes this representation and
referencing has been revised and additional
clarification added to support Table A1.

Paras 7.5.2, 7.5.3 and 7.5.5 variously require
more detail, clarification, qualification and/or

The Council notes this representation and the
text has been revised.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 60

54

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

rewording.
Representor; 5466.P45
Queries the omission of detail concerning LPA
planning permission from Appendix 2.
Representor; 5466.P46

The Council does not agree with this
representation. Appendix 2 and 3 are not
comparable. It is clearly stated that Appendix 2
refers to AD regulations.

Apparent confusion being caused because
Appendix 3 is about something that is different
to Appendix 2 OR Appendix 3 requires
clarification to avoid confusion when compared
to Appendix 2.
Representor; 5466.P47

The Council does not agree with this
representation. Appendix 2 and 3 are not
comparable. It is clearly stated that Appendix 2
refers to AD regulations whilst Appendix 3
relates to domestic permitted development.

Concerns about apparent lack of transparency
in SPG preparation and lack of detail re the
Impact Assessment in paras 3.0.2 & 3.0.3.
Representor; 5466.P48

The Council disagrees with this
representation. The process for SPG
preparation has been previously agreed by the
Council.

Para 4.3.11 should be clarified and reconciled
with para 9.12.
Representor; 5466.P49, 6160.P24

The Council notes this representation and
para 9.12 has been revised.

Comment re the importance of supportive local
policies in order to realise national intentions.
Representor; 5911.P19

Your comment is noted. The Council consider
that Policy RE1 provides the necessary
supportive policy framework.

SPG needs to be more cognisant of the
changing national policy context (NDF) etc,
rather than the out of date TAN8.
Representor; 5911.P20

Your comment is noted. The Council is aware
of the developing NDF. However, at the
present time TAN8 has not been withdrawn
and the Council considers that the SPG
provides the appropriate balance and support
to enable renewable energy development
within the current national policy framework
and stated Welsh Government aspirations.
Should there be a change in national policy
context, the SPG may require revising to
reflect such changes.

Supports the inclusion of repowering paras
within the SPG, eg para 9.10.2
Representor; 5911.P21

Your support is noted

General comments re the SPGs failings.
Representor; 6160.P9

The Council disagrees with this
representation. The Council considers that the
SPG provides the appropriate balance and
guidance in the context of the policy
framework.

Inclusion of 'national in para 6.1.3, and storage
as a technology in para 6.1.4.
Representor; 6160.P13

The Council disagrees with this
representation. Para 6.1.3 is not considered to
require changing in the context of national
planning policy, and storage was not a
technology included in the REA.
The Council disagrees with this representation
and does not consider that para 7.1.1 requires

Requires deletion of passage within para
7.1.1.
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 61

55

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Representor; 6160.P14

amendment as it covers the Policy approach
within the SSAs.
The Council notes your representation and the
text has been amended.

Superseded detail re EIA in para 7.7.4.
Representor; 6160.P15
Amendments to para 7.7.5 re EIA screening
opinion.
Representor; 6160.P16

The Council notes your representation and the
text has been amended.

Remove reference to outdated policy in para
7.8.6.
Representor; 6160.P17

The Council disagrees with this
representation. These documents have not
been withdrawn and are referenced in an
appropriate context.
The Council notes your representation and the
text has been amended to make reference to
Policy SP7.

Para 7.9.4 regarding storage should also
consider strategic resources as in SP7.
Representor; 6160.P18
Clarify application of EIA in para 9.1.3 (and
typo in para 9.1.2).
Representor; 6160.P19

The Council notes your representation and the
text has been amended.

Recognition that significant receptors may not
be local people in para 9.3.2.
Representor; 6160.P20

The Council notes your representation and the
text has been amended.

Clarification re the purpose of an LVIA
required in para 9.3.3.
Representor; 6160.P21

The Council notes your representation and the
text has been amended.

Suggestion to reword para 9.3.4 to reflect
regular updating of guidance referred to.
Representor; 6160.P22

The Council notes your representation and the
text has been amended.

Paras 9.5.1 and 9.5.2 refer to superseded EIA
regs or outdated guidance.
Representor; 6160.P23

The Council notes your representation and the
text has been amended.

General criticism of the document, relying on
overmuch recitation of policy, with more
specific guidance needed as well as
information on what constitutes ‘acceptable’
Representor; 6193.P1

The Council disagrees with this
representation. The Council considers that the
SPG provides the appropriate balance and
guidance in the context of the policy
framework.

A need for ‘unambigious cross-referencing’ to
parts of other SPGs (esp Landscape) and LDP
Policies, such as Tourism and Cultural
Heritage.
Representor; 6193.P2

The Council disagrees with this
representation. Other SPG are referenced and
para 7.2.6 acknowledges that all national and
local plan policies apply. This has been further
clarified in para 5.01.

In light of the importance of landscape,
Representor seeks wording to be inserted
stating that there is no further capacity for
windfarms in Powys outside the SSAs.
Representor; 6193.P3

The Council does not agree with this
representation and Policy RE1 does not
prevent windfarm schemes coming forward
outside the SSAs if the necessary policy
criteria are met.

Seeks qualification to sentence in para 6.1.1
by saying that Powys is well located for

The Council does not agree with this
representation. Although grid capacity may at

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 62

56

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

renewable energy for small community
projects, and that larger commercial projects
will be limited by the absence of grid
connection.
Representor; 6193.P4

the current time limit connections,
opportunities e.g. direct supply could enable
larger schemes to come forward.

In light of the age of TAN8 there is a need for
full assessment processes (to include tourism,
heritage assets, highways and access, carbon
storage and dark soils, watercourses and
absorption) for RE developments of any size.
Representor; 6193.P5

The Council does not agree with this
representation. TAN8 remains part of national
policy and all the criteria highlighted by the
representor are included in the criteria for
consideration in para. 9.1.

Seeks preference in paras 7.4 to 7.10 for
schemes producing energy for local use, and
schemes that do not involve transfer of
materials for long distances.
Representor; 6193.P6

The Council does not agree with this
representation. To restrict schemes as
proposed would not be in accordance with
national planning policy.

Para 7.9.4 requires more guidance and cross
referencing to the Landscape SPG.
Representor; 6193.P7

Your representation is noted. A reference to
the Landscape SPG has been included in para
7.9.4.

Endorses large parts of 9.1, however seeks
inclusion of Public Rights of Way to avoid any
doubt and provide clarity.
Representor; 6193.P8

Your representation is noted and a reference
to “public rights of way” added to provide
clarity.

Seeks specific inclusion of Conservation Areas
under the Historic Environment bullet point in
9.1.2, and specific mention of the impact of
transmission infrastructure on heritage assets
in para 9.1.4.
Representor; 6193.P9

Your representation is noted and a reference
to Conservation areas has been added.

Welcomes the requirement for LSCA and an
LVIA.
Representor; 6193.P10

Your support is noted.

In order to align with Landscape SPG, para
9.3.2 should clearly state views and
panoramas both into and out of the proposed
development will be important considerations.
Representor; 6193.P11

Your representation is noted and a reference
to has been added.

Welcomes the requirement for cumulative
assessment.
Representor; 6193.P12

Your support is noted.

Requires the sentence under Table 3 to have
more prominence by being given its own
numbered paragraph.
Representor; 6193.P13

Your representation is noted and this sentence
has been separately numbered.

Para 9.6 is wholly insufficient. Seeks inclusion
of expanded criteria (that includes impacts
upon communities, tourists, residential

Your representation is noted. The Council
disagree that criteria should be added to para.
9.6. However, para. 9.1 has been clarified to

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 63

57

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

amenity and PRoW) that are to be considered
laid out as in para 9.1.
Representor; 6193.P14

indicate that the criteria apply to transmission
and ancillary structures as well as the RE
development itself.

Para 9.10.1 needs to specifically include the
removal of grid and transmission
infrastructure, and in para 9.1 the inclusion of
wording concerning the impact of any
permanent infrastructure on ecology and
hydrology.
Representor; 6193.P15

The Council notes your representation. Para.
9.10.1 already includes removal of ancillary
infrastructure, but additional clarification is
added stating that assessments may be
required to assess the impacts of those
structures which cannot be removed.

Concern over the potential for financial
considerations to have an impact upon
decision making. And suggests clarification on
this is required in para 9.12.2.
Representor; 6193.P16

Your representation is noted. Paras 9.12.1 and
9.12.2 have bene revised and additional
clarification provided.

Suggests that section 9.11 be kept under
constant review in the eventuality of any
relevant legislation relating to windfarms and
lighting.
Representor; 6193.P17

The Council disagree with this representation.
The document will be reviewed should
legislative and national policy changes require
it to be so.

Seeks clarification on the overall focus of the
SPG and apparent contradictions within the
text, citing two examples, and requests that
more attention be given to onshore wind within
the document.
Representor; 6323.P1

This representation is noted and the text
amended to include onshore wind and correct
the contradictions.

Para 4.1.4 needs to be updated to give
accurate information regarding support
mechanisms.
Representor; 6323.P2, 5466.P29

This representation his noted and the text has
been amended as suggested.

Seeks change of wording to better reflect
industry terminology with regard to ‘cabling’.
Representor; 6323.P3

This representation his noted and the text has
been amended as suggested.

Seeks reconsideration of the ‘onerous
obligations’ being proposed for
decommissioning. Suggests alternative
wording.
Representor; 6323.P4

This representation his noted and the text has
been amended as suggested.

Seeks clarification in paras 9.12.1 and 9.12.2
regarding the issue of planning obligations,
and the circumstances around how and what
they can be used for, and seeks a more
supportive approach to schemes that involve
community and or shared ownership and
suggests a rearrangement of this section of
the SPG.
Representor 6323.P5

This representation is noted. Paras 9.12.1 and
9.12.2 have been amended and additional text
incorporated to provide clarity with respect to
Community Benefit Funds.

Recognition that the effect any RE

Your comment is noted. Additional references

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 64

58

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

development (such as wind turbines) would
have on the NP would be included within the
Landscape SPG.
Representor; 6746.P4

to landscape SPG have been incorporated into
the document.

Seeks amendment to para 6.1.5.
Representor; 6758.P2

Seeks amendment on page 7 re Strategic
Resources.
Representor; 6758.P3

Your representation is noted. The Council
does not agree with your proposed change as
some RE developments will be the
responsibility of the Welsh Ministers for
determination.
Your representation is noted, however the
Council does not consider any change is
required.

Amendment to para 9.1.2 re enforcement of
items listed.
Representor; 6758.P4

Your representation is noted, however the
Council does not consider any change is
required.

Opposed to wind turbines and solar in Powys
landscape.
Representor; 6827.P1

Your representation is noted, however the
Council does not consider any change is
required.

SPG does not provide adequate guidance to
developers, lacks information on how
prejudice is determined, and will hinder
development, so is inconsistent with national
guidance & policy.
Representor; 6847.P1

The Council disagrees with this
representation. Examples of prejudicial
developments are included in para 7.2.5. It
remains the case that the identified SSA
capacities remain as targets and any
development in excess of the target within
SSAs would be required to meet national and
local planning policies.

Use of the words 'should be' in para 7.2.4
does not properly reflect the wording of Policy
RE1or the intention of national policy.
Representor; 6847.P2

Your representation is noted and the text
amended to align with the Policy.

Opposed to implementation of search areas.
Representor; 6871.P1

Your representation is noted, however the
Council does not consider any change is
required. The LDP has been adopted by the
Council after it, and the evidence that
underlies it, has undergone an Examination in
Public. As the SPG explains, the Local Search
Areas are identified and detailed in the LDP
Policy RE1 and accompanying reasoned
justification, and as such they cannot be
altered or removed from the LDP at this stage.

Representation drawing the Council’s attention
to a newspaper article concerning Kent
Council and the possibility of colouring offshore wind turbines.
Representor; 6936.P1

Your representation is noted. Additional text
referring to the need for appropriate colour
schemes to be included in the design has
been incorporated into the document.

Overall support for the SPG.
Representor; 6967.P1

Your support is noted

SPG should better recognise the potential

Your representation is noted and additional

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 65

59

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

benefits to economic regeneration and
resilience arising from RE.
Representor; 6967.P2

text recognising additional benefits has been
incorporated into the SPG.

Ministerial ambition from Sept 2017
Statement) for local (or community) ownership
should be recognised and referenced
throughout the SPG.
Representor; 6967.P3

Your representation is noted and additional
text added to the SPG.

More info on agricultural and forestry PD
Rights to be included in Appendix 3 as stated
in para 8.1.1.
Representor; 6967.P4

Your representation is noted and the reference
corrected with additional text added.

para 9.6 could include more info and guidance
on when and where PP is required for grid
connection.
Representor; 6967.P5

Your representation is noted and additional
text added to the SPG.

Could include info in para 9.9 on policy
implications of jointly owned/managed AD
plants using poultry waste.
Representor; 6967.P6

Your representation is noted. A reference to
LDP waste policies W1 and W2 has been
added as new para 9.9.6

Suggest removal of 25 year requirement to
decommission in para 9.10.1 as this is
unnecessary for schemes (such as Hydro) that
are built to last much longer.
Representor; 6967.P7

Your representation is noted. The text has
been revised to reflect that operation lifespans
can vary.

Para 9.12.1 welcomed but note it presents a
good opportunity to underline community
ownership / benefit as per Ministers statement
(See also Rep P3).
Representor; 6967.P8

Your representation is noted and additional
text incorporated into the SPG.

Need for more info on potential role of AD
systems and/or district heating systems in the
candidate site assessment process, in
delivering RE and waste reduction targets.
Representor; 6967.P9

Your representation is noted and will be
considered in future plan preparation.
Developers are encouraged to investigate
district heating through a variety of heat
sources and these are outlined in section 7.10
of the SPG.

Recognises the relationship between the SPG
and national policy.
Representor; 7086.P3

Your comments are noted. Wording changes
have been made throughout the SPG to
ensure the environmental and other impacts of
renewable energy development are
considered by developers and properly
mitigated to ensure they meet national and
local policy requirements.

Opinions expressed towards individual LSAs
(in favour and against).
Representor; 5831.P1, 6445.P1, 6513.P1,
6724.P1, 6758.P1, 7087.P1, 7088.P1,

The SPG supports the LDP and individual
policies within it. The LDP has been adopted
by the Council after it, and the evidence that
underlies it, has undergone an Examination in
Public. As the SPG explains, the Local Search

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 66

60

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Areas are identified and detailed in the LDP
Policy RE1 and accompanying reasoned
justification, and as such they cannot be
altered or removed from the LDP at this stage.
No Comment
Representor; 6395.P1

Noted

4.3 Approval and Adoption of the second set of SPG by the Council
Having considered the issues and comments received and scrutinised the Consultation
Draft SPGs, the Cabinet approved the two SPGs at its Cabinet meeting on 30th April
2019. Note: This paragraph subject to editing further to decision-making at the
Cabinet Meeting on 30th April 2019.

Note: The following sections 5. and 6. are to be completed over 2019-2020 as the
SPG preparation programme continues.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 67

61

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

5.

Public Consultation on the third set of SPG

5.0.1 In accordance with the SPG programme agreed for the LDP (in Table 1 on page
1), the third set of SPG to be prepared for public consultation:



Conservation Areas
Residential Design Guide

NOTE: Open Space?
5.0.2 In accordance with Stage 4 of the SPG Protocol, the Consultation Draft SPG
were published for public consultation over 6 weeks with the consultation period running
from 9th August to 20th September 2018. It should be noted that the public consultation
was delayed by a few weeks due to the Brecon and Radnor by-election.
5.0.3 County Councillors, Town and Community Councils and all representors on the
Powys LDP database were informed of the consultation and the documents were
available to view on the LDP pages of the Council’s website.
5.0.4 Notice of the consultation period was publicised on the Council’s News page, the
LDP webpage, and via social media. A press release was issued to the local press.
5.0.5 Hard copies of the consultation documents were made available to view in the
Council’s main offices at:
 County Hall and The Gwalia, Llandrindod Wells.
 Neuadd Brycheiniog, Brecon.
 Neuadd Maldwyn, Welshpool.
5.0.6 Hard copies were made available to view in all Powys Public Libraries.
5.0.7 Representations were invited either by letter /email and the use of a standard
representation form was encouraged.
5.0.8 Table B13 below shows how many representors made comments in relation to
each SPG. A more detailed report of the responses received for each SPG can be
found in the relevant appendices.
Table B13: Number of Representors making consultation comments on the third
set of SPG
Consultation Draft SPG

No. of Representors
who made
Representations

Conservation Areas

8

Residential Design Guide

9

Total

17

5.0.9 The main issues arising from the consultation are set out for each SPG in the
tables below, together with the Council’s response.
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 68

62

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

5.1

Conservation Areas SPG

5.1.1 Reference Group
5.1.2 In order to prepare the Conservation Areas SPG, the Council sought participation
and involvement with various Topic Stakeholders, from which the Council formed a
Reference Group.
5.1.3 The Reference Group comprised six members, which included representatives
from the following:





Planning Policy.
Development Management.
Cadw.
Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust.

5.1.4 Engagement with the Reference Group during the preparation of the Draft SPG
is summarised in table B14:
Table B14 – Reference Group Involvement (Conservation Areas SPG)
Date
April 2019

May 2019

August 2019
September 2019

October 2019

Who and How?
Meetings and correspondence with members of the Reference Group
to discuss updated topic-related and planning information to inform the
background and context of the SPG, to discuss the scope of the SPG
and process involved, and to identify and agree a list of Topic
Stakeholders to seek feedback from prior to public consultation.
Initial working drafts of the SPG shared and discussed with the
Reference Group to agree content of the working draft to be circulated
to Topic Stakeholders. Initial feedback received from the Topic
Stakeholders and suggested changes shared with the Reference
Group. Specific issues raised by Topic Stakeholders discussed with
the relevant members of the Reference Group. Comments from the
Reference Group taken into account in preparing of the Consultation
Draft.
Notice of public consultation period circulated to LDP Database.
6 week public consultation period from 9th of August to 20th September.
Representations received to the public consultation shared with the
Reference Group and specific issues discussed with the relevant
members of the Reference Group. Any changes proposed to the SPG
in response to the representations received also shared with the
Reference Group and any outstanding issues discussed further.
Consultation Draft SPG showing proposed changes presented to the
LDP Working Group shared with the Reference Group. The Reference
Group was informed of any issues raised by the LDP Working Group
before the SPG was finalised for Cabinet approval.

5.1.5 Topic Stakeholders
5.1.6 The following Topic Stakeholders were involved:

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 69

63

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019



















Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Wales
(RCAHMW) .
Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings.
Ancient Monuments Society.
The Georgian Group.
The Victorian Society.
Twentieth Century Society.
Council for British Archaeology.
Welsh Historic Gardens Trust.
Theatres Trust.
CAPEL.
Powyland Club.
Radnorshire Society.
Brecknock Society.
Machynlleth and District Civic Society.
Montgomery Civic Society.
Newtown and District Civic Society.
Home Builders Federation.

5.1.7 These stakeholders were invited to provide informal feedback on a working draft
of the SPG prior to the formal public consultation stage.
5.1.8 Comments received from the Topic Stakeholders were considered and
responded to, with further discussion taking place on specific issues where necessary.
The input from Topic Stakeholders was used to inform changes to the working draft of
the SPG.
5.1.9

LDP Working Group

5.1.10 The Draft SPG was considered by the LDP Working Group on 21st of June 2019
and approved for Public Consultation.
5.1.11 SPG Consultation
5.1.12 The public consultation period ran from 9th August to 20th September 2019 and
representations were received from the following:
Representor Name (Representor No.)









Cadw (5867)
Canal and River Trust (7095)
Councillor Stephen Hayes (409)
Machynlleth Town Council (7094)
Montgomery Town Council (517)
Natural England (4177)
Newtown and Llanllwchaiarn Town Council (439)
Presteigne and Norton Town Council (525)

5.1.13 The main issues arising from the consultation and the Council’s responses to
these are set out in Table B15 below.
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 70

64

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

5.1.14 The representations and Council draft responses were considered by the LDP
Working Group at its meeting on the 9th of October 2019, and subsequently by the
Council’s Cabinet at its meeting on [
].
Table B15 – Main Issues from the Public Consultation (Conservation Areas SPG)
Question 1: CA1 - Is it clear from the above that the guidance within this SPG is
intended to be used where individual Conservation Area Character Appraisals are not in
place? Is the approach towards carrying out Conservation Area Character Appraisals in
collaboration with local communities supported? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
A representor agreed.
This support is noted.
(Rep 7094)
The principles for working with communities
The meaning of local communities could be
should perhaps be amended to counter
clarified by adding in reference to town and
communities’ tendency to be hostile to all
community councils and local civic societies.
change.
It would also be appropriate to explain how
the issues raised by the character appraisal
(Rep 409)
will be addressed within a Conservation Area
Management Plan, which will involve local
property owners, businesses and other
interest groups. Recommend para. 4.14 is
amended as follows:

Other stakeholders should also be involved.
(Rep 7095)
The central point that the SPG is to be used
where detailed appraisals are not in place is
not sufficiently clear as currently drafted.
Requests amendments to para. 4.14.
(Rep 5867)

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

4.14 It is anticipated that Powys County
Council, where possible, will work with local
communities, through town and community
councils, local civic societies, and local
history groups, in the production of
appraisals/characterisation
studies….Conservation Area Character
Appraisals will be accompanied by a
Conservation Area Management Plan, which
sets out the response to the issues raised by
the character appraisal. This will be used to
inform local planning policy and decisionmaking. The cooperation of local property
owners, businesses and other interest
groups will be sought in the preparation and
implementation of Conservation Area
Management Plans.
See response to rep 409 above.
Recommend amendments to para. 4.14 as
follows:
Character appraisals may be undertaken by
communities as part of the preparation of a
Place Plan Communities are also
encouraged to undertake character area
appraisals as part of a Place Plan (see
section 12 of the Residential Design Guide
SPG for an explanation of Place Plans). In
the meantime, the guidance within this SPG
is to be relied upon when assessing

Page 71

65

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

character to inform the design of
development proposals put forward through
planning and other related applications. In
the absence of detailed appraisals or
management plans, this SPG provides
generic guidance on the assessment of
character that should accompany any
development proposals put forward through
planning and other related applications. The
Council’s position on this is explained in
para. 4.2.77 of the LDP, which states that
significant weight shall be given to
Conservation Area Character Appraisals and
Management Plans, however generic
guidance is to be used in the absence of
assessments for each individual
Conservation Area.
Question 2: CA2 - Is the above summary of information sources relating to
Conservation Areas useful? If not, please explain why. Are there any further
information sources that should be referenced here? If yes, please provide details.
Issue
Council Response
Two representors agreed. No specific
This support is noted.
comments received.
(Rep 7094, 7095)
1) Reference should be made to Buildings of
1) Recommend that a new para. after 4.36 is
Wales volume for Powys published in 2013.
inserted after as follows, but that reference is
2) Query whether the Residential Design Guide also made to the availability of other local
history books:
provides character appraisals for all of the
towns?
Buildings of Wales: Powys –
3) Request for wording of para. 4.30 regarding Montgomeryshire, Radnorshire and
Cadw’s characterisation studies to be
Breconshire by R Scourfield and R
amended.
Haslam (2013)
4) It would be helpful to explain why each of
the sources mentioned might be useful, as this 4.39 The Powys volume is part of a series of
publications of the Buildings of Wales, which
has not been done for all sources.
looks at the historic counties of
(Rep 5867)
Montgomeryshire, Radnorshire and
Breconshire. The book provides a summary
of the history and character of the county’s
towns and covers a range of buildings.
Applicants should also refer to other local
history books that may be available relating
to specific towns and villages.
2) The Residential Design Guide does not
include area appraisals for Montgomery and
Llanwrtyd Wells. Recommend amend para.
4.29 as follows:
4.29 …carries forward character appraisals
of each town (referred to as “Area Centres”
in the previous Unitary Development Plan) in
the Powys LDP area (apart from
Montgomery and Llanwrtyd Wells) from the
previous Residential Design Guide (2004).
3) Recommend that para. 4.30 is deleted and
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 72

66

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

replaced with the following text, as
requested:
Cadw has published studies on the historic
character of 15 towns across Wales. These
studies set out a detailed definition of local
character, which can inform the management
of change. Although no towns in the Powys
area have been studied, Cadw’s urban
character reports are intended to be
exemplars that show how historic character
can be analysed.
4) Recommend that additional text is inserted
into para. 4.32 as follows:
4.32 CPAT has also been involved in work
examining the historic character of areas
defined by the Register of Historic
Landscapes in Wales. These studies
provide detailed historical background and a
general introduction to the broad elements of
character for settlements included within the
registered landscape areas….
Question 3: CA3 – Do you agree with the key stages that are to be followed for
proposals in or affecting Conservation Areas? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
A representor agreed.
This support is noted.
(Rep 7095)
The proposed process is bureaucratic. Whilst
By setting out the key stages to follow, this is
appropriate for large scale applications, the
intended to assist applicants in preparing
process is disproportionately demanding to
proposals ready for submission to the Local
smaller ones and will have the effect of
Planning Authority. All developments should
discouraging all such applications within
follow the same general process. However,
conservation areas.
it is agreed that the guidance would benefit
from more of an emphasis on proportionality,
(Rep 409)
particularly with regard to the level of
information that is expected of smaller
schemes. See response to representations
on question CA4, which is considered to
address the issue of proportionality.
Town and Community Councils should be
Para. 6.2 refers to relevant guidance
specified as well as the County Council.
adopted by the Council, which reflects
criterion 3 of LDP Policy DM13. Guidance
(Rep 7094)
which has only been adopted by a Town and
Community Council and not the County
Council is unlikely to carry significant weight
in the decision-making process. It would,
therefore, not be appropriate to refer to Town
and Community Councils in this context.
However, it is important to point out that
Conservation Area Character Appraisals and
Management Plans that Town and
Community Councils are involved in
preparing are more likely to carry weight in
decision-making when formally adopted by
the Council as SPG. It is recommended that
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 73

67

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

para. 5.5 is amended as follows:

The key stages are broadly appropriate,
however following comments:
1) Question the use of the word ‘determining’ in
the title of stage 1. Suggest using the title
‘Explaining Objectives’ in line with the Heritage
Impact Assessment process.
2) Need to make clear that stage 2 is the
equivalent of understanding significance by
describing it as a statement of significance.
3) Stage 3 could be broken down into two
processes i) identifying proposed changes and
ii) assessing the impact of proposals and
getting the best solution.
(Rep 5867)

5.5…In the event that individual
Conservation Area Character Appraisals and
Conservation Area Management Plans are
undertaken in the future in respect of
individual Conservation Areas, regard will
also be given to these assessments,
particularly where these documents have
been formally adopted as Supplementary
Planning Guidance by the Council.
1) The potential for this to be misinterpreted
is understood and therefore, it is
recommended that the title of stage 1 before
para. 6.5 is amended to ‘explaining
objectives’. Also, change references to this
stage in Figure 1 and in section 8 Figure 7.
2) Recommend inserting additional text into
para. 6.9 as follows:
Para. 6.9 This involves carrying out a
Character Appraisal of the historic context of
the site. This is an important part of
understanding significance and is the
equivalent to the Statement of Significance
referred to in Cadw’s Heritage Impact
Assessment guidance…
3) Agree that this section could be divided
into two. However, it is recommended that
the word ‘designing’ is used rather than
‘identifying’ to be consistent with the content
of this section. Recommend inserting titles
above para. 6.15 ‘Designing proposed
changes’ and above para. 6.18 ‘Assessing
the impact of proposals’.

Question 4: CA4 – Is it clear from the guidance here and in Appendix 1 when HIS, DAS
or Planning Statements are required? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Two representors agreed.
This support is noted.
(Reps 7094, 7095)
Clarity needed on the extent of issues to be
It is agreed that the extent of the issues to be
discussed in a planning statement. Otherwise
discussed in a Planning Statement could be
requiring a HIS/DAS by default.
made clearer. Recommend inserting
additional text into para. 6.40:
(Rep 409)
6.40 …in light of the duty to preserve and
enhance the character and appearance of
Conservation Areas. This informal
assessment should involve a basic character
appraisal identifying the characteristics and
features of the building and the surrounding
buildings within view of the site that would be
impacted on by the proposal. Where
proposals would lead to the removal of
features or alteration of the character of the
area, consideration should be given to how
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 74

68

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

More detail needed on when an historical
impact assessment would be required.
(Rep 525)

Need to be clearer when a planning statement
is expected and to explain this at the beginning
of section 6. Also to explain at the outset that
HIS, DAS and planning statements are all
expected to include an element of character
appraisal.
(Rep 5867)

the development could be mitigated, re-sited
or re-designed to avoid negative impacts.
Where negative impacts are unavoidable, the
justification for the proposal and the potential
benefits should be clearly set out….
Also recommend inserting new paragraph
with the following additional text:
6.41 The Planning Statement should
summarise the impacts identified through the
informal assessment process and how these
impacts have been addressed. The level of
detail included within the Planning Statement
should be proportionate to the nature and
scale of the development. This means that a
development involving alterations to a single
feature or a feature that is not of particular
importance is likely to require a shorter
statement than a development involving
large scale or multiple alterations to features
of importance.
Applicants must carry out a Heritage Impact
Assessment (HIA) and submit a Heritage
Impact Statement (HIS) in connection with
applications for listed building consent and
conservation area consent. This requirement
is explained in paras. 4.4, 6.6 and 6.23, and
the requirements in respect of different types
of proposals is set out in Appendix 1. This is
considered to be sufficiently clear.
As explained in para. 6.7, in cases where
HIS or DAS is not required, it is good
practice for design and access issues to be
discussed in a Planning Statement. This is
considered to be clear, however it is
recommended that paras 6.6 and 6.7 are
moved from stage 1 to the opening part of
section 6, after para. 6.2.
Also, recommend additional text in the
moved para 6.6 as follows:
6.4 …HIS, DAS and Planning Statements
are all expected to include an element of
character appraisal (see stage 2).
Consequential change to Figure 1 Key
Stages to delete ‘determine whether a
DAS/HIS is required.’

Question 5: CA5 – Does the list above reflect the key considerations that apply in
Conservation Areas? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
A representor agreed.
This support is noted.
(Rep 7095)
Contradiction between paras. 6.11 and 6.13 in
The potential for confusion is noted. The
terms of the extent of analysis required.
following additional text is recommended
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 75

69

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Proportionality should be the guide to what is
required.
(Rep 409)

Agreed with in terms of visual character, but the
impact on climate change must always be a key
consideration.
(Rep 7094)

to be inserted into para. 6.13:
6.13…how the planning proposal has
responded to them. The Statement should
comprise of a brief summary of the
character and special interest of the
Conservation Area (point 1 below)
followed by the site specific elements
taking into account the context of the
immediate surroundings of the site (points
2-12 below).
The primary purpose of conservation area
designation is to protect and enhance the
character and appearance of the area.
The process is flexible enough to allow for
necessary adaptations at the application
stage. Appropriate solutions can normally
be found providing that careful
consideration is given to siting and design
matters.

Question 6: CA6 – Do you agree that the above factors are important when designing an
appropriate development in Conservation Areas? Do you agree with the key
considerations for specific types of development set out in Appendix 2? If not, please
explain why.
Issue
Council Response
A representor agreed.
This support is noted.
(Rep 7095)
The considerations listed in 6.16 discourage
The penultimate bullet point of para. 6.16
innovative design and will tend to encourage
refers to contemporary and innovative design
pastiche.
and therefore is considered to encourage
this. Para. 6.16 also warns against simply
(Rep 409)
focusing on replicating architectural detailing,
instead the focus should be on layout, form,
scale, proportions, materials and visual
appearance, which should help to avoid
pastiche.
Comments on Appendix 2:
1) Standard double glazed units are unlikely
1) Single glazing must be replaced with double to be appropriate in a Conservation Area.
However, the SPG refers to alternative
or triple glazing or enhanced with double
solutions, including slim double glazing or the
secondary glazing in order to tackle climate
use of secondary glazing, which will improve
change and comply with Well-being of Future
the energy efficiency of a building whilst
Generations Act.
retaining the character and appearance of
2) Consideration of vertical emphasis to
window features.
windows and solid to void ratio would make it
impossible to take advantage of passive solar
2) Window proportions are important to the
heating.
character and appearance of a building. This
3) Questions the requirement for the number of does not necessarily mean that larger
rooflights to be kept to a minimum, as reducing windows will not be appropriate, however
electric light use would not be possible if
paying attention to the proportions, rather
unable to adequately increase daylighting.
than the exact size of the windows, i.e.
vertical height in relation to the width, will
4) The requirement for chimneys on new
help to integrate new development.
development panders to some archaic idea of
design.
3) The overuse of rooflights, particularly on
5) Balancing between the need to promote
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 76

70

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

energy efficiency and protecting the character
and appearance of the Conservation Area
really means that conservation trumps the use
of solar panels. Solar panels are not
permanent and we are in a climate emergency
6) Query regarding advertisements asking
what a traditional typeface is.

the front elevation of a building, will harm the
character and appearance of the building
and, if repeated on other buildings, will also
have a cumulative effect on the area. The
SPG encourages sensitive siting and design
of rooflights in order to reduce this harm.
4) Chimneys are a feature of historic
buildings and areas, and should be
replicated, where appropriate to the street
scene. Recommend that the text in
Appendix 2 is amended as follows:
…Where new development is proposed,
chimneys should be incorporated within the
design, where this is an important feature of
the street scene,…
5) The primary purpose of conservation area
designation is to protect and enhance the
character and appearance of the area. The
process is flexible enough to allow for
necessary adaptations at the application
stage. Appropriate solutions can normally be
found providing that careful consideration is
given to siting and design matters.
6) Typeface means font i.e. the style of text.
Times New Roman is an example of
traditional typeface. Recommend inserting
the following text:
The lettering should be hand painted directly
onto the existing fascia and should be
painted using a clear and simple traditional
typeface or italic font appropriate to the
building style and character of the area.

Question 7: CA7 - Do you agree with the above summary of information that should be
included in a HIS? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Two representors agreed.
This support is noted.
(Reps 7094, 7095)
Information requirements are disproportionate
Figure 2 is intended to summarise the type of
to smaller applications. The effect of this will
information that could be included in a
discourage applications for smaller
Heritage Impact Statement and is intended
developments, which could contribute to the
to help with drafting the content of a HIS. It
organic change, which is conducive to healthy
is therefore, intended to be applicable to
urban environments.
applications for Conservation Area Consent
i.e. involving demolition, and, therefore, is
(Rep 409)
not intended to apply to smaller
developments that do not involve demolition.
Amendments are recommended to clarify the
intention of Figure 2 – see response to rep
5867 2) below.
Comments on Figure 2:
1) Recommend additional text in point 3 in
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 77

71

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

1) Make clear that part of the statement relating
to significance is intended to be based on the
character appraisal process described in para.
6.13.
2) Length of the checklist of information
compared to list of requirements included at
section 7.2 in Cadw’s own guidance on HIA.
Needs simplifying as otherwise could be seen
as disproportionate and unreasonable.
(Rep 5867)

Figure 2 as follows:
…Referred to as a Statement of Significance
and based on the character appraisal
undertaken at stage 2.
2) Figure 2 is intended to provide a list of the
type of information that could be included in
a HIS, and is based on a real life example.
Not all considerations will be relevant in all
cases. Recommend that this is clarified by
amending para. 6.32 as follows:
6.32 A summary of the type of information to
be included that applicants may wish to
consider including in the their HIS is provided
in Figure 2…It should be noted that the
considerations listed may not all be relevant
to all cases.
Also amend title of figure 2 as follows:
Figure 2 – Summary of the type of
information to include consider including
in the Heritage Impact Statement

Question 8: CA8 – Do you agree with the circumstances where additional information
may be required? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Two representors agreed.
This support is noted.
(Reps 7094, 7095)
Proportionality should be the guide.
It is considered that the amendments
proposed in response to the comments
(Rep 409)
under CA4 address the issue of
proportionality.
Question 9: CA9 – Do you agree with the information requirements for planning
submissions and the processes illustrated in the charts in Section 8? If not, please
explain why.
Issue
Council Response
Two representors agreed.
This support is noted.
(Reps 7094, 7095)
Requirements are disproportionally onerous.
It is considered to be reasonable to expect
The aim should be to use the lightest touch
either a HIS or DAS in accordance with the
compatible with maintaining the overall
regulations, or otherwise a Planning
character of the conservation area.
Statement, along with detailed plans, for all
applications within or affecting a Conservation
(Rep 409)
Area. The emphasis of the SPG is for matters
of character and appearance to be considered
by applicants at an early stage in order that
this work can inform the siting and design of a
proposal. This information will ensure that
sufficient information is available to the local
authority at the application stage and will
enable the local authority to make informed
planning decisions.
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 78

72

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Question 10: CA10 – Is the guidance provided here and in figures 3, 4 and 5 on how to
undertake site and context analysis useful? If not, please explain why.
Issue
Council Response
A representor agreed.
This support is noted.
(Rep 7095)
Needs checking that the information is
This extract is an example for illustrative
current. LANDMAP information on
purposes only. It is understood from NRW’s
Machynlleth is out of date.
website that this LANDMAP layer is dated
December 2018. However, it is noted that part
(Rep 7094)
of it is out-of-date, therefore to avoid
confusion, it is recommended that the part of
the extract relating to Celtica, which has
closed is deleted from Figure 3, as follows:
Tower dominating what is essentially a
Victorian town within the Conservation Area...
The attempt to celebrate Celtic culture at Plas
Machynlleth, the visitor attraction Celtica, is
under threat of closure due to limited
resources and subsidies...
Comments on figures 3 and 4 in section 7:
1) The term site and context analysis has
1) Better to describe this as ‘how to undertake been used as this is a planning term and is
used in the guidance relating to Design and
a character appraisal’ to avoid confusion.
Access Statements. This emphasises the
2) Figure 3 is nicely set out but needs to
need to consider both the site and it’s context,
relate more closely to the stages of appraisal
which is particularly important in Conservation
identified in para. 6.13 and distinction
Areas.
between information relating to the
conservation area as a whole and information 2) It is considered that figure 3 is clear in
terms of the information that is relevant to the
relating to the specific site.
conservation area as a whole and information
3) Clarity needed on the use of current and
relating to specific site.
historic maps, HER, LANDMAP and modern
3) Some of the re-wording requested is not
and historical photographs in practice.
considered to be necessary as the use of the
4) Need to simplify figure 4 to make clear the
information sources is considered to be clear.
distinction between the requirements relating
Recommend amending text in Figure 3 as
to the character of the conservation area as a
follows:
whole and the detail on the site specific level.
Other mapped information, such as the
May be asking for an unrealistic level of
Historic Environment Record (HER) (above)
detail.
Lle and Coflein, can be referred to in order to
(Rep 5867)
obtain information on designated and recorded
historic buildings and features either on or
adjacent to the site.
LANDMAP - It provides important general
landscape information for a site and its
context…
Comments regarding LANDMAP being out of
date has been noted and addressed in
response to rep 7094 above.

4) Recommend inserting additional text into
para. 6.13 as follows:
6.13…The Statement should comprise of a
brief summary of the character and special
interest of the Conservation Area (point 1
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 79

73

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

below) followed by a more detailed analysis of
the site specific elements taking into account
the immediate context of the site (points 2-12
below).
Question 11: CA11 – Do you have any further comments on this consultation draft of the
SPG?
Issue
Council Response
SPG should include explicit recognition that
Agree to include additional text to clarify the
there is not and should not be a presumption
meaning of Conservation Area designation
against any development in conservation
through adding a paragraph under the
areas, the objective being to manage
heading ‘The meaning of Conservation Area
additions and subtractions to the built
designation’ in section 4, to read as follows:
environment in a way which recognises the
value of what already exists and the
The meaning of Conservation Area
contributions of the part to the whole.
designation
(Rep 409)
4.16 The designation of an area as a
Conservation Area does not prevent change,
however designation ensures that change is
managed in a positive way by enabling
change without harm to the character and
appearance of the area. This means that
there are additional planning controls and
considerations in place to safeguard the
character and appearance of the area.
Heartened to see significant
This support is noted. It is agreed that it
acknowledgement of Place Plans and
would be useful to make reference to Place
reference to local work here in Newtown.
Plans where they are available. It is
Reference to character appraisals being
recommended that additional text should be
undertaken as part of the Newtown Place
provided in para. 6.10 to make specific
Plan. Suggest that more detailed information reference to character appraisals that may
on locally distinctive key characteristics can
have been undertaken as part of the Place
be found in Place Plans where they are
Plan process. Recommend amending para.
available.
6.10 as follows:
(Rep 439)
Where Conservation Area Character
Appraisals or local characterisation studies
have been carried out in respect of an area,
these will provide an important resource for
assessing local character. Character
appraisals may also have been undertaken as
part of preparing Place Plans, which will
identify locally distinctive key characteristics,
therefore any relevant Place Plan should also
be referred to.
A need to balance conservation area
The primary purpose of conservation area
restrictions with the need to allow changes for designation is to protect and enhance the
disability access and to make both new and
character and appearance of the area. The
existing properties more energy efficient (e.g. process is flexible enough to allow for
replacement windows). Policy needs to be
necessary adaptations at the application
more forward looking to take into account new stage. Appropriate solutions can normally be
technology, and request that allowance is
found providing that careful consideration is
made for this within the guidance.
given to siting and design matters.
(Rep 525)
Dislike the taste for bad mock Victorian
The list in para. 6.20 of factors that may assist
Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 80

74

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

buildings. Rather see very good modern
design that could enhance old buildings as a
contrast. The need to take responsibilities
seriously in the face of the state of the climate
and Well-being of Future Generations Act.
(Rep 7094)

Fully supportive of the document.
(Rep 7095)
Although Montgomery Town Council do not
have any comments on SPG, they would like
to congratulate the team on their early
engagement with the council and compliment
the team on how thorough the document is.
(Rep 517)
Welcoming the SPG which has the potential
to make a significant contribution to
successfully managing change in
conservation areas so as to protect their
special character.
(Rep 5867)
Regarding the introduction, the purpose of the
guidance is clear, however the language
could be simplified and condensed to make it
more accessible to non-specialist planners.
(Rep 5867)
Comments regarding section 4:
1) Need to strengthen references to PPW.
2) Para. 4.7 should be straightforward
quotation from the TAN.
3) Reference to Cadw’s Conservation
Principles could be overlooked and should be
in a separate paragraph.
4) Reword the beginning of para. 4.11.
5) Clarify meaning of para. 4.12.
6) Include other examples of where PD rights
have been removed in Conservation Areas at
para. 4.16 or include a link to further detail.
7) Brief explanation needed of what is
covered by the Article 4 directions in place at
para. 4.17.
(Rep 5867)

with designing appropriate development in
Conservation Areas includes reference to
contemporary design.
See previous responses regarding climate
change. As explained in para. 1.3, the Powys
LDP considers Conservation Areas as
important strategic assets that require
protection from unacceptable development so
as to protect the economic, environmental
social well-being of Powys.
This support is noted.
This support is noted.

This support is noted.

The SPG has been drafted with the
involvement of a range of stakeholders and
has been written with applicants, agents and
developers in mind.
1) Recommend amending quotation from
PPW in paras. 4.5 and 4.6 as follows:
4.5…It explains that: the protection,
conservation and enhancement of historic
assets is most effective…when designing new
proposals.
‘It is the responsibility of all those with an
interest in the planning system, including
planning authorities, applicants, developers
and communities, to appropriately care for the
historic environment in their area. The
protection, conservation and enhancement of
historic assets is most effective when it is
considered at the earliest stage of plan
preparation or when designing new
proposals’.
4.6… It refers to the states:
‘There should be a general presumption in
favour of the preservation or enhancement of
the character or appearance of conservation
areas or their settings’ and sets a ‘. Positive
management of conservation areas is
necessary if their character or appearance are

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 81

75

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

to be preserved or enhanced and their
heritage value is to be fully realised.
and:
There is a strong presumption against the
granting of planning permission for
developments, including advertisements,
which damage the character or appearance of
a conservation area or its setting to an
unacceptable level…. In exceptional cases,
the presumption may be overridden in favour
of development considered desirable on
public interest grounds.
This presumption applies unless, in
exceptional circumstances, where a
development is desirable on the grounds of
public interest.
2) Recommend amending final sentence of
para. 4.7 to direct quotation from PPW:
Defining the character of each conservation
area and setting out policies for preservation
and enhancement through Conservation Area
Character Appraisals and Management Plans,
respectively, are seen as ways of providing a
sounder basis for local development plan
policies and development management
decisions. It explains that:
‘Local development plan policies and
development management decisions which
relate to conservation areas will have a
sounder basis and make more positive
contributions to long-term aims if the character
of each conservation area is defined and
policies for its preservation and enhancement
set out in detail’.
3) Recommend deletion of reference to
Cadw’s Conservation Principles in para. 4.9
and add new para. as follows:
4.10 Cadw’s published Conservation
Principles highlights the need to base
decisions on an understanding of the impact a
proposal may have on the significance of an
historic asset.
Consequential re-numbering of subsequent
paragraphs.
4) Recommend deletion of first sentence of
para. 4.11 and replace it with:

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 82

76

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

‘The special, distinctive character of many of
Powys’s towns and large villages is
recognised in the high number of conservation
areas in the county’.
5) Recommend deletion of first sentence of
para. 4.12 and replace it with:
The LDP has identified the importance of
protecting the character and appearance of
the numerous conservation areas in the
county, and the importance of protecting and
enhancing local distinctiveness through good
quality and sensitively designed development.
6) There are various additional restrictions on
permitted development in Conservation Areas
and it is not considered helpful to cite a few
more examples here. The link provided goes
to the WG website, which includes guidance
for householders, which sets out the
circumstances where permission will be
required for development in Conservation
Area.

Comment on section 5 that the relationship
between the specific policies SP7 and DM13
and the LDP objective 13 needs to be
explained.
(Rep 5867)

Comments on section 6 stage 1:
1) Siting and design should follow rather than
precede the character appraisal. The focus
should be on the principle of development
and what it is intended rather than the detail.
2) Para. 6.8 would provide a better starting
point to the section.
(Rep 5867)

7) Para. 4.17 includes a link to further details
on the Article 4 directions. It would not be
helpful to include further details on what is
covered by the Article 4 directions within the
SPG as the directions in Powys cover various
alterations.
Recommend that an additional para. is
inserted after para. 5.6 referring to LDP para.
4.2.78 to explain how local assets on the
Historic Environment Record are to be taken
into account:
5.7 Para. 4.2.78 of the LDP states that ‘regard
should also be given to the information held
on the Historic Environment Record (HER) in
order to identify local features or areas that
may be affected by proposals’.
1) Recommend amending para. 6.5 to remove
reference to siting and design at this stage:
6.5 In order to ensure that the proposed
development is responsive to the character
and appearance of the Conservation Area,
consideration must be given to the siting and
design and how it fits with its surroundings
from the outset.
Also recommend amending section 7 Figure
6.
2) Recommend moving para. 6.8 to follow
para. 6.5.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 83

77

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Comments on section 6 stage 2:
1) Clear statement needed on when character
appraisal is expected.
2) Key messages could be expressed more
succinctly.
3) Confusion between reference to character
appraisal and a site and context analysis.
4) Explanation needed of the objective of the
background research in para. 6.10.
5) Clarity needed on defining objectives and
scope - a brief summary of the character and
special interest of the area, and points 2 to 12
in para. 6.13 referring to the specific site.
6) Paragraph ordering is confusing i.e.
background research before explaining the
process of character appraisal.
(Rep 5867)

1) This guidance is intended to be used for
those developments that require planning
permission and therefore it is not necessary to
state that character appraisal will be needed
in connection with proposals that require
consent.
2) The detail included in this section is
considered to be necessary to explain the
character appraisal process.
3) The guidance explains that a character
appraisal involves carrying out a site and
context analysis informed by a site visit and
background research. This is considered to
be clear.
4) Recommend inserting additional text into
para. 6.10 as follows:
6.10 Background research is necessary to
obtain an understanding of the development
of the site which is the subject of the
development proposal. It should be used to
inform the site and context analysis…
5) Recommend inserting additional text into
para. 6.13 as follows:
6.13…The Statement should comprise of a
brief summary of the character and special
interest of the Conservation Area (point 1
below) followed by a more detailed analysis of
the site specific elements taking into account
the immediate context of the site (points 2-12
below).

Comment on section 6 stage 3 that this
section is over-long, somewhat repetitious
and rather confusing.
(Rep 5867)
Comment on section 6 ‘Assessment for
development requiring HIA’ that it needs to be
made clear that even where a building makes
little or no positive contribution to the
character of a conservation area, consent will
still be needed before demolition can
proceed.
(Rep 5867)
Comment on section 6 Assessment for
Development requiring DAS that it would be
useful to clarify that reference to character in
paragraph 6.34 means that a character
appraisal as per paragraph 6.13 is expected.
(Rep 5867)

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

6) Careful consideration has been given to the
ordering of the paragraphs and it is
considered to be logical.
The length of this section is due to the need to
set out the requirements associated with HIA,
DAS and Planning Statements separately.
This level of detail is considered to be
necessary to fully explain the requirements.
Recommend that wording of para. 6.24 is
amended, as follows:
Where a building makes little or no
contribution, demolition can proceed is likely
to be permitted providing…
Recommend that additional text is inserted
into para. 6.34 as follows:
A DAS is required to demonstrate the steps
taken to appraise the context of the
development and how the design of the
development takes the context into account.

Page 84

78

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Comment on section 6 ‘Assessment for
development not requiring HIS or DAS’ that
need to make it clear at the beginning of
section 6 that an element of character
appraisal is needed in all cases, but this may
be discharged through a HIS, DAS or
planning statement.
(Rep 5867)
Need to change a few references to CADW in
upper case to Cadw.
(Rep 5867)

This involves undertaking a character
appraisal as expected in paragraph 6.13.
Additional text is proposed to be inserted into
new para. 6.4 to address this point in
response to Rep 5867 to question CA4 above.

Recommend correcting references to Cadw,
as follows:
6.12…Reference should also be made to
CADW’s Cadw’s Conservation Principles…
6.42…For further guidance on assessing
these types of proposals, please refer to
CADW’s Cadw’s best-practice guidance.
7.5…Reference should also be made to the
CADW Cadw best-practice guidance…
9.2…through consultation responses received
from CADW Cadw…
Appendix 4
Welsh Government Historic Environment
Service (CADW Cadw)

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 85

79

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

5.2

Residential Design Guide SPG

5.2.1 Reference Group
5.2.2 In order to prepare the Residential Design SPG, the Council sought participation
and involvement with various Topic Stakeholders, from which the Council formed a
Reference Group.
5.2.3 The Reference Group comprised seven members, which included
representatives from the following Council services:





Senior Development Management Officers
Built Heritage Officer
Planning Policy.
Housing

5.2.4 Engagement with the Reference Group during the preparation of the Draft SPG
is summarised in table B16:
Table B16 – Reference Group Involvement (Residential Design SPG)
Date
April 2019

14 May 2019

23 May 2019

Who and How?
Scoping document and cover email sent to four senior Development
Manager Officers and Housing Professional Lead. Copied to Built
Heritage Offcier and Planning Policy officer due to crossover with
Conservation Areas topic. This small internal Reference Group were
provided with the proposed structure of the SPG and asked for
comments on possible content including the use/carry forward of
existing guidance, reference to Model Guidance, and also asked for an
opinion on whether urban designers were required (the UDP
Residential Design SPG was produced in association with an outside
design and consultancy company). A list of proposed Topic
Stakeholders was provided and feedback was invited.
First Working Draft SPG circulated for feedback to internal officers
including original Reference Group. The involvement was extended to
Environmental Health, Active Travel, Ecology, Land Drainage,
Highways and all of Development Management.
Revised Working Draft and appendices circulated to Topic
Stakeholders.
Feedback/discussions with Active Travel, Environmental Health,
Building Control, Development Management, Planning Policy, Newtown
and Llanllwchaiarn Town Council commented on the Place Plan
section.

4 June 2019
Working Draft sent to Doug Hughes on his request.
August 2019
September 2019

Notice of public consultation period circulated to LDP Database.
6 week public consultation period from 9th of August to 20th September.
Representations received to the public consultation shared with the
Reference Group and specific issues discussed with the relevant
members of the Reference Group. Any changes proposed to the SPG

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 86

80

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

October 2019

in response to the representations received also shared with the
Reference Group and any outstanding issues discussed further.
Consultation Draft SPG showing proposed changes presented to the
LDP Working Group shared with the Reference Group. The Reference
Group was informed of any issues raised by the LDP Working Group
before the SPG was finalised for Cabinet approval.

5.2.5 Topic Stakeholders
5.2.6 The following Topic Stakeholders were involved:










Building Control
Highways
Environmental Health
Housing
All Development Management Officers
Registered Social Landlords (Housing Associations)
Newtown Place Plan team
BBNP Strategy Contact
Home Builders Federation

5.2.7 These stakeholders were invited to provide informal feedback on a working draft
of the SPG prior to the formal public consultation stage.
5.2.8 Comments received from the Topic Stakeholders were considered and
responded to, with further discussion taking place on specific issues where necessary.
The input from Topic Stakeholders was used to inform changes to the working draft of
the SPG.
5.2.9

LDP Working Group

5.2.10 The Draft SPG was considered by the LDP Working Group on 21st of June 2019
and approved for Public Consultation.
5.2.11 SPG Consultation
5.2.12 The public consultation period ran from 9th August to 20th September 2019 and
representations were received from the following:
Representor Name (Representor No.)










Newtown and Llanllwchaiarn Town Council (439)
Montgomery Town Council (517)
Presteigne and Norton Town Council (525)
Douglas Hughes Architects Ltd (1552)
Natural England (4177)
Severn Trent Water and Hafren Dyfrdwy (5880)
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water (6348)
Natural Resources Wales (7093)
Canal and River Trust (7095)

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 87

81

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

5.2.13 The main issues arising from the consultation and the Council’s responses to
these are set out in Table B17 below.
Table B17 – Main Issues from the Public Consultation (Residential Design SPG)
Issue
Pleased to see significant
acknowledgment of Place Plans and
local work (Rep 439).
No comments to make but thank you
for early engagement with the council
and for the thorough SPG document
(Rep 517).
Presteigne Area Centre Appraisal
considered to be excessive for
properties outside the Conservation
Area.
Action needed now on electric vehicle
charging points.
Compulsory requirements (eg chimney
stacks) and guidance on two/three
storey buildings – not flexible enough
for bungalows which are needed.
Appraisal precludes eco-homes. (Rep
525).
Well written document which is earnest
and clear but it is too long and has too
many references to what is particularly
aged design guidance. Too many
appendices. Missed opportunity for an
aspirational guide. It should be more
cogent and reflective of what is
relevant when it comes to desiging
homes and housing in Powys.
Clashes between legislation and
guidance (e.g. walkable
neighbourhoods vs car parking
standards) – guide is trying to do much
linkages to issues that are at odds with
each other. More pictorial guide
required. Includes design standards
which are no longer appropriate. The
reference to housing densities is not
necessary in this guide – they hinder
rather than assist in achieving locally
distinctive design. (Rep 1552).

Council Response
Comments noted.

Comments noted.

Concerns acknowledged. Carrying forward the area
centre guidance will not be any more onerous as this
is the guidance currently being applied. However,
the Council will review the wording of compulsory
requirements in case they are too prescriptive for the
types of development now coming forward. Planning
decisions incorporate judgement/flexibility.
SPG cannot bring in new or more stringent
requirements than that set out in current LDP policy
(no policy specifically on electric charging points).

Will review the Draft to see if it can be cut down by
making cross-references instead of including so
many Appendices. Have approached DCFW for a
second opinion on the inclusion/use of Model Guides
– meanwhile we consider that they do still have
fundamental and correct design principles.
Photos/case-studies/ideas still welcome. May delay
final production of SPG.
For discussion: Possible to work together to produce
further design guidance (Best Practice Guides/Place
making in Practice?) – may not have SPG status.
Up for discussion: Losing the area centre (town)
appraisals if they are felt to be too dated.
In terms of general critiscisms, SPG is not
considered to be a document which can “streamline”
the planning process given the complexities of the
process itself and the balance that is struck in
making planning decisions in light of Development
Plan Policy, competing interests, and all relevant
circumstances.
The Council considers the reference to Housing
Density policy to be appropriate in this Guide and will
retain its inclusion. The Council refutes that the

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 88

82

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

Consider the issues of: Green
Infrastructure, Biodiversity
Enhancement, Landscape
Enhancement, other Design
Considerations (eg lighting). (Rep
4177).

density Policy requires “slavish adherence”. It is
important in making the best use of resources and
ensuring the most efficient use of land, both essential
planning priorities.
Advise that the Powys LDP is governed by the Welsh
Planning System and not by the same NPPF as
England although an NDF is on the way.
Separate SPGs on Biodiversity and Geodiversity and
Landscape address matters in more detail.

Reference to enhancement could be
included at 7.3.3.2. Reference to
Green Infrastructure is welcomed and
the production of Green Infrastructure
SPG is recommended (Rep 7093).

The LDP does not have a Green Infrastructure Policy
but this matter will be addressed at Plan Review. In
the meantime developers are still expected to
address green infrastructure as it is a requirement of
PPW and the national sustainable place making
outcomes.

Preliminary Risk Assessment
(contaminated land) could be included
in Table 3. (Rep 7093).

Recommend additional text to para 7.3.3.2 to cover
biodiversity enhancement as well as resilience.

Support for references to non mains
foul drainage and the Circular advice
(Rep 7093).
In relation to DM13 13. Encourage use
of SuDs in new developments to
manage surface water as well as
separation of surface water from
combined sewerage system in
brownfield developments. (Rep 5880)
Recommend water efficient fittings to
be installed. Encourage LPA to
impose the expectation on developers
that properties are built to the optional
requirement in Building Regulations
(110 litres of water consumption per
person per day). (Rep 5880)
In relation to DM13 12. Support for the
use of DM1 to secure essential
infrastructure. Developers can fund
improvements to Wastewater
Treatment Works in advance of AMP
funding where there are capacity
issues. (Rep 6348).
No comments to make (Rep 7095).

Table 3 suggestion is accepted.
Support noted, thank you.
Comments noted. Additonal wording is proposed to
follow para 15.126 to cover these points (will need to
confirm this is appropriate with PCC Building Regs).

Thank you for the clarification, comments noted.

Note: The following sections 6. is to be completed over 2019-2020 as the SPG
preparation programme continues.

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 89

83

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October 2019

6.

Public Consultation on the fourth set of SPG

6.0.1 In accordance with the SPG programme agreed for the LDP (in Table 1 on page
1), the fourth set of SPG to be prepared for public consultation:





Archaeology
Historic Environment
Land Drainage
Open Space

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 90

84

Powys LDP, SPG Consultation Statement, October 2018 April 2019 October
2019

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

Page 91

85

This page is intentionally left blank

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG

409

Powys County Council

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

09/09/2019

409.P1

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment requesting amendment to paras 4.13 and 4.14

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA1

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Generally yes, but 4.13 and 4.14 and the principles for working with communities should perhaps be amended to counter communities’ tendency to be hostile to all change.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

Page 93

09/09/2019

409.P2

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on the bureaucratic process and need for proportionality

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA3

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . The process proposed is notably bureaucratic. It is appropriate for large-scale applications but disproportionately demanding to smaller ones and will have the effect of discouraging all
such applications within conservation areas.
Council Response: By setting out the key stages to follow, this is intended to assist applicants in preparing proposals ready for submission to the Local Planning Authority. All developments should follow the
same general process. However, it is agreed that the guidance would benefit from more of an emphasis on proportionality, particularly with regard to the level of information that is
expected of smaller schemes. See response to representations on question CA4, which is considered to address the issue of proportionality.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
409.P3

Late? Source Type

09/09/2019

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on clarify of requirements of Planning Statements

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA4

03/10/2019

Page 1 of 28

5

Council Response: The meaning of local communities could be clarified by adding in reference to town and community councils and local civic societies. It would also be appropriate to explain how the
issues raised by the character appraisal will be addressed within a Conservation Area Management Plan, which will involve local property owners, businesses and other interest groups. It
is recommended that para. 4.14 is amended.
See Consultation Statement.

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

09/09/2019

409.P3

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on clarify of requirements of Planning Statements

Representation Text: . If a HIS and/or DAS is not required, it should be made clearer the extent to which such issues need to be discussed in a planning statement, otherwise the authority is in effect requiring
a HIS/DAS by default.
Council Response: It is agreed that the extent of the issues to be discussed in a Planning Statement could be made clearer. Recommend inserting additional text into para. 6.40.
Also recommend inserting new paragraph with additional text.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

09/09/2019

409.P4

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding contradictions and need for proportionality

Page 94

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA5

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . 6.11 and 6.13 are to some extent contradictory. If a single dwelling infill proposal only requires consideration of its effect on adjacent properties (6.11), it is unduly onerous to then
require the wider analysis in 6.13 under the guise of a character appraisal. Proportionality should be a guide to what is required.
Council Response: The potential for confusion is noted. Recommend additional text is inserted into para. 6.13.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

09/09/2019

409.P5

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding considerations listed in para. 6.16

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA6

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

The considerations listed in 6.16 discourage innovative design and will tend to encourage pastiche.

Council Response: The penultimate bullet point of para. 6.16 refers to contemporary and innovative design and therefore is considered to encourage this. Para. 6.16 also warns against simply focusing on
replicating architectural detailing, instead the focus should be on layout, form, scale, proportions, materials and visual appearance, which should help to avoid pastiche.

03/10/2019

Page 2 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

09/09/2019

409.P6

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding proportionality of information requirements

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA7

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . The information required is disproprortionate to smaller applications. The process will always default to requiring more information, not less, and the net effect will be to discourage
applications for smaller developments which could contribute to the organic change which is conducive to healthy urban environments.
Council Response: Figure 2 is intended to summarise the type of information that could be included in a Heritage Impact Statement and is intended to help with drafting the content of a HIS. It is therefore,
intended to be applicable to applications for Conservation Area Consent i.e. involving demolition, and, therefore, is not intended to apply to smaller developments that do not involve
demolition. Amendments are recommended to clarify the intention of Figure 2 – see response to rep 5867 2).
See Consultation Report.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

Page 95

09/09/2019

409.P7

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding need for proportionality

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA8

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Proportionality should be the guide.

Council Response: It is considered that the amendments proposed in response to the comments under CA4 address the issue of proportionality.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

09/09/2019

409.P8

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding disproportionality of requirements

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA9

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Again, the aim should be to use the lightest touch compatible with maintaining the overall character of the conservation area. The requirements are disproportionately onerous.

Council Response: It is considered to be reasonable to expect either a HIS or DAS in accordance with the regulations, or otherwise a Planning Statement, along with detailed plans, for all applications within
or affecting a Conservation Area. The emphasis of the SPG is for matters of character and appearance to be considered by applicants at an early stage in order that this work can inform
the siting and design of a proposal. This information will ensure that sufficient information is available to the local authority at the application stage and will enable the local authority to
make informed planning decisions.

03/10/2019

Page 3 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

09/09/2019

409.P8

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

C

W

Late? Source Type

Mode

09/09/2019

409.P9

E

Mode

E

C

W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding disproportionality of requirements

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Need for recognition that Conservation Areas are not mechanisms to prevent change

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Page 96

Representation Text: . The SPG could helpfully include explicit recognition that there is not and should not be a presumption against any development in conservation areas. Conservation areas are not a
mechanism for preventing change, but for managing additions and subtractions to the built environment in a way which recognises the value of what already exists and the contributions of
the part to the whole. Any attempt to fossilise conservation areas will bring economic and social disbenefits to communities. The SPG may need to reflect the fact that townscapes and
village centres have developed organically; to prevent further change, either deliberately or unintentionally, stifles the ability of communities to adapt and leads to decline or to reduced
diversity in ownership and occupation.
Council Response: Agree to include additional text to clarify the meaning of Conservation Area designation through adding a paragraph under the heading ‘The meaning of Conservation Area designation’ in
section 4.
See Consultation Statement.

03/10/2019

Page 4 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG

439

Newtown & Llanllwchaiarn Town Council

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

04/09/2019

439.P1

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Support for acknowlegement of Place Plans

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . The Town Council is heartened to see significant acknowledgement of Place Plans plus reference to local work here in Newtown including the Civic Society, in the latest SPGs for
Conservation Areas and Residential Design Guide.
The Newtown & Llanllwchaiarn Place Plan will feature Character Appraisals for key areas identified within the town boundary including the Newtown Central & Penygloddfa Conservation
Areas. The Place Plan is intended to be a "sister document" to the LDP, to be adopted by Powys County Council as SPG and will directly link into and enable the application of the
Conservation Areas & Residential Guide SPG.
For more detailed information on locally distinctive key characteristics please refer to Place Plans where they are available.

Page 97

Council Response: This support is noted. It is agreed that it would be useful to make reference to Place Plans where they are available. It is recommended that additional text should be provided in para.
6.10 to make specific reference to character appraisals that may have been undertaken as part of the Place Plan process. Recommend amendingn para. 6.10.
See Consultation Statement.

03/10/2019

Page 5 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG

517

Montgomery Town Council

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

517.P12

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: No specific comment

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . Although Montgomery Town Council do not have any comments on SPG, they would like to congratulate the team on their early engagement with the council and compliment the team
on how thorough the document is.

Council Response: This support is noted.

Page 98
03/10/2019

Page 6 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG

525

Presteigne & Norton Town Council

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

24/09/2019

525.P21

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment requesting more detail on HIA requirements

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA4

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

More detail needed on when an historical impact assessment would be required.

Council Response: Applicants must carry out a Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA) and submit a Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) in connection with applications for listed building consent and conservation
area consent. This requirement is explained in paras. 4.4, 6.6 and 6.23, and the requirements in respect of different types of proposals is set out in Appendix 1. This is considered to be
sufficiently clear.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

24/09/2019

Page 99

525.P22

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on the need for balance and to be forward looking

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . A need to balance conservation area restrictions with the need to allow changes for disability access.
A need to balance conservation area restrictions with the need to make both new and existing properties more energy efficient (e.g. replacement windows).
TC understands the need to preserve appearance and features but feels the policy needs to be more forward looking in order to considerately incorporate new technology.
Could be some allowance built into the guidance for such matters?
Council Response: The primary purpose of conservation area designation is to protect and enhance the character and appearance of the area. The process is flexible enough to allow for necessary
adaptations at the application stage. Appropriate solutions can normally be found providing that careful consideration is given to siting and design matters.

03/10/2019

Page 7 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG

4177

Natural England

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

16/09/2019

4177.P1

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: No specific comments

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Natural England does not have any specific comments on this Conservation Areas Supplementary Planning Document.

Council Response: This response is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

Page 100

16/09/2019

4177.P2

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: No specific comments

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present
and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development.
Natural England does not have any specific comments on this Conservation Areas Supplementary Planning Document.

03/10/2019

Page 8 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG

5867

Cadw

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P1

E

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary

C

M

Summary: Comments regarding clarity on character appraisals for each Conservation Area

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA1

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . 4.14. would it be simpler and more direct to say ‘there are currently no appraisals in place for any of the conservation areas in Powys. PCC seeks to work with local communities… in
the preparation of appraisals or characterisation studies. Communities are also encouraged to undertake character area appraisals as part of a Place Plan. In the absence of detailed
appraisals, this SPG provides generic guidance on the assessment of character that should accompany any development proposals put forward through planning and other related
applications. Para 4.2.77 of the LDP explains that significant weight… generic guidance…..’ I assume this paragraph is in fact DM13 as set out on page 13 of this guidance. It would be
helpful to be consistent in the way this is referenced.
In answer to the question at CA1, therefore, in my view the central point that the SPG is to be used where detailed appraisals are not in place is not sufficiently clear as currently drafted.

Page 101

Council Response: Recommend amendments to para. 4.14.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P2

E

C

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary

W

M

Summary: Comment on sources of information

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA2

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Further Information on Conservation Areas (Q CA2):

1) One of the most useful sources for a summary of history and character for the county’s towns is the Buildings of Wales volume for Powys, published in 2013.
2) 4.29 does the Residential Design Guide SPG provide character appraisals of all towns or just some of them?
3) 4.30 awkward wording: I suggest instead ‘Cadw has published studies on the historic character of 15 towns across Wales. These studies set out a detailed definition of local character
which can inform the management of change. Although no towns in the Powys area have been studied, Cadw’s urban character reports are intended to be exemplars that show how
historic character can be analysed’.
4) In addition to these points of detail, I think it would be helpful in each case to explain more clearly why each of the sources mentioned might be useful; this has been done for some of
the entries, but not all. For example, the HLC studies provide quite detailed historical background and a general introduction to the broad elements of character for settlements in included
within registered landscape areas. It would be helpful to say what these areas are, as there won’t be many conservation areas that fall within them. CPAT’s settlement studie will also be a
good starting point for understanding the historical development of all(?) settlements within the county, but if they don’t deal with post 1750 development, there are obvious limitations in
respect of built historic character.
03/10/2019

Page 9 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P2

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on sources of information

Council Response: 1) Recommend that a new para. is inserted after para. 4.36 , but that reference is also made to the availability of other local history books.
2) The Residential Design Guide does not include area appraisals for Montgomery and Llanwrtyd Wells. Recommend amendments to para. 4.29.
3) Recommend that para. 4.30 is deleted and replaced with the text requested.
4) Recommend that additional text is inserted into para. 4.32.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P3

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on the key stages

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA3

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Page 102

Question

Representation Text: . CA3: the key stages for proposals seem broadly appropriate, but:
1) I would question the title of stage 1, as the use of the word ‘determining’ could be confusing (isn’t determination what the Council does when it decides to grant consent?) I think it
would be better for this stage to be called ‘Explaining Objectives’ which would be in line with the first stage of the heritage impact assessment process;
2) Stage 2 is the equivalent of understanding significance (and it might be worth making this clear – describing the appraisal as a statement of significance might make it rather less
daunting to applicants and/or agents);
3) stage 3 could be broken down into two which would also be in line with the HIA process as follows i. identifying proposed changes ii. Assessing the impact of proposals and getting the
best solution.
Council Response: 1) The potential for this to be misinterpreted is understood and therefore, it is recommended that the title of stage 1 before para. 6.5 is amended to ‘explaining objectives’. Also, change
references to this stage in Figure 1 and in section 8 Figure 7.
2) Recommend inserting additional text into para. 6.9.
3) Agree that this section could be divided into two. However, it is recommended that the word ‘designing’ is used rather than ‘identifying’ to be consistent with the content of this section.
Recommend inserting titles above para. 6.15 ‘Designing proposed changes’ and above para. 6.18 ‘Assessing the impact of proposals’.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
5867.P4

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on requirement for planning statements

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA4

03/10/2019

Page 10 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P4

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on requirement for planning statements

Representation Text: . CA4; I think it needs to be clearer when a planning statement is expected – presumably in all cases where a HIS or DAS is not required? It would be better to explain this at the
beginning of section 6 (in paragraph 6.1) rather than in stage 1, and also to explain at the outset that HIS, DAS and planning statements are all expected to include an element of character
appraisal.
Council Response: As explained in para. 6.7, in cases where HIS or DAS is not required, it is good practice for design and access issues to be discussed in a Planning Statement. This is considered to be
clear, however it is recommended that paras 6.6 and 6.7 are moved from stage 1 to the opening part of section 6, after para. 6.2.
Also, recommend additional text in the moved para 6.6.
Consequential change to Figure 1 Key Stages to delete ‘determine whether a DAS/HIS is required.’
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

Page 103

5867.P5

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on HIS checklist

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA7

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . 1) Figure 2: I assume that the part of the statement relating to significance is intended to be based on the character appraisal process described in paragraph 6.13. It would be helpful
to make that clear.
2) The check-list of information seems rather long when compared with the list of requirements included at section 7.2 in Cadw’s own guidance on HIA – could it be simplified to be brought
into line with our guidance? There is a risk otherwise that the detail requested here could be seen as disproportionate, unreasonable – or simply too much to expect from applicants and/or
agents.
Council Response: 1) Recommend additional text in point 3 in Figure 2.
2) Figure 2 is intended to provide a list of the type of information that could be included in a HIS, and is based on a real life example. Not all considerations will be relevant in all cases.
Recommend that this is clarified this by amending para. 6.32 and the title of Figure 2.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
5867.P6

Late? Source Type

29/09/2019

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on figures 3 and 4 in section 7

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA10

03/10/2019

Page 11 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

29/09/2019

5867.P6

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on figures 3 and 4 in section 7

Section 7: How to undertake a site and context analysis

1) I am concerned about confusion of terms – wouldn’t it be better to describe this as ‘how to undertake a character appraisal?
2) Fig 3: resources: this is nicely set out, but it needs to be clear what this is actually for, relating it more closely to the stages of appraisal identified in paragraph 6.13 with the crucial
distinction between information relating to the conservation area as a whole, and information relating to the specific site in question:
3) I assume the intention is that current maps would be used to help explain the site’s relationship to the conservation area as a whole, and that historical maps would be used to explain
its previous form and development.

Page 104

Similarly, for the HER, it would be helpful to explain how this information might be used in practice – presumably it is in order to find out more about the history and development of the site
and any historic assets adjacent to it? LANDMAP: presumably the relevance of LANDMAP is limited to giving an overview of the general character of the area as a whole (and therefore
relates to the first stage in the process set out at paragraph 6.13). this should be made clear. There are limitations with the information in LANDMAP – the summary description of the
cultural landscape of Machynlleth given as an example is out of date and inaccurate.
3) Photographs: need to explain what they are for – modern photographs useful to illustrate context and any specific features; historical photographs to show previous form and detail, and
demonstrate levels of change/survival.
4) Figure 4: need to make a clearer distinction between the need for a brief statement relating to the character of the conservation area as a whole, and for detail on the specific site – its
contribution to the conservation area and its own history and character. If the first two boxes relate to the area as a whole, I think that the expectations suggested by the points to consider
may be too onerous in practice and may need to be simplified. These would be fine if Powys CC was commissioning a conservation area appraisal, but given the more limited context of
this exercise, this may be both unreasonable and unrealistic: could it be simplified? The other boxes that relate to the specific site in question seem more helpful, but again risk asking for
an unrealistic level of detail.
Council Response: 1) The term site and context analysis has been used as this is a planning term and is used in the guidance relating to Design and Access Statements. This emphasises the need to
consider both the site and it’s context, which is particularly important in Conservation Areas.
2) It is considered that figure 3 is clear in terms of the information that is relevant to the conservation area as a whole and information relating to specific site.
3) Some of the re-wording requested is not considered to be necessary as the use of the information sources is considered to be clear. Recommend amending text in Figure 3.
Comments regarding LANDMAP being out of date has been noted and addressed in response to rep 7094 above.
4) Recommend inserting additional text into para. 6.13.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
5867.P7

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Support for the SPG

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

03/10/2019

Page 12 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P7

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Support for the SPG

We welcome this SPG which has the potential to make a significant contribution to successfully managing change in conservation areas so as to protect their special character.

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P8

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on the purpose of the guidance

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Page 105

Question

Representation Text: .

Introduction

The purpose of the guidance is clear, but I think it would be helpful to explain who it is for: I raise this because as a general comment it seems to me that this is not an easy read, and I
wonder whether there is scope to simplify the language (and condense it) to make it more accessible to non-specialist planners.
Council Response: The SPG has been drafted with the involvement of a range of stakeholders and has been written with applicants, agents and developers in mind.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P9

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on section 4

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Section 4: Planning Context

1) The references to PPW are slightly confusing and could be strengthened. The key points in respect of conservation areas are set out in 6.1.14: ‘there should be a general presumption
in favour of the preservation or enhancement of the character or appearance of conservation areas or their settings. Positive management of conservation areas is necessary if their
character or appearance are to be preserved or enhanced and their heritage value is to be fully realised’. I think it would be useful to quote this in full. The quotation included at the end of
paragraph 4.5 is incomplete and misleading. The full quotation (at 6.1.8 in PPW) is ‘It is the responsibility of all those with an interest in the planning system, including planning authorities,
applicants, developers and communities, to appropriately care for the historic environment in their area. The protection, conservation and enhancement of historic assets is most effective
when it is considered at the earliest stage of plan preparation or when designing new proposals’. The key point is about early consideration of historic assets, which is missing from the
short quotation in the SPG.

03/10/2019

Page 13 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P9

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on section 4

There are examples of particularly awkward and (unnecessarily long) drafting in paragraphs:
2)
to conservation areas will have a sounder basis and make more positive contributions to long-term aims if the character of each conservation area is defined and policies for its
preservation and enhancement set out in detail’.
3)
quoting from PPW which says ‘Cadw’s published Conservation Principles highlights the need to base decisions on an understanding of the impact a proposal may have on the
significance of an historic asset.’
4)
the county’?

Page 106

5)
importance of protecting and enhancing local distinctiveness through good quality and sensitively designed development? The paragraph as currently drafted is confusing and unclear.
6)
detail.
7)
Council Response: 1) Recommend amending quotation from PPW in paras. 4.5 and 4.6.
2) Recommend amending final sentence of para. 4.7 to direct quotation from PPW.
3) Recommend deletion of reference to Cadw’s Conservation Principles in para. 4.9 and add new para. Consequential re-numbering of subsequent paragraphs.
4) Recommend deletion of the first sentence of para. 4.11 and replace it.
5) Recommend deletion of first sentence of para. 4.12 and replace it.
6) There are various additional restrictions on permitted development in Conservation Areas and it is not considered helpful to cite a few more examples here. The link provided goes to
the WG website, which includes guidance for householders, which sets out the circumstances where permission will be required for development in Conservation Area.
7) Para. 4.17 includes a link to further details on the Article 4 directions. It would not be helpful to include further details on what is covered by the Article 4 directions within the SPG as
the directions in Powys cover various alterations.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
5867.P10

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on section 5

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

03/10/2019

Page 14 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P10

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on section 5

5. Local Planning Policy

Might be helpful to explain the relationship between the specific policies (SP7 and DM13) and the LDP objective 13. I assume that the policies are intended to support the objective, but I
note that the objective refers specifically to local assets that do not have statutory protection. SP7 is specific in referring to designated assets, but does DM13 include undesignated assets
within its scope or is it specific to conservation areas?
Council Response: Recommend that an additional para. is inserted after para. 5.6 referring to LDP para. 4.2.78 to explain how local assets on the Historic Environment Record are to be taken into account.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P11

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on section 6 stage 1

Page 107

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Stage 1 (see previous comments about title of this stage)

1) 6.5 this section is confusing, because consideration of siting and design would surely have to follow rather than precede the character appraisal. Surely at this stage, the focus should
be on the principle of development and what it is intended to achieve rather than the detail?
2) I think paragraph 6.8 would be a much better starting point for this section.
Council Response: 1) Recommend amending para. 6.5 to remove reference to siting and design at this stage.
Also recommend amending section 7 Figure 6.
2) Recommend moving para. 6.8 to follow para. 6.5.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
5867.P12

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on section 6 stage 2

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

03/10/2019

Page 15 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P12

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on section 6 stage 2

Stage 2 Character Appraisal

1) It would be helpful to begin this section by a clear statement saying when this is expected - I assume it is in all cases of proposed development requiring some form of consent.
2) I think the key messages in this section could be expressed much more succinctly, and it is also not very clear at present.
3) It is confusing to refer to both a character appraisal and a site and context analysis – better to simply talk about a character appraisal, and then briefly say that this will involve an
element of background research, and some analysis of the site and its context.
4) It will be important to explain the objective of the background research referred to at 6.10, and say what it is intended to achieve. I assume that the main objective is to inform an
understanding of the development of the site which is the subject of development proposals - if that is indeed the case, it would be better to say so.
I do not think that the site and context analysis described in 6.11 is in practice distinct from the character appraisal helpfully described at 6.13, and it would be sensible to combine the two,
focusing on the key point in 6.11, which is about proportionality.

Page 108

5) For the whole process of character appraisal, I think it will be important to be much clearer about defining objectives and scope: I assume that what is expected is a brief and general
summary of the character and special interest of the conservation area as a whole (based for example on the description in Buildings of Wales volume or other accessible published
sources), but that points 2-12 at paragraph 6.13 refer specifically to the site which is the subject of the development proposals. This should be clarified as there is a risk that the
expectation is that an individual development needs to be supported by a detailed appraisal of the whole area.
6) In general, I think this section needs looking at again as the order in which the paragraphs is presented is confusing. I do not think it is helpful for example to talk about background
research before explaining the process of character appraisal.
Council Response: 1) This guidance is intended to be used for those developments that require planning permission and therefore it is not necessary to state that character appraisal will be needed in
connection with proposals that require consent.
2) The detail included in this section is considered to be necessary to explain the character appraisal process.
3) The guidance explains that a character appraisal involves carrying out a site and context analysis informed by a site visit and background research. This is considered to be clear.
4) Recommend inserting additional text into para. 6.10.
5) Recommend inserting additional text into para. 6.13.
6) Careful consideration has been given to the ordering of the paragraphs and it is considered to be logical.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
5867.P13

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on section 6 stage 3

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

03/10/2019

Page 16 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P13

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

E

Mode

C

W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on section 6 stage 3

Stage 3

(see previous comments about the content of this stage) This section would benefit from editing as it is currently over-long, somewhat repetitious and rather confusing.
Council Response: The length of this section is due to the need to set out the requirements associated with HIA, DAS and Planning Statements separately. This level of detail is considered to be necessary
to fully explain the requirements.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P14

E

Mode

C

W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on section 6 development requiring HIA

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Page 109

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Assessment for Development Requiring HIA

proceed.
Council Response: Recommend that wording of para. 6.24 is amended.
See Consultation Report.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P15

E

Mode

C

W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on section 6 development requiring DAS

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Assessment for Development requiring DAS

Presumably the reference to character in paragraph 6.34 means that a character appraisal as per paragraph 6.13 is expected – it would be useful to clarify this.

Council Response: Recommend that additional text is inserted into para. 6.34.
See Consultation Statement.
03/10/2019

Page 17 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P15

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

C

W

Late? Source Type

Mode

27/09/2019

5867.P16

E

Mode

E

C

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment on section 6 development requiring DAS

Status Status Modified Summary

W

M

Summary: Comment on section 6 development not requiring HIS or DAS

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Assessment for development not requiring HIS or DAS

Page 110

This section is currently a bit confusing – presumably the core message is that in some circumstances, the LPA may ask for an HIS or a DAS even where they are not technically required,
and that planning statements which include an element of character appraisal are expected in all cases where a DAS or HIS is not a formal requirement. It might be helpful to make it
clearer up front in the document that an element of character appraisal is needed in all cases, but that this requirement might be discharged through an HIS, a DAS or a planning
statement. This should be explained clearly at the beginning of section 6.
Council Response: Additional text is proposed to be inserted into new para. 6.4 to address this point in response to Rep 5867 to question CA4.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

5867.P17

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: General comment on references to Cadw

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

One final point – there are a few references to CADW that have crept in – please can these be changed to Cadw in all cases?

Council Response: Recommend correcting references to Cadw.
See Consultation Statement.

03/10/2019

Page 18 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG

5923

Powys County Council

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
5923.P4

Late? Source Type

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA1

Page 111
03/10/2019

Page 19 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG

7094

Machynlleth Town Council

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P1

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with approach towards conservation area character appraisals

Council Recommendation: Note
Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA1

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Page 112

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P2

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with information sources

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA2

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P3

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment requesting specific reference to town and community councils

Council Recommendation: Note
Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA3

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

It should specify town and community councils as well as the county council.

Council Response: Para. 6.2 refers to relevant guidance adopted by the Council, which reflects criterion 3 of LDP Policy DM13. Guidance which has only been adopted by a Town and Community Council
and not the County Council is unlikely to carry significant weight in the decision-making process. It would, therefore, not be appropriate to refer to Town and Community Councils in this
context. However, it is important to point out that Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Management Plans that Town and Community Councils are involved in preparing are more
likely to carry weight in decision-making when formally adopted by the Council as SPG. It is recommended that para. 5.5 is amended.

03/10/2019

Page 20 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P3

E

Mode

C

W

Late? Source Type

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment requesting specific reference to town and community councils

See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

19/09/2019

7094.P4

E

S

W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with clarity of requirement for HIS, DAS or Planning Statement

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA4

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Page 113

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P5

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding climate change considerations

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA5

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

As far as visual character is concerned, yes but impact on climate change must always be a key consideration.

Council Response: The primary purpose of conservation area designation is to protect and enhance the character and appearance of the area. The process is flexible enough to allow for necessary
adaptations at the application stage. Appropriate solutions can normally be found providing that careful consideration is given to siting and design matters.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
7094.P6

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

E

O

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Objection to details of Appendix 2

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA6

03/10/2019

Page 21 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P6

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

E

O

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Objection to details of Appendix 2

Representation Text: . No
1) If you have any intention of taking climate change seriously and complying with your obligations under the Well being of future generations act, this is nonsense - Single-glazed windows
should be replaced with single-glazing, however there may be situations where slim double-glazing (12mm) or secondary glazing may be appropriate.
Single glazing must alweays be replaced with double or triple glazing or enhanced with double secondary glazing.
2) This is also not Ok as it may make it impossible to take advantage of passive solar heating - Traditional windows generally have a vertical emphasis meaning that their height exceeds
their width. In designing windows on new development, the solid to void ratio of windows to wall in existing buildings should be taken into account in sizing and positioning new windows.
3)Why on earth is this a requirement - The number of new rooflights should be kept to the minimum necessary.
How do you reduce electric light use if you can’t adequately increase daylighting?

Page 114

4) This is a ridiculous use of materials to pander to some archaic idea of design - Where new development is proposed, chimneys should be incorporated within the design and should be
designed to respect the character and appearance of other chimneys in the area.
5) This is playing with words as it talks about ‘balancing’ but doesn’t mean that at all as it really means that conservation trumps the use of solar panels. Solar panels are not permanent
changes to a building and we are in a climate emergency - The need to promote energy efficiency will be balanced against the need to protect the character and appearance of the area
when dealing with proposals for solar panels in Conservation Areas.
6) What is a traditional typeface?
Council Response: 1) Standard double glazed units are unlikely to be appropriate in a Conservation Area. However, the SPG refers to alternative solutions, including slim double glazing or the use of
secondary glazing, which will improve the energy efficiency of a building whilst retaining the character and appearance of window features.
2) Window proportions are important to the character and appearance of a building. This does not necessarily mean that larger windows will not be appropriate, however paying attention
to the proportions, rather than the exact size of the windows, i.e. vertical height in relation to the width, will help to integrate new development.
3) The overuse of rooflights, particularly on the front elevation of a building, will harm the character and appearance of the building and, if repeated on other buildings, will also have a
cumulative effect on the area. The SPG encourages sensitive siting and design of rooflights in order to reduce this harm.
4) Chimneys are a feature of historic buildings and areas, and should be replicated, where appropriate to the street scene. Recommend that the text in Appendix 2 is amended.
5) The primary purpose of conservation area designation is to protect and enhance the character and appearance of the area. The process is flexible enough to allow for necessary
adaptations at the application stage. Appropriate solutions can normally be found providing that careful consideration is given to siting and design matters.
6) Typeface means font i.e. the style of text. Times New Roman is an example of traditional typeface. Recommend amending the text in Appendix 2.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
7094.P7

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

E

S

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with summary of information for HIS

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA7

03/10/2019

Page 22 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P7

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

E

Mode

S

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with summary of information for HIS

ok

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P8

E

Mode

S

W

Late? Source Type

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with additional information requirements

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA8

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Page 115

Question

Representation Text: .

ok

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

19/09/2019

7094.P9

E

S

W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with information requirements and processes

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA9

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

ok

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
7094.P10

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding LANDMAP being out of date

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA10

03/10/2019

Page 23 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P10

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding LANDMAP being out of date

Ok, except you have to check that it is current info – the Landmap info on Machynlleth is out of date.

Council Response: This extract is an example for illustrative purposes only. It is understood from NRW’s website that this LANDMAP layer is dated December 2018. However, it is noted that part of it is outof-date, therefore to avoid confusion, it is recommended that the part of the extract relating to Celtica, which has closed is deleted from Figure 3.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

7094.P11

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding good modern design, climate change and well-being responsibilities

Page 116

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . Just a general comment that, as a person who is passionate about historic buildings and sites, I really dislike the taste for bad mock victorian buildings where those victorian ones can
be a sort of mock medieval. I would far rather see very good modern design that could enhance old buildings as a contrast.
Also you have to take your responsibilities in the face of the state of the climate and following the Well Being of Future Generations Act seriously.
Council Response: The list in para. 6.20 of factors that may assist with designing appropriate development in Conservation Areas includes reference to contemporary design.
See previous responses regarding climate change. As explained in para. 1.3, the Powys LDP considers Conservation Areas as important strategic assets that require protection from
unacceptable development so as to protect the economic, environmental social well-being of Powys.

03/10/2019

Page 24 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG

7095

Canal & River Trust

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

7095.P1

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comment regarding involvement of other stakeholders

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA1

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes- and with other stakeholders.

Council Response: The meaning of local communities could be clarified by adding in reference to town and community councils and local civic societies. It would also be appropriate to explain how the
issues raised by the character appraisal will be addressed within a Conservation Area Management Plan, which will involve local property owners, businesses and other interest groups.
Recommend amendment to para. 4.14.
See Consultation Statement.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

Page 117

20/09/2019

7095.P2

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with information sources

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA2

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

7095.P3

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with key stages

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA3

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

03/10/2019

Page 25 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

7095.P4

E

Mode

S

W

Late? Source Type

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with requirement for HIS, DAS and Planning Statements

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA4

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

20/09/2019

7095.P5

E

S

W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with key considerations

Page 118

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA5

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

7095.P6

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with factors for designing appropriate development and Appendix 2

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA6

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
7095.P7

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with summar of information for HIS

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA7

03/10/2019

Page 26 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

7095.P7

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

E

Mode

S

W

Late? Source Type

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with summar of information for HIS

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

20/09/2019

7095.P8

E

S

W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with additional information requirements

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA8

Question

Page 119

Question:

Representation Texts
Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

7095.P9

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with information requirements and processes

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA9

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
7095.P10

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with guidance on site and context analysis

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA10

03/10/2019

Page 27 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Document=Conservation Areas SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

7095.P10

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Agree with guidance on site and context analysis

Yes

Council Response: This support is noted.

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

7095.P11

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Full support for the document

Document:Conservation Areas SPG CA11

Page 120

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

No. The Canal & River Trust is fully supportive of the document.

Council Response: This support is noted.

03/10/2019

Page 28 of 28

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG

439

Newtown & Llanllwchaiarn Town Council

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

04/09/2019

439.P2

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Support for acknowledgment of Place Plans and Local Work

Document:Residential Design SPG

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . The Town Council is heartened to see significant acknowledgement of Place Plans plus reference to local work here in Newtown including the Civic Society, in the latest SPGs for
Conservation Areas & Residential Design Guide.
The Newtown & Llanllwchaiarn Place Plan will feature Character Appraisals for key areas identified within the town boundary including the Newtown Central & Penygloddfa Conservation
Areas. The Place Plan is intended to be a “sister document” to the LDP, to be adopted by Powys County Council as SPG and will directly link into and enable the application of the
Conservation Area & Residential Guide SPG.
For more detailed information on locally distinctive key characteristics please refer to Place Plans where they are available.

Page 121

(Comments submitted by Zak Howard, Development Manager, Newtown & Llanllwchaiarn Town Council).
Council Response: Thank you for your feedback on the Residential Design SPG. As the Draft SPG states (para 15.31, 15.32) locally specific guidance will be important going forward and developers are
expected to take account of updated and available character appraisal work. The Council looks forward to following the progress of the Newtown & Llanllwchaiarn Place Plan incluidng the
work undertaken on locally distinctive design.

03/10/2019

Page 1 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG

517

Montgomery Town Council

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

27/09/2019

517.P13

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: No specific comment

Document:Residential Design SPG CA11

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . Although Montgomery Town Council do not have any comments on SPG, they would like to congratulate the team on their early engagement with the council and compliment the team
on how thorough the document is.
Council Response: This support is noted. Thank you.

Page 122
03/10/2019

Page 2 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG

525

Presteigne & Norton Town Council

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

24/09/2019

525.P23

E

C

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on Res Design SPG

Document:Residential Design SPG

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . Questions to be raised prior to TC meeting •Area Centre Appraisal for Presteigne - this was felt to be excessive for properties outside the conservation area
•P52 refers to sewage requirements and the feasibility of connecting to the mains sewer. No definition of 'feasible' in this context and in the event of there being no capacity in the short
term for connection to the mains no guidance on whether a package sewage treatment plant could be considered as a temporary solution with connection to the mains to follow. In general
it was felt that this needed to be clearer and have more detail.
•Provision of electric vehicle charging points - this is very much supported but needs action now!

Page 123

Concern was also expressed at –
Compulsory requirement for chimney stacks – unnecessary, wasting land space and materials.
Two/three storey buildings to be main types: Bungalows needed, particularly for older people.
Dwellings generally no more than 3m from highway – does this not conflict with parking requirements for new build properties.
Appraisal precludes eco homes.
Generally –
Sustainable transport hierarchy but bus routes continue to be cut
Charge points to be included in the design of a development but none yet in PCCs own car parks.
Council Response: Thank you for your comments on the Draft Residential Design SPG.
As discussed, the Area Centre Appraisal for Presteigne is being carried forward from the UDP adopted guidance. Whilst the Council hopes to see updated guidance on local
character/distinctiveness coming forward during the LDP lifetime it is likely that this will need to be community-led. In the interim the Council considers that this part of the detailed design
guidance is appropriate to include for all of Presteigne (ie not just in Conservation Areas) as it is no more excessive or onerous than that currently in place (seeing the Council formally
agreed to carry forward the UDP Residential Design Guide for Development Management decision-making until its replacement by LDP SPG). You will probably already appreciate that
planning officers are able use their professional integrity to determine whether prescriptive standards are appropriate or not in the context of the new development proposal and already
offer a degree of flexibility on detailed design issues at the site-specific level, e.g in agreeing a more contemporary mix of materials where it is appropriate in the setting. This flexibility is
recognised in the SPG at appendix 4. point 11.
I hope the details set out in our email of 11 September addressed the issue of mains sewer connections and of electric charging points. It is important to recognise that the standards set
in Supplementary Planning Guidance must only support LDP Policy and cannot bring in new/more stringent requirements that that set out in the Policy itself.
The Council acknowledges your concerns about compulsory requirements. The Council will therefore review the wording of the General Design Requirements set out at point 13. in
Appendix 4 and also that in the Area Centre (Town) Appraisal for Presteigne to consider if changes should be made. However requiring adherence to certain standards enables the LPA
to push for high (good) quality design in new builds. They are helpful in providing robust reasons for refusal in the cases of poor design The Planning Officers can again apply their

03/10/2019

Page 3 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
525.P23

Late? Source Type

24/09/2019

E

C

Mode

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Comments on Res Design SPG

judgement, at the case level, as to whether a relaxation in the standards in favour of alternative, yet still appropriate, good design is the right decision for that house or housing scheme in
the given location. This flexibiity also allows for the proper consideration of the merits of eco homes (which are likely to be of non-standard design) which is another concern your Council
have raised.
Thank you again for taking the time to comment on the Draft Guide.

Page 124
03/10/2019

Page 4 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG

1552

Douglas Hughes Architects Ltd

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

23/09/2019

1552.P28

E

O

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Too Long, Too many appendices/cross references, not enough positive or good examples of
residential design in Powys, Missed Opportunity for Aspirational & Flexible Guide

Document:Residential Design SPG

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . On the whole this is an earnest document which is well written and very clear. Nevertheless, I harbour great reservations about the number of appendices and cross references to what
is particularly aged design guidance.
The guide is simply too long and does not include enough positive or good examples of recent relevant residential design from the county. As a guide, I was hoping for it to be more
pictorial, as any attempt to cover design within the written words is very much open to multiple interpretations. It could have been more cogent and reflective of what is relevant when it
comes to designing homes and housing in Powys. As the county’s largest Architectural, Design and Planning Consultancy, we are well placed to evidence what works well in the county
and what doesn’t.

Page 125

Powys, as a particularly large rural county, does not have a particular style. The guide uses an over reliance of advice in order to structure further development when there really is no
critical mass of any particular house design in the county. Now, whilst this is a legacy of historical guidance, this particular guide could really have shaped the future of house and housing
design in Powys on first principles by using strong visual examples of recently completed schemes, in order to establish the benchmark for future development. What is relevant now,
obviously won’t be relevant in the future but we can certainly lay the foundations.
Of particular interest to me, as well as my practice, is an over reliance on the focus of individual house design at the expense of placemaking. Now whilst I understand that this touched
upon in terms of the character and town appraisals, these too are dated. I am alert to the fact that these, in the future, will be replaced by Place Plans but as there is no timescales to this
the SPG in relation to residential design is likely to be sovereign. I would have preferred for town appraisals to have been updated, given that the examples cited are now 15 years old, and
at the time were rather uninspiring. They do not really set the standard to which we should all be aspiring to when it comes to designing homes and housing within Powys.
The residential design guide could have stimulated a debate in relation to the rural fabric of Powys. I am heartened to see this phrase appearing within the guide but there is also continued
reference to urban design quality as well as designing for a suburban context. I would argue that we have neither of these situations within Powys.
I refer to Clause 7.1.2 in which first reference is made to affordable and sustainable housing. This is a common theme and nationally based in its origins. Whilst reference is made
elsewhere to the need for a housing mix and tenure to give variety to residential development in Powys one crucial clause which is stymieing this within the LDP is the use of generic
densities to inform development. I specifically refer to Clause 15.1.9 in which this is used to reinforce this policy which appears in the LDP. You simply cannot provide and reinforce local
distinctiveness when you have to adhere to restrictive numbers per hectare. In addition, I refer to Clause 15.2.9 where reference is made to proportions and layouts of historic buildings in
the context of good design, but this is undone by slavish adherence to LDP policies upon housing density. We are experiencing as a practice a particularly negative influence of this policy
upon housing development within the county. We are not attempting to side-step this issue and are aware of the fact that we need to make the best use of land resource but over-reliance
on the use of housing densities is not having the impact that the Local Authority originally anticipated; far higher quality residential development in the county. The reappearance of
densities within the guide is, I believe, not necessary.
The guide is far too long and repeats policies from national as well as local guidance which I do not see as being necessary. They simply need to be cross referenced and signposted with
the guide. This is particularly important when the life spans of national and local guidance are not the same as the residential design guide.
Through working with all major developers and Housing Associations within the county, we have encountered clashes between UK, Welsh and Powys specific guidance. So, for example,
the aspiration to have walkable neighbourhoods (Clause 15.1.7) is somewhat at odds with core tenets set down within CSS Parking Standards. Quite simply, within CSS there is no
provision whatsoever for negotiation or removal of parking spaces even within town centres as recently pointed out by your Highways Department. Given that Powys has no cities, the only
time that your Highways Department can grant dispensation from the parking within any town centre is in a city environment. You cross referenced CSS Parking Standards within 15.8.8

03/10/2019

Page 5 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
1552.P28

Late? Source Type

23/09/2019

E

O

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Too Long, Too many appendices/cross references, not enough positive or good examples of
residential design in Powys, Missed Opportunity for Aspirational & Flexible Guide

and in doing so lock the residential design guide into a virtual circle of non-delivery given legislative restrictions.
Reference is also made within the RDG to ensuring that there is inclusiveness in accessibility with all of the potential developments. In our experience, where we have attempted to
accommodate footpaths as well as subtle pedestrian links within our larger developments this has been somewhat at odds with core tenets set down within the cured by design legislation.
You also reference this legislation within your guide. Again, I think the guide is trying to do far too much by linking in with other legislative guides that are at odds with each other. I believe
that the residential design guide needs to be aspirational, flexible and offer a new vision for residential development in Powys.
The guide itself is rather hard to navigate and cross reference. So, for instance here, on page 100 you make reference to preferred materials and there is no reference to timber. This is
one of our more energy efficient and low carbon materials and is indigenous to the majority of Powys. Its inclusion here is vital.
Reference is made to the need for all developments to be as energy efficient as is practical. The inclusion of chimney stacks as directed within your Appendix 4, is a retrograde step to this
end. There is a reason that chimneys have gone out of fashion and that is because they are a direct route to considerable energy loss. Again, there are part of the guides that are at odds
with each other.

Page 126

Within Appendix 4 you also specify what roof pitches would be acceptable in the county. I do not see this as a positive step, especially in terms of some of our town centre developments.
Lower pitches work equally as well as higher pitches and surely the main aim here is to make sure that whatever design comes forward compliments or enhances its environment.
Specifying roof pitches does not give the designer flexibility to achieve this. I also find the reference to stone, slate or brick sills as being rather curious. Finally, I do not see the need to
specify flemish brick bond in new developments within the guide. The cost of undertaking this construction is considerable and this is the time where there is very little housing delivery
across the county as it is. The design guidance which prejudices this will only compound this problem further.
So, in summary, I was hoping the guide would have been a lot more ambitious and courageous in its vision for the county. I am concerned that it brings together too many aged guides
which really did not work at the time and have served their purpose. I am more than happy to engage in this discussion further so that we can work together to produce a residential design
guide which will make a planning process a lot more streamlined and ultimately for the delivery of houses of every shape and size across our county.
Council Response: Thank you for your comments on the Draft Residential Design SPG
Firstly, the Council is sorry to hear that the SPG does not meet expectations.
offer a new vision for residential development in Powys.

The Council notes your thoughts that the Residential Design Guide needs to be aspirational, flexible and

The main purpose of the SPG is to support Policy DM13 and enable appropriate decision-making. Through encouraging good design the Council wants to see better quality homes being
built across the county. The Council considers that using, albeit somewhat dated, Model Guides as the Draft does, is appropriate given that these are still relevant, have not been
withdrawn and are available from the Design Commission for Wales. The principles of good design are still valid. However, in response to your consultation feedback the Council is
seeking an opinion and additional feedback from the DCFW on the content of the Draft SPG and in particular the use of cross-references to the Model Residential Design Guide.
It is considered that the 10 design objectives referenced in the Draft SPG coupled with consideration of the Building for Life (BfL) Wales principles are sufficiently flexible to support
contemporary well-designed schemes and support successful place making. The potential of BfL appears to be well evidenced by the range of schemes and variety of housing types that
have successfully received BfL accreditation (see case studies on line at: http://www.builtforlifehomes.org/).
This SPG supports Policy DM13, which is positive towards new development. The LPA do wish to see housing delivered in Powys. The Council does not share your view that the SPG is
the right document to be “ambitious and courageous in its vision for the county”. Instead, the Council is of the opinion that design and development professionals (architects, agents,
housebuilding firms and developers) should themselves adapt to the design and place making culture change and bring forward fitting, ambitious and courageous schemes to shape the
Powys of the future. The Council would in fact strongly encourage this, and the Draft SPG does not stymie this, provided the principles of good design and place making are applied.
The Council agrees that strong visual examples of recently completed local schemes would benefit the SPG. Unfortunately, this has not been possible so far due to resources but
receiving additional ideas would be welcomed. Even at this stage, pictures could be inserted into the document. It is unfortunate that your comments/photos did not come forward during
03/10/2019

Page 6 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
1552.P28

Late? Source Type

23/09/2019

E

O

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Too Long, Too many appendices/cross references, not enough positive or good examples of
residential design in Powys, Missed Opportunity for Aspirational & Flexible Guide

the Working Draft stage in June as this would have aided the preparation work. Receiving comments late in the day means that the optimal time for making significant changes has been
missed.
There may be scope for your involvement in a set of Powys Place Making Guides to accompany the SPG and LDP, an idea which will be placed before the LDP Working Group. These
could be more pictorial in content and include LPA specific case studies. Again, the Council would welcome your photographs/images and ideas on this so that they can be taken forward
for further consideration. The Council may also need to approach other local agents/architects for similar case studies to provide a broader scope and balance. It would also help if you
could alert the Council to other guides to demonstrate the format/type of aspirational document produced elsewhere that you inferred would be a more fitting model for Powys. In
researching for this Draft SPG, the Council noted the wide range of guides being produced across Wales.
The Council acknowledges your comments that the SPG is too long. It does cover a lot of ground and this is partly due to nature of Policy DM13 which is a wide-ranging Design policy,
and the need to update the context of the SPG in the light of the place making framework (embedded in PPW from 2018). It is noted that yours are the only consultation comments
focussed on the length/detail of the work.
The Council notes your view that the SPG, as well as being far too long, repeats policies from national as well as local guidance. The Council will therefore review the content and assess
whether it can contain more cross-references/signposting to avoid repetition.

Page 127

The Council will consider and discuss whether the Town Appraisals are considered to be too outdated and whether they should therefore be removed from the Draft SPG, your comment
being balanced against other consultee responses.
On your point about terminology and the reference to “urban design” /”suburban context” this is an industry term and not one intentionally being used to distinguish between a town and
rural setting. Detailed site and context analysis, the foundation of good design, would soon identify the appropriate design references. It is of note that BfL even has a separate section
to cover “using BfL 12 in more urban locations” as the guide was found to have a core focus on schemes between 25-50 homes to the hectare, such as those “typical of more suburban or
rural locations”.
The Council notes that you consider the appearance of densities to be unnecessary in the Residential Design SPG. The Council considers that reference to the density policy is
appropriate. It is noted that other Authorities have taken a similar approach (e.g. Neath Port Talbot, 2017). The purpose of SPG is to support policies in the Plan. As the Plan includes a
robust density policy (which was in fact deemed essential by the Independent Inspector at the LDP Examination) it is not deemed appropriate to exclude mention of it from a guide on
housing design.
LDP Policy H4 provides for flexibility on density. For example, where an applicant can demonstrate that constraints, or important site features, or historic patterns/local character require
development to adopt a lower density, developments below the specified target densities will be considered. This flexibility is set out in the Reasoned Justification of the LDP and does not
need repeating in the Residential Design SPG.
On your other comments, it is not within the remit of an SPG to “streamline the planning process” (especially given the complexities and competing priorities that you point out) or address
inconsistencies that may be found in the legislative regime. Neither should the SPG be a guide to “stimulate debate in relation to the rural fabric of Powys” – such debates can, and no
doubt should be had, but perhaps not in the context of SPG preparation. There could be scope to produce a further document on rural design – it is noted that the BBNPA has a guide on
enabling appropriate development in the countryside. This may not be officially an SPG for Powys due to the policies in the LDP but a similar publication could potentially be produced as
a good practice guide if the Council feels that it is merited. Again, such an option will be considered by the Working Group to ascertain if there is a consensus on producing such a guide.

03/10/2019

Page 7 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG

4177

Natural England

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

16/09/2019

4177.P3

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Consideration of Green Infrastructure, Biodiversity Enhancement, Landscape Enhancement,
other Design Considerations (e.g. Lighting) and SEA/HRA

Document:Residential Design SPG

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: . Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present
and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development
Our remit includes protected sites and landscapes, biodiversity, geodiversity, soils, protected species, landscape character, green infrastructure and access to and enjoyment of nature.

Page 128

BOLD TEXT: While we welcome this opportunity to give our views, the topic this Supplementary Planning Document covers is unlikely to have major effects on the natural environment,
but may nonetheless have some effects. We therefore do not wish to provide specific comments, but advise you to consider the following issues: END BOLD TEXT.
Green Infrastructure
This SPD could consider making provision for Green Infrastructure (GI) within development. This should be in line with any GI strategy covering your area.
The National Planning Policy Framework states that local planning authorities should ‘take a strategic approach to maintaining and enhancing networks of habitats and green
infrastructure; ’. The Planning Practice Guidance on Green Infrastructure provides more detail on this.
Urban green space provides multi-functional benefits. It contributes to coherent and resilient ecological networks, allowing species to move around within, and between, towns and the
countryside with even small patches of habitat benefitting movement. Urban GI is also recognised as one of the most effective tools available to us in managing environmental risks such
as flooding and heat waves. Greener neighbourhoods and improved access to nature can also improve public health and quality of life and reduce environmental inequalities.
There may be significant opportunities to retrofit green infrastructure in urban environments. These can be realised through:
green roof systems and roof gardens;
green walls to provide insulation or shading and cooling;
new tree planting or altering the management of land (e.g. management of verges to enhance biodiversity).
You could also consider issues relating to the protection of natural resources, including air quality, ground and surface water and soils within urban design plans.
Further information on GI is include within The Town and Country Planning Association’s "Design Guide for Sustainable Communities" and their more recent "Good Practice Guidance for
Green Infrastructure and Biodiversity".
Biodiversity enhancement
This SPD could consider incorporating features which are beneficial to wildlife within development, in line with paragraph 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework. You may wish to
consider providing guidance on, for example, the level of bat roost or bird box provision within the built structure, or other measures to enhance biodiversity in the urban environment. An
example of good practice includes the Exeter Residential Design Guide SPD, which advises (amongst other matters) a ratio of one nest/roost box per residential unit.
Landscape enhancement
The SPD may provide opportunities to enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding natural and built environment; use natural resources more sustainably; and bring
benefits for the local community, for example through green infrastructure provision and access to and contact with nature. Landscape characterisation and townscape assessments, and

03/10/2019

Page 8 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
4177.P3

Late? Source Type

16/09/2019

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Consideration of Green Infrastructure, Biodiversity Enhancement, Landscape Enhancement,
other Design Considerations (e.g. Lighting) and SEA/HRA

associated sensitivity and capacity assessments provide tools for planners and developers to consider how new development might makes a positive contribution to the character and
functions of the landscape through sensitive siting and good design and avoid unacceptable impacts.
For example, it may be appropriate to seek that, where viable, trees should be of a species capable of growth to exceed building height and managed so to do, and where mature trees are
retained on site, provision is made for succession planting so that new trees will be well established by the time mature trees die.
Other design considerations
The NPPF includes a number of design principles which could be considered, including the impacts of lighting on landscape and biodiversity (para 180).
Strategic Environmental Assessment/Habitats Regulations Assessment
A SPD requires a Strategic Environmental Assessment only in exceptional circumstances as set out in the Planning Practice Guidance here. While SPDs are unlikely to give rise to likely
significant effects on European Sites, they should be considered as a plan under the Habitats Regulations in the same way as any other plan or project. If your SPD requires a Strategic
Environmental Assessment or Habitats Regulation Assessment, you are required to consult us at certain stages as set out in the Planning Practice Guidance.
Should the plan be amended in a way which significantly affects its impact on the natural environment, then, please consult Natural England again.

Page 129

Council Response: Thank you for submitting comments on the Draft Residential Design SPG. We note the issues of green infrastructure, biodiversity enhancement, landscape enhancement and other
design principles (eg lighting). The Local Development Plan and its Guidance has to be drawn up under the national planning framework which is different to that in England. For example
we have Planning Policy Wales (PPW) supported by Technical Advice Notes rather than the NPPF. We expect to see a national development plan for Wales (the National Development
Framework) by September 2020. Obviously a lot of the strategic issues, particularly in looking after the natural environment, are common to both planning systems.
In respect of the subject areas you specifically mention, the Powys LDP has separate SPG for both Biodiversity and Landscape. We are also producing an Open Space SPG and a Land
Drainage SPG. The Authority does not yet have a strategic Green Infrastructure Assessment (or a bespoke LDP policy on it). However we are strongly encouraging developers to
address green infrastructure issues (see para 15.82) especially as they are recognised in PPWs National Sustainable Placemaking Outcomes. There is mention of green infrastructure in
several places in the Draft Residential Design Guide (eg see 7.3.3.4 and 15.52, 15.81) and the topic is also included in the Biodiversity and Geodiversity SPG.
The Council agrees that this SPG could make reference to biodiversity enhancement alongside encouraging biodiversity resilence. The Council will look to revise para 7.3.3.2
accordingly. The Council are unlikely to set prescriptive measures (such as a ratio of one nest/roost box per residential unit) but each case will be decided on it merits and the advice of
various stakeholders taken into account (eg the feedback from our ecologist at the site specific level). It is also of note that the Draft NDF currently under consultation includes a strategic
policy for biodiversity enhancement and ecosystem resilience.
In terms of landscape enhancement, the Council has produced a Landscape SPG to support Objective 13 and Policy DM4 of the LDP and uses LANDMAP as it's strategic evidence base.

03/10/2019

Page 9 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG

5880

Severn Trent Water and Hafren Dyfrdwy

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

19/09/2019

5880.P1

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Encourage the use of SuDS and Surface Water Separation, Encourage Water Efficient
Fittings to reduce Water Consumption

Document:Residential Design SPG

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

In relation to - 13. IT DEMONSTRATES A SUSTAINABLE AND EFFICIENT USE OF RESOURCES BY INCLUDING MEASURES TO ACHIEVE…

We encourage the use of SuDS in new developments to manage surface water as well as surface water separation from the combined sewerage system wherever possible on brownfield
developments.

Page 130

With regards to water consumption - We recommend that you consider taking an approach of installing specifically designed water efficient fittings in all areas of a property rather than
focus on the overall consumption. This should help to achieve a lower overall consumption than the maximum volume specified in the Building Regulations. We recommend that in all
cases you consider:
Single flush siphon toilet cistern and those with a flush volume of 4 litres.
Showers designed to operate efficiently and with a maximum flow rate of 8 litres per minute.
Hand wash basin taps with low flow rates of 4 litres or less.
Water butts for external use in properties with gardens.
To further encourage developers to act sustainably Hafren Dyfrdwy currently offer a 100% discount on the clean water infrastructure charge if properties are built so consumption per
person is 110 litres per person per day or less.
We would encourage you to impose the expectation on developers that properties are built to the optional requirement in Building Regulations of 110 litres of water per person per day.
Council Response: Thank you for your comments on the Draft Residential Design Guide.
The document did not include very much on water efficiency so your feedback is helpful. The Council is proposing to add text to follow 15.126 to cover the points you have raised.

03/10/2019

Page 10 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG

6348

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

04/09/2019

6348.P1

E

S

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Support for use of Policy DM1 (Planning Obligations) in Certain Circumstances

Document:Residential Design SPG

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

DM13 (12.)

5.110 We support the SPG stating that the Council may use policy DM1 (Planning Obligations) to secure essential infrastructure to serve proposed sites in certain circumstances.
It is unlikely that all of the required infrastructure improvements identified by Welsh Water during the LDP preparation will receive funding through the AMP process. Where shortfalls in
our AMP funding occurs and there is no capacity in the Wastewater Treatment Works to accommodate new growth, developers can fund improvements themselves, secured via Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Page 131

Council Response: Thank you for your comments in respect of DM13 (12) in the Residential Design Guide and for the clarification that developers can fund improvements themselves if there is shortfall in
AMP funding for required infrastructure works to accommodate new growth.

03/10/2019

Page 11 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG

7093

Natural Resources Wales

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

18/09/2019

7093.P1

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Support for some sections plus comments

Document:Residential Design SPG

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

We have the following comments on the document:

7.3.3.2 We support the need to design for biodiversity resilience. In addition, reference to enhancement could also be included.
7.3.3.4/5 We welcome the reference to Green Infrastructure in these sections. We recommend the production of a Green Infrastructure Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG). Within
this the strategic network should be considered, as well as individual site proposals and guidance on what should be included with planning applications and in Green Infrastructure Plans.

Page 132

A good example is the Monmouthshire Green Infrastructure SPG. This includes work on ecological connectivity, catchment management, recreational corridors and routes, greenspaces
and open access areas. The approach should ensure that Green Infrastructure and place making is included in a strategic way rather than in individual ad-hoc proposals
We support the recognition of the importance of early consideration on relevant issues to “ensure that the resultant scheme is able to address opportunities and constraints in the most
practical, timely, appropriate and cost-effective manner.” Preapplication advice from the Authority and other statutory bodies such as ourselves, should reduce requirements to incorporate
design changes later in the application process.
Table 3: Typical Supporting Information for a Planning Application
We consider this useful to inform developers of the range of supporting information that could be required. Preliminary Risk Assessments (with regard contaminated land) could also be
included as this issue does not feature elsewhere.
15.111 We support the references made to non-mains foul drainage and to the advice in Circular 008/2018 that discussions should take place with the Council (planning authority), Natural
Resources Wales and the sewerage undertaker. We always recommend twin tracking of permit applications with planning applications to avoid delays.
Council Response: Thank you for submitting comments on the Draft Residential Design SPG.
Please note that the Powys LDP has separate SPG for both Biodiversity and Landscape. We are also producing an Open Space SPG and a Land Drainage SPG which are likely to be of
interest to you.
The Council agrees that this SPG could make reference to biodiversity enhancement alongside encouraging biodiversity resilence. The Council will look to revise para 7.3.3.2 accordingly.
The Authority does not yet have a strategic Green Infrastructure Assessment (or a bespoke LDP policy on it). Because there is no LDP Green Infrastructure Policy it would not be
appropriate to produce SPG on the topic. However we are strongly encouraging developers to address green infrastructure issues (see para 15.82) especially as they are recognised in
PPWs National Sustainable Placemaking Outcomes. There is mention of green infrastructure in several places in the Draft Residential Design Guide (eg see 7.3.3.4 and 15.52, 15.81)
and the topic is also included in the Biodiversity and Geodiversity SPG. The Council is also aware that the Draft national development plan (NDF) currently under consultation includes a
strategic policy for biodiversity enhancement and ecosystem resilience which has a focus on green infrastructure and ecological networks. The Council is likely to move forward with a
strategic Green Infrastructure Assessment when the LDP reaches its review stage. Thank you for the suggestion that we research the Green Infrastructure SPG produced by
Monmouthshire, this is useful.
Thank you for the support to the wording in 7.3.4.3.

03/10/2019

Page 12 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG
Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd
7093.P1

Late? Source Type

18/09/2019

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: Support for some sections plus comments

The Council agrees that Table 3 could include reference to Preliminary Risk Assessments (with regard to contaminated land) and agrees to add this to the list of typical supporting
information.
Thank you for your support to paras 15.111 to 15.113.

Page 133
03/10/2019

Page 13 of 14

Representations & Council Responses juxtaposed - consultation on Resid

Powys County Council Local Development Plan

by: Representation No
Filtered to show: (all of) Stage=P; Status=M; Document=Residential Design SPG

7095

Canal & River Trust

Rep'n/Para/Policy AccessnNo DateLodgd

Late? Source Type

20/09/2019

7095.P12

E

C

Mode
W

Status Status Modified Summary
M

Summary: No Comment

Document:Residential Design SPG

Question

Representation Texts

Question:

Details

Representation Text: .

Thank you for consulting the Canal & River Trust on the Residential Design Guide SPG. The trust have no comments to make at this time.

Council Response: Thank you to the Canal and River Trust for confirming that you have no comments to make on the Draft Residential Design SPG.

Page 134
03/10/2019

Page 14 of 14

6

Powys Local Development Plan
(2011-2026)

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Conservation Areas
LDP Working Group DRAFT
OCTOBER 2019

Mae’r ddogfen hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg
This document is also available in Welsh

Page 135

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

CONTENTS
1. Introduction

1

2. Purpose of the guidance

1

3. Status of the guidance

2

4. Planning context for Conservation Areas in the Powys LDP area

3

5. Local Planning Policy

10

6. Implementation of Conservation Areas policy

12

7. How to undertake site and context analysis

24

8. Process charts

37

9. Monitoring and Review

39

APPENDICES
APPENDIX 1 Supporting document requirements (HIS/DAS) for different
types of application affecting a Conservation Area

40

APPENDIX 2 Key issues to consider for specific types of development

43

APPENDIX 3 Set of planning conditions to attach to planning permissions 51
for developments in or affecting Conservation Areas
APPENDIX 4 Contact details

52

FIGURES
Figure 1

Key stages to follow for proposals in or affecting
Conservation Areas

12

Figure 2

Summary of information to include in the Heritage Impact
Statement

20

Figure 3

Resources to use for site and context analysis

25

Figure 4

Points to consider when carrying out the site and context
analysis

31

Figure 5

Questions to ask in preparing HIS/DAS/Planning Statement

36

Figure 6

Process involved in planning and assessing a development
proposal in or affecting a Conservation Area

37

Figure 7

Process involved in making decisions on proposals for
demolition in Conservation Areas

38

Page 136

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
1. Introduction
1.1
This guidance supplements the Conservation Area related policies of the Powys
Local Development Plan (LDP) (2011-2026), which was adopted by Powys County Council
on the 17th of April 2018, and has been prepared to assist decision-making on planning
applications within the Powys LDP area. This guidance does not apply to areas of the
County of Powys located within the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority area (BBNPA).
1.2
This Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) is intended to be read alongside the
relevant polices of the LDP (see Section 5), along with any other related adopted SPG. The
guidance within other SPG including the Residential Design Guide, in particular,
complements and adds to this guidance by advising on general design matters. Other SPG
relating to the Historic Environment and Archaeology provide guidance on other aspects of
the historic environment. The Landscape SPG refers to the character and features of the
historic and cultural landscape in the context of landscape considerations.
1.3
The protection of the historic environment to support business growth and tourism, as
part of developing a vibrant economy, is a key corporate priority of Powys County Council,
as expressed through Vision 2025: Corporate Improvement Plan. Conservation Areas
are considered by the Powys LDP as being important strategic assets that require protection
from unacceptable development so as to protect the economic, environmental and social
well-being of Powys.
1.4
This SPG has been prepared to provide information and guidance on how, through
implementation of the policies in the LDP, development proposals should ensure that the
character and appearance of Conservation Areas is appropriately considered, preserved
and, where appropriate, enhanced. This guidance is also aimed at improving the approach
towards protecting and enhancing the local distinctiveness of protected areas of historic
value, specifically with regards to Conservation Areas.
2. Purpose of the guidance
2.1

The purpose of this guidance is to:






Provide more detailed guidance to supplement relevant LDP policies.
Provide generic guidance on assessing character within Conservation Areas and
appropriate forms of development where a specific Conservation Area Character
Appraisal is not in place.
Provide a consistent, objective, evidence-based approach towards assessing
character and using this to inform the design of new development.
Provide practical information for applicants/agents, members of the public, elected
Members and Council Officers involved in proposals within or affecting the setting of,
or significant views in or out of, Conservation Areas, and on respecting local
distinctiveness.

2.2 This SPG provides guidance and information on:


National legislation, policy and guidance on Conservation Areas.

Page 137

1

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019









Conservation Areas in the Powys LDP area.
The meaning of Conservation Area designation for different types of proposals.
Relevant LDP policies in respect of Conservation Areas.
How policies relating to Conservation Areas are to be implemented.
Carrying out character appraisal involving site and context analysis informed by
observations made during site visits and background research.
Planning application requirements in respect of Conservation Areas – Heritage
Impact Statement and Design and Access Statements.
Key issues for specific types of development proposals.
Monitoring and review processes associated with the LDP and SPG.

3. Status of the guidance
3.1
This SPG has been produced to support the policies of the LDP which are used in
the determination of planning applications. The guidance within the SPG has had regard to
relevant legislation, national planning policy and other available guidance and information.
3.2
This SPG has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s approved Protocol for
Preparation and Adoption of SPG, which includes a Community Involvement Scheme. It has
been subject to a 6 week public consultation stage undertaken [insert dates] 2019. A
summary of the responses received to the public consultation along with an explanation as
to how the responses have been addressed can be found within the Consultation Statement.
This SPG was adopted by the Council on the [insert date].
3.3

This SPG is a material consideration in the determination of planning applications.

Page 138

2

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
4. Planning context for Conservation Areas in the Powys LDP Area
National legislation, policy and guidance
4.1
Conservation Areas are defined under section 91 (with reference to section 69) of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as:
“areas of special architectural or historic interest the character and appearance of which it is
desirable to preserve or enhance”.
4.2
Section 69 of the Act requires Local Planning Authorities to identify these areas, and
under section 71 of the Act, from time to time, to formulate and publish proposals for the
preservation and enhancement of these areas. Section 72 of the Act places a general duty
on Local Planning Authorities to pay ‘special attention to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of that area.’
4.3
Section 74 of the Act controls demolition in Conservation Areas by requiring
Conservation Area Consent from the Local Planning Authority for the demolition of buildings
within Conservation Areas subject to certain exemptions made under section 75 of the Act.
This requirement does not apply to listed buildings or Scheduled Ancient Monuments
(SAMs) as such works are subject to controls under separate legislation.
4.4
The Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016 makes changes to legislation relating
to the protection and management of the historic environment in Wales. It introduces
measures for the positive management of change to the historic environment, such as
requiring all applications for Listed Building Consent and for Conservation Area Consent to
be accompanied by Heritage Impact Statements (see Section 6). It also places a duty on
the Welsh Government to compile and keep up-to-date a Historic Environment Record (see
further information at 4.23-4.24 below).
4.5
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) (10th Edition) contains national planning guidance
that recognises Conservation Areas as historic assets and acknowledges the need for the
planning system to protect, conserve and enhance the significance of historic assets,
including consideration of their settings. The need for decisions to be based on an
understanding of the impact of a proposal on the significance of an historic asset is
emphasised. It explains that: the protection, conservation and enhancement of historic
assets is most effective…when designing new proposals.
‘It is the responsibility of all those with an interest in the planning system, including planning
authorities, applicants, developers and communities, to appropriately care for the historic
environment in their area. The protection, conservation and enhancement of historic assets
is most effective when it is considered at the earliest stage of plan preparation or when
designing new proposals’.
4.6 The Welsh Government’s objectives in respect of Conservation Areas is to ‘preserve or
enhance their character and appearance, whilst at the same time helping them remain
vibrant and prosperous’.
It refers to the states:
‘There should be a general presumption in favour of the preservation or enhancement of the
character or appearance of conservation areas or their settings’ and sets a ‘. Positive
management of conservation areas is necessary if their character or appearance are to be
preserved or enhanced and their heritage value is to be fully realised.
and:

Page 139

3

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
There is a strong presumption against the granting of planning permission for developments,
including advertisements, which damage the character or appearance of a conservation area
or its setting to an unacceptable level…. In exceptional cases, the presumption may be
overridden in favour of development considered desirable on public interest grounds.
This presumption applies unless, in exceptional circumstances, where a development is
desirable on the grounds of public interest. PPW also explains that Conservation Area
Character Appraisals and Management Plans can assist in development management
functions and that design decisions relating to character should be based on site and context
analysis.
4.7
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 24 provides further detailed national planning
guidance related to the topic of the historic environment and, in particular, on how the
historic environment should be considered through the planning process. This guidance
replaced previous Welsh Office Circulars 60/96, 61/96 and 1/98. The section on
Conservation Areas covers aspects including their designation and review, Conservation
Area Character Appraisals, Planning in Conservation Areas, Conservation Area Consent,
Advertisement Control, Trees, Enforcement and Appeals. Defining the character of each
conservation area and setting out policies for preservation and enhancement through
Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Management Plans, respectively, are seen as
ways of providing a sounder basis for local development plan policies and development
management decisions. It explains that:
‘Local development plan policies and development management decisions which relate to
conservation areas will have a sounder basis and make more positive contributions to longterm aims if the character of each conservation area is defined and policies for its
preservation and enhancement set out in detail’.
4.8
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 12 provides national planning guidance related to
design and is aimed at facilitating good design and sustainability through the planning
system. It sets out the benefits of using Design and Access Statements as communication
tools to outline how the design of the development proposal has been considered from the
outset and how objectives of good design have informed this. With regards to the historic
environment and Conservation Areas, in particular, it explains that there will be a greater
need for direction and advice from the Local Planning Authority on how new development
can be accommodated and change managed in areas of special character.
4.9
Cadw has published a suite of best-practice guidance to support the changes to
historic environment legislation in Wales. The most relevant of these is Managing
Conservation Areas in Wales, which is aimed at ensuring a consistent approach towards
designation, appraisal and management of Conservation Areas. With regards to appraisals,
they are seen as vital tools for positive management of existing areas. It explains their
purpose, the potential for working with local communities, third-sector bodies and
archaeological trusts, recording buildings and other elements, sources of information, and
includes suggestions on content. Other best-practice guidance on related issues include
Managing Historic Character in Wales, Heritage Impact Assessment in Wales and
Setting of Historic Assets in Wales. Cadw also published in 2011 Conservation
Principles for the Sustainable Management of the Historic Environment in Wales
(Conservation Principles).
Cadw’s published Conservation Principles highlights the need to base decisions on
an understanding of the impact a proposal may have on the significance of an historic asset.

4.10

Page 140

4

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Conservation Areas in the Powys LDP area
4.10 4.11
The Powys LDP area has a total of 55 designated Conservation Areas.
These Conservation Areas are identified on the LDP’s Proposals and Inset Maps and can
also be viewed on the following website: https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5860/Conservation-areaboundaries.
The high number of Conservation Areas means that many of Powys’s towns
and large villages are protected for their special, distinct character and architecture. The
special, distinctive character of many of Powys’s towns and large villages is recognised in
the high number of conservation areas in the county. Many of these Conservation Areas are
characterised as having good authentic surviving historic features that contribute significantly
to the distinctive special character of the area. However, some Conservation Areas have
been degraded in character due to widespread small scale inappropriate changes to the
external features of buildings, or larger scale new developments that are out of keeping with
the character of the area.

4.11 4.12

4.12 4.13
The protection afforded to the character of Towns and Villages by the
numerous Conservation Area designations in the Powys LDP area, together with the
importance of protecting and enhancing local distinctiveness through good quality and
sensitively designed development, have been highlighted as key issues for the LDP to
address. The LDP has identified the importance of protecting the character and appearance
of the numerous conservation areas in the county, and the importance of protecting and
enhancing local distinctiveness through good quality and sensitively designed development.
The LDP at para. 4.2.74 of the reasoned justification to policy DM13 sets out the aim to
promote and reinforce local distinctiveness within Powys, particularly within areas
recognised for their landscape, townscape or historic value.
4.13 4.14
It is recognised that in order to meet the LDP’s aims in terms of protecting the
character and appearance of Conservation Areas and respecting Local Distinctiveness, an
improved understanding of how character is assessed and how appropriate forms of
development can be designed is needed. The lack of appraisals makes it difficult to
determine the important characteristics and features of individual conservation areas and
harder to ensure new development respects these characteristics and feature.
4.14 4.15
Conservation Area Character Appraisals have not to-date been undertaken or
progressed in respect of the Conservation Areas of the Powys LDP area. It is anticipated
that Powys County Council, where possible, will work with local communities, through town
and community councils, local civic societies, and local history groups in the production of
appraisals/characterisation studies. Character appraisals may be undertaken by
communities as part of the preparation of a Place Plan Communities are also encouraged to
undertake character area appraisals as part of a Place Plan (see section 12 of the
Residential Design Guide SPG for an explanation of Place Plans). Conservation Area
Character Appraisals will be accompanied by a Conservation Area Management Plan, which
sets out the response to the issues raised by the character appraisal. This will be used to
inform local planning policy and decision-making. The cooperation of local property owners,
businesses and other interest groups will be sought in the preparation and implementation of
Conservation Area Management Plans. In the meantime, the guidance within this SPG is to
be relied upon when assessing character to inform the design of development proposals put
forward through planning and other related applications. In the absence of detailed
appraisals or management plans, this SPG provides generic guidance on the assessment of
character that should accompany any development proposals put forward through planning
and other related applications. The Council’s position on this is explained in para. 4.2.77 of
the LDP, which states that significant weight shall be given to Conservation Area Character

Page 141

5

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Appraisals and Management Plans, however generic guidance is to be used in the absence
of assessments for each individual Conservation Area.
CA1 – Is it clear from the above that the guidance within this SPG is intended to be
used where individual Conservation Area Character Appraisals are not in place? Is
the approach towards carrying out Conservation Area Character Appraisals in
collaboration with local communities supported? If not, please explain why.
The meaning of Conservation Area designation
4.16 The designation of an area as a Conservation Area does not prevent change,
however designation ensures that change is managed in a positive way by enabling change
without harm to the character and appearance of the area. This means that there are
additional planning controls and considerations in place to safeguard the character and
appearance of the area.
Re-number paras below
4.15 4.17
Controls over demolition – Conservation Area Consent is normally required
for the total or substantial demolition of unlisted buildings, including built boundary features
(gates, walls, fences, or railings) in Conservation Areas. There are certain types of
demolition that do not require consent, such as the demolition of a building with a total cubic
content not exceeding 115 cubic metres or the demolition of a built boundary feature of less
than 1 metre in height abutting a highway, waterway or open space, or less than two metres
in height in other cases. A full list of exemptions is set out in the Annex to Cadw’s bestpractice guidance Managing Conservation Areas in Wales. It should be noted that as of
January 2019 ecclesiastical exemption no longer applies to Conservation Area Consent.
4.16 4.18
Permitted development rights - The Town & Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995 as amended sets out certain rights to carry out minor
development without the need to obtain planning permission, referred to as permitted
development rights. However, the designation of a Conservation Area means that planning
permission will automatically be required for certain works to dwellinghouses and buildings in
Conservation Areas. For instance, permission is required to install cladding and external
wall insulation on dwellinghouses within Conservation Areas. Further information on these
rights can be found at https://gov.wales/planning-permission-permitted-development-rightshouseholders.
4.17 4.19
Article 4 Areas – Local Planning Authorities can also place further
restrictions on permitted development rights to provide extra control over certain alterations
by applying an Article 4 Direction to an area. Within the Powys LDP area there are currently
five Article 4 Directions relating to built heritage. Article 4(2) directions apply to Llanidloes,
Knighton, Machynlleth and Presteigne while an Article 4(1) is in force in Llandrindod Wells.
Further information on the meaning of these Article 4 directions, including maps and works
covered by these directions, can be found at –
http://built-heritage.powys.gov.uk/index.php?id=5360&L=0.
4.18 4.20
Planning applications – Where planning permission is required, new
development must be designed to be sensitive to the character and appearance of the area
taking into account the duty for this to be preserved or enhanced. These considerations also
apply to development adjacent to Conservation Areas which may affect their setting and
significant views into and out of the Conservation Area.

Page 142

6

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
4.19 4.21
Advertisements in Conservation Areas – Applications for advertisement
consent within Conservation Areas are required to consider the preservation and
enhancement of the area’s special character. Therefore, design matters such as materials,
lighting, style and colour will be of particular importance.
4.20 4.22
Trees in Conservation Areas – There are special provisions in place to
protect trees in conservation areas which are not subject of Tree Preservation Orders. This
means that works involving cutting down, topping, lopping tree(s) in a Conservation Area
requires six weeks notice to be given to the Local Planning Authority to consider whether the
tree(s) should be protected with a Tree Preservation Order. This requirement does not apply
to trees under a certain size, or those that are proven to be dead, dying, or dangerous. The
LPA is required to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of the area. Further guidance is available at
https://gov.wales/protected-trees-guidance-tree-preservation-orders.

Further information on Conservation Areas in the Powys LDP area
4.21 4.23
The following resources and publications provide information on Conservation
Areas. This list is only intended as an overview of the type of information available in
respect of Conservation Areas in the Powys LDP area. General historical information can be
obtained from a range of other sources, for instance from the Powys Archives, the National
Archives, the National Library of Wales and the People’s Collection for Wales.
Lle website
4.22 4.24
The Lle Geo-Portal has been developed as a partnership between Welsh
Government and Natural Resources Wales. Lle serves as a hub for data and information
covering a wide spectrum of topics, but primarily around the environment. There are two
elements to the website; a catalogue for downloading datasets and a map where
environmental data can be viewed. The site contains a number of WFS and WMS feeds
which can be used to supply data directly into individual GIS systems. The map
http://lle.gov.wales/map#m=-3.159,51.47832,7&b=europa is particularly useful when looking
at how proposals will impact on a range of natural and built heritage designations.
Historic Environment Record (Archwilio)
4.23 4.25
Archwilio provides public access to the historic environment records (HERs)
for each local authority area in Wales. It includes (or provides access to) information on tens
of thousands of historic sites or investigative work across Wales. The HERs are maintained
on behalf of the Welsh Ministers by the four regional Welsh Archaeological Trusts and in
fulfilment of the requirements of the Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016. The Welsh
Government has published statutory guidance on the compilation and use of the HER –
Historic Environment Records in Wales: Compilation and Use.
4.24 4.26
In addition to providing access to the historic environment records, the
website also gives access to information on scheduled ancient monuments, listed buildings,
conservation areas, historic parks and gardens, registered historic landscapes and the
historic landscape layer of LANDMAP. See: Archwilio-the searchable database of the Welsh
Archaeological Trusts. Further guidance on use of the HER will be provided in the Historic
Environment SPG.

Page 143

7

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Coflein and RCAHMW records
4.25 4.27
Coflein is an online database for the National Monuments Record in Wales,
the national collection of information about the historic environment in Wales. It provides
access to an online catalogue of archaeological sites, monuments, buildings and maritime
sites in Wales, together with an index to drawings, manuscripts and photographs held in the
NMRW archive collections. See: https://www.coflein.gov.uk/. Coflein and other resources,
including the List of Historic Place Names, can be accessed through the Royal Commission
on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Wales (RCAHMW) website – see
https://rcahmw.gov.uk/discover/. The RCAHMW also have useful guidance on researching
the history of houses – See https://rcahmw.gov.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/03/Researching-Welsh-House-Histories-LP-Eng.pdf and
https://rcahmw.gov.uk/researching-your-house-history/.
LANDMAP
4.26 4.28
LANDMAP (Landscape Assessment and Decision Making Process) is an allWales landscape resource where landscape characteristics, qualities and influences on the
landscape are recorded, evaluated and collated into a nationally consistent Geographical
Information System based dataset. LANDMAP is intended to help sustainable decision
making and natural resource planning at a range of levels from local to national while
ensuring transparency in the decision-making process. The Historic Landscape and Cultural
Landscape layers of LANDMAP can be referred to in assessing character and in identifying
features that contribute towards and enhance a Conservation Area. Further guidance on
how to use these aspects of LANDMAP for landscape purposes is provided in Section 8 of
the Landscape SPG.
4.27 4.29
The LANDMAP resource can be accessed through the Lle portal (see 4.20
above) and Archwilio (see 4.16 below) or through https://landmapmaps.naturalresources.wales/. Natural Resources Wales have produced step by step
instructions on how to use the resource in https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-andadvice/business-sectors/planning-and-development/evidence-to-inform-developmentplanning/landmap-the-welsh-landscape-baseline/?lang=en.
Powys Built Heritage
4.28 4.30
Powys County Council’s Built Heritage pages include information on the
Conservation Area and history of Llandrindod Wells. See: http://builtheritage.powys.gov.uk/index.php?id=5323&L=0 and http://builtheritage.powys.gov.uk/index.php?id=10833&L=0.
Powys Residential Design Guide Supplementary Planning Guidance.
4.29 4.31
The Supplementary Planning Guidance relating to Residential Design Guide
(that is being consulted upon alongside this SPG) carries forward character appraisals of
each town (referred to as “Area Centres” in the previous Unitary Development Plan) in the
Powys LDP area (apart from Montgomery and Llanwrtyd Wells) from the previous
Residential Design Guide (2004). The appraisals give brief histories of the towns and key
design characteristics which contribute to the building tradition of the town. Specific design
standards for future development are also included for each town, which should normally be
followed unless there is justification for alternative designs. These character appraisals
provide a useful starting point for assessing the character of particular towns and designing

Page 144

8

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
developments within them, however they do not provide the same level of detail as would be
expected of Character Appraisals carried out under the recent Cadw best-practice guidance.
Cadw – Understanding Character
4.30 Cadw has carried out characterisation studies on 15 towns across Wales, which set
out to define local character and inform future change. Whilst no towns in the Powys LDP
area have been studied, they provide useful examples of characterisation studies https://cadw.gov.wales/advice-support/placemaking/historic-character/urban-characterreports#section-aberdare.
4.32 Cadw has published studies on the historic character of 15 towns across Wales.
These studies set out a detailed definition of local character, which can inform the
management of change. Although no towns in the Powys area have been studied, Cadw’s
urban character reports are intended to be exemplars that show how historic character can
be analysed https://cadw.gov.wales/advice-support/placemaking/historic-character/urban-characterreports#section-aberdare.
Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust (CPAT)
4.31 4.33
CPAT has carried out detailed studies of historic settlements across the
region in order to inform planning authorities of each settlement’s history and to identify an
historic core to the medieval settlement. Each survey report contains a description of the
settlement and its location, a recent aerial photograph of the settlement, information on the
history of development of the settlement, its heritage to AD 1750 and a map showing the
historic core of the settlement. See http://www.cpat.org.uk/ycom/intro.htm.
4.32 4.34
CPAT has also been involved in work examining the historic character of
areas defined by the Register of Historic Landscapes in Wales. These studies provide
detailed historical background and a general introduction to the broad elements of character
for settlements included within the registered landscape areas. For descriptions taken from
the Register along with information on historic landscape themes and character areas, see
http://www.cpat.org.uk/projects/longer/histland/histland.htm.
Local History Societies
4.33 4.35
There are three history societies covering the shires of Powys - Powysland
Club (Montgomeryshire), the Radnorshire Society and the Brecknock Society. These
societies have online archives and annual publications – the Montgomeryshire Collection,
Transactions of the Radnorshire Society and Brycheiniog respectively- which can be
accessed via their libraries, websites or Welsh Journals online. There are also Local History
Societies and Groups for various towns and villages across the county.
Newtown and District Civic Society
4.34 4.36
Funding was provided to Newtown District Civic Society through the Heritage
Lottery Fund (HLF) to undertake a characterisation project on the area of the Canal in
Newtown. For further information on the characterisation project and toolkit developed by
the Civic Trust, see https://civictrustwales.wordpress.com/character-and-place/ and
https://civictrustwales.wordpress.com/category/characterisation/. Since the end of the HLFfunded project the group have continued to survey areas of Newtown and has recently
published a book Explore Newtown: The Historic Town Centre (October 2018) the first of a
planned series of publications looking at the streets and buildings of Newtown.

Page 145

9

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
4.35 4.37 A Place Plan is in the process of being prepared for the Newtown and
Llanllwchaiarn Town Council area, which is intended to include information on the character
of the town and local design matters. The Place Plan is intended to be adopted by Powys
County Council as Supplementary Planning Guidance and therefore will be taken into
account as a material consideration in determining planning applications.
Machynlleth and District Civic Society
4.36 4.38
The Society’s website provides an overview of the town and district’s history
and its built environment, along with useful links to other sources of information relating to
Machynlleth. See: www.rogerwhit.plus.com/civic/start.html.
Buildings of Wales: Powys – Montgomeryshire, Radnorshire and Breconshire by R
Scourfield and R Haslam (2013)
4.39 The Powys volume is part of a series of publications of the Buildings of Wales, which
looks at the historic counties of Montgomeryshire, Radnorshire and Breconshire. The book
provides a summary of the history and character of the county’s towns and covers a range of
buildings. Applicants should also refer to other local history books that may be available
relating to specific towns and villages.
CA2 – Is the above summary of information sources relating to Conservation Areas
useful? If not, please explain why. Are there any further information sources that
should be referenced here? If yes, please provide details.

Page 146

10

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
5.

Local Planning Policy relating to Conservation Areas

5.1
The Powys LDP aims to provide sustainable development whilst protecting and
enhancing the heritage and distinctive characteristics of the LDP area. It ensures support for
important assets and the guardianship of built and historic assets. The aims of the LDP in
respect of the historic environment are set out in Objective 13:
LDP objective 13 – Landscape and the Historic Environment
…
ii. The Historic Environment
To protect, preserve and/or enhance the distinctive historic environment, heritage and
cultural assets of Powys, in particular local assets that are not statutorily protected or
designated under national legislation, and to ensure that development respects local
distinctiveness.

5.2
The LDP contains strategic and development management policies relating to
Conservation Areas in Powys. Each of the policies in the LDP is supported by a reasoned
justification that contains an explanation behind the policy, provides guidance, and or
expands on the purpose of the policy or its aims. The reasoned justification to each of the
policies listed below has not been repeated in full in this guidance; users should refer to the
LDP where the reasoned justification should be considered alongside the policy to inform the
development proposal.
5.3
Policy SP7 is a strategic policy that identifies strategically important resources and
assets of the Powys LDP area that are to be safeguarded. Conservation Areas, together
with their settings, are identified within the list of historic environment designations. Para.
3.40 of the reasoned justification to this policy states that ‘only development proposals that
will not have an unacceptable impact on the asset / resource and the purposes for which it is
safeguarded should be permitted’.
Strategic Policy SP7 – Safeguarding of Strategic Resources and Assets
To safeguard strategic resources and assets in the County, development proposals
must not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the resource of asset and its
operation.
The following have been identified as strategic resources and assets in Powys:
…
2. Historic environment designations, including;
i) Registered Historic Landscapes;
ii) Registered Historic Parks and Gardens;
iii) Scheduled Ancient Monuments and other archaeological remains;
v) Conservation Areas
AND the setting of designations i), ii), iii), iv) and v).
….

Page 147

11

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
5.4
LDP Policy DM13 is a development management policy that sets out criteria relating
to design, character, local distinctiveness, along with other aspects of design and resources.
It includes a specific criterion to be applied to development within or affecting the setting of,
or significant views into and out of, Conservation Areas:
Policy DM13 – Design and Resources
Development proposals must be able to demonstrate a good quality design and shall
have regard to the qualities and amenity of the surrounding area, local infrastructure
and resources.
Proposals will only be permitted where all of the following criteria, where relevant, are
satisfied:
1.
Development has been designed to complement and/or enhance the character
of the surrounding area in terms of siting, appearance, integration, scale, height,
massing, and design detailing.
2.
The development contributes towards the preservation of local distinctiveness
and sense of place.
3.
Any development within or affecting the setting and/or significant views into
and out of a Conservation Area has been designed in accordance with any relevant
adopted Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Conservation Area Management
Plans, or any other relevant detailed assessment or guidance adopted by the Council.
….
5.5
Para. 4.2.77 of the reasoned justification to this Policy DM13 states that
‘developments within Conservation Areas are to be judged on their effect on the character
and appearance of the area, in line with national policy’. Para. 4.2.74 states that ‘proposals
will be expected to be designed to respect and enhance the local distinctiveness of the area,
particularly within areas recognised for their landscape, townscape or historic value, and
areas where there is an established and distinctive design character’.
5.5 5.6 The generic guidance contained within this SPG is to be used as relevant guidance
adopted by the Council, as referred to in criterion 3 above, and, therefore, proposals are
required to be designed in accordance with this guidance. In the event that individual
Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Conservation Area Management Plans are
undertaken in the future in respect of individual Conservation Areas, regard will also be
given to these assessments, particularly where these documents have been formally
adopted as Supplementary Planning Guidance by the Council.
5.7
Para. 4.2.78 of the LDP states that ‘regard should also be given to the information
held on the Historic Environment Record (HER) in order to identify local features or areas
that may be affected by proposals’.

5.6 5.8
Further information on historic environment designations, including a
list of Conservation Areas, along with website links to maps, legislation, policy and
guidance relating to Conservation Areas and Setting, are contained within Appendix
6 of the LDP. Definitions of Conservation Areas and associated terms are included
in the Glossary in Appendix 5 of the LDP.

Page 148

12

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
6. Implementation of Conservation Area Policy
6.1
All development proposals need to be designed to complement and enhance the
character of the surrounding area and to contribute towards the preservation of local
distinctiveness and sense of place, in accordance with policy DM13 1) and 2). For
development within or affecting Conservation Areas, matters of local distinctiveness,
character and appearance are of particular importance given that these areas have been
designated as valued areas in respect of these matters. These matters are also relevant to
applications for advertisement consent and notification of works to trees or hedgerows in
Conservation Areas.
6.2
Proposals must avoid any unacceptable adverse effects on Conservation Areas, their
settings, and significant views in and out of Conservation Areas, and be in compliance with
relevant guidance adopted by the Council, in order to comply with Policies SP7 and DM13
(3). This section provides an overview of how these policies are to be implemented. It sets
out the process involved for those planning a new development to assist them in preparing
schemes for submission. This includes an explanation of the requirements in respect of
Design and Access Statements (DAS) and Heritage Impact Statements (HIS).
6.3
For major developments and also certain minor developments within Conservation
Areas, consideration will need to be given to the need for a Design and Access Statement
or, in case of applications for Conservation Area Consent or Listed Building Consent, for a
Heritage Impact Statement, to be prepared as part of the process, as required by
legislation. Reference should be made to the table in Appendix 1, which sets out the
requirements for Design and Access Statements (DAS) and Heritage Impact Statement
(HIS) depending on the type of development and application type.
6.4
For developments not requiring a HIS or DAS, it is good practice for issues of design
and access to be addressed and summarised in a Planning Statement, which will also
assist pre-application discussions and consultation. HIS, DAS and Planning Statements are
all expected to include an element of character appraisal (see stage 2).
Re-number
6.3 6.5 The guidance here is applicable to all proposals in or affecting Conservation Areas,
but generally focuses on new development in or affecting Conservation Areas requiring
planning permission and demolition requiring Conservation Area Consent. Appendix 2 sets
out more specific key issues to consider for certain types of proposals, including those
involving trees and advertisements.
6.4 6.6 Figure 1 identifies the key stages which should be followed for all developments in or
affecting Conservation Areas to demonstrate compliance with LDP Policies SP7 and DM13.
It is generally based around elements of the Design and Access Statement with a particular
emphasis on the need to demonstrate the steps taken to appraise the context and how the
design takes that context into account. It also incorporates aspects of the Heritage Impact
Assessment (HIA) process.

Page 149

13

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Figure 1 - Key Stages to follow for proposals in or affecting Conservation Areas
Stage 1 Determining the Proposal Explaining Objectives
Summarising and describing the proposed development identifying main features.
Contact the Council for Pre-Planning Application Advice. Determine whether a DAS/HIS
is required. Consider purpose of the work and possible options.
Stage 2 Character Appraisal
Assessing the character of the area involving site and context analysis (see Section 7) in
order to identify important characteristics and features
Stage 3 Designing and Assessing Development
Designing and assessing the impact of the proposal to reach a preferred design,
including consideration of development options
Stage 4 Submitting the Proposal
Submitting your application and supporting documents: Design and Access Statement;
Heritage Impact Statement; Planning Statement.
CA3 – Do you agree with the key stages that are to be followed for proposals in or
affecting Conservation Areas? If not, please explain why.

Stage 1 Determining the Proposal Explaining Objectives
6.5 6.7 In order to ensure that the proposed development is responsive to the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area, consideration must be given to the siting and design
and how it fits with its surroundings from the outset. In the first instance, applicants should
put together a summary of the proposal involving a description of the proposed development
identifying the main features, such as location, type, uses, scale and size. This should be
accompanied by a preliminary plan or sketch of the site and surrounding context. This is the
stage where the Council should be contacted for pre-planning application advice.
6.8
It is at this early stage that consideration should be given to the purpose of the work,
taking into account the brief and vision for the project, and to the different possible options
for achieving the same objective. This principle applies to all proposals, but is particularly
relevant for applications for demolition in Conservation Areas that require a HIS and are
required to demonstrate why the works are desirable or necessary, and to consider
alternatives. The vision for the site will evolve throughout the process and will be informed
through an understanding of the site and context (see next stage).
6.6
For major developments and also certain minor developments within Conservation
Areas, consideration will need to be given to the need for a Design and Access Statement
or, in case of applications for Conservation Area Consent or Listed Building Consent, for a
Heritage Impact Statement, to be prepared as part of the process, as required by
legislation. Reference should be made to the table in Appendix 1 which sets out the
requirements for Design and Access Statements (DAS) and Heritage Impact Statement
(HIS) depending on the type of development and application type.

Page 150

14

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
6.7
For developments not requiring a HIS or DAS, it is good practice for issues of design
and access to be addressed and summarised in a Planning Statement, which will also
assist pre-application discussions and consultation.
6.8
It is at this early stage that consideration should be given to the purpose of the work,
taking into account the brief and vision for the project, and to the different possible options
for achieving the same objective. This principle applies to all proposals, but is particularly
relevant for applications for demolition in Conservation Areas that require a HIS and are
required to demonstrate why the works are desirable or necessary, and to consider
alternatives. The vision for the site will evolve throughout the process and will be informed
through an understanding of the site and context (see next stage).
CA4 – Is it clear from the guidance here and in Appendix 1 when HIS, DAS or Planning
Statements are required? If not, please explain why.

Stage 2 Character Appraisal
6.9
In order to ensure that the proposal preserves and/or enhances the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area, an understanding is, firstly, needed of the existing
characteristics and features that contribute towards the special interest of the area. This
involves carrying out a Character Appraisal of the historic context of the site. This is an
important part of understanding significance and is the equivalent to the Statement of
Significance referred to in Cadw’s Heritage Impact Assessment guidance. A Character
Appraisal involves carrying out a site and context analysis in order to identify the historic
and architectural characteristics and features that are important to the special character of
the area. This analysis should focus not only on buildings, but also the spaces in between
buildings, both public and private spaces.
6.10 Background research is necessary to obtain an understanding of the development of
the site which is the subject of the development proposal. It should be used to inform the
site and context analysis and can include researching documentation available in respect of
the area concerned, using modern day and historical OS maps, estate maps, tithe maps,
aerial photographs, old photographs, old postcards, newspapers and other local studies or
resources (see Section 4 above). Where Conservation Area Character Appraisals or local
characterisation studies have been carried out in respect of an area, these will provide an
important resource for assessing local character. Character appraisals may also have been
undertaken as part of preparing Place Plans, which will identify locally distinctive key
characteristics, therefore any relevant Place Plan should also be referred to. The area
centre character appraisals accompanying the Residential Design Guide SPG also provide
information that is useful as a starting point for assessing the character of certain towns.
6.11 A site and context analysis involves carrying out a visual survey of the site and
surrounding area, annotating maps to record observations, taking photographs to record
buildings and features, and noting views of and from the building/site. The geographical
extent of the survey will depend on the nature, scale and location of the development
proposal. For instance, proposed alterations to the front of a terraced property would need
to take account of the character of the whole terrace as a group, whereas a new dwelling on
an infill plot within an area of detached dwellings may only need to take into account the
character of dwellings to either side and those opposite. The survey will normally focus on
the immediate surroundings from where the development will be visible at street level. For

Page 151

15

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
major development, or development in particularly prominent or elevated locations, it is likely
that the survey will need to take into account the character of the wider townscape.
6.12 This analysis also involves making a judgement on the value and importance of the
characteristics and features identified in order to decide which of these should be accounted
for in the Character Appraisal. This judgement should be based on the perception of the
contribution they make towards the character and appearance of the area. For instance, this
can be determined by considering the architectural quality, prevalence or rarity of features
and/or materials. References to buildings or other features in the sources used for the
background research will also provide an indication of their value and assist in evaluating
their importance. Reference should also be made to CADW’s Cadw’s Conservation
Principles and specifically to the four heritage values (evidential, historical, aesthetic,
communal) that are used to assess the significance of an historic asset. Applications
requiring a HIS will need to consider what is significant about the Conservation Area as a
whole and the part that will be affected by the proposal as part of their statement of
significance.
6.13 The process of Character Appraisal involving background research and site visits,
and describing the site and its context, provides a sound basis for developing a design that
is responsive to the character and appearance of its surroundings and to the special interest
of the Conservation Area. The HIS / DAS / Planning Statement should clearly summarise the
important features and characteristics of the site and the area, and how the planning
proposal has responded to them. The Statement should comprise of a brief summary of the
character and special interest of the Conservation Area (point 1 below) followed by the site
specific elements taking into account the immediate context of the site (points 2-12 below).
Specific considerations in relation to Conservation Areas include:
1. The special architectural and historic interest of the Conservation Area based on a
summary of its historic characteristics, features and their values.
2. Historical development of the area, origins, periods of development, former uses and
activities, and historical or cultural associations.
3. Physical features and context of the site – existing buildings and structures, boundary
features, surfacing, topography, townscape/landscape character and setting.
4. Physical layout of buildings and spaces in the area - building lines, boundaries, routes,
connections, street patterns, spaces in between buildings, open and green spaces.
5. Architectural character of buildings on site and in the area, their scale, materials,
finishes, colour, windows, doors, roof shapes, architectural details.
6. Designated historic assets in the surrounding area i.e. listed buildings, scheduled
monuments, registered historic parks, gardens and landscapes, and their settings, and
other non-designated historic assets that contribute positively to local historic
character.
7. The contribution of not only individual buildings, but also groups of buildings.
8. Distinctive views into and out of the site, skylines, vistas and panoramas.
9. Locally distinctive features and traditions (vernacular elements).
10. Natural features of the site and surrounding area, including trees, hedgerows and
waterways.
11. Potential for archaeological remains and evidence of surviving above and below ground
structures, particularly within the historic core.
12. Opportunities for enhancement of existing buildings and sites.

Page 152

16

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
(See Section 7 for points to consider in respect of the different aspects of historic character
set out above).
6.14 For major development and certain minor development requiring DAS or HIS, this
information should be included within the Statement as part of the site and context analysis
and understanding significance, respectively. For small developments, such as householder
development and other minor development not requiring a DAS or HIS, this information can
be recorded on the site layout plan and in the Planning Statement. Section 7 provides
further practical information on carrying out a site and context analysis to identify important
characteristics and features of the site and area. For guidance on wider aspects of site and
context analysis see Welsh Government guidance Planning developments: site and
context analysis guide.
CA5 – Does the list above reflect the key considerations that apply in Conservation
Areas? If not, please explain why.
Stage 3 Designing and Assessing Development
Designing proposed changes
6.15 Once the important features and characteristics of the site and area have been
identified through the Character Appraisal process, consideration can then be given to how
(or if) the development proposal can be sited and designed so that it is appropriate and
sensitive to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. In order for planning
applications to be approved, development proposals will need to demonstrate that they can
be sited and designed in a way that preserves and/or enhances the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area. Preservation can be achieved by either development
that makes a positive contribution to an area’s character or appearance, or by development
that leaves character and appearance unharmed.
6.16 The siting and design of the proposal should respond to the historic characteristics
and features, and special interest of the area, as identified as part of the Character Appraisal
(site and context analysis informed by site visit and background research) carried out under
Stage 2. The layout, form, scale, proportions, materials and visual appearance of the
proposal and relationship to its surroundings, are particularly important. Proposals are
expected to respond to the general character of the area in respect of these important
issues, rather than focusing on replicating architectural detailing. Factors that may assist
with designing an appropriate development within a Conservation Area, may include (but are
not limited to):






Retaining existing buildings identified as positively contributing towards the character
and appearance of the area by re-using the buildings and enhancing their character and
appearance.
Removing buildings that have a negative impact on the character and appearance of the
area and their replacement with sensitively designed development.
Respecting the form and layout of existing development, for instance in the height and
orientation of buildings.
Using traditional materials appropriate to the area and, where possible, from local
sources.

Page 153

17

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019









Repairing original windows and doors, where possible, and where replacement is
needed, installing windows and doors made using traditional materials, finishes,
proportions and glazing patterns.
Retaining important architectural features of buildings, such as chimneys.
Retaining important trees and/or hedgerows that contribute to the character of the area.
Avoiding introducing new features that are not a feature of the area, such as closeboarded fencing.
Avoiding development of spaces between buildings where these spaces positively
contribute to the character and appearance of the area.
Designing new contemporary buildings that are both sensitive and innovative that pay
particular attention to local building materials, methods, proportions and layout.
Avoiding damage to the fabric of the building or to archaeological evidence.

6.17 All proposals should provide a clearly set out understanding of the site and its context
within the Conservation Area and how the development proposal has been planned and
designed to address the issues (Section 6.13 outlines the range of considerations). For
further considerations in designing appropriate forms of development, Appendix 2 sets out
key issues in relation to specific types of development.
Assessing the impact of proposals
6.18 Once the development has been planned with regards to its context, an assessment
should be carried out of the potential impact of the proposal on the character, appearance
and special interest of the area. The assessment should be proportionate to the scale of
development and use the information gathered for the purpose of the Character Appraisal at
stage 2. All development proposals will be required to be assessed to determine whether
they are likely to have an unacceptable adverse effect on the character, appearance and
special interest of the area. Information on the level of assessment required, and particular
information requirements, depending on national requirements, are set out below.
6.19 The assessment will inform decisions as to whether the siting and design needs to be
reviewed and the proposal amended. Where the assessment concludes that the
development will have an adverse effect, then consideration should be given to the ways in
which the impact could be mitigated and how the impact will be balanced against any
benefits, including the potential for enhancements, to make the development acceptable.
This may lead to the need for the development proposal to be re-sited or re-designed. Not
doing so may result in the planning application being refused. Where mitigation measures
are used or the development proposal has had to revisit the siting and design stage, this
should be documented in the HIS/DAS/Planning Statement.
6.20 As part of this assessment, consideration should be given to different siting and
design options and the HIS/DAS/Planning Statement should explain:
 how consideration of these options has been informed by an understanding of the
impact of the proposals on the special character of the area.
 why the preferred approach has been chosen.
 how it contributes to the preservation or enhancement of the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area.
For example, in the case of demolition of a building within a Conservation Area, it will be
necessary to consider the contribution of the building to be demolished to the character or

Page 154

18

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
appearance of the Conservation Area, the impact of the demolition on the area, and to
consider other options other than demolition, together with the reasoning for the demolition.
6.21 The Statement should also include a brief explanation of how the approach to design
and access takes account of national guidance referred to in Section 4 of this guidance.
CA6 – Do you agree that the above factors are important when designing an
appropriate development in Conservation Areas? Do you agree with the key
considerations for specific types of development set out in Appendix 2? If not, please
explain why.

Assessment for Development Requiring Heritage Impact Assessment
6.22 The Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016 requires certain applications (Listed
Building Consent and Conservation Area Consent) to be accompanied by a Heritage Impact
Statement (HIS). This aims to ensure that the significance of the historic asset is taken into
account when developing and designing proposals. The HIS is informed by the process of
undertaking a Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA), which is aimed at assisting with the
design of appropriate development by assessing the impact on significance.
6.23 In the context of this guidance, the need for a HIA will arise in connection with
applications to demolish existing buildings, gates, walls, railings or fences in Conservation
Areas (see further information in para. 4.14). HIA is also required in connection with all
applications for listed building consent, whether or not the listed buildings are located within
a Conservation Area.
6.24 There is a general presumption in favour of retaining buildings or features that make
a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the area. Where a building or
feature is judged to make a positive contribution, proposals to demolish or replace the
building or feature will be assessed against the same broad criteria as apply to demolition of
listed buildings. This means that consideration will need to be given to various factors,
including the condition of the building, efforts made to keep the building in use or secure a
new use, and the merits of alternative proposals for the site (see para. 5.15 of TAN24).
Proposals are also assessed in terms of their impact on the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area. Where a building makes little or no contribution, demolition can proceed
is likely to be permitted providing that there are acceptable proposals in place to redevelop
the site or replace the structure (see Appendix 2 for more specific considerations relating to
demolition in Conservation Areas).
6.25 For applications involving demolition, the HIS must cover the plans for replacement
of the building/feature or redevelopment of the site. The planning application for
replacement/redevelopment will need to be submitted and determined concurrently with the
application for Conservation Area Consent in order that the acceptability of plans for the site
can be considered alongside the plans for demolition. Without the required details within the
HIS and accompanying planning application, the application for demolition may be deemed
inappropriate and premature and may be refused on grounds of insufficient information.
6.26 It is normal for conditions to be attached to planning permissions to ensure that
demolition does not take place until a contract for carrying out the
redevelopment/replacement work has been made (see Appendix 3 for a set of standard
conditions). This is to ensure that the site is not left vacant or in an untidy condition whilst

Page 155

19

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
awaiting redevelopment, which would also undermine the case made for demolition and
redevelopment of the site.
6.27 The process involved in assessing demolition proposals in Conservation Areas is
illustrated in Figure 7 (Section 8). Where the proposal involves demolition of a listed
building, consultation responses from the amenity bodies (as listed in part of Appendix 4 of
this guidance) and from the Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of
Wales will be taken into account by the LPA.
Form and Scope of the Heritage Impact Assessment
6.28 The HIA may take the form of a short or long assessment depending on the scale of
the change proposed and/or significance of the asset in question. However, sufficient
information is required in order that the significance of the asset and the impact of the
change can be understood. In accordance with CADW best-practice guidance, the HIA must
follow certain stages involving explaining, understanding, identifying, assessing and
reasoning in respect of proposed changes. The HIS must explain why demolition is
desirable and necessary at the outset, and a description and schedule of proposed works
must be included in the HIS. The beneficial and harmful impacts of the development must
be assessed.
6.29 As part of the detail and justification for a proposal, it may be necessary to carry out
further investigations and provide further information, such as an archaeological evaluation,
a structural survey, ecological survey, environmental performance, method statements,
protection measures, marketing efforts, to support the case being made for the loss of a
building or feature. Statements made within the HIA must be supported by evidence and
accompanied by fully reasoned justification.
6.30 Depending on the complexity of the proposal, there may be a need to engage a
person who is qualified and competent to conduct a HIA and to write the HIS, such as an
historic buildings surveyor, conservation architect or archaeologist (depending on the nature
of the assets being assessed). It is likely to be more difficult for applicants to design and
justify a proposal, and to ensure sufficient information is submitted, without the involvement
of these expertise. Professional historic environment specialists can be found through the
Institute for Historic Building Conservation - https://www.ihbc.org.uk/hespr/#services –
and professionals archaeologists can be found through the Chartered Institute for
Archaeologists - https://www.archaeologists.net/regulation/organisations.
6.31 The scope of HIA for a particular proposal should be discussed with the Local
Planning Authority in consultation with the Built Heritage Conservation Officer at the preapplication stage. It should be noted that the HIA is required to be made publically available
at pre-application consultation stage in connection with major developments. Further
detailed guidance on the HIA process is provided in Cadw best practice guidance – Heritage
Impact Assessment in Wales.
6.32 A summary of the type of information to be included that applicants may wish to
consider including in the their HIS is provided in Figure 2 below. It is also useful to consider
including this information when preparing the design development section of a DAS or
Planning Statement. It should be noted that the considerations listed may not all be relevant
to all cases. Where the HIS is lengthy or relates to a complex case, it is advisable to
provide a non-technical summary.

Page 156

20

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Figure 2 – Summary of the type of information to include consider including in the
Heritage Impact Statement
 Details of the heritage asset(s) affected by the proposal i.e. the Conservation
Area, including setting of and significant views into and out of the
Conservation Area, and other affected assets i.e. listed buildings.
 Information about the Conservation Area and parts affected by the proposal
(using the resources set out in Section 4 of this guidance).
 An assessment of what makes the Conservation Area, and the parts affected
by the proposal, significant, based on it’s historical, built heritage and
archaeological importance, including consideration of the contribution that the
setting makes to this significance. Referred to as a Statement of Significance
and based on the character appraisal undertaken at stage 2.
 Explanation of the methodology used for the assessment of significance and
desk and site-based analysis, including sources of information and guidance
referred to.
 A description of the contribution that the building or feature proposed for
demolition makes to the character and appearance of the area.
 A detailed description of the area focusing on the parts of the area most
affected by the proposal, along with an explanation of how the part of the area
affected relates to the Conservation Area as a whole.
 Photographs to illustrate the part of the area and views affected by the
proposal.
 Maps showing the site in relation to the Conservation Area and the location of
other designated historic assets within the survey area.
 Historic photographs, plans and maps to illustrate the development of the area.
 A description of the proposal, including design principles and concepts, and
schedule of works.
 Justification for the proposal setting out the purpose of the proposal and why
it is desirable and necessary.
 A summary of the options considered and reasons for the preferred approach.
 An assessment of the impact of the proposal on the identified significance of
the area, including potential benefits and any harm.
 Mitigation proposals illustrating how any potential harm is to be reduced.
 Reference to national and local planning policy and an explanation of how the
proposals comply with the policy.
 Details and results of the consultation process carried out at the preapplication stage.
 Other supporting information, such as plans of the redevelopment of the site
or replacement of the feature, archaeological assessment or evaluation,
structural survey, environmental performance survey, method statements,
protection measures, zone of theoretical visibility and photomontages.
CA7 – Do you agree with the above summary of information that should be included
in a HIS? If not, please explain why.

Page 157

21

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Assessment for Development requiring DAS
6.33 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Wales)
Order 2016 requires applications for certain types of development to be accompanied by a
Design and Access Statement (DAS). This includes all major development, and in respect of
development in Conservation Areas, developments for one or more dwellings or for provision
of buildings with floorspace of 100 square metres or more.
6.34 Where development in a Conservation Area is involved, the DAS must cover the
standard aspects expected of a DAS, but it must also address how the proposal relates to its
particular special context. Therefore, the DAS must consider the special architectural and
historic character of the Conservation Area. A DAS is required to demonstrate the steps
taken to appraise the context of the development and how the design of the development
takes the context into account. This involves undertaking a character appraisal as expected
in paragraph 6.13. The process and outcome of the stages explained in this guidance can
be included in the design development section of the DAS.
6.35 Where both HIA and DAS is required, for instance for an application involving
demolition and major redevelopment of a site in a Conservation Area, the requirements
should be discussed and agreed with the LPA in consultation with the Built Heritage
Conservation Officer at the pre-application stage with the view of avoiding duplication.
6.36 Further detailed guidance on Design and Access Statements is found in the Welsh
Government/Design Commission for Wales document Design and Access Statements in
Wales: Why, What and How.
Assessment for development not requiring HIS or DAS
6.37 All other applications within or affecting a Conservation Area do not technically
require a HIS or DAS. However, the Local Planning Authority is able to request further
information where the proposed development is likely to have an impact on a designated
historic asset or on design to assist with determining the application under the design
policies of the development plan. This may, in some instances, involve the need for a HIS or
further design information similar to that expected of a DAS.
6.38 Whilst the LPA does not expect HIA or DAS to be carried out routinely for all
developments in or affecting Conservation Areas, it is likely to request such information in
cases where the location of a proposal is particularly sensitive or where there are concerns
over the proposed design of a development. Further heritage impact and design information
may also be requested where a development adjoining the Conservation Area affects the
setting or significant views into and out of a Conservation Area (see paras. 6.41-6.42 6.436.44 below).
6.39 The request for a HIS or for further design information, in these circumstances,
should be viewed as an opportunity to fully explain the thought process behind the design of
the proposal before a decision is made on the application. The Local Planning Authority will
use this explanation to inform their assessment of the impact of the proposal on the
significance of the historic asset. HIA and design information can also be used, in these
circumstances, to identify changes or improvements to the proposals that may alleviate
concerns.
Planning Statements
6.40 This guidance encourages the use of Planning Statements to set out how proposals
in or affecting Conservations Areas have been considered, designed and assessed in light of

Page 158

22

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
the duty to preserve and enhance the character an appearance of Conservation Areas. This
informal assessment should involve a basic character appraisal identifying the
characteristics and features of the building and the surrounding buildings within view of the
site that would be impacted on by the proposal. Where proposals would lead to the removal
of features or alteration of the character of the area, consideration should be given to how
the development could be mitigated, re-sited or re-designed to avoid negative impacts.
Where negative impacts are unavoidable, the justification for the proposal and the potential
benefits should be clearly set out.
6.41 The Planning Statement should summarise the impacts identified through the
informal assessment process and how these impacts have been addressed. The level of
detail included within the Planning Statement should be proportionate to the nature and
scale of the development. This means that a development involving alterations to a single
feature or a feature that is not of particular importance is likely to require a shorter statement
than a development involving large scale or multiple alterations to features of importance.
6.42 The design of all proposals in or affecting Conservation Areas should be informed by
a Character Appraisal of the historic context of the site. By following the process and
principles set out in this guidance, this will assist applicants to design appropriate proposals
and the LPA to make informed planning decisions. Information requirements should be
established and agreed in consultation with the Built Heritage Conservation Officer at the
pre-application stage.
CA8 – Do you agree with the circumstances where additional information may be
required? If not, please explain why.

Assessing developments affecting the setting or significant views into and out of
Conservation Areas
6.41 6.43
The impact of development located outside the boundaries of but adjacent to
Conservation Areas needs to be assessed in terms of how it impacts on the setting of the
Conservation Area or on any significant views into and out of the Conservation Area. This
assessment relies on an understanding of the setting and the contribution that it makes to
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. Where developments affect views
to and from the Conservation Area, the significance of these views in terms of how they are
associated with the historical development of Conservation Areas or modern-day viewpoints
of the Conservation Area will need to be determined.
6.42 6.44
A HIA is likely to be required for proposals that are particularly large or
complex, or in particularly sensitive locations, adjacent to or visible from Conservation Areas.
Further information, such as Zones of Theoretical Visibility and photomontages, are likely to
be requested for developments that are likely to impact on matters of setting and significant
views. For further guidance on assessing these types of proposals, please refer to CADW’s
Cadw’s best-practice guidance Setting of Historic Assets in Wales.
Stage 4 Submitting proposal
6.43 6.45
Following stages 1, 2 and 3, above, the application will be ready for
submission to the Local Planning Authority. In addition to the standard validation
requirements (https://gweddill.gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/170505section-7-annex-

Page 159

23

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
planning-applications-lists-of-validation-requirements-en.pdf), applications in or affecting
Conservation Areas will need to be accompanied by the following:















For all applications within or affecting Conservation Areas, evidence of how the
development preserves and/or enhances the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area (either as part of the HIS, DAS or Planning Statement).
For applications for Conservation Area Consent or Listed Building Consent, a
Heritage Impact Statement based on the Heritage Impact Assessment carried out
under stage 3. This may also be requested by the Authority in other instances as
part of the consideration of the application.
Detailed plans of the proposal and features, for example for listed building
applications and applications in Article 4 areas, sectional drawings of windows
showing glazing bars and trickle vents to scale 1:10 or 1:20 will be required. In other
cases, details may be subject to approval through planning conditions.
For applications for Conservation Area Consent involving demolition, a schedule of
works for demolition, and where partial demolition is involved, drawings showing the
extent of demolition.
Where the proposed demolition also involves redevelopment of the site/replacement
of the feature, an application for planning permission for the proposed
redevelopment/replacement must also be submitted.
Other supporting information e.g. archaeological assessment or evaluation, structural
survey, environmental performance survey, method statements, protection
measures, zone of theoretical visibility, photomontages, etc.
Where the proposal affects the setting of a Conservation Area, sufficient information
is required to assess the impact of the development on the setting.
The Built Heritage Conservation Officer will advise on any additional information
requirements at the pre-application stage.

6.44 6.46
Where applications are not accompanied by sufficient information to
determine the acceptability of the development against the adopted planning policies and
guidance, including situations where the HIS or DAS is not considered to be sufficient,
planning permission may be refused.
6.45 6.47
Applications that fail to demonstrate that the impact on the character and
appearance of, or setting of or significant views into and out of, the Conservation Area, is
acceptable may be refused under policies SP7 and DM13, and also in line with national
policy and guidance and the guidance contained within this SPG. This means that any
identified adverse impacts that cannot be satisfactorily addressed through mitigation, or are
not outweighed by other issues, will be deemed unacceptable and planning permission may
be refused.
6.46 6.48
Process charts are provided in Section 8 of this guidance illustrating the
process involved in planning and assessing a development proposal in or affecting a
Conservation Area (Figure 6) and the process involved in making decisions on proposals for
demolition in Conservation Areas (Figure 7). Appendix 3 of this guidance sets out standard
conditions to be considered for attaching to planning permissions involving proposals in
Conservation Areas.
CA9 – Do you agree with the information requirements for planning submissions and
the processes illustrated in the charts in Section 8? If not, please explain why.

Page 160

24

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
7.

How to undertake a site and context analysis

7.1
This section provides guidance designed to help you carry out a site and context
analysis in a structured way to identify the important historic characteristics and features that
need to be taken into account when designing a new development. This can be used to
demonstrate how the historic character of the site and its context has been appraised as part
of either the HIA, DAS or Planning Statement accompanying a planning or other related
application. This will help with communicating the ways in which the design has taken into
account the site and its context.
7.2
The site and context analysis process involves carrying out background research on
the historic context of the area before visiting the site and area to carry out a visual survey.
Research notes and site observations are then collated and used to inform the development
proposal and to prepare the HIS/DAS/Planning Statement.
7.3
Figure 3 below provides examples of resources that can be used to carry out the site
and context analysis. This should be read in conjunction with the guidance in Section 4 of
this SPG (starting at para. 4.21) on information sources, which covers a range of possible
sources that can be used to research the history and character of the local area.
NOTE: The images used in Figure 3 are for illustrative purposes only and provide examples
only. They do not reflect a particular development.
7.4
This is followed by Figure 4, which sets out points to consider in dealing with the
different aspects of historic character.
NOTE: The list in Figure 4 is not exhaustive and provides examples only (in italic) of features
to look out for within both background historical documentation and when visiting the site
and area. Reference in this list to particular features does not automatically mean that these
features are important as this depends on the particular historic context of the area.
Likewise, features noted on-site that are not included here are not necessarily of no or less
importance and, as such, should not be disregarded in carrying out the site and context
analysis where they are considered important.
7.5
Finally, Figure 5 provides a set of questions designed to assist with collating and
summarising information gathered from the site context and analysis (stage 2 Character
Appraisal) ready for preparing the HIS, DAS or Planning Statement. It is useful to think
about the reasoning behind the answers to the question as this will help with explaining the
significance of the asset and how the impact of the proposal on this significance has been
assessed. Reference should also be made to the CADW Cadw best-practice guidance
Heritage Impact Assessment in Wales on matters of content and assessment.

CA10 – Is the guidance provided here and in figures 3, 4 and 5 on how to undertake
site and context analysis useful? If not, please explain why.

Page 161

25

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Figure 3

Resources for site and context analysis
Using a map of the Conservation Area
provides a useful starting point to site
and context analysis. Maps of all 55
Conservation Areas in the Powys LDP
area are available from https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5860/Con
servation-area-boundaries. This
enables the location of the site to be
viewed within the context of the
Conservation Area and clarifies the
boundary of the Conservation Area.
Maps are particularly useful for showing
the relationship between the site and its
context and for looking at matters, such
as layout and setting.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance
Survey 100025371

The map can be focused in on the site of the
development and its immediate surroundings.
This version of the map can then be used onsite for annotating with notes of various
landmarks, such as:




© Crown copyright and database rights 2019
Ordnance Survey 100025371





Listed buildings and other buildings or
features of local historic interest.
Building lines and boundaries.
Routes – vehicular and pedestrian.
Views within the area and outwards,
including panoramas, noting the length and
breadth of views.
Important trees, hedgerows, walls, fencing.
Open spaces, both public and private.
Topography of the area.

By referring to historic maps (e.g. this map of
1898) this provides an understanding of the
historical background of the area and how it has
developed through time. This helps to identify
features and form that remain from earlier
periods. Estate map and tithe maps can be
accessed through the County Archives or
National Library of Wales, and early editions of
OS maps are also useful.

Page 162

26

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

By kind permission of CPAT.

Other mapped information, such as the Historic Environment Record (HER) (above)
Lle and Coflein, can be referred to in order to obtain information on designated and
recorded historic buildings and features either on or adjacent to the site. Reference
should also be made to the CPAT historic settlement information, which includes a
map showing the historic core delineated by the green boundary as illustrated below,
and also includes information on the origins, historical development and heritage of
settlements. Applicants should contact CPAT at an early stage for more specific advice
on proposals within the historic core or involving features identified on the HER and for
archaeological requirements.

By kind permission of CPAT.

Page 163

27

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

LANDMAP provides a summary for each aspect area that gives an assessment of value,
the features and qualities that contribute to this value, and the area’s management
recommendations. It provides important general landscape information for a site and its
context and can be used to help identify characteristics and features of importance within
the landscape. The Historic Landscape layer focuses on how historical and
archaeological sites relate to each other and to the landscape, noting land use patterns
and features that contribute to historic character. The Cultural Landscape layer focuses
on the relationship between human activity and the landscape, and notes important
characteristics, such as vernacular building materials and cultural associations. Reference
to the justification for the overall evaluation is useful in understanding the basis for the
historical and cultural value of the area. The summary description highlights the important
characteristics and features of the area in landscape terms. Extract taken from LANDMAP
below.
Historic Landscape
Justification of overall evaluation (high):
‘Small nucleated medieval town with modest modern expansion, including elements of
designed landscape, and associations with Owain Glyndwr's parliament of 1403.’
Summary description:
‘Market town of medieval origin with late medieval and early post-medieval buildings in the
historic core of the town. 19th-century and early 20th-century country house and
associated registered gardens at Plas Machynlleth. Modern housing developments and
industrial estates on the eastern side of the historic core of Machynlleth.’
Cultural Landscape
Justification of overall evaluation (high):
‘High (High, especially for its associations with Glyndwr... Further and more vigorous
exploitation of the historic associations might lift the Aspect Area’s overall evaluation to
Outstanding alongside its established reputation as a centre for environmental
sustainability.’
Summary description:
‘Machynlleth is the largest settlement in the west of Montgomeryshire, and the nearest one
to the sea... Its most famous association is with the rebel leader Owain Glyndwr who was
crowned as prince of secessionist Wales in 1404, holding the first and only full parliament
Wales (to date) has known since... His so-called Parliament House - much rebuilt and
refurbished, and of a later date - stands near the crossroads at the centre of the town...
Machynlleth enjoys some distinction architecturally, with the exuberantly carved Clock
Tower dominating what is essentially a Victorian town within the Conservation Area... The
attempt to celebrate Celtic culture at Plas Machynlleth, the visitor attraction Celtica, is
under threat of closure due to limited resources and subsidies…The town has a growing
reputation as a centre for alternative technology and sustainability; regretfully, that does
not necessarily extend to the socio-economics of the locality’.

6.

Page 164

28

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

Taking photographs is important to capture buildings, features and views visually and as an
aide memoire. It is also useful to compare these with images from old photographs, images
and postcards, such as those from the Frith on-line collection which can be used to browse
and order photographs, old maps and books of places around the country https://www.francisfrith.com/. Photographs of important buildings, features and views should
be included in the Character Appraisal to illustrate the special interest of the area. The use of
aerial photography is also helpful, particularly as it shows natural features in addition to built
features and gives a sense of the relationship between physical and natural features. Historic
aerial photography taken between the years of 1919 and 2006 and held by the RCAHMW can
be found at https://www.britainfromabove.org.uk/.

By kind permission of Powysland Museum.

Page 165

29

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

By kind permission of Powysland Museum.

Page 166

30

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

Page 167

31

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Figure 4

Points to consider when carrying out the site and context analysis

Aspect of historic
character
The special
architectural and
historic interest of the
Conservation Area

Points to consider






Page 168







Historical
development of the
area







Based on a summary of its historic characteristics and features (see following aspects).
The value of these historic characteristics and features can depend on the architectural quality of a
particular characteristic or feature, or on local prevalence of the characteristic or feature, e.g. chimney
features along a terrace.
The rarity of surviving examples also provides an indication of the importance of a particular characteristic or
feature.
The evidential value in terms of the way the asset provides evidence of past human activity including physical
remains and historic fabric.
The contribution made by documentary sources towards understanding the significance of the asset.
The way the asset illustrates aspects of past life and history or is associated with notable people, events and
movements.
The way in which the visual aesthetics, form, external appearance and setting of the asset are experienced.
The meaning of the asset to the people who relate to it along with collective experiences or memories of it.
The characteristics and features of the area identified within the character appraisals accompanying the
Residential Design Guide SPG.
The origins of the settlement, its founding and status, e.g. towns that developed around castles, villages
around churches associated with Saints or monasteries, town charters of market towns.
Evidence of different periods of development and of surviving buildings and layouts from different periods,
e.g. mediaeval burgage plots, Tudor timber-framed buildings, Georgian and Victorian buildings.
Range of building types associated with former uses (domestic, agricultural, commercial, industrial).
Signs of former traditional industries e.g. mills, tanneries, mining, factories, weaving, worker’s housing,
warehouses, smithies, agriculture, and commercial premises e.g. shops, post offices, public houses.
Features associated with historic transport routes – bridges, canals, fords, tollhouses, railways, lodges,
drover ways, coach houses.

32

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019





Physical features and
context of the site








Page 169


Physical layout of
buildings in the area










Architectural
character of buildings
on the site and in the
area




Changes to the economic and social context nationally, regionally and locally that influenced the
development of the settlement, and changing roles of the settlement, e.g. industry, trade.
Any historical or cultural associations with the area, such as with people, events and traditions.
Historic place names that provide an insight into land-use, archaeology and history of the area.
Present day character of the area and influences on this from the past.
How the story of the development of the site itself relates to the history of the settlement.
Existing buildings and structures, their age, history, former and current uses, and condition.
Boundary features, e.g. traditional stone walling, wrought iron gates or railings.
Surfacing of the site, e.g. slate flagstones, cobbled.
Topography of the site and how existing development has responded to this.
The location of the site in relation to its surroundings e.g. infill plot within developed area, edge of settlement.
Townscape character of the surrounding area, the character and composition of the built environment,
including buildings and the relationships between buildings and with open spaces, and physical features of the
settlement e.g. town walls.
The wider landscape character and setting of the Conservation Area e.g. riverside, valley floor, hillsides,
parkland, woodland.
Building lines in relation to site frontages, particularly where these form dominant lines, and the distance that
buildings are set back from the road frontage and the width of frontages.
The orientation of buildings in relation to the street and in relation to surrounding buildings.
Boundaries between properties.
Routes through the area and connections between places.
Street patterns, including plot sizes, shapes and building density, particularly where these are clearly defined.
Spaces in between buildings e.g. gardens, driveways.
Scale and distribution of open and green spaces.
The openness or enclosed nature of the site and its surroundings.
The scale of buildings and the number of storeys e.g. Georgian double-fronted, Large Victorian villas, 3-storey
townhouses.
Prevalent building materials e.g. stone, rendering, traditional brick, natural slate roofing and slate hanging.

33

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019









Page 170


Other designated and
non-designated
historic assets








Individual and groups
of building






Finishes e.g. lime washing and lime-based mortar, smooth render.
Colours and the palette of the area e.g. grey stone, pastel colours.
Window types and details e.g. sliding sash windows or casements, single-glazing, bay windows, set back of
frames within the openings, vertical emphasis to window openings, wall to window ratios, dormer or gablet
windows, leaded windows, slate lintels and sills.
Door types and details e.g. six panelled doors, vertical boarded doors, recessed doorways, door furniture,
porches, canopies, stepped entrances.
Roof shapes and details, e.g. roof pitches, ridged or hipped, gables, stone or brick chimneys, random slate in
diminishing courses, ridge tiles, overhanging eaves, decorative barge boards, cast iron guttering and
downpipes, stepped roofing pattern.
Architectural detailing e.g. decorative brick quoining on the corner of buildings and brick window and door
surrounds.
Building traditions based on age, type and style.
The location and number of Listed Buildings in the area, their grading and descriptions.
Scheduled Ancient Monuments in the area.
Registered Historic Parks and Gardens in the area, their grading and descriptions.
Whether the site is located within a Registered Historic Landscape, the description of the area and
associated landscape themes and character areas.
Whether the site is located within the setting of any of the above designations depending on physical
proximity, visual relationship and historical association with these assets.
Other buildings that contribute positively to the character and appearance of the area, including features
noted on the Historic Environment Record.
The contribution that both individual buildings and groups of buildings make to the character of the area.
Landmark buildings e.g. ecclesiastical buildings, town halls.
The uniformity or variety in design within groups of buildings.
Simple repeated designs e.g. terraces, or one-off elaborate designs.

34

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Locally distinctive
features and
traditions





Natural features





Distinctive views



Page 171








Archaeological
potential






Vernacular buildings and features using local building materials e.g. local stone-built cottages with chimneys
to both gables, local mudstone.
Buildings constructed of imported materials during the Industrial Revolution and later during Victorian times
with the arrival of the railway and canal and imported construction methods e.g. canalside architecture,
decorative brickwork.
Traditional methods of construction.
Natural features that have influenced the development of the site and area e.g. rivers and canals.
Trees on the site and within the surrounding area including those subject of Tree Preservation Orders and
unprotected trees, particularly those that are prominent.
Hedgerows along boundaries of the site and within the area, also those surrounding public areas.
Visual prominence of the site from the surrounding area e.g. elevated position on a steep gradient, skylines,
on the approach into a settlement, within an enclosed courtyard.
Views into the site from nearby public vantage points e.g. from roads, footpaths or public squares.
Views from the site outwards towards the surrounding area and to the wider landscape.
Intervisibility between the site and other historic designated or non-designated buildings or features.
How the site is experienced visually and how the site effects the experience of the Conservation Area and
the appreciation of views to and from it.
Length and breadth of views e.g. narrow long vistas along tree-lined avenues or between rows of buildings,
or wide, unbroken panoramic views across the area.
Distant and close views.
Screening features and intervening buildings.
Potential for archaeological remains within the site.
Evidence of surviving above and below ground structures.
Potential for archaeology within the identifed historic core of the settlement (refer to CPAT’s historic
settlement survey), within the setting of or in areas connected to Scheduled Ancient Monuments.
Sites on or adjacent to scheduled and unscheduled areas of Offa’s Dyke or adjacent to the Montgomery
Canal.
35

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

Opportunities for
enhancement




Archaeology from pre-historic, Roman, early Medieval, Medieval, or modern times.
Different types of archaeology ranging from monuments to transport, domestic and industrial archaeology.







Removal of inappropriate modern features.
Reinstatement of lost historic features.
Restoration of traditional boundary features.
Redevelopment of redundant sites and buildings of no historic or architectural interest.
Developments of contemporary design that are respectful of their context and designed with attention to
scale, proportion and local materials.

Page 172
36

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Figure 5

Questions to ask in preparing HIS/DAS/Planning Statement

1.

What is significant or interesting about the history and architecture of the
Conservation Area? What makes the area special?

2.

What are the main defining characteristics and features of the site and area,
both physical and natural?

3.

Are there any characteristics or features that appear to be particularly unique
to the area (vernacular elements)?

4.

Are there any significant, prevalent or rare features that should be retained?
Do they have evidential, historical, aesthetic or communal value?

5.

Does the area have a strong defined character or is it mixed in character?

6.

Are there any visible design elements, such as those relating to layout, scale,
proportions and materials that are important to follow?

7.

Does the proposal affect any other historic assets, such as listed buildings,
Scheduled Ancient Monuments, Registered Historic Landscapes or their
settings?

8.

Do any existing buildings or features make a positive contribution to the
character and appearance of the area? If so, how significant is the
contribution?

10.

Does the proposal have a direct impact on the character and appearance of the
area, or on buildings or features of identified importance i.e. through
demolition, extension or alteration?

11.

Does the proposal affect the setting of the Conservation Area? How does the
setting contribute towards the significance of the Conservation Area?

12.

Are there any significant views into and from the site and Conservation area
that will be affected and should be protected?

13.

Are there any potential benefits to or harmful effects from the proposal?

14.

Are there alternative options or approaches towards developing the site that
would be less harmful to the character and appearance of the area?

15.

Can the proposal be sited or designed in a way that reduces the impact of the
proposal on the character, appearance and special interest of the area? Can
measures be used to mitigate the impact?

16.

Are there opportunities for enhancement of existing buildings or features, such
as through removing buildings that are out of character with the area or
through reinstatement of lost features?

17.

Is there any potential for archaeological remains that may need to be
incorporated into the development and/or recorded?

18.

Is further evidence or investigation needed in order to justify and support the
proposal?

Page 173

37

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

Design Stage

Concept - Pre – Application
Stage

Section 8: Figure 6 Process involved in planning and assessing a development
proposal in or affecting a Conservation Area
DETERMINE THE DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL EXPLAINING
OBJECTIVES
Summary and description of proposed development identifying main
features and consideration of options
CHARACTER APPRAISAL
Identify historic characteristics and features of the site and area
through site and context analysis informed by background
research and site visit

DESIGNING APPROPRIATE DEVELOPMENT
Siting and design of the proposal to respond to historic
characteristics and features of the site and area
Revisit
Siting and Design if
necessary
Development requires HIA
Development does NOT
and/or DAS (as per Appendix 1)
require HIA and/or DAS

Planning Application Stage

ASSESSMENT
Carry out a HIA and/or DAS,
where necessary, and consider if
any unacceptable adverse effect
on the character and appearance
of the Conservation Area (in line
with Policy DM13) (where likely
unacceptable impact consider
mitigation or going back to siting
and design stage).

ASSESSMENT
Consider if any unacceptable
adverse effect on the character
and appearance of the
Conservation Area (in line with
Policy DM13) (where likely
unacceptable impact consider
mitigation or going back to
siting and design stage).

SUBMIT PLANNING
APPLICATION
SUBMIT APPLICATION FOR
CONSERVATION AREA
CONSENT AND/OR PLANNING
APPLICATION
Accompanied by Heritage
Impact Assessment Statement
and/or Design and Access
Statement.

Page 174

Demonstrate how the proposal
has been sited and designed in
a way that preserves and/or
enhances the character and
appearance of the Conservation
Area through the use of a
Planning Statement.
38

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Section 8: Figure 7 Process involved in making decisions on proposals for
demolition in Conservation Areas
REQUIREMENT FOR CONSERVATION AREA CONSENT
Does the proposal involve total or substantial demolition of an unlisted
building, wall, gate, railings or fence within a Conservation Area and
therefore require Conservation Area Consent, taking into account any
exemptions (see para. 4.15)?

Yes

Submit application for
Conservation Area Consent with
accompanying HIA and associated
planning application for
redevelopment/replacement with
DAS, if necessary.

No

Application for Conservation Area
Consent is not required
(NOTE: application to the LPA may still
be needed to determine whether prior
approval is required for method of
demolition and proposed restoration of
the site).

Does the building or feature
contribute positively to the
character and appearance of
the area?

Yes

Is there sufficient justification
and supporting evidence to
warrant demolition of the
building or feature, taking into
account assessment of impact
and factors of condition,
efforts to re-use and merits of
alternative proposals?

No

No

Do proposals for
redevelopment of the site or
replacement of the feature
preserve/enhance the character
and appearance of the area?

Yes

No

Yes

Grant consent subject to
conditions

Refuse permission based on
unacceptable adverse impact
on the character and
appearance of the area and/or
insufficient information.

Page 175

39

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
9.

Monitoring and Review

9.1
The implementation of the LDP’s policies relating to Conservation Areas through
developments permitted under the LDP will be monitored annually and reported in the LDP’s
Annual Monitoring Report (submitted to the Welsh Government by 31st of October each year
following adoption of the LDP). This process will monitor the developments permitted within
or affecting the setting of a Conservation Area in terms of their accordance with policy DM13
or national guidance. In particular, developments permitted against the advice of the
Council’s Built Heritage Conservation Officer will be captured through this monitoring. A
separate indicator monitors developments permitted affecting the strategic assets and
resources identified by policy SP7, which includes Conservation Areas and their settings.
9.2
Consideration will be given to the quality of Character Appraisal carried out as part of
Heritage Impact Statements and Design and Access Statements through consultation
responses received from CADW Cadw and the Built Heritage Conservation Officer, appeal
decisions, and by comparing the assessments with completed developments.
9.3
The results of this monitoring will inform future review of the LDP’s policy
requirements relating to Conservation Areas. This will include consideration of any relevant
changes to the national and local context. This SPG will be kept under review and, where
necessary, updated to take into account changes in any relevant policy, guidance, evidence
or circumstances, and in response to relevant issues raised with the SPG in practice.
CA11 – Do you have any further comments on this consultation draft of the SPG?

Page 176

40

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
APPENDIX 1 Supporting document requirements (HIS/DAS) for different types of application affecting a Conservation Area

Development type

Application
type

Supporting
document
requirements
DAS

Notes

Page 177

Major development
(defined in Article 2 of
the DMPWO) in and
outside of a
Conservation Area

Planning
application
(outline or full)

Minor development for
the provision of one or
more dwellings, or
involving the creation
of floorspace of 100
sqm, or more in a
Conservation Area
Minor development not
for the provision of a
dwelling(s) or
involving the creation
of floorspace of less
than 100 sq m in a
Conservation Area
Householder
development in a
Conservation Area

Planning
application
(outline or full)

DAS

LPAs also have the ability to request HIS if the proposed development is
likely to have an impact on a designated historic asset.

Planning
application
(outline or full)

None

LPAs have the ability to request HIS if the proposed development is likely
to have an impact on a designated historic asset, or further clarification or
information on design if it will assist them in determining the applications
under development plan design policies.
Planning Statements setting out heritage/design considerations are
encouraged.

Planning
application (full)

None

This applies to development of an existing dwellinghouse, or development
within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse for any purpose incidental to the
enjoyment of the dwellinghouse. This is unless the development involves
the creation of floorspace of 100 sqm or more, which would require a DAS.
LPAs have the ability to request HIS if the proposed development is likely
to have an impact on a designated historic asset, or further clarification or
information on design if it will assist them in determining the applications
under development plan design policies.

Except for major development involving mining operations; waste
developments; relaxation of conditions (section 73 applications) and
applications for a material change in use of land or buildings (if this
necessitates access by employee or services to the public, an Access
Statement is required).

41

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

Page 178

Proposal in respect of
reserved matters i.e.
access, appearance,
landscaping, layout,
and scale.

Application for
approval of
Reserved
Matters

Progress
statement
required to
update the
original DAS

Development outside
of a Conservation Area
affecting its setting or
significant views into
and out of it.

Planning
application

None

Proposed
amendments

Section 73
application for
removal or
variation of a
condition
following the
grant of
planning
permission
Application for a
non-material
amendment
following the
grant of
planning
permission
Listed Building
Consent and
planning

None

Proposed non-material
amendment

Proposed alteration,
extension to or
demolition of a listed

None

Planning Statements setting out heritage/design considerations are
encouraged.
Statement required to demonstrate what changes, if any, have occurred
since the original DAS was submitted at outline stage.
It may also be appropriate for conditions relating to matters contained in
the DAS to be imposed when the outline permission is granted.

Unless it is a major development (see above).
LPAs have the ability to request HIS if the proposed development is likely
to have an impact on a designated historic asset, or further clarification or
information on design if it will assist them in determining the applications
under development plan design policies.
Planning Statements setting out heritage/design considerations are
encouraged.
In cases where the subject of the condition relates to design matters,
LPAs have the ability to request HIS if the proposed development is likely
to have an impact on a designated historic asset, or further clarification or
information on design if it will assist them in determining the applications
under development plan design policies.
Where the application involves renewal of planning permission, new or
updated HIS or DAS will be required, where necessary.
Planning Statements setting out heritage/design considerations are
encouraged.
Given the nature of this type of application, in order to be approved, the
amendment must be considered to be non-material and therefore should
not impact on important design matters.

HIS

42

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

Page 179

building in and outside
of a Conservation Area

application (for
extensions)

Development affecting
the setting of a listed
building in a
Conservation Area

Planning
application

None

Demolition of an
unlisted building,
including gates, walls,
fences and railings, in
a Conservation Area

Conservation
Area Consent

HIS

Felling of or works to
trees subject of a Tree
Preservation Order in
a Conservation Area

Application for
tree works to
trees subject of
a Tree
Preservation
Order
Notification of
proposed works
to trees in
Conservation
Areas
Application for
Hedgerow
Removal Notice
Application for
consent to
display an
advertisement(s)

None

Planning Statements setting out heritage/design considerations are
encouraged.

None

Planning Statements setting out heritage/design considerations are
encouraged.

None

Planning Statements setting out heritage/design considerations are
encouraged.

None

Planning Statements setting out heritage/design considerations are
encouraged.

Works involving
cutting down, toping
or lopping trees in
Conservation Areas
Works to remove an
agricultural Hedgerow
Display of
advertisements

Unless the development itself is a major development, as per above.
LPAs have the ability to request HIS if the proposed development is likely
to have an impact on a designated historic asset, or further clarification or
information on design if it will assist them in determining the applications
under development plan design policies.
Planning Statements setting out heritage/design considerations are
encouraged.
The associated planning application for re-development of the site may
require a DAS depending on whether it is a major/minor development
requiring DAS – see above.
The HIS must provide information on the replacement / future use of the
site.

43

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Appendix 2

Key issues to consider for specific types of development

This appendix provides an overview of the issues that are likely to be relevant to plans for
specific types of development. The list of issues is not exhaustive as there may be other
site-specific issues that need to be considered in connection with individual proposals. Each
part starts by discussing matters relating to the principle of the type of development and is
then followed by more detailed issues relevant to that type of development.
Demolition in Conservation Area
Principle – The acceptability of demolition of a building or feature will, in the first place,
depend on whether the building or feature makes a positive contribution to the area. If the
building or feature concerned does not make a positive contribution, the principle of
demolishing the building will be accepted providing that acceptable plans for redevelopment
or replacement are in place. The acceptability of proposals involving demolition of buildings
that positively contribute to the area will depend on meeting the same criteria as applied to
proposals to demolish listed buildings. The following considerations will be particularly
important in these circumstances.
Significance - In some instances, the building or feature concerned may be of such
significance that it may not be possible to justify its demolition. This may be particularly true
of landmark buildings in prominent locations, boundary walls of important buildings, buildings
that reflect important periods in the development of the town, buildings with locally important
distinctive features, rare surviving examples of vernacular buildings, and buildings that are
associated with notable historical figures or events.
Condition – The condition and structural soundness of the building and the works
necessary to repair or convert the building cost and repair of maintenance will need to be
detailed, evidenced and considered.
Re-use – Consideration will be given to whether the building is capable of retention or repair
for a beneficial use. Efforts made to retain the feature or re-use the building and the reasons
why the building is incapable of beneficial use will need to be detailed and considered. This
should include evidence of marketing efforts to sell the site at a price that realistically reflects
the condition of the building.
Alternative options - other options, other than demolition, should be considered and the
reasons as to why other options are not desirable or practical and why the preferred
approach of demolition has been chosen should be explained. The feasibility of
incorporating the building or features within the redevelopment of the site should be
considered.
Proposals for redevelopment of the site / replacement of features – the contribution of
proposed buildings or features for the site to the character and appearance of the area will
need to be considered. Consideration should be given to whether the proposed
redevelopment/replacement would make a similar or greater positive contribution to the
preservation or enhancement of the character and appearance of the area.
Recording – Arrangements for recording of the building to be demolished will need to be
considered and secured through a planning condition attached to the planning permission.

Page 180

44

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

Extension to a Dwellinghouse in a Conservation Area
Principle – The acceptability of extending a dwellinghouse will depend on whether the
dwellinghouse is capable of being extended without harming the character and appearance
of the building itself and that of the area. The principle of extending certain types of housing
may not be accepted, for instance in cases that involve extending buildings of modest
vernacular or distinct character, whereby the scale and layout of the building is fundamental
to its character. Consideration will also be given to the potential cumulative impact of
allowing extensions that could continue to be repeated on other properties to the extent that
this would be detrimental to the character of the area. However, where the principle of
extending is found to be acceptable, matters of siting and design will be particularly
important.
Siting – Extensions to the front of dwellinghouses within Conservation Areas are unlikely to
be acceptable given the usual importance of building lines and facades to the appearance of
the area. Extensions to the sides of buildings may be acceptable, however this will depend
on the effect on the street scene and the importance of retaining the space between
dwellings to the character of the area. Extensions at the rear are likely to be acceptable
providing that they follow the form of other similar extensions and do not over-dominate the
garden area to the rear.
Scale – Extensions should be designed so that they are subordinate in scale to the
dwellinghouse. This can be achieved by paying attention to the proportions of the existing
dwelling and by setting back and stepping down the extension from the existing frontage and
rooflines.
Materials – Extensions should be constructed using materials that match the type, colour
and details of the material of the dwellinghouse. This will normally involve the use of
traditional materials (stone, brick, render, slate) and, where possible, use reclaimed or
recycled materials. The use of concrete roof tiles, artificial slate and plastic materials will not
be appropriate in Conservation Areas. The use of different but complementary materials
may also sometimes be appropriate, particularly where it is not possible to source matching
bricks, where the use of render may be appropriate. Attention should also be paid to how
original bricks are laid, referred to as the bond, and to the colour of the mortar and pointing,
which should be replicated where appropriate. Lime-based mortar should be used for
pointing brickwork for reasons of performance and appearance. The use of cement-based
mortars is inappropriate on buildings in Conservation Areas.

New/replacement windows and doors in a Conservation Area
Principle – The acceptability of replacing existing traditional windows or doors will depend
on whether the existing windows or doors are capable of repair. Repairing existing
traditional windows and doors, where possible, is usually the most sympathetic and costeffective solution. For proposals that involve windows or doors that are not capable of
repair, their replacement should be on a like-for-like basis, particularly where the original
windows or doors are of significance. The removal of unsympathetic windows and doors
that are not original to the building is encouraged. Replacement or new windows or doors

Page 181

45

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
within new developments should be of a high quality design in order to preserve or enhance
the Conservation Area. The acceptability of proposed windows will depend on the following
details.
Materials – Timber-framed windows and solid timber doors should be replaced in matching
materials and design. Alternative modern materials, such as plastic or aluminium, should
not be installed in historic buildings within Conservation Areas. Doors may also have glass
panels or glass fanlights, which should be retained. Original stained, leaded and coloured
glass should be retained.
Style – Traditional windows are often simple in their design. Windows usually take the form
of side-hung casements or vertical sash windows with slim frames and single-glazing.
Single-glazed windows should be replaced with single-glazing, however there may be
situations where slim double-glazing (12mm) or secondary glazing may be appropriate.
Glazing bar details should be integrated within the window as opposed to being applied to
the window. Windows should be flush-fitting and puttied, not beaded. Window frames
should also be set back a minimum of 100mm within the window opening.
Traditional doors may be vertical boarded or panelled depending on the style appropriate to
the period of the building.
Proportion – Traditional windows generally have a vertical emphasis meaning that their
height exceeds their width. In designing windows on new development, the solid to void
ratio of windows to wall in existing buildings should be taken into account in sizing and
positioning new windows.
Finish and Colour – Windows and doors should be painted, rather than stained or
varnished. Windows and doors should be painted in colours that reflect the colour scheme
of neighbouring properties and the local area. Windows will normally be a neutral colour,
predominantly white, whereas doors may be a range of predominantly dark colours that
provide a contrast with surrounding materials and detailing.
Detailing – The decorative detail surrounding windows and doors within the Conservation
Area should be retained and respected in the designs of new window and doorway
openings. Simple or ornate details can be found surrounding windows and doors of historic
buildings, including brick or stone lintels, patterned brick surrounds, mullions, architraves
and sills. Porches, including recessed porches, may also be a part of the original design and
should be retained where they are a consistent feature within a row of buildings. Attention
should also be paid to the details of the door furniture, such as ornamental hinges, handles,
bolts, letter box and knockers.

Dormer windows and rooflights
Principle – Dormer windows are only appropriate where they traditionally exist on particular
groups of buildings. Gablet windows may also be a feature in certain areas that can be
replicated. The number of new rooflights should be kept to the minimum necessary. In all
cases, dormer windows and rooflights should be appropriately sited and designed.

Page 182

46

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Siting – Dormer windows should be set back from the eaves and below the ridgeline of the
existing roof. They should be positioned to respect the symmetry of the building and in line
with windows below. Rooflights will not be permitted on front elevations that are
conspicuous within the street scene, and should instead be sited on the side or rear
elevations. Rooflights should be aligned with each other and with windows below.
Scale – Dormer windows should be small in scale and should not dominate the roofslope.
Excessively wide dormers and large flat-roofed dormers will not be acceptable in
Conservation Areas. Two smaller dormers will often provide a more suitable solution
providing the same amount of light.
Profile – Dormer windows will normally be required to have pitched roofs. Rooflights should
be of a low profile, set flush with the roof slope, and should be conservation style on historic
and new buildings. Rooflights in inconspicuous locations may take the form of traditional
raised metal-framed rooflights.
Materials – The roofing materials of dormer windows should match the existing roof. The
sides of dormer windows may be clad using slate hanging or weatherboarding depend on
the characteristics of the area. The windows themselves should be of traditional design in
line with the above guidance for new or replacement windows.
Finish and colour – Conservation rooflights are made of metal with a matt finish and slategrey colour to match the colour of the roof.

Painting of the exterior of a building in a Conservation Area
Principle – Painting previously unpainted surfaces, for instance exposed stonework or
brickwork, is not appropriate in Conservation Areas. The use of limewashing to protect the
stone and bricks from weathering may be appropriate.
Colour – The colour used to paint a building should be in keeping with the appearance of
the building and the area and should normally be kept to a limited palette of colours. The
use of neutral, pastel or muted colours, rather than stark or bright colours, will normally be
appropriate. Certain paint colours may not be characteristic of different periods, such as of
18th or 19th century architecture.

Removal of a chimney on a dwellinghouse in a Conservation Area
Principle – The prominence of chimneys on the roofs of buildings means that they are
considered to be important to the character of historic buildings and overall appearance of
the area. The regular spacing of simple designed chimneys, particularly on groups of
buildings such as semi-detached and terraced housing, contributes to the rhythm and
character of the street. Chimneys can also be prominent and decorative features on
individual dwellings.
Original chimney stacks and decorative surroundings should be retained, even if the flue is
no longer used. Where chimneys are no longer in use, chimney pots can be capped.

Page 183

47

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Consideration should be given to repairing or, in cases where repair is not possible, the
rebuilding of existing stacks in matching materials will be supported. Where new
development is proposed, chimneys should be incorporated within the design, where this is
an important feature of the street scene, and should be designed to respect the character
and appearance of other chimneys in the area.

Installation of solar panels on the roof of a building in a Conservation Area
Principle – The need to promote energy efficiency will be balanced against the need to
protect the character and appearance of the area when dealing with proposals for solar
panels in Conservation Areas. Due to the sensitivity of Conservation Areas to modern
alterations, careful consideration will need to be given to the siting and design of the panels.
Siting – The installation of solar panels will not be appropriate on the principal elevations of
buildings or in prominent locations within Conservation Areas. Alternative locations at the
rear of buildings, on subsidiary outbuildings or ground-mounted, where the panels would not
be visible from the highway, should be considered. They should not be positioned higher
than the height of the roof and should project no more than 200mm from the roof or wall
surface.
Finish and colour – The panels themselves should be of a dark colour and the framing
should be in matt black or grey. Standard light-coloured blue panels with reflective light grey
framing should be avoided.

Applications for consent to display advertisements in a Conservation Area
Principle – Conservation Areas tend to be focused around town centres and therefore
inevitably include commercial premises. Signage is usually necessary for commercial
premises and is important in terms of maintaining the attractiveness of the town centre. The
principle of installing new signage or replacement signage within Conservation Areas is
accepted providing that it is appropriate in terms of the following design matters.
Scale – Large signage that is out of proportion with the fascia, shop front or building and its
surroundings will not be permitted. Signage should not usually occupy the whole fascia or
hide architectural details surrounding the fascia. It should not interfere with the appearance
of upper storeys of the building. The signage should have a slim profile and should not
protrude excessively from the building.
Siting – Signage should be sited on and contained within existing fascias. The siting of
signage elsewhere on the building will not be permitted, for instance on upper storeys above
fascia level. The hanging of external banners and posters from upper storeys will not be
permitted.
Materials – New signage should be made of painted timber and, for hanging signs, cast
metal fittings, with any existing ironwork retained and renovated. The use of plastic, metal or
composite materials will not be permitted in Conservation Areas.

Page 184

48

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

Style – The lettering should be hand painted directly onto the existing fascia and should be
painted using a clear and simple traditional typeface or italic font appropriate to the building
style and character of the area. Applied vinyl or plastic lettering is not acceptable within a
Conservation Area. New fascias should not be applied over existing fascias. In respect of
hanging signs, the signs and the brackets should be of an appropriate design to suit the
character of the building. Single hanging signs per premises will usually be acceptable
providing that they are sited at fascia level at either side of the fascia, and are rectangular in
shape and set in portrait. Modern projecting box fascias will not be acceptable in
Conservation Areas.
Lighting – There will in some instances be a need for lighting in connection with signage,
particularly for premises that operate at night time, such as public houses and chemists.
Internally illuminated signs and illuminated projecting box signs will not be permitted in
Conservation Areas. External methods of lighting should be considered and should be
minimal discreetly located so as not to detract from the character and appearance of the
building. Spot or trough downlighting can be fitted beneath the cornice. The overuse of
swan neck lighting may add to visual clutter.

New/replacement shop fronts in a Conservation Area
Principle – Traditional shop fronts contribute positively to the character and appearance of
Conservation Areas. Where traditional shop fronts survive they should be retained and
refurbished. Proposals to replace or alter existing traditional shop fronts with modern
replacements or features will not be acceptable. Traditional shop fronts very often appear in
old photographs and therefore can be reinstated where they have been lost or replicated in
new shop fronts.
Details - Traditional shop fronts are made up of a range of features that are important to the
character and appearance of the shop front and area. These include the fascia where the
sign is placed which can be angled downwards; the shop window which may be subdivided
using vertical mullions or horizontal transoms; the stall riser bricks or panels below the
window; deep sills below the window; pilaster columns either side of the window with corbels
or console brackets supporting the cornicing; recessed entrance; canvas canopies and
blinds. These traditional features must be retained or replicated.
Style – The style of shopfronts vary between different historical periods. Georgian and
Regency shop fronts very often had bow and multiple-paned windows, whilst Victorian and
Edwardian shop fronts had larger windows with vertical mullions. The style of the shop front
should reflect the period of the building concerned and attention should be payed to the
detailing appropriate to that period. Shop fronts that span over more than one building
without paying regard to the style of the buildings will not be acceptable. The corporate style
of a particular company will need to be adapted to a particular building and shopping area.
Scale – New shop fronts should be in proportion with the building’s façade and the street
scene. The glazing should be in keeping with the scale and pattern of the windows on
storeys above. The profile of the window frame, mullions and transoms should be slim and
elegant, rather than having a thick profile.

Page 185

49

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019

Materials – Timber is the most appropriate material for shop front construction in
Conservation Areas and therefore this material should be used for replacement or new shop
fronts in Conservation Areas. Existing timber shop-fronts can be repainted. The use of
modern materials, such as metal, plastic, composite or highly reflective materials, will not be
permitted. Doors should be partly glazed with timber panelling in line with the height of
stallrisers.
Finish and colour – Shop fronts in Conservation Areas should be finished in paint (and not
stained or varnished) and should be a colour that complements the colour palette of the
area, particularly the colour used on neighbouring traditional shop fronts. There should be
an element of contrast between the shop front and the colour of the building. Rich darker
and muted colours provide a greater depth to the shop front than lighter colours. The use of
bright colours may detract from the character and appearance of the area. A single colour
should be used, however the use of a second lighter colour may be appropriate to highlight
decorative elements of the shop front, such as the window frames and doors. Glazing
should be transparent. Opaque, frosted or mirrored windows should be avoided.

Notification of works to trees in Conservation Areas
Principle – Trees and woodlands are important to visual amenity and defining a sense of
place, and can also make a significant contribution to the character and appearance of a
Conservation Area. When dealing with applications for works to trees in Conservation
Areas, the LPA will consider the need to make a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) to protect
trees or woodlands that are of significant public amenity, natural heritage value or cultural
heritage value. The LPA will consider the justification for the works and the significance of
the contribution that the tree(s) or woodland makes to the special interest of the
Conservation Area, along with the expediency of making a TPO.
Amenity value - The amenity value of the tree(s) or woodland will depend on whether the
tree(s) or woodland is visible from a public place or vantage point, or from a number of
surrounding properties, such that it has public amenity value. It would be difficult to justify a
TPO where the tree(s) or woodland cannot be seen by the public. The decision to make a
TPO will also depend on the size, form, attractiveness, rarity and screening value of
individual trees and the collective impact of a woodland. The significance and suitability of
the tree to its surroundings, to the setting, and in relation to other trees, will also be
considered.
Historic value – The significance of the contribution that the tree(s) or woodland makes to
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area will need to be taken into account.
The importance of a particular tree(s) or woodland within the Conservation Area may depend
on its age, location and relationship between it and the surrounding built environment. It may
form an integral part of a formally designed landscape, such as within parks or parkland
settings, or have an important function in enclosing space, framing important views or acting
as a local landmark. It may also reflect the area’s history or be associated with historical
events, for example where trees have been planted as memorials.

Page 186

50

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Risk – Where a tree(s) or woodland is believed to be at risk from works that would have a
significant impact on the amenity of the area, this may justify the need for a TPO. The risk
does not necessarily need to be immediate and may be due to development pressures. It
may not be necessary to issue a TPO where a tree(s) or woodland is under good
management and is not under threat.

Page 187

51

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
APPENDIX 3 Set of planning conditions to attach to planning permissions for
developments in or affecting Conservation Areas
To ensure recording of the building prior to demolition
Prior to the demolition of [insert name of building] the building shall be recorded to by an
approved contractor who specialises in building recording, both its structure and history
including evolution where relevant. The survey should be completed in accordance with an
Historic England (Understanding Historic Buildings) equivalent level 3 survey, and the survey
should include the elements that are currently visible and also the elements currently not
visible including the cellar and the truncated fireplace on the eastern elevation. The survey
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and placed on the Historic Environment
Record and shall be agreed in writing prior to the demolition of [insert name of building].
To control demolition and ensuring contract in place for redevelopment
The demolition of [insert name of building] shall not be undertaken before a contract for the
carrying out of the works for redevelopment of the site has been made in accordance with
the proposals which have received planning permission and all prior to works commencing
conditions attached to [insert planning permission reference] having been discharged. The
Local Planning Authority shall be advised as to the completion of such a contract prior to any
demolition taking place. The written approval of the phasing and timing of works involved
shall be secured before any part of the demolition hereby approved first commences. All
works shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved timetable, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
To require details/samples of external materials to be submitted for approval
Prior to the construction of the [extension / building / dwellings] hereby approved
[details and/or samples] of the materials to be used in the construction of the external
surfaces of the [extension / building / dwellings] shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.
To require window and door details to be submitted for approval
Prior to the installation of any fenestration as part of the development hereby approved,
drawings indicating details of all windows and external doors, including cross sections of
glazing bars and trickle vents, to a scale of 1:10 or 1:20 shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details which are approved shall be carried
out in full and shall be retained in accordance with the approved details thereafter.

Page 188

52

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
APPENDIX 4 Contact Details

Development Management
Planning Services
County Hall
Spa Road
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5LG
01597827161 / 01938 551259
planning.services@powys.gov.uk

Built Heritage Conservation Officer
Debra Lewis
Neuadd Maldwyn
Severn Road
Welshpool
SY21 7AS
01938 551301
debra.lewis@powys.gov.uk

Welsh Government Historic Environment Service (CADW Cadw)
Plas Carew
Unit 5/7 Cefn Coed
Parc Nantgarw
Cardiff
CF15 7QQ
03000 256000
https:/cadw.gov.wales/

Page 189

53

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust
41 Broad Street
Welshpool
SY21 7RR
01938 553670

trust@cpat.org.uk

Twentieth Century Society
70 Cowcross Street
London
EC1M 6EJ
020 7250 3857
caseworker@c20society.org.uk

Theatres Trust
22 Charing Cross Road
London
WC2H 0QL
020 7836 8591
http://www.theatrestrust.org.uk/contact-us

Welsh Historic Gardens Trust
Aberglasney Gardens
Llangathen
SA 32 8QH
01558 668 485
admin@whgt.wales

Page 190

54

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Wales
Ffordd Penglais
Aberystwyth
SY23 3BU
01970 621200
nmr.wales@rcahmw.gov.uk

Amenity Bodies:

Ancient Monuments Society
St. Ann’s Vestry Hall
2 Church Entry
London
EC4V 5HB
020 7236 3934
office@ancientmonumentssociety.org.uk

Council for British Archaeology (CBA)
Beatrice de Cardi House
66 Bootham
York
Y030 7BZ
01904 671417
info@archaeologyuk.org

The Georgian Group
https://georgiangroup.org.uk/
office@georgiangroup.org.uk

Page 191

55

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Conservation Areas SPG, July 2019
The Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings (SPAB)
The SPAB
37 Spital Square
London
E1 6DY
020 7377 1644
info@spab.org.uk

The Victorian Society
75 Cowcross Street
Clerkenwell
London
EC1M 6EJ
020 8994 1019
admin@victoriansociety.org.uk

Page 192

56

7

Powys Local Development Plan
(2011-2026)

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Residential Design
CONSULTATION DRAFT
July Adopted November 2019

Mae’r ddogfen hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg
This document is also available in Welsh

Page 193

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

CONTENTS – Recheck page numbering when changes finalised.
1.

Introduction and Purpose of the guidance

4

2.

Status of the guidance

4

3.

Form and Content of the SPG

5

PART 1: CONTEXT
4.

National Context for Good Design
4.1
Why is high quality residential design so important?
4.2
The promotion of good design

7
7
7

5.

National planning policy on design and placemaking
5.1
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 10
5.2
Technical Advice Note 12 – TAN 12 (2016)

8
8
10

6.

National guidance on residential design
6.1
The All Wales Model Design Guide for Residential Development
6.2
Building for Life 12 (BfL 12) Wales

12
12
12

7.

The Local Context and Local Planning Policy on Good Design
7.1
Housing Development and Design Policy in Powys
7.2
Development Management Policy - DM13 – Design and Resources
7.3
Key Interrelated Policy Issues
7.3.1 Protection of Strategic Assets
7.3.2 Built Heritage and the Historic Environment
7.3.3 Natural Heritage
7.3.4 Planning Obligations

13
13
14
16
16
17
17
18

8.

The Design Process

18

9.

Design and Access Statements

22

10.

Assessing Design Quality

23

11.

Development Briefs – what are they and when are they required?

23

12.

Place Plans - what are they and when do they apply?

24

13.

Pre-Application Procedures

24

1

Page 194

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019
PART 2: IMPLEMENTING POLICY DM13 (Design and Resources)
14.

How to Interpret Policy DM13 alongside the 10 Design Objectives

26

15.

Detailed Analysis of Policy DM13 in Relation to Residential Design

29

DM13 (Introductory paragraph)
DM13 (cont) and DM13 (1.)
DM13 (2.)
DM13 (3.)
DM13 (4.)
DM13 (5.)
DM13 (6.)
DM13 (7.)
DM13 (8.)
DM13 (9. and 10.)
DM13 (11.)
DM13 (12.)
DM13 (13.)
DM13 (14.)

29
31
34
37
39
40
42
44
45
47
51
52
54
57

PART 3: GUIDANCE ON HOUSEHOLDER DEVELOPMENT
16.

Householder Development and Householder
Permitted Development Rights

58

(Householder Guidance Notes 1-10 follow on at the end of the main document)

APPENDICES – re-number and make document cross-check once finalised
APPENDIX 1 PPW National Sustainable Placemaking Outcomes Discuss removing this
and just linking
APPENDIX 2 Flowchart showing when a DAS is required
APPENDIX 3 10 Design Objectives (All Wales Model Design Guide for Residential
Development)
APPENDIX 4 Locally Distinctive Design in Powys Review wording in conjunction with DM
Officer – are compulsory standards still appropriate?
APPENDIX 5 The Town Character Appraisals – Presteigne (all?) – review compulsory
wording/should they be retained at all given age/simplified details?
APPENDIX 6 The principles of inclusive design Discuss removing this and just linking
APPENDIX 7 LDP Strategic Policy SP7 (Safeguarding of Strategic Resources and Assets)

2

Page 195

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019
FIGURES
Figure 1

The Route to Good Design (Source TAN12) Propose remove

11

Figure 2 1

Design Process for a Residential Development Proposal

20

Table 1

The Objectives of Good Design

9

Table 2

Showing how Policy DM13 integrates with the five key aspects
(and objectives) of good design found in national planning policy

16

Table 3

Typical Supporting Information for a Planning Application

21

Table 4a

The linkages between Policy DM13 and the SPG Guidance

27/28

Table 4b

The themes and principles of the Building for Life
(BfL) 12 Standards

TABLES

3

Page 196

29

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

1.

Introduction and purpose of the guidance

1.1
This Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) on Residential Design
provides up-dated guidance on achieving high standards of design in residential
development to support Policy DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan
(LDP)(2011-2026) which was adopted by Powys County Council on 17th April 2018.
This guidance does not apply to areas of the County of Powys located within the
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority area (BBNP).
1.2
The Council’s previous Residential Design Guide (2004) adopted to support
the Powys Unitary Development Plan has informed this guidance but will be
superseded upon the adoption of this SPG.
1.3
This SPG is an aid to deliver successful place-making. By aligning the
document to current national legislation and policy guidance, including the all Wales
Model Design Guide for Residential Development, Powys County Council is
demonstrably sharing the government’s aims of “driving up the standard of design in
residential development regardless of the scale”. This SPG, primarily written to
support Policy DM13, aims to help understanding of what is meant by good
quality/well designed homes and provide the tools for assessing the implementation
of Policy DM13 so that the built environment in Powys is enhanced and sustained for
the benefit of all.
1.4
This SPG provides a basis for shared design objectives between the
developer and the Council. It will help in the determination of planning applications
and provide practical information for applicants/agents, members of the public,
elected Members and Council Officers on the aspects of good quality design for use
at the application and pre-application stages and in the drafting up of site-specific
development briefs.

2.

Status of the guidance

2.1
This SPG has been produced to support the policies of the LDP which are
used in the determination of planning applications. The guidance within the SPG
has had regard to relevant legislation, national planning policy and other available
guidance and information.
2.2
This SPG has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s approved
Protocol for Preparation and Adoption of SPG, which includes a Community
Involvement Scheme. It has been subject to a 6 week public consultation stage
undertaken [insert dates] 2019. A summary of the responses received to the public
consultation along with an explanation as to how the responses have been
addressed can be found within the Consultation Statement. This SPG was adopted
by the Council on the [insert date].
2.3
This SPG is a material consideration in the determination of planning
applications.

4

Page 197

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

3.

Form and Content of the SPG

3.1
Part 1 of this SPG sets out the national and local context and planning policy
on good design, including Policy DM13 on Design and Resources.
3.2
The national policy background discusses the main principles of good design
with signposting to further sources of expert advice and information. Reference is
made to the all Wales Model Design Guide for Residential Development dating from
2005 which still contains relevant advice together with the design principles of
Building For Life 12 Wales which are a recognised tool for achieving better urban
design quality in residential development .
3.3
The SPG details how interrelated matters such as Landscape, Biodiversity,
Transport and Accessibility are so closely related to good residential design that they
must be taken into account at the outset of the process. Readers are advised of
other relevant SPG on interrelated topics.
3.4
The SPG explains how a recommended design process can be followed to
achieve high quality and acceptable end results and details the requirement for some
applications to be supported by a Design and Access Statement (DAS). Even when
not strictly required, the preparation of an informal document based on the structure
of a DAS (which Powys County Council calls a Planning Statement) may still be
beneficial.
3.5
This guidance discusses when a Development Brief may be requested for a
scheme/site prior to a planning application being made. Development Briefs are a
way of agreeing and formalising design guidelines and these documents may, if fully
adopted, carry the weight of Supplementary Planning Guidance in themselves. The
same applies to Place Plans, generally developed by local communities, which may
well have content on residential design issues, adding important finer detail to the
LDP and which, where available, should be used to inform the design process.
3.6
The SPG briefly summarises the pre-application advice service offered by
the Council through PPAE – Pre Planning Application Advice Enquiry and the
separate statutory pre-application consultation procedures for “major” housing
schemes (which requires the developer/applicant to consult with the community and
specified stakeholders prior to the County Council’s involvement).
3.7
Part 2 then explores Policy DM13 criterion by criterion explaining how the
policy is to be implemented by providing guidance on how development proposals
can address the policy criteria to meet the good standards of design required of new
residential development, whether proposing an individual house or any other size of
housing scheme.
3.8
Dependent on where a proposed development is located, protected Listed
Buildings or the special status of a Conservation Area may also be fundamental in
influencing good design. Readers are directed to the SPGs being prepared on
Conservation Areas and the Historic Environment.

5

Page 198

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

3.9
Part 3 of this SPG focuses on householder development in Powys and should
be used to inform both development proposals that are classed as permitted
development and for householder schemes that require express permission, i.e.
need to submit a planning application.

6

Page 199

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

PART 1: CONTEXT
4.

National Context for Good Design

4.1

Why is high quality residential design so important?

4.1.1 Housing is one of five priority subject areas identified by the Welsh
Government (WG) as having the “greatest potential contribution to long-term
prosperity and well-being” (Prosperity for All – the national strategy – 2017).
Housing: the bedrock of living well is a good quality, affordable home
which brings a wide range of benefits to health, learning and prosperity.
4.1.2 The Welsh planning system recognises the need for the right mix of good
quality/well designed homes together with jobs, services, infrastructure and
facilities as a key place making principle, one which contributes to well-being and
people’s contentment with their everyday lives.
4.1.3 The importance of good quality design is supported by research. 84% of the
5,013 respondents to a Policy Exchange (England) Study agreed that better quality
buildings and public spaces improve people’s quality of life. The same proportion
believed that living in a well-designed community improves people’s happiness
(Building More, Building Beautiful: How design and style can unlock the housing
crisis, June 2018).
4.1.4 The importance of design quality is recognised by the Design Commission for
Wales (DCFW). The Commission have identified that good residential design brings
the following benefits:







4.2

Maximises efficiency and value for money
Focuses on users, maximising ease of use, accessibility, inclusiveness and
public value
Uses resources and energy efficiently, contributing to carbon reduction
Has been shown to reduce the public health problems linked to poor housing
Reduces maintenance, costly refurbishments and running costs
Makes products, places and buildings more attractive
Adds value and enhances public good
The promotion of good design

4.2.1 The Welsh Government established the Design Commission for Wales
(DCFW) in 2002 to promote good design. DCFW works to influence, educate and
disseminate design advice to all those involved in the design of the built
environment. The Commission also publishes case studies and produces good
practice guides.
4.2.2 The Commission have been involved in several influential publications
including practice guidance on planning for sustainable buildings, guidance on
7

Page 200

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

Design & Access Statements, and in endorsing the Building for Life 12 Wales
guidance as a tool to achieve good quality residential design.
4.2.3 The DCFW offers a Design Review Service to provide independent advice
and feedback on individual schemes and framework documents (PPW, para 3.15).
More information is given in the publication: Consulting the Commission through the
Design Review Service (DCFW, August 2017).

5.

National planning policy on design and placemaking

5.1

Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 10

5.1.1 Planning Policy Wales (PPW) sets out the land use planning policies of the
Welsh Government. National planning policy comprises the latest PPW together
with supplementary Technical Advice Notes (TANs), Welsh Government Circulars,
and policy clarification letters. Local Development Plans must be in conformity with
national planning policy (current at the time the Plan is being prepared and
examined) in order to be found acceptable by the Independent Planning Inspector.
5.1.2 Edition 10 of PPW was issued in December 2018. It revises national planning
policy to integrate planning goals with the Well-being of Future Generations Act.
Significantly it brings the concept of placemaking into all planning decisions.
PPW: What is Placemaking?
“Placemaking” is a holistic approach to the planning and design of
development and spaces, focused on positive outcomes. It draws upon an
area’s potential to create high quality development and public spaces that
promote people’s prosperity, health, happiness, and well being in the widest
sense.
Placemaking considers the context, function and relationships between a
development site and its wider surroundings. This will be true for major
developments creating new places as well as small developments created
within a wider place.
Placemaking should not add additional cost to a development, but will
require smart, multi-dimensional and innovative thinking to implement and
should be considered at the earliest possible stage. Placemaking adds
social, economic, environmental and cultural value to development
proposals resulting in benefits which go beyond a physical development
boundary and embed wider resilience into planning decisions.

5.1.3 PPW10 sets out a framework to ensure that all development is assessed
against five Key Planning Principles and the National Sustainable Placemaking
Outcomes. Councils MUST use this framework in both the preparation of
development plans and in the assessment of development proposals. The Planning
Principles are considered key to securing the right development in the right place.

8

Page 201

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

5.1.4 To be acceptable, development proposals MUST seek to deliver
development that addresses the national sustainable placemaking outcomes
(PPW para 2.17). The National Sustainable Placemaking Outcomes are shown in
Figure 4 of PPW. Applicants should therefore ensure that their planning application
(either within an accompanying Design and Access Statement (DAS) (where
mandatory, see section 9.) or a more informal supporting Planning Statement)
demonstrates how the proposed new house or housing scheme is able to address
these essential outcomes and make a positive contribution to achieving a
sustainable community. The placemaking outcomes are shown in Appendix 1.
Remove to reduce length/detail – link will take them to PPW.
5.1.5 Good design is recognised by PPW (para 3.3) as being an essential part of
effective strategic placemaking:
“Good design is fundamental to creating sustainable places where people
want to live, work and socialise. Design is not just about the architecture of
a building but the relationship between all elements of the natural and built
environment and between people and places. To achieve sustainable
development, design must go beyond aesthetics and include the social,
economic, environmental, cultural aspects of the development, including
how space is used, how buildings and the public realm support this use, as
well as its construction, operation, management, and its relationship with
the surrounding area”.

5.1.6 PPW identifies five key aspects of good design and a main objective for each
as shown in Table 1.
Table 1: The Objectives of Good Design
Key Design Aspect
Access and Inclusivity

Key Design Objective
Ensuring ease of access for all

Character

Sustaining or enhancing local
character. Promoting legible
development/a successful
relationship between public and
private space/quality, choice and
variety/innovative design

Community Safety

Ensuring attractive, safe public
spaces/security through natural
surveillance

Environmental Sustainability

Achieving efficient use and
protection of natural
resources/enhancing
biodiversity/designing for change

9

Page 202

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

Movement

Promoting sustainable means of
travel

5.1.7
Meeting the objectives of good design should be the aim of all those
involved in the development process and applied to all development
proposals at all scales (PPW 3.4).
5.1.8 The design objectives are expanded upon in PPW and WG Technical Advice
Note (TAN) 12: Design (March 2016).
5.1.9 The application stage presents the opportunity to demonstrate how the five
key design objectives have been considered and the design response being made
(the Design and Access Statement - see section 9. - can be a useful communication
tool here or information can be set out in a less formal Planning Statement).
5.1.10 Appendix 1 shows the national sustainable placemaking outcomes. Having
regard to the national sustainable placemaking outcomes and explaining in a
Planning Statement or a DAS how the design responds to them this will help all
parties in appraising the design rationale and in assessing whether a proposed
development has optimised it’s contribution to sustainable placemaking.
5.2

Technical Advice Note 12 - TAN 12 (2016)

5.2.1 TAN 12 covers Design. It sets out further information on the five aspects of
good design and their key objectives, including how to respond to these objectives
following an appraisal of the context. It should be understood that the design
objectives are not mutually exclusive. Successful placemaking requires a holistic
approach to design.
5.2.2 TAN 12 sets out the “route to good design” (see Figure 1). This shows how a
development proposal evolves from an initial vision and aim in a continuing and
collaborative process until it reaches the planning application stage. The design
process is informed throughout by an appreciation of the site’s context and with
consideration to the five main aspects of good design. The TAN goes into further
detail on appraising context and achieving design solutions. Suggest remove to
reduce the size/detail of this document.
5.2.3 TAN12 includes guidance on assessing design issues by development type
with section 5.11 on house building being particularly relevant to this SPG.

10

Page 203

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

Figure 1:

The Route to Good Design (Source TAN12) Remove Figure

11

Page 204

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

6.

National guidance on residential design

6.1

The All Wales Model Design Guide for Residential Development

Discussion point for Working Group: Is the Design Guidance too outdated?
6.1.1 This document was produced in March 2005 with the financial assistance of
the Welsh Government by a partnership involving the Planning Officers Society for
Wales (POSW) and LDA Design. It is still a current model guide and can be
accessed through the DCFW website.
6.1.2 The Council has determined that this SPG should include the same design
objectives as those found in the All Wales Model Design Guide.
The 10 design objectives of the model guide are adopted to support the
implementation of Policy DM13 of the LDP. They are shown in Appendix 3.
Table 4a in Part 2 makes clear cross references between Policy DM13 and the
applicable parts of the model guide.
6.1.3 This approach means that developers MUST have regard to the model design
objectives when formulating their scheme(s) and should demonstrate (in the
Planning Statement or DAS) how the design has been informed and influenced by
them.
6.2

Building for Life 12 (BfL 12) Wales

6.2.1 Built for LifeTM is a quality mark comprising standards which can be used as a
design tool throughout the planning process. Based around 12 urban design criteria,
the Building for Life scheme uses a Q & A Checklist to assess the quality of
placemaking under the three themes of:




Integrating into the neighbourhood;
Creating a place; and
Street and home.

6.2.2 Housing schemes are independently assessed for award of the Built for LifeTM
accreditation.
6.2.3 The Welsh Government and Design Commission for Wales have endorsed
Building for Life 12 Wales as an industry standard for well designed homes and
neighbourhoods. It is recognised that BfL 12 can be a useful tool in achieving better
design quality in residential development and in complementing the requirements of
national planning policy.
6.2.4 For conciseness this SPG does not include details from the BfL 12 Wales
guidance booklet which is available bilingually on the DCFW website. Powys County
Council encourages applications which strive to achieve the Built for Life TM
accreditation.

12

Page 205

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

6.2.5 “BfL 12” in this document relates to the principles and guidance found in
Building for Life 12 Wales (2015 3rd Edition): https://dcfw.org/building-for-life-12wales/. If these standards are updated, the Council will expect developers to have
regard to the latest version.
6.2.6 Whether or not pursuing accreditation, developers are specifically
encouraged to consider the BfL 12 principles as an aid to securing good
residential design and to use BfL 12 guidance alongside this Residential Design
SPG. The Council is likely to use the guidance in conversations and negotiations on
residential design. There is a dedicated Building for Life website although this
presently has an English focus so it is important to note that there are some
differences in the Welsh planning framework.
6.2.7 Part 2 of this SPG - Analysis of Policy DM13 – includes cross references to
the BfL 12 standards. Table 4a (on pg 27/28) shows how the Council’s policy
requirements interlink with objectives and guidance on good residential design.
Developers should wherever possible have regard to the 12 urban design criteria
referenced in BfL 12 and use both the headline questions and the additional
questions to stimulate discussion and thinking at the start of the design process.
Developers can summarise within the Planning Statement or DAS how the
development responds to BfL 12 criteria.

7.

The Local Context and Local Planning Policy on Good Design

7.1

Housing Development and Design Policy in Powys

7.1.1 New housing development in Powys is guided by the housing land allocations
and the housing policies set out in the adopted Powys LDP (2011-2026). The Plan
defines growth and spatial strategies for residential development setting out how
many homes are needed and where they should go. The LDP is key to shaping and
changing places across Powys facilitating development to serve current and future
needs. Over the Plan’s lifetime the Council aims to see at least 4,500 new homes
built across the Powys LDP area.
7.1.2 Vision 2025 is the Council’s Corporate Improvement Plan (2018-2023). The
plan includes a priority for Developing a Vibrant Economy. Within this priority area,
the Vision includes an aim to achieve signicant investment in the development of
affordable and sustainable housing.
7.1.3 The Council recognises that this priority contributes to the Well-being Goals
(A Healthier Wales) stating:
“ Using our influence to develop a healthy and enterprising economy with good
quality job opportunities and good quality housing will be major contributors to
improving social and mental well-being”
7.1.4 Policy DM13 (Design and Resources) and associated Plan policies such as
those concerning the natural and built environment, safeguarding of strategic assets,
transport, access, land drainage and infrastructure are all relevant to new housing

13

Page 206

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

schemes and to the achievement of sustainable development and to success in
creating and sustaining our communities.
7.1.5 Each of the policies in the LDP is supported by a reasoned justification (R.J.)
that contains an explanation behind the policy, provides guidance, and or expands
on the purpose of the policy or its aims. The reasoned justification has not generally
been repeated in this guidance; users should refer to the LDP where the reasoned
justification should be considered alongside the policy to inform the development
proposal.
7.1.6 In respect of new residential development, Policy DM13 implements the
guidance of TAN 12 (para 5.11.1) which states:
“For a successful residential area, the design of housing should be to establish a
sense of place and community, with the movement network used to enhance these
qualities, and to incorporate features of environmental sustainability”.
7.2

Development Management Policy - DM13 – Design and Resources

7.2.1 The full policy is shown below. Whilst Policy DM13 is relevant to all types of
new development, this SPG concentrates and expands on the elements most
relevant to new housing.
Policy DM13 – Design and Resources
Development proposals must be able to demonstrate a good quality design and
shall have regard to the qualities and amenity of the surrounding area, local
infrastructure and resources.
Proposals will only be permitted where all of the following criteria, where relevant,
are satisfied:
1.

Development has been designed to complement and/or enhance the
character of the surrounding area in terms of siting, appearance, integration,
scale, height, massing, and design detailing.

2.

The development contributes towards the preservation of local
distinctiveness and sense of place.

3.

Any development within or affecting the setting and/or significant views into
and out of a Conservation Area has been designed in accordance with any
relevant adopted Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Conservation
Area Management Plans, or any other relevant detailed assessment or
guidance adopted by the Council.

4.

The development does not have an unacceptable adverse impact on existing
and established tourism assets and attractions.

5.

The layout of development creates attractive, safe places, supporting
community safety and crime prevention.

14

Page 207

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019
6.

7.

It contains an appropriate mix of development that responds to local need,
includes a flexibility in design to allow changes in use of subsequent
buildings and spaces as requirements and circumstances change.
It is inclusive to all, making full provision for people with disabilities.

8.

It incorporates adequate amenity land, together with appropriate
landscaping and planting.

9.

The public rights of way network or other recreation assets listed in Policy
SP7 (3) are enhanced and integrated within the layout of the development
proposal; or appropriate mitigation measures are put in place where
necessary.

10.

The development has been designed and located to minimise the impacts on
the transport network - journey times, resilience and efficient operation whilst ensuring that highway safety for all transport users is not
detrimentally impacted upon.
Development proposals should meet all highway access requirements, (for
all transport users), vehicular parking standards and demonstrate that the
strategic and local highway network can absorb the traffic impacts of the
development without adversely affecting the safe and efficient flow of traffic
on the network or that traffic impacts can be managed to acceptable levels to
reduce and mitigate any adverse impacts from the development.

11.

The amenities enjoyed by the occupants or users of nearby or proposed
properties shall not be unacceptably affected by levels of noise, dust, air
pollution, litter, odour, hours of operation, overlooking or any other planning
matter.

12.

Adequate utility services exist or will be provided readily and timely without
unacceptable adverse effect on the surrounding environment and
communities.

13.

It demonstrates a sustainable and efficient use of resources by including
measures to achieve:
i.
Energy conservation and efficiency.
ii. The supply of electricity and heat from renewable sources.
iii. Water conservation and efficiency.
iv. Waste reduction.
v. The protection, where possible, of soils, especially important
carbon sinks such as thick peat deposits.

14.

Investigations have been undertaken into the technical feasibility and
financial viability of community and/or district heating networks wherever
the development proposal’s Heat Demand Density exceeds 3MW/km2 .

7.2.2 Part 2 of this Guidance sets out the recommended approach to meeting this
policy on a criterion by criterion basis.

15

Page 208

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

7.2.3 The following table demonstrates how the different elements of Policy DM13
work together to address the five key aspects of good design (see Table 1) set out in
PPW.
Table 2: Showing how Policy DM13 integrates with the five key aspects (and
objectives) of good design found in national planning policy
PPW
Aspects
Of
Good
Design

Access and
Inclusivity

Character

Community
Safety

Environmental
Sustainability

Movement

LDP Policy
DM13
Criterion:

Intro.para.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

♦
♦
♦

10.
11.

♦
♦
♦

♦
♦
♦

♦

8.
9.

♦
♦
♦
♦
♦
♦
♦

♦
♦
♦

12.
13.
14.

16

Page 209

♦
♦
♦
♦
♦

♦
♦
♦
♦
♦
♦

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

7.3

Key Interrelated Policy Issues

7.3.1 Protection of Strategic Assets
7.3.1.1 The LDP protects a set of strategic assets under Policy SP7 (see Appendix
7) which includes land subject to environmental and historic designations, the
Powys landscape and major recreational assets such as national trails, cycle
networks and the public rights of way network. Policy SP7 is supported by
Development Management (DM) and Topic Policies. The implementation of Policy
DM13 cannot be undertaken without full regard to Policy SP7 and other parts of the
Development Plan which are key to safeguarding the future well being of the county,
in supporting a healthy environment and encouraging healthy lifestyles.

7.3.2 Built Heritage and the Historic Environment
7.3.2.1 Built and historic environment issues (protected by Policy SP7) are primarily
being further addressed in the Conservation Areas SPG (October 2019) and the
Archeology and Historic Environment SPGs (April 2020). Listed Buildings legislation
sits separately to the planning application process requiring a separate consenting
regime. Cadw (the Welsh Government’s historic environment service) maintain the
list of buildings designated for their “special architectural or historic interest” and the
Council have responsibility for making decisions on listed building consent for
development works that affect the character of the listed building or works affecting
the setting – the Council has a separate website:
http://built-heritage.powys.gov.uk/index.php?id=5281&L=0
7.3.2.2 Issues relating to the Historic Environment will be identified during site
appraisal/analysis (see the design process flowchart in Figure 2 1).
7.3.3 Natural Heritage
7.3.3.1 The LDP has separate DM Policies protecting both the Natural Environment
(biodiversity and geodiversity interests) (DM2) and Landscape (DM4) and readers
are referred to the further guidance in the adopted Biodiversity SPG supporting
Policy DM2 and the adopted Landscape SPG supporting Policy DM4. Areas of land
at high risk of flood are safeguarded from vulnerable development (DM5
Development and Flood Risk) and all development proposals must be planned with
regard to making space for water (DM6 Flood Prevention Measures and Land
Drainage) – Land Drainage SPG is due in April 2020.
7.3.3.2 In terms of designing for biodiversity resilience (add in ENHANCEMENT as
per stakeholder feedback) , sometimes the simplest of measures can make an
important contribution. Examples of measures that may be incorporated into the
design of development are given in Table 5 of the Biodiversity SPG. For residential
schemes these could include, for example, the provision of nesting boxes,
incorporating garden access points, improving habitat connectivity and planting
native species.

17

Page 210

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

7.3.3.3 Issues relating to Natural Heritage will be identified during site
appraisal/analysis (see the design process flowchart in Figure 2 1).
7.3.3.4 Green infrastructure is increasingly being recognised as integral to the
design process. Integrating green infrastructure is not limited to focusing on
landscape and ecology, rather, consideration should be given to all features of the
natural environment and how these function together to contribute to the quality of
places (PPW, 3.8).
7.3.3.5 Developers may wish to consider the green infrastructure framework being
pioneered by Building with Nature. This comprises a set of benchmark standards
(split into themes including wellbeing, water and wildlife) expected to assist with the
planning and development of new places and communities by “addressing the gap
between policy aspirations and practical delivery”. The standards are free to use
and applicants can request the relevant User Guidance by contacting Building with
Nature. The standards can be used to guide green infrastructure in any size of
housing scheme although the current accreditation system is set up to assess
housing schemes of 10 units or more.
7.3.4 Planning Obligations
7.3.4.1 Depending on scale, new residential development may meet the threshold
for planning obligations (Policy DM1) – open space provision, affordable housing
provision and education contributions, Welsh language mitigation etc . Applicants
should refer to the separate adopted SPG on Planning Obligations (October 2018).
7.3.4.2 Some obligations may impact on design/layout (e.g. including open
space/play space/informal areas within developments of 10 plus units, making
necessary highways improvements, or ensuring enough affordable homes of the
type needed are provided). The separate legal requirement for SuDS (see para
15.123) may also impact on site layout and design but has the potential to be
integrated with the open space provision. A separate SPG is due to be published on
Open Space.
7.3.4.3 Early consideration of relevant issues will ensure that the resultant scheme
is able to address opportunities and constraints in the most practical, timely,
appropriate and cost effective manner. Applicants are encouraged to take preapplication advice. Incorporating design changes later in the application process (or
amending a planning permission after it has been granted) can be expected to lead
to extra costs and delays.

8.

The Design Process

8.1
The flowchart in Figure 2 1demonstrates a recommended design process
which the Council has based on the latest guidance issued by the DCFW.
8.2
The DCFW process updates the three stage design process advocated in
para 4.2.72 (R.J.) of the LDP comprising:

18

Page 211

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

1. Site Appraisal; 2. Concept Plan; and 3. Detailed plans, drawings and
design statements
8.3
Design issues are integral to the development process. By considering the
main design objectives there will be cross-over into other sections of the LDP. The
LDP must be considered in its entirety in order to identify any separate but
interrelated policies (some with their own SPG) for example on Landscape,
Biodiversity, Flood Risk,Transport and Minerals Safeguarding that might influence a
planning proposal. During the design process neither Site or Context Analysis or
the DAS/Planning Statement are expected to repeat policies in full. Instead relevant
policies should be identified and a brief summary provided of how the design
proposals respond to each.
8.4
To best meet/demonstrate the latest national design objectives at the same
time as fully considering Policy DM13, the Council recommends the process and
stages set out in the flowchart. This also ensures that any accompanying Design
and Access Statement (see section 9.) is more easily developed alongside the
project’s design process in order to capture the evolving decision-making.
Depending on the results of site and context analysis and the Council’s obligation to
consider all relevant planning matters, at the planning application stage, the proposal
may need to be accompanied by supporting information as outlined in Table 3.
8.5
Information/assessments are required upfront so that decision-makers are
able to make an informed decision as to whether planning approval is appropriate
and if so what planning conditions might be required to mitigate against adverse
affects (an example of how assessments feed into decision-making is provided in the
process chart for biodiversity, Appendix E of the adopted Biodiversity SPG) .

19

Page 212

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

Design Stage

Concept - Pre – Application Stage

Figure 2 Figure 1 - Design Process for a Residential Development Proposal

VISION AND BRIEF FOR THE DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL
Set out the aims and requirements of the proposal and summary of
proposed development in terms of location, type, use and amount.
Start the process of pre-planning application advice from the LPA.

SITE AND CONTEXT ANALYSIS
Review and understand the qualities of the existing site and its
context, opportunities and constraints, and local infrastructure
requirements, taking into account relevant planning policy and
guidance. Consider the need for involvement of various specialists
and expertise.

DESIGNING THE DEVELOPMENT
Use the results of the site and context analysis to inform the design
of the proposal and consider how the design responds to the vision
and brief. Consider and integrate the 10 Design Objectives set out in
this SPG (Appendix 3) and the characteristics of locally distinctive
design in Powys (Appendix 4). Demonstrate how the design has
been developed and the key influences on the design.

Planning Application Stage

PROPOSAL DETAILS
Provide an overview of the development proposal, including
illustrations of the proposal, and explain how the proposed design
meets national policy design objectives set out in PPW, TAN12, and
LDP Policy DM13 by demonstrating good quality design with
regard to the qualities and amenity of the surrounding area, local
infrastructure and resources.

SUBMIT PLANNING APPLICATION
Accompanied by the Design and Access Statement, where
required, or in other cases a Planning Statement, explaining the
design process undertaken based on the above stages.

20

Page 213

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

Table 3: Typical Supporting Information for a Planning Application
Typical Supporting Information:


flood consequences assessment;



transport assessment, travel plan;



waste management plan/natural materials management plan;



preliminary risk assessments (contaminated land)



sufficient information and assessments in respect of proposals likely to affect features
of biodiversity or geological conservation interest present on the site or nearby, e.g.
ecological survey, tree survey (see adopted Biodiversity and Geodiversity SPG);



sufficient information and assessments in respect of impacts on the landscape and/or
visual amenity potentially through formal Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
(LVIA) (see adopted Landscape SPG).



also within areas of Registered Landscapes of Historic Interest in Wales there may be
a need for the Assessment of the impact of development on historic landscapes
(ASIDOHL2).



a Welsh Language Action plan where development is situated in a Welsh Speaking
Stronghold (Policy DM12).



Applications for Listed Building Consent for works to listed buildings and applications
for Conservation Areas Consent involving demolition of buildings, walls, gates, railings
or fences within a Conservation Area, will need to be accompanied by a Heritage
Impact Statement (HIS). More information can be found in the Conservation Areas
SPG.



The Council is also able to request further information in connection with other
developments where the proposal is likely to have an impact on a designated historic
asset. Further information on HIS can be found in CADW’s best practice guidance –
Heritage Impact Assessment in Wales.



A Design and Access Statement (DAS) may be a legal requirement. They are
required for major developments and also for certain developments in a Conservation
Area (see Appendix 2 Flowchart).



For other applications the Council is able to request (under the design policies of the
development plan) further information on design to assist with determining the
application.



For large scale residential schemes (defined for this purpose as more than 150 homes
or where the area of development is more than 5 hectares) the need for
environmental impact assessment must also be assessed.

21

Page 214

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

8.6
Appendix 1 of the LDP details housing sites of five or more units which have
been allocated by the Plan. These sites are listed in Policy H2. Site constraints for
housing land allocations (HA sites) have been initially assessed and the requirement
for further information/surveys and potentially planning obligations in respect of these
sites is likely to have been identified in the Issues Column of Appendix 1. This
includes the possible requirement for Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) in
respect of the impact of proposals on European sites. Further guidance on this
aspect is provided in the Biodiversity SPG. Sites which had planning consent at the
evidence base date (in 2015) are termed Housing Commitments (HC sites) – these
will already have been investigated at the application stage but if the extant
permission is not implemented, any renewal/resubmission will need to demonstrate
compliance with up to date LDP policy and requirements including the potential need
for new/updated information and surveys.

9.

Design and Access Statements

9.1
“Design and access statements allow applicants to demonstrate how they have
appraised the physical, social, economic and policy context of the development,
and how their choice of design principles and concepts takes that context into
account”. (TAN12).
9.2
Since 2009, Design and Access Statements (DAS) have been mandatory to
accompany certain planning applications and listed building consent applications.
The flowchart in Appendix 2 shows when a DAS is a legal (mandatory) requirement.
9.3
DAS are a communication tool. TAN12 explains that the DAS outlines how
the design of the proposal has been considered from the outset of the development
process and how the objectives of good design have been used to inform this. The
full benefit of the DAS to developers, applicants, local communities and local
planning authorities is explained in the formal guidance produced by the Welsh
Government and Design Commission for Wales: Design and Access Statements in
Wales (April 2017).
9.4
Where a DAS is mandatory to accompany a planning application, the
Development Management Manual (para 7.3.7) states it MUST:
•
•
•
•

explain the design principles and concepts that have been applied to the
development;
demonstrate the steps taken to appraise the context of the development and
how the design of the development takes that context into account;
explain the policy or approach adopted as to access and how policies relating
to access in the development plan have been taken into account; and
explain how specific issues which might affect access to the development
have been addressed.

9.5
DASs or less formal Planning Statements provide the opportunity to explain
how all the elements of land-use planning have been taken into account in the
22

Page 215

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

design process, including how the development responds to both national and local
planning policy requirements.

10.

Assessing Design Quality

10.1 All proposals for new residential development should be designed taking into
account the guidance in this SPG and applicants should demonstrate in their
Planning Statement or DAS how the objectives of good design and the policy
criteria of DM13 have been met. Schemes should contribute positively to the
national sustainable place-making outcomes. Schemes which do not address the
issues of good design and which are considered to be of poor or average quality will
be refused unless negotiations successfully lead to an acceptable improved design
solution.
10.2 The Council may use BfL 12 Wales (see 6.2) to help assess the quality of
planning applications and in the consideration of site-specific development briefs
(see section 11.). The Site & Context Analysis Guide (2016) also contains guidance
to assist LPAs in their assessment role.
10.3 The Council may involve the Design Commission for Wales to review housing
development proposals, especially in larger schemes or in more sensitive locations,
where it believes that the urban design issues would benefit from third party
influence.

11.

Development Briefs – What are they and when are they
required?

11.1 Developers may choose to submit or be requested to submit a development
brief for particular housing sites. The LDP (Appendix 2, pg 193) explains why some
sites will need to be provided with a development brief.
Development Brief: A document, prepared by a local planning authority, a
developer, or jointly, providing guidance on how a site of significant size or sensitivity
should be developed. Site–specific development briefs are sometimes known as
planning briefs, design briefs and development frameworks (Wales Model Design
Guide for Residential Development).
The LDP Glossary contains a shorter definition: A statement outlining the general
proposals and requirements for the development of a specific site including detailed
design.
11.2 This requirement is enforced by Policy H3 Criterion 3. (Housing Delivery).
The Council encourages the use of Development Briefs in situations where there are
complex and/or sensitive site issues that are best addressed by the early, inclusive
and collaborative involvement of a number of stakeholders.
11.3 It is possible that a draft DAS (see Section 9.) could usefully be the basis for
pre-application discussions and for drawing up an agreed Development Brief.

23

Page 216

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

11.4 Development Briefs are an important tool as they add more certainty to the
planning process by “frontloading” of the issues , enabling solutions to be discussed
and agreed with consensus between stakeholders at an early stage and thus
reducing tensions later on in the process.

12.

Place Plans – What are they and when do they apply?

12.1 Place Plans are discretionary and non statutory documents. They are most
likely to be prepared at the initiation of the local community and may be led or coordinated, for example, by the Town or Community Council. The Welsh
Government (in PPW) see Place Plans as “a powerful tool to promote collaborative
action to improve well-being and placemaking”. Planning Aid Wales are taking a
lead in providing resources to help people who are interested in producing a Place
Plan (http://www.placeplans.org.uk/en/).
12.2 Place Plans are drawn up with the involvement of local people and can look at
a range of issues affecting the town/place. Some of these issues will link to land-use
planning (e.g. affordable housing, heritage, locally distinctive design, sustainable
construction, issues re: employment premises e.t.c.), others may be of broader
scope and linked to other agendas/plans (e.g. public transport, litter management,
crime/anti-social behaviour, environmental initiatives, business improvement aims).
Place Plans enable an opportunity to gather evidence and present it cohesively,
arriving at action plans to address the issues. The land-use planning topics can be
progressed as SPG.
12.3 To be adopted as SPG by the County Council, Place Plans must be in
conformity with and support the delivery of LDP policies. Place Plans should be
prepared with the aim of delivering local outcomes, helping build consensus and
enabling buy-in within the wider development plan process. They might elaborate on
sites already identified in a LDP and or they might look to identify other sites locally
which conform with the LDP and seek to deliver new homes (or other planning
opportunities) based on local knowledge and engagement beyond the broader scope
of the County Council.
12.4 Place Plans should state which LDP policies are relevant to the
issues/aspirations of the local community group/Town & Community Council and
acknowledge that the LDP, as the statutory development plan, provides the overriding framework under which the land-use actions identified in Place Plans can be
pursued.

13.

Pre-Application Procedures

13.1 The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 introduced pre-application requirements into
the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act (the 1990 Act). These included a new
statutory requirement for LPAs to provide pre-application services to applicants
(sections 61Z1 of the 1990 Act) and a duty on applicants to carry out pre-application
consultation with the community and specified consultees (sections 61Z of the 1990
Act) on major planning applications.

24

Page 217

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

13.2 The Development Management section of the Council offer the preapplication advice enquiry (PPAE) service. Details can be found on the Council’s
website including the application form and fee structure.
13.3 TAN12 confirms that one aim of pre-application discussions should be to
identify the key design and access issues arising from a development proposal at the
outset. “The basis for discussions on design will have been set by relevant national
and development plan policies and SPG. Discussions should focus on meeting
objectives of good design and covering the topics to be addressed in the design and
access statement. Planning officers should give a clear opinion as to whether the
proposed design and access statement, vision and objectives are in accordance with
policy and SPG. Issues of detailed design would not normally be addressed until
later in this evolving process. Discussions should also highlight what information the
local planning authority would require for outline planning applications”.
13.4 Developers/applicants may wish to consider using BfL 12 Wales (see section
6.2) to structure pre-application discussions on design.
13.5 The separate legal duty on applicants to carry out pre-application consultation
means that it is not unusual for the local community to be made aware of the
developers draft plans before the County Council. This requirement currently
applies to major planning applications which include housing schemes of 10 or
more dwellings or (where numbers of units are not yet specified) on sites of
0.5 hectares or more. Applicants are referred to the guidance document on the WG
website - Pre-application Community Consultation: Best Practice Guidance for
Developers (November 2017).

25

Page 218

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

PART 2: IMPLEMENTING POLICY DM13 (Design and Resources)
14.

How to Interpret Policy DM13 alongside the 10 Design
Objectives

14.1 Table 4a explains the links between the requirements of Policy DM13 (Criteria
1. to 14.) and the design objectives of this SPG (see 6.1) plus those of PPW (ed 10)
(see table 2) and the associated good practice principles set out in BfL 12 (see 6.2
and Table 4b).
Developers MUST have regard to the 10 objectives for good residential design set
out in Appendix 3 and MUST ensure their proposal addresses all the relevant
design objectives. Developers are additionally RECOMMENDED to have regard
to the Building for Life urban design principles.
14.2 Once the relevant objectives and principles have been applied to the
proposed development, developers should use the DAS or Planning Statement to
communicate and explain what design responses are being made (see Design
Process Flowchart in Figure 2 1).
14.3 To achieve an acceptable good quality design, applicants will need to show
how the design of the new house or housing scheme meets the Plan’s policy and
reasoned justification, together with demonstrating how the development fits into the
overarching Wales framework for sustainable placemaking (Appendix 1 Figure 4,
PPW10).
14.4 The next section, Section 15., analyses Policy DM13 in relation to residential
design providing guidance and commentary on each of the 14 design and resources
criteria.

26

Page 219

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

LDP
Policy

10. Resource Efficiency

9. Adaptability

8. Variety and Diversity

7. Public Realm

6. Continuity and enclosure

5. Character and context

4. Legibility

3. Accessibiity & ease of movement

2. Compactness

1. Natural Heritage

DM13
Criterion:
(images refer
Table 2, PPW
design
aspects)

Building
for Life 12
Wales

The 10 Design Objectives
Adopted in this Residential Design SPG

Residential
Design
Criteria/
Principles
(see Table
4b):

Intro. para.

Principle 6

1.

Principles 1,
5 and 6

2.





Principle 5

3.

Principles 5
and 6

4.

Principle 6

5.



Principles 7,
8, 9, 10 and
12

27

Page 220

10.

9.

8.

7.

6.

5.

4.

3.

2.

1.

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019



6.

Principle 4

7.

Principles 8
and 9

8.





9. and 10.



Principles 1,
2, 3, 7, 9 and
10.

11.



Principle 6

12.



Principle 11



13.



14.



Principle 6

Table 4a: The linkages between Policy DM13 and the SPG Guidance & Design
Objectives

28

Page 221

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

BfL 12 Wales
Theme
INTEGRATING INTO THE
NEIGHBOURHOOD

CREATING A PLACE

STREETS & HOME

Subject/Principle
1. Connections
2. Facilities and services
3. Public Transport
4. Meeting local housing requirements
5. Character
6. Working with the site and its context
7. Creating well defined streets and spaces
8. Easy to find your way around
9. Streets for all
10. Car parking
11. Public and private spaces
12. External storage and amenity space

Table 4b: The themes and principles of the Building for Life (BfL) 12 Standards

15.

Detailed Analysis of Policy DM13 in Relation to
Residential Design

15.1

DM13 (introductory paragraph):

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS MUST BE ABLE TO DEMONSTRATE A GOOD
QUALITY DESIGN AND SHALL HAVE REGARD TO THE QUALITIES AND
AMENITY OF THE SURROUNDING AREA, LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE AND
RESOURCES.
15.2 Powys has a rich diversity in the design, architectural styles and traditions of
its residential buildings. A high quality of design in new dwellings will continue to
protect and enhance this asset and underpin successful place making. Design
solutions must consider all the different aspects which make up a dwelling, street
and neighbourhood so that the new development makes a positive contribution to
the local environment and provides homes which people want to live in.
15.3 TAN12 recognises that good design requires a collaborative, creative,
inclusive, process of problem solving and innovation – embracing sustainability,
architecture, place making, public realm, landscape, and infrastructure. Design
which is inappropriate in its context, or which fails to grasp opportunities to
enhance the character, quality and function of an area, should not be
accepted, as these have detrimental effects on existing communities.
15.4 In order to demonstrate a good quality design, the Council strongly
recommends that a Design Process is followed (see section 8) and that the process
is recorded and communicated through the submission of a Design and Access
Statement (DAS) or a Planning Statement (see section 9). A recommended Design
Process is set out in Figure 2 1.
15.5 Once a brief and vision for the site has been considered, the first major step in
the process is the site and area appraisal, using the process of Site and Context
29

Page 222

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

Analysis, which addresses what currently exists rather than what is proposed.
Development which takes proper account of its context will have regard to the
natural heritage of the site including its landscape and biodiversity value and to
matters including built form and heritage, movement, infrastructure, culture and
community.
15.6 A DAS is mandatory (a legal requirement) for some applications as shown in
Appendix 2. Where a DAS is not mandatory the design process can be explained in
a less formal document. The Council usually refers to such a document as a
supporting Planning Statement. The primary purpose of either document is to
explain the rationale behind a development scheme and the design decisions made
(i.e. why it is what it is).
15.7 Good design offers holistic solutions. For example, improving the site’s
environmental credentials for the purposes of sustainable land drainage (and the
water cycle) can provide multiple benefits such as improving visual amenity, giving
people space to exercise or relax, supporting wildlife and enabling sustainable travel
connectivity.
15.8
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 6 – Working with the site and its
context.

30

Page 223

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15. 9 DM13 (cont.) and DM13 (1.):
Proposals will only be permitted where all of the following criteria, where
relevant, are satisfied:
1. DEVELOPMENT HAS BEEN DESIGNED TO COMPLEMENT AND/OR
ENHANCE THE CHARACTER OF THE SURROUNDING AREA IN TERMS OF
SITING, APPEARANCE, INTEGRATION, SCALE, HEIGHT, MASSING, AND
DESIGN DETAILING.
15.10 The special characteristics of an area should be central to the design of a
development. The layout, form, scale and visual appearance of a proposed
development and its relationship to its surroundings are important planning
considerations (PPW10, 3.9).
Area Appraisal: An assessment of an area’s land uses, built and natural
environment, and social and physical characteristics.
Character: A combination of: the layout of buildings and streets, the height and
appearance of the buildings; the amount and distribution of open space; and the
density of a development.
15.11 Criterion 1 will be satisfied by the applicant following a design process which
uses Site and Context analysis to determine the appropriateness of a development
proposal in responding to its surrounding. Site and context analysis ensures that a
development is well integrated into the fabric of the existing built environment.
Site and Context Analysis: A detailed analysis of the features of a site or area
(including land uses, built and natural environment, and social and physical
characteristics) which serve as the basis for formulating a design proposal, an
urban design framework, development brief, design guide or other policy or
guidance.
15.12 Welsh Government guidance is found in PPW 3.14:
“The analysis process will highlight constraints and opportunities presented by
existing settlement structure and uses, landscape, biodiversity, water environment,
movement, infrastructure, materials and resources, soundscape and built form which
will need to be considered when formulating proposals”.
15.13 Site and context analysis is explained more fully in the Welsh Government
practice guidance: – “Site & Context Analysis Guide: Capturing the value of a site”.
The practice guidance identifies the topics to be considered in the analysis process
under four key categories (not all topics will be relevant to all proposals):



Culture & Community – Site location – Planning context – Surrounding land &
building use – Neighbourhood structure – Consultation & engagement – Socioeconomics – Market analysis
Landscape – Topography – Green & blue infrastructure – Ecology –
Ground conditions – Microclimate
31

Page 224

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019




Movement & Infrastructure – Road hierarchy & access – Public transport –
Utilities & infrastructure
Built Form – Urban form – History & archaeology – Building scale, height &
density – Building character & building traditions

15.14 TAN12 notes that “In many cases an appraisal of the local context will
highlight distinctive patterns of development or landscape where the intention will be
to sustain character. However, appraisal is equally important in areas where
patterns of development have failed to respond to context in the past. In these areas
appraisal should point towards solutions which reverse the trend”.
15.15 Where the proposed development is situated in an area which has a
published character assessment, the design process should take account of this.
Character Assessment: An area appraisal identifying distinguishing physical
features and emphasizing historical and cultural associations.
In Conservation Areas this document will be called a Conservation Area Character
Appraisal.
15.16 Character is discussed in more detail in the next section DM13 Criterion 2.
15.17 Integrating new development into its surroundings includes making successful
connections that enable linkages across the scheme and where appropriate into the
existing neighbourhood to improve connectivity and contribute to a walkable
neighbourhood. The appraisal and analysis of movement and infrastructure (see
15.13) should take account of any network mapping in connection with Active
Travel. Advice can be obtained from the Council’s Travel Officer.
15.18 Well designed housing schemes will take advantage of existing topography,
landscape features (including water courses), trees and plants, wildlife habitats,
existing buildings, site orientation and microclimate.

32

Page 225

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.19 In terms of siting, scale and massing developers must have regard to the
target housing densities set out in Policy H4 of the LDP. These are applied to create
more concentrated, cohesive and sustainable communities and to protect resources
by making the most efficient use of land.
Density – The degree of concentration of dwellings in an area, usually expressed as the
number of dwellings per hectare.
Siting – The location of a building within its plot. Siting may also refer to the relationship of
the building within its wider setting.
Scale – The impression of a building when seen in relation to its surroundings, or the size of
parts of a building or its details, particularly as experienced in relation to the size of a person.
Sometimes it is the total dimensions of a building which give it its sense of scale: at other
times it is the size of the elements and way they are combined. The concept is a difficult and
ambiguous one: often the word is used simply as a synonym for “size”.
Massing – The combined effect of the height, bulk and silhouette of a building or group of
buildings.

15.20
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 1 – Connections, Principle 5 –
Character and Principle 6 – Working with the site and its context .

33

Page 226

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.21 DM13 (2.):
2. THE DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTES TOWARDS THE PRESERVATION OF
LOCAL DISTINCTIVENESS AND SENSE OF PLACE.
15.22 The Council aims to promote and reinforce local distinctiveness within Powys.
Local Distinctiveness: “The positive features of a place and its communities
which contribute to its special character and sense of place”.
15.23 Proposals will be expected to be designed to respect and enhance the local
distinctiveness of the area, particularly within areas recognised for their landscape,
townscape, cultural or historic value, and areas where there is an established and
distinctive design character. Developers should adopt sensitive and innovative
design approaches and pay particular attention to local building materials and
methods, and to the proportions and layout of historic buildings and features within
the local context.
15.24 Different aspects of good design contribute to an overall sense of place. The
elements that make up the character and context of a site create its innate sense of
place but additional factors contribute. For example carefully designed enclosure
and continuity of street frontage maximises opportunities for social interaction to
create a stronger sense of place and a more recognisable identity.
15.25 Developers are sometimes criticised for building bland, non-distinctive homes
in stereotypical layouts, arguably in response to a profit-led business model which
dilutes good design. National planning policy, together with the role of the DCFW,
seeks to address this across the industry and Policy DM13 supports this at the local
level by providing an emphasis on good (high-quality) design. In assessing the
design of proposals, the Council will discourage homogenised housing development
(“any place, anywhere”) and seek development for Powys which contributes
positively to the local area, preserving the distinctiveness of the town, village or rural
surroundings in which the development is proposed.
15.26 Instilling an awareness of local character and distinctiveness will reverse the
trend for homogenised housing styles. Guidelines on locally distinctive design
included in the 2004 Residential Design Guide are being carried forward in this SPG.
They are shown in Appendix 4. CONSULTATION PHASE – REVIEW APPENDIX
4 – COMPULSORY WORDING – TEXT BOX AT POINT 13. To inform the detailed
design of new dwellings, developers should ascertain the characteristic design
features of residential buildings in the settlement (or typical and traditional to that
locality). Appendix 4 includes a checklist for undertaking this type of Character
Appraisal which should then inform the design decisions on detailing and
appearance of the new build.
All planning applications for new housing must take account of the guidelines
on Locally Distinctive Design in Powys shown in Appendix 4, including the
“general design requirements” at point 13.

34

Page 227

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.27 To assist in the process of identifying the special characteristics of townscape
including historic character and value, the 2004 Residential Design Guide contained
a number of area centre appraisals (area centres are now named as towns in the
LDP) providing a general character assessment of each locality. These Town
Appraisals are being retained to support the LDP. They will eventually be made
available as a separate supporting document (but are currently attached in
Appendix 5 for consultation purposes).
15.28 12 towns in Powys have been assessed and appraisals are published for:
Builth Wells, Knighton, Llandrindod Wells, Llanfair Caereinion, Llanfyllin, Llanidloes,
Machynlleth, Newtown, Presteigne, Rhayader, Welshpool, Ystradgynlais.
15.29 The appraisals/assessments give brief histories of the area which help to
explain the influences on the design and expansion of each settlement over time,
and the key characteristics which contribute to the building tradition of the area.
Settlement specific design standards have been included at the end of each
appraisal.
New housing proposed in any of the 12 towns that have an Appraisal should
be designed taking account of the published guidelines and standards.
15.30 During the life of the LDP the Council expects to see the production of new (or
revised) Character Assessments arising from Place Plan work at the local level (see
section 12) and/or other local design initiatives.
15.31 Where character assessments/appraisals have since been updated or newly
produced (e.g. by the County Council perhaps in connection with a Conservation
Area, or in a community’s Place Plan or in characterisation work produced by a local
Civic Society, Historic Buildings Trust or other equivalent body, the most up to date
and locally specific guidance should also be taken into account. The Council will
afford little weight to documents which have not undergone consultation, more
weight to documents which have been through a formal consultation and
engagement process with local stakeholders (including public involvement) and the
greatest weight to those which have been fully adopted by the Council as SPG.
15.32 Failure to take appropriate account of the design standards discussed above
including other locally relevant design guidance (e.g. adopted Place Plan content) is
likely to result in an application being refused.
15.33 As discussed in Part 1 of this SPG, placemaking is now integral to the
planning system. Development which addresses the national placemaking
outcomes (see para 5.1.4 Appendix 1) will lead to well designed housing in the
right locations creating well-balanced, sustainable and vibrant communities, places
where people want, and can afford, to live.
15.34 The national placemaking outcomes recognise the importance of protecting
distinctive and special landscapes and distinctive and special historic
environments to maximise environmental sustainability.

35

Page 228

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.35 The Council agrees that the special characteristics of the landscape and the
historic environment are often key aspects of local distinctiveness. Both topics are
covered by separate Supplementary Planning Guidance which should be considered
during the design process. A separate SPG on Conservation Areas is also being
published alongside this Residential Design SPG.
15.36
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that
developers consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 5 – Character.

36

Page 229

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.37 DM13 (3.):
3. ANY DEVELOPMENT WITHIN OR AFFECTING THE SETTING AND/OR
SIGNIFICANT VIEWS INTO AND OUT OF A CONSERVATION AREA HAS
BEEN DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY RELEVANT ADOPTED
CONSERVATION AREA CHARACTER APPRAISALS AND CONSERVATION
AREA MANAGEMENT PLANS, OR ANY OTHER RELEVANT DETAILED
ASSESSMENT OR GUIDANCE ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL.
15.38 Separate SPG on Conservation Areas is being published alongside this SPG.
The two documents should be read in conjunction with each other to inform
development proposals situated in or affecting a Conservation Area:
Conservation Area: Areas of special architectural or historic interest designated by
local authorities under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.
Conservation Area Character Appraisal: A published document defining the
special architectural or historic interest which warranted the area being designated.
15.39 Conservation areas in Powys can be viewed here https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5860/Conservation-area-boundaries.
Due to their special status, in assessing any development proposal within a
Conservation Area, special regard will need to be given to the impact that such a
proposal would have on the character and appearance of the area. At the planning
application (or pre-planning) stage, discussions, negotiations and the planning
decision will be informed by consultation with the Council’s Built Heritage
Conservation Officer.
15.40 There are 55 designated Conservation Areas in the Powys LDP area. As
these do not yet have published Conservation Area Character Appraisals, the
Conservation Areas SPG concentrates on providing generic guidance on assessing
character and designing appropriate development in the absence of Conservation
Area Character Appraisals. It includes information sources to use in order to carry
out site specific character appraisals.
As explained in the Conservation Areas SPG, developers will be expected, in
the absence of an adopted Conservation Area Character Appraisal, to
undertake their own site specific character appraisal to inform development
proposals which are within or affecting the setting of a conservation area.
15.41 Permitted development rights (see Part 3) are generally more restrictive in
Conservation Areas (https://gov.wales/planning-permission-permitted-developmentrights-householders). Additionally, some Conservation Areas in Powys are subject
to an Article 4 Direction: A planning measure which takes away specific permitted
development rights where the local planning authority considers it appropriate to
control such development. You therefore need to check with the Council as to
whether an Article 4 Direction is in place to determine whether a planning application
is required and certainly check as a precaution before commencing any development
work. The following link also holds information: http://builtheritage.powys.gov.uk/index.php?id=5360&L=0.
37

Page 230

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.42
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 5 – Character and Principle 6 Working with the site and its context .

38

Page 231

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.43 DM13 (4.):
4. THE DEVELOPMENT DOES NOT HAVE AN UNACCEPTABLE ADVERSE
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND ESTABLISHED TOURISM ASSETS AND
ATTRACTIONS.
15.44 Tourism is one of the major economies in Powys. Criterion 4, together with
the detail in Policy SP7 (shown in Appendix 7) , seeks to secure compatible land
uses which do not adversely impact on existing tourism provision and visitor (or
resident) enjoyment of tourism assets. Tourism assets are those facilities/
services/attractions/characteristics which derive a direct income from tourism activity
or which make a direct or indirect financial contribution to the overall tourism
economy within the county.
15.45 It is important that new housing through its location, scale, siting and
appearance does not erode the special characteristics on which the tourism industry
is based within Powys (e.g. upland wilderness and tranquillity, the rural landscape,
scope for outdoor pursuits, visually attractive/ multifunctional resources such as
reservoirs, canals e.t.c.) or the special tourist attractions, services and facilities
across the County (e.g. historic properties, visitor attractions, accommodation
provision, features of visitor interest) which provide visitor or local appeal. This
applies in all settings, from the Powys towns through to the deep rural countryside.
15.46 It is also important that the function and operation of such facilities and
services should not be adversely impacted or impeded by new residential
development. Where a proposed development has potential to impact upon a tourist
attraction, service or facility it should be demonstrated and justified in the DAS (or
Planning Statement) that there will be no resulting detrimental impacts.
15.47
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 6 - Working with the site and its
context .

39

Page 232

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.48 DM13 (5.):
5. THE LAYOUT OF DEVELOPMENT CREATES ATTRACTIVE, SAFE
PLACES, SUPPORTING COMMUNITY SAFETY AND CRIME PREVENTION.
15.49 Local authorities are under a legal obligation (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) to
consider the need to prevent and reduce crime and disorder in all decisions they
take (PPW10). Nonetheless safe environments should not compromise on design
quality.
15.50 TAN12 recognises that good design results in crime prevention – the way in
which development is designed to protect property by allowing for natural
surveillance; improving the community’s and individual’s safety by reducing conflicts
in uses; and promoting a sense of ownership and responsibility. Secured by Design
is a well established initiative which involves the police working with planners and
those in the development industry to “design out crime” in a multitude of ways.
15.51 Good design of the public realm (the space that is accessible physically,
visually and culturally to the public) ensures high quality, attractive and safe streets
and spaces for all members of society. Designing safe and attractive places
therefore includes consideration of the open space and amenity space within and/or
nearby the development. The separate SPG on Open Space (supporting Policy
DM3) is relevant as is DM13 Criterion 8 (discussed below).
15.52 The Practice Guidance on Sustainable Buildings (2014) identifies that good
site layout provides a framework for sustainable buildings and adds value to the
spaces between them. To help to maximise the sustainable benefits from the
opportunities available the guidance recommends that developers holistically
consider the following aspects of site layout:









Network and hierarchy of routes
Green infrastructure
Enhancing biodiversity
Site wide water management and drainage
Connections to district heating networks
Orientation and solar access
Parking and transport
Density

15.53 In creating attractive and safe places, It is important that developments are
designed to make it easy for people to find their way around. This is known as
legibility. Developers should aim to “create a network of well defined streets and
spaces with clear routes, local landmarks and marker features” as these features
mean that people will notice and remember them as it will be easier to retain a
mental map of the place” (BfL 12).
15.54 The design guidance in Appendix 3 explains how legible development inputs
into creating a positive image and “sense of place” and BfL standards also
recognise how the design and position of buildings can create well defined streets
and spaces which are essential to creating an attractive residential environment.
40

Page 233

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.55 Good urban design means that streets are designed in a way that
encourages low vehicle speeds, allowing the street to function as a social space.
This principle also includes designing homes that offer both good natural
surveillance (contributing to the safety and vitality of the street) and attractive well
designed (detail, craftsmansip and build quality) frontages which enhance both the
kerb appeal of the homes whilst contributing to a visually interesting street. The
design of streets will need to comply with Manual for Streets and Active Travel
Design Guidance (see Criterion 10.).
15.56 Sufficient and well-designed car parking also has an important impact on the
attractiveness and safety of the street.
15.57 TAN12 (in section 5.11) recognises that where and how cars are parked can
be a major factor in the quality of a development and advises that vehicles should
not be allowed to dominate the space or inconvenience pedestrians and cyclists,
although the needs of disabled people to park near their dwellings should be
acknowledged.
15.58 The external storage arrangement for bins, recycling stores, vehicles and
cycles can, unless well-designed, adversely impact upon the quality of the street
scene.
15.59
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 7 - Creating well defined streets
and spaces, Principle 8 - Easy to find your way around, Principle 9 – Streets
for all, Principle 10 - Car parking and Principle 12 - External storage and
amenity space.

41

Page 234

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.60 DM13 (6.):
6. IT CONTAINS AN APPROPRIATE MIX OF DEVELOPMENT THAT
RESPONDS TO LOCAL NEED, INCLUDES A FLEXIBILITY IN DESIGN TO
ALLOW CHANGES IN USE OF SUBSEQUENT BUILDINGS AND SPACES AS
REQUIREMENTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE.
15.61 Residential schemes, where sufficiently large, should provide a mix of tenures
and property types to encourage the development of a diverse community with living
opportunities for all members of society. Wherever possible there should be a mix
of uses, and variety and choice in types of properties and places.
15.62 LDP housing Policy H3 requires that development provides a suitable mix of
housing types and the Plan’s Affordable Housing policies ensure that, in suitable
circumstances, a proportion of new homes are secured as “affordable in perpetuity”
for the benefit of local people who are not able to afford market housing to buy or
rent in the area. Negotiations at the planning application stage will determine how
many affordable homes are to built and if homes are to be affordable homes for sale
or rent (see Affordable Housing SPG, October 2018).
15.63 Ensuring that a site has a range of dwelling sizes will provide for the housing
needs of a wide cross section of the population and will help to install a balanced
community in the new neighbourhood. The Council will have regard to the
comments made by the Housing Department/Affordable Housing Officer in
determining planning applications and deciding upon whether the proposed
development offers a suitable mix to meet the needs of a given locality. The Council
will use evidence, including the findings of the Local Housing Market Assessment, in
order to seek and secure the most appropriate range and mix of new housing for a
site.
15.64 Developers are encouraged to consider whether there are opportunities to
provide other uses, in addition to residential, that will make the development more
self-contained, reducing the need for car use; and/or provide facilities and services
(e.g. shops, offices, workspaces) that will make the local area more sustainable.
Use can be mixed vertically as well as horizontally (e.g. consider residential above
ground floor office use).
15.65 Given the ageing population of Powys coupled with the problems of housing
supply and housing affordability including for first time buyers, the Council will look to
ensure that developers have particular regard to the general need for more smaller
homes (one and two bedroom including single storey designs) across the County.
Developers are also encouraged to investigate the scope for specialist
accommodation (e.g. for retirement and/or sheltered housing, assisted living, cooperative and community led housing schemes, live/work units, self-build
opportunities etc).
15.66 In terms of flexibility, the Lifetime Homes concept is an industry standard
(and a Welsh Government requirement for homes that have public funding) which
centres on 16 design criteria to ensure that homes are built with design features

42

Page 235

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

which add to the comfort and convenience of the home and supports the changing
needs of individuals and families at different stages of life.
“Lifetime Homes are all about flexibility and adaptability; they are not ‘special’, but
are thoughtfully designed to create and encourage better living environments for
everyone. From raising small children to coping with illness or dealing with reduced
mobility in later life, Lifetime Homes make the ups and downs of daily living easier to
manage”. (Lifetimehomes.org.uk).
Developers may wish to follow the Lifetime Homes criteria as good practice.
15.67
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 4 – Meeting local housing
requirements.

43

Page 236

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.69 DM13 (7.)
7. IT IS INCLUSIVE TO ALL, MAKING FULL PROVISION FOR PEOPLE WITH
DISABILITIES.
15.70 Development proposals must address the issues of inclusivity and
accessibility for all. This includes making provision to meet the needs of people with
sensory, memory, learning and mobility impairments, older people and people with
younger children (PPW, 3.6).
15.71 The Welsh Government guidance on Design and Access Statements (2017)
has a useful appendix which sets out the principles of inclusive design (insert link).
This is replicated in Appendix 6.
15.72 Development proposals can be assessed against the five identified principles.
A development which offers good inclusive design will:

Place people at the heart of the design process

Acknowledge diversity and difference

Accommodate all users

Provide for flexibility in use

Provide buildings and environments that are convenient, enjoyable and
safe to use for everyone
15.73 The Lifetime Homes concept (see 15.66) is centred on providing residential
development designed with flexibility and adaptability in mind to accommodate
changing circumstances and ensuring that homes are accessible to all including
anyone who’s disabled.
15.74 Both the Building Regulations and the Planning regimes (including through
Design and Access Statements - see 9.4) stipulate requirements for developers to
design inclusive accessible development.
15.75
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 8 - Easy to find your way around
and Principle 9 – Streets for all.

44

Page 237

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.76 DM13 (8.)
8. IT INCORPORATES ADEQUATE AMENITY LAND, TOGETHER WITH
APPROPRIATE LANDSCAPING AND PLANTING.
15.77 All development proposals should incorporate an area(s) for passive,
informal recreation appropriate to the scale and type of the proposal. Informal
amenity areas within housing developments provide opportunities for communities to
interact and meet and greet, passers by to stop and chat. They should be
overlooked (natural surveillance) to increase security and avoid nuisance issues.
Amenity: The pleasant or normally satisfactory aspects of a location which
contribute to its overall character and the enjoyment of residents or visitors.
15.78 PPW (3.6) recognises that good design can encourage people to meet and
interact with each other, helping to address issues surrounding loneliness.
15.79 Well designed and appropriate landscaping and planting can contribute to
biodiversity and environmental sustainability whilst supporting healthy and active
lifestyles and improving the amenity value of a place and its surroundings.
15.80 In respect of housing developments of 10 or more dwellings, developers
must have regard to the provision of new (or potentially the improvement of existing)
Public Open Space (Policy DM3) to serve the development. The Council’s Open
Space Assessment identifies existing provision for different categories of open space
for towns and large villages. More detail is provided in the adopted Planning
Obligations SPG (October 2018) and the Open Space SPG. which is being
published consecutively with this Residential Design Guide.
15.81 Applicants are advised that Open Space should not be interpreted solely as
Play Space and the different typologies for Open Space have an important role in
offering multifunctional benefits, such as contributing to the green infrastructure
network and/or providing for sustainable drainage whilst creating an attractive
environment which promotes residents health and well being and improves quality of
life.
15.82 In planning for amenity land or other open space provision, developers are
expected to consider how the space can support green infrastructure. This is
because elements of green infrastructure contribute to sustainable placemaking in a
variety of ways including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Providing useable green space to encourage activity and healthy living
Improving biodiversity and habitat connectivity
Dealing with drainage and reducing surface water run-off
Plants absorbing carbon dioxide
Green spaces being used to enhance micro-climate, providing shading and
evaporative cooling
Identifying and protecting space for growing food
Providing amenity space for social interaction and play to promote well-being
45

Page 238

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.83 In designing landscaping, applicants should also consider opportunities for
habitat creation such as:
-

Creating ponds with gently sloping bank profiles to encourage
colonisation by native flora and fauna
Increasing tree planting with native species.
Creating hedges on banks to act as natural boundary treatments.

15.84
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 11 – Public and private spaces.

46

Page 239

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.85 DM13 (9.) and DM13 (10.)
9. THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY NETWORK OR OTHER RECREATION
ASSETS LISTED IN POLICY SP7 (3) ARE ENHANCED AND INTEGRATED
WITHIN THE LAYOUT OF THE DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL; OR
APPROPRIATE MITIGATION MEASURES ARE PUT IN PLACE WHERE
NECESSARY.
10. THE DEVELOPMENT HAS BEEN DESIGNED AND LOCATED TO
MINIMISE THE IMPACTS ON THE TRANSPORT NETWORK - JOURNEY
TIMES, RESILIENCE AND EFFICIENT OPERATION - WHILST ENSURING
THAT HIGHWAY SAFETY FOR ALL TRANSPORT USERS IS NOT
DETRIMENTALLY IMPACTED UPON. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SHOULD
MEET ALL HIGHWAY ACCESS REQUIREMENTS, (FOR ALL TRANSPORT
USERS), VEHICULAR PARKING STANDARDS AND DEMONSTRATE THAT
THE STRATEGIC AND LOCAL HIGHWAY NETWORK CAN ABSORB THE
TRAFFIC IMPACTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT WITHOUT ADVERSELY
AFFECTING THE SAFE AND EFFICIENT FLOW OF TRAFFIC ON THE
NETWORK OR THAT TRAFFIC IMPACTS CAN BE MANAGED TO
ACCEPTABLE LEVELS TO REDUCE AND MITIGATE ANY ADVERSE
IMPACTS FROM THE DEVELOPMENT.
15.86 Criteria 9. and 10. can be considered together as both relate to transport and
travel. Criterion 9. aims to ensure that Powys’ strategic recreational assets are
protected whilst the benefits they offer towards sustainable infrastructure and active
travel are utilised and maximised. Criterion 10. concerns the efficiency and safety of
our highways which should not be compromised by new development.
15.87 Highway safety will be a major determinant of an acceptable scheme and in
many cases will impact upon design and layout. The LDP has separate transport
policies to be considered alongside DM13. Policy T1 (Transport – Travel, Traffic and
Transport Infrastructure) should be read in conjuction with Policy DM13, including
the R.J. to DM13 at 4.2.80 – 4.2.83.
15.88 The Highways Authority response on planning applications or pre-application
planning enquiries will be guided by the following documents (or any revision/
replacement):
•

Manual for Streets 1 & 2

•

CSS Wales Parking Standards

•

PCC Highway Design Guide

•

Active Travel Design Guidance

15.89 The Sustainable Transport Hierarcy of national planning policy (Figure 8 of
PPW - Figure 3 below) aims to prevent car-dependent developments in
unsustainable locations, and supports the delivery of schemes located, designed
and supported by infrastructure which prioritises access and movement by active
and sustainable transport. Formally introduced into land-use planning by edition
10 of PPW, all new development MUST take account of the Hierarchy which
47

Page 240

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

prioritises walking, cycling and public transport ahead of the private motor
vehicle. It is a key principle to be taken into account in both preparing development
plans and in the consideration and determination of planning applications.
15.90 Active Travel can be facilitated by new developments which are carefully
designed to ensure “efficient lines” are created through a development integrating
new pathways with existing and potential off-site links, for example providing
footpath/cycleway links, stiles, gates, bridges, signposting etc. In some cases it will
be appropriate for this to be achieved through the enhancement of the existing
PROW network. The Council’s network mapping of Active Travel routes inclues both
Existing (ERM) and aspiration (INM) routes. Site development proposals/layout/
suitability may be affected by network mapping and if so, the Planning response will
be informed by discussions with the Council’s Travel Officer.
Figure 3 - The national sustainable transport hierarchy for planning

15.91 Design and Access Statements (or supporting Planning Statements) can be
used to show how the design of a scheme has responded to the hierarchy as well as
demonstrating how the design of streets has responded to urban design principles.
15.92 Welsh Government stress that rigid design standards are not appropriate if
they lead to poor quality residential design and instead require that “planning
authorities must ensure the design of streets contributes to the creation of highquality places, which will require a multi-disciplinary approach, and should challenge
development proposals with standardised, prescriptive, engineering-focussed,
risk-adverse street design” (PPW, 4.1.22). The design of new or enhanced streets
should therefore respond to urban design principles, including those in Manual for
Streets and the Active Travel Design Guidance.

48

Page 241

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.93 Active Travel Design Guidance is statutory and complements the Active
Travel Act. The guidance sets out the standards expected of new and improved
active travel infrastructure in Wales, including related facilities, and the
considerations to be taken into account when choosing the design solutions for
particular routes and sites. It also sets out effective approaches to planning walking
and cycling networks and includes audit tools to assess existing infrastructure and
future routes for their suitability. The network mapping of existing and aspiration
Active Travel routes may impact upon the suitability of a site for development and/or
inform the type of infrastructure provision or improvements requested by the Council.
15.94 At the planning application (or pre-planning) stage, the planning decision will
be informed by consultation with the Council’s Highways and Travel Officers.
Requisite highways improvements are most often controlled by planning conditions.
Off site works usually need to be secured by planning obligation.
15.95 Allocated housing sites may already have identified highways issues – The
details in Appendix 1 of the LDP should be checked.
15.96 The design of development should be such that it encourages residents to
both reduce car dependency and make use of sustainable travel opportunities and
recreational provision in support of healthy active lifestyles. BfL Principle 2 (Facilities
and Services) asks developers to provide “access for all” and encourage walking,
cycling or using public transport to reach community facilities where they are locally
available. Good design improves the quality of connections rather than creating
barriers and wherever possible developers should provide safe, convenient and
attractive routes between homes and public transport routes to encourage it’s use.
15.97 Ultra Low Emission Vehicles (ULEV) are prioritised above other private motor
vehicles in the transport hierarchy. Therefore ULEV charging should always be
considered within new residential development. Developers may be keen to
voluntarily provide their homes with these facilities for reasons of future-proofing
which may also increase sales interest.
15.98 In accordance with PPW10 (4.1.42) “The provision of ULEV charging points
should be planned as part of the overall design of a development. Charging points
must not cause an obstruction to walking or cycling, should be resistant to
vandalism, and located where there is good lighting and natural surveillance”.
15.99 It is of note that in the case of new non-residential development the Welsh
Government now expect Council’s to seek a minimum of 10% car parking spaces
with ULEV charging points.
15.100
The Council can require new/improved infrastructure provision by
means of planning obligation where the legal tests for seeking an obligation are met.
See Policy DM1 and the Planning Obligations SPG. This may include
improvements in respect of Active Travel routes in support of the Sustainable
Transport Hierarchy.

49

Page 242

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 1 - Connections, Principle 2 –
Facilities and services, Principle 3 – Public Transport, Principle 7 – Creating
well defined streets and spaces, Principle 9 – Streets for all and Principle 10
– Car parking.

50

Page 243

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.101

DM13 (11.)

11. THE AMENITIES ENJOYED BY THE OCCUPANTS OR USERS OF
NEARBY OR PROPOSED PROPERTIES SHALL NOT BE UNACCEPTABLY
AFFECTED BY LEVELS OF NOISE, DUST, AIR POLLUTION, LITTER, ODOUR,
HOURS OF OPERATION, OVERLOOKING OR ANY OTHER PLANNING
MATTER.
15.102
The creation and promotion of healthier places is one of the key
national sustainable place making outcomes.
15.103
At the individual level, houses should be designed to ensure that there
are no adverse affects on privacy and amenity.
The design standards in the householder section (Part 3) in respect of the
amenity, privacy and overlooking criteria should be applied to all proposed housing
development (see adopted Guidance Note 2 and 2a, e.g. minimum distances of
separation, design to prevent overshadowing/overbearing impact on neighbouring
homes).
15.104
It is recognised that poorly planned bins and recycling stores can
cause problems for residents and detract from the quality of the street scene. The
BfL 12 principles recommend that storage for bins and recycling items should be
carefully planned so as to be convenient and fully integrated.
15.105
In terms of nuisance issues such as noise, dust, odour and air
pollution, at the planning application (or pre-planning) stage, the planning decision
will be informed by consultation with the Council’s Environmental Health Department.
15.106
Developers may enrol with the voluntary “considerate constructors
scheme” standards to show their commitment to reducing nuisance/inconvenience
during the building phase of new housing. Furthermore, the Royal Town Planning
Institute have published practice guidance on “Planning for Construction Safety” in
response to issues surrounding safety and congestion from construction traffic.
15.107
In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 6 – Working with the site and its
context.

51

Page 244

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.108

DM13 (12.)

12. ADEQUATE UTILITY SERVICES EXIST OR WILL BE PROVIDED READILY
AND TIMELY WITHOUT UNACCEPTABLE ADVERSE EFFECT ON THE
SURROUNDING ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITIES.
15.109
This criterion will mainly be addressed early in the site analysis and
design process as utility services will be an essential requirement for any new home.
In determining planning applications the Council will have regard to the comments
which arise from public and statutory consultation including those received from
water and sewerage undertakers and from Natural Resources Wales as well as
comments from the Council’s Environmental Health team.
15.110
Utility providers forward plan on a rolling basis using evidence from the
adopted plan (i.e. the housing land allocations) and by recording other sites with a
“live” planning permission. Upgrades required to public infrastructure (e.g. waste
water treatment works) are identified and phased by the providers but these may
need to be constructed and ready before a development is deemed acceptable for
planning permission to ensure that new development is timed appropriately in
accordance with the available infrastructure provision. Alternatively, when granting
permission, the Council may use planning conditions to ensure that housing delivery
is phased to accord with infrastructure availability. Where infrastructure constraints
of this nature are known for the LDP allocated sites, they are detailed in Appendix 1
of the Plan. In relevant circumstances the Council may use Policy DM1 (Planning
Obligations) to secure essential infrastructure to serve the proposed site – see the
separate Planning Obligations SPG.
15.111
In the case of non-mains foul drainage, which should occur only where
connection to the main sewer is not feasible, the Council’s Environmental Health
Officers will advise on acceptability in accordance with the criteria set out in relevant
guidance (currently Welsh Government Circular CIR 008/2018 - Planning
requirements in respect of the use of private sewerage in new development,
incorporating septic tanks and small sewage treatment plants) concerning effects on
the environment, amenity and public health in the locality.
15.112
In assessing provisions for sewerage, the Council will expect
developers to comply with the hierarchy set out in the Circular which provides for:
1.
2.

3.

4.

firstly, a presumption for foul drainage discharging into a public sewer;
secondly, where the Council is satisfied that connection to a public
sewer is not feasible taking into account cost and/or practicability, a
presumption for a package sewage treatment plant;
thirdly, a system incorporating a septic tank(s) only where the above
options are clearly demonstrated by the developer as not feasible
taking into account cost and/or practicability;
and finally, cesspools which are not a sustainable, long term solution
for sewage provision and are last in the hierarchy for consideration.

15.113
Developers are expected to discuss proposed sewage disposal
arrangements for a development before a planning application is made, Circular
52

Page 245

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

008/2018 advises that discussions should take place with the Council (planning
authority), Natural Resources Wales and the sewerage undertaker.
15.114
In designing private sewerage treatment solutions, developers should
request a “Drainage Field Siting and Percolation Test Calculation Form”** from
the Council’s Environmental Health department. This process involves percolation
tests which must be undertaken to prove the site’s suitability at the pre-application
stage. Failure to supply the required details will mean that a planning decision
cannot be made in the absence of the relevant information and the risk of a planning
refusal on the grounds of insufficient information.
**For ease of access, the Council will try to publish this pro-forma on the LDP pages
alongside the final SPG. This note to be removed in final document, Nb. Remember to
publish doc!.

53

Page 246

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.115

DM13 (13.)

13. IT DEMONSTRATES A SUSTAINABLE AND EFFICIENT USE OF
RESOURCES BY INCLUDING MEASURES TO ACHIEVE:
i. ENERGY CONSERVATION AND EFFICIENCY.
ii. THE SUPPLY OF ELECTRICITY AND HEAT FROM RENEWABLE
SOURCES.
iii. WATER CONSERVATION AND EFFICIENCY.
iv. WASTE REDUCTION.
v. THE PROTECTION, WHERE POSSIBLE, OF SOILS, ESPECIALLY
IMPORTANT CARBON SINKS SUCH AS THICK PEAT DEPOSITS.
15.116
Criterion 13. seeks to secure sustainable residential design. As
recommended by TAN12, developers are referred to the WG Practice Guidance on
Planning for Sustainable Buildings (July 2014). The publication is available on-line
through the Welsh Government and DCFW websites. This guidance summarises
the benefits of good sustainable design as including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Efficient use and management of materials and natural resources
Long life buildings which cost less to maintain and hold their value
Good energy performance which reduces consumption, wasted energy,
expensive bills and running costs for businesses and residents alike
Good, comfortable places to live and work which support well-being and aid
workforce productivity
Healthcare environments where patient experience is better and recovery
times are faster
Education environments that enhance learning outcomes
Good homes, neighbourhoods and green spaces that support quality of life,
well-being and public health
Improved biodiversity and landscape networks
Greater access to green infrastructure which encourages healthy, active
lifestyle
Excellent development practice which is good for business and property
values

15.117
Housing may be built to recognised Eco-homes standards in the
industry. The general term ecohome can encompass a number of different house
types/construction methods or sustainable housing design but means essentially that
the dwelling by design and construction minimises its environmental impact.
15.118
National planning policy also supports low-impact One Planet homes
(more information can be found in TAN6) as an exception to general house building
policy. These are unique to Wales. One Planet homes must be zero carbon in
construction and use and prove that they will have a reduced ecological footprint.

54

Page 247

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.119
All new development is expected to mitigate the causes of climate
change in accordance with the energy hierarchy for planning (Figure 9 of PPW Figure 4 below). To support the hierarchy, PPW (5.8.3) advises that sustainable
building design principles should be integral to the design of new
development. Development proposals should:
•
•

Mitigate the causes of climate change, by minimising carbon and other
greenhouse gas emissions associated with the development’s location,
design, construction, use and eventual demolition; and
Include features that provide effective adaptation to, and resilience against,
the current and predicted future effects of climate change

Figure 4 - The national energy hierarchy for planning

15.120
It is Welsh Government policy to secure zero carbon buildings and
whilst the country moves towards these the Government continues to promote a
range of low and zero carbon technologies. PPW (5.8.1) clarifies that the planning
system should support new development that has very high energy
performance, supports decarbonisation, tackles the causes of climate change
and adapts to the current and future effects of climate change.
15.121
Building Regulations stipulate various energy and resource efficiency
measures. PPW (5.8.6) reminds developers to take into account future requirements
for carbon reduction in new buildings, as a result of changes to Building Regulations
in Wales, when designing their schemes. Being mindful of any future changes will
ensure design aspects of requirements are considered as early as possible. Other
Building Regulations requirements, for example the mandatory requirement for
automatic fire suppression systems in Wales, must also be considered early in the
design stage.

55

Page 248

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.122
The separate adopted SPG on Renewable Energy (April 2019)
contains guidance on renewable energy opportunities for district heating and on
micro-generation (which may benefit from domestic permitted development rights).
15.123
In terms of water conservation and management issues, since January
2019, all new developments of more than 1 house or where the construction
area is of 100m2 or more require sustainable drainage to manage on-site surface
water. Surface water drainage systems (SuDs) MUST be designed and built in
accordance with mandatory standards for sustainable drainage published by Welsh
Ministers. The primary legislation is found in Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water
Management Act (FWMA) 2010.
15.124
PPW confirms the provision of SuDS must be considered as an integral
part of the design of new development and considered at the earliest possible stage
when formulating proposals for new development. Design for multiple benefits and
green infrastructure should be secured wherever possible.
15.125
Schemes must be SuDs approved before development commences.
For schemes in Powys, the Council are the SuDs Approval Body although the
system is not managed by the planning department. Further guidance is available
from:
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-BodySAB
15.126
Early consideration of SuDs is essential to ensure that the
development, when designed with SuDs in mind, meets the test of high quality
design and that all the relevant issues are looked at holistically. The Land Drainage
SPG (April 2020) will offer further guidance.
New para
Water companies encourage the use of SuDs in new developments to
manage surface water and recommend that wherever possible on brownfield sites,
the re-development should include the separation of surface water from the
combined sewerage system.
New para
In terms of water efficiency, to reduce overall domestic water
consumption, developers should consider installing water efficient fittings in all areas
of the property (kitchen, bathrooms and shower rooms, supplying external water
butts etc). Water companies can provide recommendations and may offer incentives
to developers who build properties designed to consume less than the maximum
volume of water per person per day specified in Building Regulations.
15.127
In terms of waste reduction and waste management, developers
should have regard to advice in PPW, including section 5.12 (Design Choices to
Prevent Waste).
15.128

In connection with this criterion, the Council recommends that developers
consider BfL 12 (see section 6.2) Principle 6 – Working with the site and its
context.
56

Page 249

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

15.129

DM13 (14.)

14. INVESTIGATIONS HAVE BEEN UNDERTAKEN INTO THE TECHNICAL
FEASIBILITY AND FINANCIAL VIABILITY OF COMMUNITY AND/OR DISTRICT
HEATING NETWORKS WHEREVER THE DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL’S HEAT
DEMAND DENSITY EXCEEDS 3MW/KM2 .

15.130
This criterion has not been considered further in this SPG as it is
addressed in the Plan’s R.J. (4.2.92-4.2.95) and supported by section 7.10 in the
adopted Renewable Energy SPG (April 2019).

57

Page 250

CONSULTATION DRAFT Powys LDP Residential Design SPG, July 2019 Powys LDP Residential Design
SPG, November 2019

PART 3:
16.

GUIDANCE ON HOUSEHOLDER DEVELOPMENT

Householder development and householder permitted development rights

16.1 An existing single home can often be altered or extended under householder
permitted development rights (enabling development without the requirement for a
planning application). Guidance can be found at:
https://beta.gov.wales/planning-permission-permitted-development-rightshouseholders
16.2 Unless the proposed development is classed as permitted development, a
planning application will be required. Development that requires a Householder
Planning Application should be designed taking into account the following attached
design guidance:
Guidance Note 1:
Guidance Note 2:
Guidance Note 3:
Guidance Note 4:
Guidance Note 5:
Guidance Note 6:
Guidance Note 7:
Guidance Note 8:
Guidance Note 9:
Guidance Note 10:

Understanding your house and area
Extensions and conservatories
Garages and outbuildings
Dormer windows and rooflights
Boundary Treatments
Planting
Providing for access and parking
Raised platforms
Resource efficiency
Crime prevention

16.3 Householders exercising their permitted development rights may also find the
principles in the guidance notes helpful.
Review Appendix 4 (including general design requirements):
Pg 100 – no reference to timber – preferred materials should include timber
Appendix 4 comments: should not include chimney stacks – it defeats energy
efficiency aims; re: acceptable roof pitches (outdated?); stone, slate or brick cills
(rather curious); Flemish brick bond criteria - reconsider these as design guidance
that increases costs risks housing delivery.
Presteigne Area Centre (Town) Appraisal – review – review all Town Appraisals?
Compulsory standards – requiring chimney stacks, unnecessary, wasting land,
space and materials. Design criteria (eg two and three storey) doesn’t enable
bungalows which are needed, appraisal precludes eco homes, 3 metre maximum set
back conflicts with parking requirements?
Reduce Length and number of Appendices Overall:
Recommendation: The Council will review the whole SPG and assess whether it
can contain more cross-references/signposting to avoid repetition and reduce the
length of the document/number of appendices.
58

Page 251

This page is intentionally left blank

